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Pearson at a glance

Financial hightights

Sales

£4.5bn
-5%

IMAGE REMOVED

Adjusted operating profit

£723m
-3%

IMAGE REMOVED

Average annual growth m
headline terms 2010-2015

Adjusted earmings per share
1.9%
- - O

Operating cash flow IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

-16.3%

+6.1%

@ To read about our KPis goto pt4

Throughout this repart growth rates are stated oh a canstant exchange rate (CER) basis unless otherwise stated Where quoted, underlying
growthrates exclude both currency movementsand portfoflo changes
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AboutPearson

Strateglcreport

01

Pearson is the world’s learning company, with
global capabilities in educational courseware

and assessment, based on a strong portfolio of
products and services, powered by technology.

We believe that our strategy of combining

these core capabilities with services enable our
partners to scale online, reach more people and
ensure better learning outcomes, providing
Pearson with a larger market opportunity, a
sharper focus on the fastest-growing education
markets and stronger financial returns.

Our mission is to help people make progress
through access to better learning. We believe
that learning opens up opporiunities, creating
fulfilling careers and better lives.

Thus strategic report s formed of three sections ‘Our bustness’,
Qur performance’ and ‘Sccal impact’, {p02-67), and was approved
forissue by the board on 4 March 2016 and signed onits behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED

Coram Williams
Chief financial officer
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Chairman’s introduction

Sidney Tauref
Chairman

IMAGE REMOVED

“My focus will be on helping
guide Pearson back to growth,
supporting the management
team and all of our employees
in our mission: to help more
people make progress in their
lives through learning.”

Dear shareholders,
| am proud to Introduce our annual report for the first
time as Pearson's chairman

My predecessor, Glen Moreno, made a major
contribution to Pearson during s long and successful
tenure as charman am sure my feflow shareholders
wall join me in thanking Glen and wishing him all the
best for the future

This 1s an important time to be jointng Pearson
Our 2015 performance was not what we would
have wanted, and we now have a plan in place to
return the company to growth

The company has a strong purpose at its heart, and has
made great strnides in focusing on education My own
facus will be on helping guide Pearson back to growth,
supporting the management team and all of our
employees in our mission to help more people make
progress in their Iives through learning

Qur immedsate prionities

This 1s a challenging time for businesses in glabal
education, with rapid changes taking place i the sector
mgitai technology 1s revolutionising education justas it
has all other aspects of the way we work, communicate
and do business In an era of constrained spending,
there is a big productivity challenge, as governments
and education leaders seek to achieve better outcomnes

at the same or iower cost Thevalue of a university
degree continues to grow, but many students and
institutions face cost pressures These changes offer
big opportunities for Pearsan, but also present risks
and transitions that we will need to manage insome
of our traditionally strong businesses

With these factors in mind, mymmediate priorities
are clear

>l will be supporting our management teamto

ensure thatwe stay focused on our biggest strategic
growth objectives

»1 wilt offer guidance to help them to make further

progress on simplifying and integrating the business
We need to make sure that Pearson is better able to
leverage our assets, skills, and technology platforms
in order to deploy our products globaily

>{wifl be supporting the team to ensure that capital

1s allocated in a way that provides hetter returns for
shareholders, ultimately creating a better, more
sustainable company for the future

We will engage transparently with shareholders on
our capital allocation plans and progress against our
strategic goals, as wel! as on allimportant issues

. We plan to hold our dividend at the 2015 level whilewe

rebuid cover, reflecting the board's confidence in the
medwm-term outiook for our business, and we are
committed to increasing total shareholder returns

These priorities require strong leadership,
dedication and hard work from me, the board,
and the management team

Our leadership team

We have continued to enhance the strength and depth

of our board, mcluding the appointment of Coram Willlams
as our chief financial officer Coram has a decade’s
experience working directly for Pearson and helped to
lead our joint venture, Penguin Random House, through

a successful company integration as its first CFO

Like me, Lincoln Wakien joined the board on 1 January
2016 Lincoln is chief technology officer for DreamWerks
Animation, and his appointment further strengthens
our digital capabilities Like thousands of Pearson
employees across the globe, he alsohas a background
n education and teaching

We have an experienced executive team, and committed
employees around the world | look forward to working with
John Fallon and the executive team to deliver our agenda

Read more about our board on pages 7273 @
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Share price performance

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

Source Datastreamto 31 December 2015

Total shareholder return (TSR)

See p‘ldo

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

Source Datastreamto 31 December 2015

Building a company for the future

| led EN Lilly, a business in the global health sector, as
CEC and Charr forten years see some clear parallels
between health and education that | believe provide
opportunires for Pearson

ttke health, educatton affects every atizen of the world
tn a deep and personalway Both sectors have seen
dramatic increases in the use of digital technologres
for the benefit of users —in our case, teachers and
students For us, this means personalised, adaptive
learning, with the ability to measure and improve
cutcomes at an individual level

Sowe are contnuing at pace on our rUsston to become
more digital and service-driven, and a simpler, better
integrated business, with efficacy at the heart of
everything we do Read more on our ongoing
commutment to efficacy on pages 46-53 ©

Pearson's future

Iwould ike to thank you for your continued support

of Pearson It has been atough 2015, and there are
undoubtedly challenges ahead Pearson s a company
with strong market positions, real competitive
advantage and a significant medium-term market
opportunity The board believes that the plans we are
enacting will help to butld on these strengths and enjoy
sustained growth

I see an exating future ahead for Pearson - as with
my experience in the health sector, | am inspired by
working in a cornpany with a strong sense of purpose
As charrman | arn fully focused on helping the
management team develop our strategy and deliver
long-term value for our students, customers and you,
our shareholders

IMAGE REMOVED

Sidney Taurel
Chairman

Read our full Governance section

Governance overview p70-71 °
Leadership & effectiveness p72-81Q
Accountabifity p82-29

Engagement p90-93°
Repart on directors remuneration p24-117Q

Additional disclosures p118-123 &
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Chief executive’s strategic overview

Dear shareholders,

2015 was a year of change and challenge at Pearson,
which ultrmatety will leave us better placed to meet
the huge unmet demands in global education

John Fallon
Chief executive

IMAGE REMOVED The biggest change was that, with the sale of the
Financlal Times Group and our stake in The Econormist,
we completed Pearson’s exit from the financial news
and information market We thought long and hard
about these disposals Itis not easy to part with such
globally respected brands, which have beenan
important part of Pearson for many years After
careful consideration, the board concluded that these
transactions made strateglc sense, achleved a guod
financial return for shareholders, and were in the best
long-term interest of both The Economist and the

Flnancial Times

“2015 was a year of change
and challenge at Pearson,
which ultimately will leave
us better placed to meet
the huge unmet demands
in global education.”

The pace of disruptive change in new technology -

in particular, the growth of mobile and social media -
poses a direct challenge to howleading news
organisations produce and sell their journahsm

The best way to ensure continuing successis to be part
of aglobal, digital news organisation that Is completely
focused on the business of journalism We conduded
that new owners with strong track records in media
would help growthe FT and The Economist’s global
reach and reputation in a digital age, just as we
secured Penguin's creative and commerclal future by
combining itwith Random House to create the world's
largest consumer publisher, Penguln Random House
That business, of which we own a 47% stake, continues
to performwell, as you can read on page 33

Our strategy

Short-term priorities Strategic growth drivers

Deliver transformation

Simplify our business

Stronger cash generation

A growing company

Digital & services

Build on our glabal strength
in educational courseware
and assessment with
leading digital products
and services, where wesee
the greatest potential for
growth, scalability and
impact on learner progress

Market presence,
Our strategy to build on our

leadng presence In developed

markets, and the spporiunity

to meet growing global demand

for education
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Challenges in 2015

A clear strategy

These disposals enable us to focus mare fully on our
education business, which was where we faced our
htggest challenge last year The cychical and policy
related headwinds we face 1n our major education
markets - which we have described in previous years
and which we cover later in this report - are persisting
for longer thanwe anticipated They are aiso having a
more prenounced impact on our profitability than we
expected, reducing our annual operating profit by
approximately £230mfrom its peak These headwinds
are largely cyclical and, over the next two years, they
should finally abate

This means that, aithough operating profit and earnings
per share were only down margimnally in underlying
terms on the previous year, they fell short of the geals
we set at the start of the year

Our strong competitive performance

Pearson's competitive performance remains strong
We held or increased our market share in higher
education courseware, school courseware, and 1n UK
general qualfications In professional testing, wirtual
schooling, online higher education and other areas
we increased our capabilities, our reach and our
commercial success substantlally You can read more
about our operating performance on pages 16-33

We are also confident that education remains an
attractive iInvestment opportunity with the growth
potential to enable us to serve more students around
the world and deliver good, sustainable returns to
our shareholders

Our strategy to capttalise on this apportumity Is clear
As the world's learning company, Pearson has world-
class capabilities and products in educational
courseware and assessment, powered by learning
technology By combining these capabiliies with
teaching and learning services, we help schools,
universities and others to scale online, reach more
people and ensure better learning cutcomes As we
do so, we provide Pearson with a larger market
opportunity, a sharper focus on the fastest-growing
education markets and stronger financial returns

This approach recognises that education is undergoing
anumber of structural changes The economic value
of an education remains farge In the US, for exampte,
the earnings premium of a university degree has never
been higher However, the cost of education 1s going up
faster than inflation — and pubhic funding for education
1s under real pressure This presents our customers -
university presidents, school superintendents,
teachers and facuity, students and their parents -

with a real challenge

It 1s compounded by the fact that rising costs have
not brought any real increases in learning outcomes -
which remarn uneven and variable - and there is an
alarming mismatch between the expectations of
educators and employers For example, according to
Gallup research from 2014, 96% of chief academic
officers in the US rate their nstitutton as somewhat
or very effective at preparing students for the world
of work Yetonly 11% of business leaders agree

Measurable gutcomes

Our efficacy programme s our

long term commuitment to dehivering
measurable Impact 't informs all
strategic decision making across
Pearson, including our product

and services strategy Wewll

begin reporting formally on this
tmpact from 2018

Our constant goals

Generate sustainable returns by

Delwvering long-term growth

Extending our global presence
andreach

Building on our leading
education position

To deliver measurable impact
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Chef executive’s strategic overview continued

Helping teachers to be more effective
and students more successful

We know that technology can help to address these
challenges, by making learning more accessible,
flexibte, personal and affordable Forexample, we
are drawing on the latest digital advances to develop
products which further customise and personaiise
learning So we are embedding learning analytics in
our new courseware offerings, such as Revel, to help
teachers use data to teach students more effectively

For students themselves, we are using adaptive
learning technologies to focus their studies on
concepts which require more time and attentjon

We are developing new qualifications and certifications
that help students to translate education into
employment by assessing career-relevant knowledge
and skills, providing quality assurance to schools,
universities and employers For example, last year we
ran nearly 50 mtllton practice or actual assessments
for students on digital devices in the US using our
TestNav application, aligning these new tests to

higher standards for career and college readiness

Online degree and virtual online school programmes
reprasent 10% of Pearson today, from nothing five
years ago - and are growing at double-digit rates each
year With a sohd platform and market position in the
US, we are now growing these businesses globally
With the global online programme management
market set to double in the next five years, thera will
be many more opportunities for Pearson to partner
withuniversities to improve learning

This opportunity is ughhghted through our tong-
standing partnership with Arizona State University,
where we are helping to recrui, retamn andteach
several thousand onfine students As more and more
universities and students embrace the possibilities
forimproving access and success in education using
technology, there will be many more opportunities for
Pearson to partner with institutions on course design,
student recruitment and online tuition

All of our new products and services are underpinned
by our efficacy approach, launched three years ago,
which is designed to ensure that we help teachers to
be more effactive, and students to be more successful
We are committed to reporting on the learning impact
of our individual products from 2018 onwards, through
independently audited evidence and reports We are
making good progress towards this target, as you can
read later in this report {pages 46-53)

Our success Inhelping our customners address these
structural changes in education should enable Pearson
toIncrease our average revenue per customer, and access
larger markets as we provide educational services far
broader than st stand-alone content or assessment To
make the most of the opportunity, we are making Pearson
a simpler, better integrated, more cost-efficient company

Sharpening the future

InJanuary we announced a series of actions that will
help us to achieve this goal

We are creating a single global product organisation,
combrning our three previously separate ines of business
We are mtegrating our school, chimical and professionat
assessment operations in North America Weare
reducing ourexposure to large, direct delivery operations
to focus on onling, virtual, and blended servicesin a
much more scalable, and profitable way Each ofthese
changes will help us invest in fewer, bigger opportunities,
and ensure that our world-class capabriities can be scaled
to customersaroundthe globe

We are also making productivity improvements across
all our enabling functions like Technology, HR and
Finance - as our product offering and customer and
employee support becomes more digital We plan to
rationahise our property portfolio and consohdate major
supplier agreements to drive greater cost efficiency

As a result of these changes, we expect to reduce
Pearson's global workforce by around 4,000 roles,

10% of our headcount These are decisions that we never
take hghtly and we are committed to supportng our
colleagues during the transition These actions will be
compiete by the end of 2016, and will reduce our annual
running costs by around £350m Importantly, they will
also create a more focused, integrated business, better
able to create and sell products across our markets to
improve learning outcomes. This restructuring will give
us the improved operational and financial flexibilty to
invest tn growth areas and underpin shareholder returns

Our reach and impact

Big changes in the education landscape will create big
opportunities for Pearson to grow our reach and impact

There are huge unmet demands in global education that
need to be addressed

In higher education, the number of students gomg to
university worldwide i1s expected to increase by more

than 50 million to 260 mylhion by 2025 Every one of those
students wants a degree that s more affordable, more
accessible and more fikely to lead to a good job One billion
people will soon be learning English worldwide School
students and teachers increasingly expect ta learn digitaliy
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Sowe plan to increase access to high quality education,
ensure the success of all aur learners against
measurable outcomes, and to help more people
around the world make progress in thew hves - giving
them the ability to secure a better job and a better life

Aswell as measuning the impact of individual products,
we should also be measuring Pearson's total impact on
learming We are committed t¢ ambitious goals to
expand our reach and impact over the next decade

We currently reach around 75 million fearners each year
By 2025, our aspirattanis to reach 200 million learners
each year - more than doubling our reach These
ambrtious goals will contribute not only to Pearson's
success, but to the societies of which we are a part

In 2015 Pearson joined other businesses and world
leaders In committing to the UN's Sustainable
Pevelopment Goals {(SDGs) The SDGs represent global
chalfenges, many of which can be alleviated through
better literacy and better education In particular,

Goal 4 of the SDGs, to ‘ensure inclusive and equitable
quahty education and promote lifelong opportuntties for
alf',1s central to the work of every Pearson employee
and the mihons of teachers and students we work with
around the world each year

To help maximise our contribution towards these goals,
1n 2015 we continued our strong commutrnent to
sustainability, built new relationships with partners

like Save the Children and supported a new coalitton
called Project Literacy {Read more about Pearson's
socal impact on pages 54-67)

We also invested in the Pearson brand in 2015 and

it continues as an area of focus inthe year ahead
Building a stranger brand will give us a better platform
toreach more students and teachers, and act as a mark
of quality as we develop and deliver new services across
educatton We have introduced a new visual brand
captuning the cuniosity and excitement of learning,
which will unify Pearson's portfolio of preducts and
services over time The new brand is represented in

this annual report for the first time

My executive team

Our long-term opportunity

s clear that 2016 wil! be a tough year as we work
through the substantial change programme outhined
above Our planfocuses on operational execution,
tight cost management and a sharper strategy to
return to growth We will be faster, leaner and more
agHe as a result of the changes we are making

We expect our business to stabiise inta 2017 and
return to growth in 2018

We remain committed to the long-term opportunity
for Pearson to provide high quaiity, afferdable and
accessible education thatleads to a better job and
abetter life For many people, learning is the route to
ajob to support their family er to acquinng the skills
to help them progress in their career For others, it's
simply a passion for discovery that enriches their lives
All over the warld, we hear parents say the same thing
they want to see a greater return on their nvestment
in education, so that their children can gain skills, get
better jobs and succeed tn therr lives That remains
avery compelling and exating opportunity

This power ful motivating purpose 1s what drives
Pearson's business, which carries with it great
responsibilities tolearners as well as to you, our
shareholders In 2016, we are focused on delivering
these responsibilities, and the plans laid outin this
report explain how they will be achveved We are
confident that they will ultimately make Pearson
asimpler, stronger company, and that they set the
company up for a sustained period of growth

We'll keep you updated on our progress

Thank you for your gngeing support

IMAGE REMOVED

John Falion
Chief executive

Coram Williams Chief Financal Officer

Michael Barber Chief Education Adwisor

Tim Bozik President Glabal Product

Rod Bristow President Core Markets

Grovann Giovannell President Growth Markets

Albert Hitchcock Chief Technology and Operations Officer
Kate James Chief Corporate Affairs Officer

Dan Kilburn President North America

Bob Whelan President Pearson Assessments

Melinda Wolfe Chief Human Resources Qfficer
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Our business model

Creating value by developing products and services that
meet learner needs most effectively

At the heart of this is our efficacy strategy which over the
long-term provides insight and data on the full impact of

our products and services.

From 2018 our efficacy programme will be reporting on this.

How our strategy aligns with value creation

Digital & services
Plan and develop

We combine our insights
mnto market need with our
global education expertise
This perspective informs

the planming and
development of all our
teaching and learning
products and services,
driven by technology,

and shapes those where

we place the greatest
mvestment

Market presence
Market, sell and serve
Our leading position in
educational courseware
and assessment enables
us to build our capabilities
in fast-growing related
services Weuse our
experience and expertise
across the business

to develop scalable,
successful products

and services, always
meeting learner needs

Measurable outcomes
Assessand

provide insight

We measure and assess
the impact of our products
and services on learner
outcomes This feeds

Into our global insights
capabilities, enabling

us to bulld a deep
understanding of learners’
and customers' needs,
and devetlop world-class
products and services

See a summary of cur strategy on p04-05 °
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Capture Insight
Exploring custorner
and learner needs to
identify opportunities

Develop strategy & plan
Major product divisions
integrated with geographic
markets to set strategic
priorities

Develop product
Developed with Insight from
geographies to address
specificiocal needs

IMAGE REMOVED

Assess impact

Measurning efficacy and
understanding the learner
informs all decisions made
through the cycle

Serve

Customer service and
support is ashared
responsibility with different
owners at different stages

Market & sell

Sales activity supported
with guidance from global
brand and marketing
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Financial overview

CoramWilliams
Chief finanaal officer

Business performance

Headline CER Underlying
£milltons 2015 2014 growth growth growth
Sales 4,468 4,540 (2% (5)% (2)%
{IMAGE REMOVED
Adjusted
operating
profit 723 722 - (3% {2)%
Adjusted
earmings
pershare 763p 667p 5%
Operating
“ 3
In 2015, Pearson’s sales cash flow 435 649 (3%
1 Netd 654) (1,639
decreased by £72m in et debt (654 (1639) 60%
headline terms to £4.5bn. Statutory results
: L] Headline CER Underlying
Tﬂtal adjusted Operatlng Emlians 3016 2014 growth growth  growth
)
profit rose £1m fo £723m. Sales 4468 4540 @M%
Operating
(loss)y/profit {404) 348
{Loss)/profit
Sales {at CER) before tax (433) 255
0 Profit for
_5 0 theyear 823 470 75%
Basic earnings
pershare 1M 2p 581p 74%
Adjusted earnings per share Cash
0 generated
+ 0 from
operations 518 704 (26)%
Dmidend
Cperating cash flow per share S2p S1p 2%
0)

—33 0 a} Growthratesare stated on a constant exchange rate {CER) basis
unless otherwise stated Where guoted, underlying growth rates
exclude both currency movements and portfolie changes Unless
otherwise stated sales exclude FT Group, while total adjusted

Drvidend per share operating profizs Include FT Group Continuing operations exclude

+2%

FTGroup

b) The‘businessperformance’ measures are #an-GAAP measures and
raconcillations to the equivalent statutory heading under IFRS are
incleded In notes to the consolidated financial statements 2,6, 7. 8
and 32, and the corporate and cperating measures
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Profit and loss statement

Return on invested capital

In 2015, Pearson's sales decreased by £72mn headline
terms to £4 Sbn Total adjusted operating profit rose
£1mto £723m (2014 £722m)

Currency movements, primarily from the depreciation
of sterling against the US dollar during the period,
Increased sales by £137m and operating profits

by £22m

At constant exchange rates (1 & stripping outthe
impact of those currency movements), our sales fell
by 5% primanly due to a change i revenue model at
Connections Education which now records revenues
charged at cost on a net basis, and adjusted operating
profit fell by 3% due to revenue mix and an operating
toss in our Growth segment

The net effect of acquisitions, disposals and revenue
madel adjustments reduced sales by £129m and
operating profits by £9m

Stripping out the impact of partfolio changes and
currency movements, revenues were down 2%
inunderlying terms while adjusted operating profit
fell 2%

Netinterest payable in 2015 was £46m, compared
to £64m 0 2014 Our tax rate in 2015 was 15 5%
compared to 17 9%1n 2014 The decrease in both
interest and tax was primanly due to agreement
on historical tax positions and the release of
associated accrued interest

Adjusted earnings per share were 70 3p {2014 66 7p)

Cash generation

Headline operating cash flow decreased by £214m to
£435m as a result of challenging trading and disposals
Operating cash conversion fell from 90% mn 2014 to 60%
N 2015 due to a mismatch between cash and accrued
incentive compensatlon as a result of lower incentive
compensation awards for 2015 when compared to
2014, capital expenditure greater than depreciation
due to investments 1n our enabling function technology
designed tolower administrative costs, anincrease

n US Higher Education textbook returns, and pension
top up payments as a result of a trienmial valuation
These factors were partly offset by an increased
dmidend payment from Penguin Random House

Our return on average invested capital was 5 8% (2014
5 6%) primarily due to lower operating cash tax paid

Statutory rasults

Our statutory results showed a profit for the year
after tax of £823m, including gains on the disposat

of the Finanaial Times Group, The Econormist Group
and PowerSchool of £1,214m and an impairment of
goodwill and intangibles of £849m, primanly reflecting
trading pressures in our Growth and Nerth America
businesses Included within the net gatn on disposal

1s a £70m balance sheet write down on the disposal

of PowerSchool, related to the reduced market
opportunity for software (such as Pearsan System

of Courses and Schogclnet) which was to be integrated
with PowerSchool and the recognition that adoption
of such software 1n US Schools 1s now unlikely to occur
at the rate originally envisaged

Balance sheet

$SUISNGQJNQY

uewiepad INQ

Qur net debt decreased to £654m (2014 £1,639m)
primanty reflecting the disposals of the Financial Times,
The Economust Group and PowerSchool and an
increased dividend from Penguin Random House,
offset by the strengthening of the US dollar relative to
sterhing, a higher group dividend and higher working
capital Pearson’s net debt/EBITDA ratio decreased
from 1 9x1n 2014 to 0 8xin 2015 and our interest cover
increased from 11 3xto 15 7x

Dividend

eduws jenos.ang

The Board 1s proposing a flat final dividend of 34p,
which results in a 2% increase in the overall 2015
dividend to 52p, subject to sharehoider approval

FIUBUIBAOE)
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Financial overview continued

2016 outlook

In 2016, we expect to report adjusted operating profit
before restructuring costs of between £580m and
£620m This reflects the impact of the in-year benefits
from restructuring offset by the loss of eperating profit
from disposals made tn 2015, ongoing challenging
conditions in our largest markets, the reinstaternent
of the employee incentive pocl and other operational
factors (including dual running costs as we rationalise
our technology infrastructure, cost inflation and
increased pre-publication amortisation relating to
new product launches)

We expect adjusted earnings per share to be between
50p and 55p, after a normalsed interest charge of
approximately £E60m and a tax rate of approximately
19% in 2016, we are exduding the one-off cost of our
major restructuring from adjusted operating profit and
earnings per share to hetter reflect the underlying
earnings potential of the business Operating profit
after restructuring charges 1s expected to ben the
£260m to £300m range This guidance 1s based on our
current portfoho of businesses and exchange rates on
31 December 2015

The major factors behind this gurdance are as follows

Trading conditions

While we expect to achieve continued good growthin
areas such as virtual schoofs and enline programme
management, we anticipate trading conditions to
remain challenging in our major marketsin 2016

North America

in North America, our largest market, we antiipate US
college enrolments will be flat given forecast modest
improvements In US emptoyment, a smalfer adoption
market in K-12 learning services and lower participation
rate partially offset by growth in openterritones driven
by new products, reduced testing revenuesin North
America reflecting State and National Assessment
contract losses worth approximately £100m announced
in 2015, and growth in clinical assessments and
professional certificabion

Core

In our Core markets (which include the UK, Italy and
Australia), we expect declines i vocational course
registrations in UK schools, ongoing pressureinour
varous learning services businesses, partially offset
by growth in managed services in Australia and the
UK At VUE, we will cease to deliver the contractto
adminuster the UK Driving Theory test far the DVSA
i September 2016

Growth

In our Growth markets {which include Brazil, China,
India and South Africa), we expect continued pressure
in South Africa on government spending on textbooks
and lower enrolments in CTl, macro-economic
pressures In emerging markets, specfically China

and Brazil, offset by growth from new products such
as our Wal! Street English new student experience

Penguin Random House

In Pengun Randorn House, we anticipate that
addittonal benefits from the cngoing integration

of the business will be broadly offset by reduced
demand for ebooks, following iIndustry-wide changes
in terms [n 2015
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Portfolio changes

We completed the sale of PowerSchool on 31 july
2015 for £222m, the sale of the Financial Times on

30 Novermnber 2015 for £858m, and substantially
completed the sale of our 50% stake in The Economust
Group on 16 Qctober 2015 for £469m In addition

we disposed of Fronter and a number of print
textbook hsts in the US Total disposals cantnibuted
approximately £90m to 2015 operating profit which
will not recur in 2016

Other operational factors

Dual running costs from technology implementations,
increased investment amortisation from new product
launches and cost inflation will increase costs by
approximately £90m in 2016 when compared to 2015

Incentive compensation

Group incentive compensation was zergin 2015
reflecting the weakness of performance versus budget
The incentive pool will be reinstated to £110m in 2016
to ensure our workforce 1s incentivised to sustainits
strong competitive performance and to implement a
significant programme of change within the company

Restructuring

Buiiding on the work we have done over the last three
years, we are taking further action to simplify our
bustiness, reduce our costs and position Pearson for
growthin our major markets Wewill create asingle
courseware product organisation, integrate our North
America assessment operations, reduce our exposure
to large scale direct delivery and focus on more scalable
online, virtual, and blended services, implement major
efficiency improvernents across all our enabling
functions - technology, finance, HR, and rationahse our
property portfolio and renegotiate and consolidate
major supplier agreements

To implement this programme, we willincur costs of
approximately £320rm in 2016 and expect to generate
annualised savings of approximately £350m, with
approximately £250m of savings in 2016 and a
further £100m of savings in 2017 We have already
implemented a number of significant assoclated
actions since announcing the programme inJanuary

Currency movements

in 2015, Pearsan generated approximately 63% of its
sales Inthe US, 6% in Greater China, 5% in the Eurozone,
3% in Brazil, 2% 1n Canada, 2% 1n Australia, 2% in South
Africa and 1% 1n India and our guidance 1s based on
exchange rates at 31 December 2015

Interest and tax

We expect our Interest charge to be approximately
£60m, with lower average net debt levels offset by
the absence of released accrued interest payments
following agreement on historical tax posttions

We expect a tax rate of approxumately 19% onour
total profit before tax {which incjudes the post-tax
contribution from Penguin Random House)

IMAGE REMOVED

Coram Williams
Chref finanaal officer
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Key performance indicators

Five-year performance

financial objectives Ket Performance

Maintain Sales +1. 2%

Iong—term Sales fall 5% at CER in 2015 and have grown over the last five years at an average
annual rate of over 1%, reflecting good long-term growth in digital and services
growth businesses and acquisitions in the global education market, partlally offset by
a shift to subscniption revenuas, recent cyclical and policy factors and adverse
exchange rate movements in emerging markets

Total adjusted operating profit _5 l(y
Total adjusted operating profit fell 3% [n 2015 at CER and has fallen at a compound +1/0

annual rate of 5 1% since 2010 reflecting geod long-term growth in digital and
services offset by the sale of businesses, recent cyclical and policy factors and
adverse exchange rate movements In emerging markets

Deliver Total adjusted earnings _1 90/

sustainahle Total adjusted earnings per share 1 up 5% year-on-year i 2015, reflecting portfolio . 0
changes, exchange rate movements and a lower tax rate Over five years EPS has

returns dechined at an average annual rate of 19% reflecting goodlong-term growth in our

digital and services businesses offset by declines in prnt, portfolio changes, cyclical
and policy factors and adverse exchange rate movements in emerging markets

Return on invested capital _ 4 4
ROIC grew D 2% to 5 8% in 2015 and was affected by alower tax charge ROIC has .
fatlen from 10 2% 1n 2010 We expect ROIC to mmprove as we deliver the plans for percentage points

simplificatlon and growth thatwe announced in January and make progress
towards our 2018 goals

Tota! shareholder return 11 Z(y
TSR in 2015 was -36% which compares to a -1% return on the FTSE 100 Index of large —11. 0
UK Iisted compames Qver five years, Pearson has returned approximately -11%, well

behind the return on the FTSE 100 Index of 27% over the same peniod Qur recent

shareprice performance has been disappointing but we are confident that the plans

and strategy lald out In this report will make Pearson a simpler, stronger company,

and that they set the company up for a sustamned penod of growth and value ¢reation

Dividends per share _|_6 l(y
We mcreased dividends in comparison to 2014 by 2% to 52p, our 24th straight year «1/0
of increasing our dividend above the rate of inflation Pearson plans to hold its

dividend at the 2015 level whilst it rebuilds cover, reflecting the Board's confidence

in the medium term outlook

Manage our Operating cash flow _16 3%

Operating cash flow fell to £435m in 2015, reflecting an increase in capital

cash position investment n new simplified systems, higher returns in our US higher education

effectwely business due to de-stocking at one major retarler, weaker trading and pension
top-ups partly offset by an in¢reased dividend from Penguln Random House
Over five years operating cash flow has declined atan average annual rate of
over 16% per annum, reflecting good long-term growth in aur digital and services
businesses offset by dedines in print, portfolie changes, recent cyclical and
policy factors and adverse exchange rate movements
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Data/Progress Strateglc objectives Data/Progress g
Transform Digital and services revenue share g
to digital and 2010 46 5% 2015 65 0% r;’.:
IMAGE REMOVED services £ 2 9b
£2.1bn Jbn
Grow presence £€merging markets revenue share
In emerging 2010 14 3% 2015 16 4% -
(=]
markets £ €
IMAGE REMOVED £475m  K734m |
=3
3
3
1]
Deliver » Reporting prograrnme on track for 2018
measurable » Growth and impact goals set for 2025
impact Product improvernents identified by efficacy reviews
are being implemented on track with plans
IMAGE REMOVED (Efficacy) (y
95%
See strategie growth drivers on p04-05 @ 8
g
g
Non-flnanclalmeasures -?:
u
IMAGE REMOVED Deliver Gender diversity ]
gender balance Men Wamen
Board 7 70% 3 30%
Senlor managers
{excl executive
board directors) 68 66% 35 34% r
IMAGE REMOVED Allemployees 16,781 4% 24,260 59% g
3
3
Reduce our Global Greenhouse Gas{GHG) emissions B
carbon footprint MetrietonnesCOze
2015
110,724 s
IMAGE REMOVED ’
24
129,742 -
B
3
. , fal
Maintain =
community g
investment 3
IMAGE REMOQVED IMAGE REMOVED @

See Qur social impact secaon on p54-67 [+ ]
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IMAGE REMOVED

Operating
performance
overview

Developing for access,
delivering for outcomes

Education 1s a sector with large growth opportunities
for Pearson The rise of digital and the need for effective
learning which better equips students for therr future
careers are trends which will benefit us in the long term

Pearson has world class capabikities and products in
educational courseware and assessment, powered by
learning technology By combining these capabilities with
digital teachung and learning services, we help schools,
uriversities and others to scale online, reach more people
and ensure better learning outcomes

Our primary segments for management reporting are
Geographtes (North America, Core and Growth), as this
Is how we drive business performance This is how we
reach learners, through content and digital services in
individual classrooms, through broad partnerships with
public and private education institutions and, in certain
markets, by directly expanding capacity through our
own schools and colleges
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Operating performance

Geography

IMAGE REMOVED

North
America

Sales Ad)justed operating profit

£29bn  £480m

Revenues grew 1% 1n headline terms,

due to the depreciation of sterhng against
the US dollar, but fell by 5% at CER and 1%
1n underlying terms

In School, strong enrofment growth in Connections
Education, good growth in clinical assessmentand
market share galns in courseware were offset by the
impact of a smaller textbook adoptions market and
weakness in the open terntones in K-12 courseware,
and a change n revenue model at Connections
Education which records revenue for services
charged at cost ona net basis

In Higher Education, market share gains in
coursaeware were offset by lower enrolments {total
US college enrolments fell 1 79, with comblined
two-year public and four-year for-profit enrolments
dechining 4 4%, affected by a nsing employment rate
and regulatory change affecting the for-profit and
developmental learming sectors), higher textbook
returns and hst sales Strong enrolment growth at
Pearson online services was offset by lower revenues
from Learning Studio, a higher education learning
management system thatwe are retiring, and the
impact of a change in reventte model

In Professional, revenues grew strongly at VUE

due to higher valumes of professional certification
assessments Adjusted operating profits rose 8% in
headline terms due to currency movements, fell 1%
at CER and were up 1% in underlying terms, with
contract losses in school assessment and an adverse
revenue mix offset by tight cost control and the profit
onsale oflists

Read about Tremayne and the
General Education Degree on p20 @
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Operating performance continued

North America
conlinued

School

Connections Educatton, our wirtual school business
served over 68,000 full time equivalent students
through full-time virtuat and blended school
programmes in 2015, up 11% from 2014 as a result

of underlying growth and a new statewide school in
North Carolina Connections manages 30 virtual public
schools with three new, full-time state-wide virtual
public schools approved for the 2016-17 school year

to serve students \n Arkansas, Washmngton and New
Mexico in its annual Parent Satisfaction Survey, 93% of
parents of students enrolled in full-time online partner
schoals “recommend” Connections to other families

in courseware, revenue dedlined year-on-year despite
strong market share performance, primarty dueto a
smaller overall adoption market as compared to 2014
Overall market share increased shightly driven by a
strong perforrnance in new adaption markets where
we won 31% (2014 25%) of new adoptions competed
for, or 29% (2014 25%) of the total new adoptron market

of $730m1n 2015(2014 $910m}, led by astrong
performance in Grades K-6 Sociat Studies in Texas
and Indiana, and in Grades K-6 Science in Oklahoma
we expanded iLit, our digital reading intervention
programme, covering a broader range of students
including English language learners Research studies
show that students usingtbit gaintwo or more years
of reading growth In a year using this tablet-based
programme thttp /#/pear sn/PErhf) We launched
ReadyGEN, a K-6 reading series and enVisionMATH2 0,
the newest offering in the highly successful
envistonMATH K-6 maths programme

in State and National Assessments, revenues for the

full year declined due to contractiosses High-stakes
onfine test volumes grew strongly, up 130% on 2014 to
26 4 mihon, as customers transitioned to computer-
based testing Paper-based high-stakes test volumes
grew 3% to 32 7 million Pearson successfully delivered
Enghsh Language, Arts and Math PARCC assessments to
51 million studenits across ten states and the District of

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

Tremayne, General Education Degree graduate, US

Lwving in Maryland in the United States, Tremayne was

13 years old when he realised that dropping out of high
school was a big istake “l reahised thatwithouta high
scheol diploma or GED no one would hire me” He knew he
needed a chanige, so he turned to the GED Testing Service
to help lim and found the MyGED portal fitwell with hus
lifestyle, “having the GED portal online was very convenient,
very quick lused to accessiton my phone "

Tremayne successfully passed the test ands fooking forward
to axciting new apportumities, "when | received my diploma,
{was so proud of myself”

T wasn’t used to accomplishing much 1n
hie and 1ealised that I could do anything
Ipulmy mnd to”

He's been accepted into a local community coliege In
Maryland and plans to transfer to a four-year school to
study engineermg He hopes one day ta starthis own
construction business
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Columbia ACT Aspire defivered Comman Core aligned
college and career readiness assessments to 1 3 million
students up 67% from 2014 and was chosen for three
new state-wide deploymentsin 2016 The states of
Arkansas, Mississippi and Ohto will discontinue PARCC
assessmentsin 2016 We were awarded contracts to
deliver the Indiana Statewide Test of Educational
Progress (ISTEP), renewed the Puerto Rican Tests

, of Academic Achievement (PPAA) and parts of the
assessments contract awarded by the Texas Education
Agency, and extended our contracts to admunister the
Mississippi Sclence Test and Mississippl Subject Area
Testing Program We ceased to administer the majonity
of the current Texas STAAR contract in September 2015
Pearson extended its partnership with the College
Board for the SAT assessment with the award of a five-
year contract for processing of the redesigned SAT and
PSAT assessments Pearsonwill continue to provide the
essay-sconng component for the SAT unul March 2016

Chinical assessment grew well, benefiting from
continued growth of the fifth edition of the Wechsler
Intefligence Scale for Children (WISGV), strong growth In
Behavior Assessment for Children 3e (BASC) and rapid
growth in Q-Interactive, Pearson’s digital solution for
cimcal assessment administration with geographic
expansion and continued strong growth in active
users to over 9,000 from 4,000 1n 2014 with test
admimstrations up over 400% to 1 3 miilion sub-tests

IMAGE REMOVED

Bradford, High school student, US

Bradford attends Hart-Ransom Academic Charter High
School, an independent-study high school, which uses
Connections Learning for its online learning curriculum
Now in the 11th grade, Bradford likes the anfine
curricutum's rigour, and has taken advantage of
Connections Learning’s flexibllity and self-paced learning
to accelerate his education

“It defimitely challenges me academucally,
and thanks to the online learning,
I can pace myself exactly how I need
to be paced”

Bradford appreclates the personal attention he's

received from his online learning teachers, hke his Spanish
teacher, who he talks to on the phone, and his Maths
teacher, who meets him virtually in the LiveLesson

room *Ireally like how involved the teachers are with

the students ~

+11%

Connections Education served

IMAGE REMOVED

over 68,000 Full Time Equivalent
students through full ime virtual
and blended school programmes

1n 2015, up 11% from 2014
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Operating performance continued

North America
continued

IMAGE
REMOVED

Steriing, University student, US

Sterding s currently ajunior In the business school at Texas
A& M University and 1s majoring in marketing To fulfil a
prerequisite for upper-leve! business classes, Sterling took
a State government course online last sumrnar, using
REVEL, Pearsan's interactive learning programme for the
humanities and sacial sciences “ltearned so much in the
tourse because itwasn't the same thing every ome you
flipped the page,” Sterling explained *There would be a
graph, then avideo, and then a picture And you could get
invalved with some of the animations ”

“Ireally loved that 1t was so interactive,
hecause it influenced how well I learned
and how quickly I picked up the material

IMAGE REMOVED

11m

In Narth America, digital registrations
grew 3% to almost 11 mullion with
good growth in Science, Business &
Economics, Statistics, REVEL and skills
applications Irke Pearson Writer

IMAGE
REMOVED

Higher Education

Gross courseware revenues feil 1 5% (compared to
industry gross revenue declines of 2 7%), due to lower
college enrolments offset by market share gains

Net revenues declined 5 7% (compared to industry
netdeclines of 7 5%) reflecung the impact of higher
returns Our market share in courseware benefited
from strong perfarmance from key titles including
Hubbard Ecanomics 5e, Hibbeler Engineering Mechanics
14e and Marieb Human Anatomy & Physiology 10e

Global digital registrations of Myl.ab and related
products grew 3% to nearly 13 million InNorth
America, digrtal registrations grew 3% to almost

11 mitlion with good growth In Science, Business &
Economics, Statistics, REVEL and skills apphications
hke Pearson Writer, offset by softness in
developmental Mathematics Faculty-generated case
studies indicate that the use of MyLab programmes,
as part of a broader course redesign, can support
wmprovements In student test scores and fower
institutional cost (http #pear sn/IZxLE) We taunched
a suite of features that include Adaptive Practice

in our MyLabs to personahse subjects including
Mathematics and Nursing practice, Predictive
Analytics Early Alerts in Mastering to help science
Instructors support at-nsk students, gamification
features m Business and rich learning analytics
dashbeoards in numerous praducts that offer

deep insight Into students’ progress, performance
and engagement
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In Pearson online services, our higher education
Online Program Management {OPM) business, course
enrolments grew strongly, up 25% to over 265,000,
boosted by strong growth in Arizona State University
Onhne where we renewed our partnership at the start
of 2015 We extended our collaboration with Maryville
University to launch a Bachelor and Master'sin
Cybersecunty and a Doctorate in Leadership Ohio
University 1s partnering with Pearson to launch a
Master’s in Financtal Economics and Public Relations
University of Nevada Reno 15 partnering to increase
access to the Master of Social Work degree
programme onhne Pearson launched a new
managed programmes service model with Cincinnat)
State Techmcal and Community College, adapting
traditional OPM services to the Community College
market signing 2 landmark ten-year agreement

to provide marketing, recrutting, admission and
retention services both to online and ground-based
programmes

In enterpnse solutions, Pearson signed significant
large-scale, enterprise adoptions of cross-disapline
digital content, where content is purchased via an
upfront course fee and integrated with university

IT systems, with Jones County College, National
University, Algonquin College and the University of
Missourn system We signed an expanded strategic
partnership agreement with Southern New
Hampshire University’s (SNHU) Coilege of Online

and Continuing Education (COCE) Pearsonwill
support curriculum development, online tutoring,
enterprise-wide content and data integration, ebcoks
with a print-on-demand option and data and analytics
services, which will provide greater visibility into
students’ achievement of learning outcomes

The Charles A Dana Center at The University of
Texas at Austin is collabarating with Pearson to
provide webbased course resources to cormmunity
colleges across Texas that dramatically shorten the
time it takes for students to earn college creditin
mathematics as part of the New Mathways Project
Three courses were launched in 2015 Foundations
Mathematical Reasorung, Statistics Reasoning and
Quantitative Reasoning, with more planned in 2016

Pearscnwas named as the premier US Green Building
Council Education Partner and will offer curriculum
and course services to universities, assoclations,
tratning compantes, corporations, and workforce
educationand apprenticeshup programmes We are
partnering with Broward College to launch new
competency-based workforce certfication pathways
focused on 1T and Healthcare Pearson will support
Broward's strategy by providing 12 industry
certifications with existing workforce education
courseware, as well as curriculum development
services to buld new courses towards certfication
and the Acclaim badging platform

Professional

In professional certification, VUE global test volumes
grew 11% year-on-year te 14 2 million, boosted by
continued growth in IT, Professional and GED,

with increased volumes from Microsoft Certified
Professional (MCP) Prograrn globally, National

Council of State Boards of Nursing and US teacher
certification programmes VUE renewed the Certiport
Microsoft Office Specialists and Microsoft Technology
Associate programmes for an additional year and
extended our partnershipwith Cisco Systems for
three and a halfyears
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Operating performance continued

Geography

Core

Sales Adjusted operating profit

£836m £114m

Revenues declined by 8% 1n headline terms,
5% at CER and in underlying terms

Growth in Pearson online services in Australla, Wall
Street Englishin Italy, Clinical Assessment In Germany
and the Pearson Test of English in Australiawas more
than offset by revenue declines in UK qualifications
as the business nears the end of a period of policy
change, revenue declines at VUE, phasing and market
weakness in Australian higher education courseware
and the focusing of our UK school courseware on
products that directly support Pearson Qualfications
Adjusted operating profit{excluding the FT, The
Economist and Mergermarket) declined 2% in
underfying terms due to fower revenue offset by
tight cost control

IMAGE REMOVED
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Read about Sarah and Pearson Callegeon p26 §
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Operating performance continued

Core
continued

School

In assessment, UK qualifications have beenimpacted
by government policy, where changes to accountability
maasures have led to a further 209 dechne in BTEC
registrations in 2015 GCSE and GCE entries for summer
2015 grew modestly compared with 2014, resulting
from increases in GCSE registrations 1n Sport, ICT and
Business and strength in1GCSE entries We successfully
dehvered the National Curriculum Test for 2015,
marking 4 mihon scripts from 17 million students and
successfully transitioned the marking of the testto an
onhine-only model

In courseware, UK School revenue fell with growth
m primary school more than offset by declinesin
secondary, as the vocational market contracted and
our ypper secondary revenues were Impacted by
lower market participation as we focus on products

that directly support our qualifications More than
5,400 UK schools now subscribe to at least one Bug
Club service, our primary school blended reading
programime, representing growth of nearly 16%in
the year There are over 1 8 million pupils, more than
5,000 schools and 152,000 teachers currently using a
service on ActiveLearn Primary Italy revenues declined
shightly with market share gains in primary offset

by market weakness and a lower share in upper
secondary Austraha revenues dechined, with growth
and increased market share in primary more than
offset by a weaker secondary market

Clmicat assessment grew well with Germany benefiting
from strong growth in Kaufman Assessment Battery for
Children (K-ABC), partly offset by dechnes in Austraha,
after a strong year m 2014 driven by the release of
Wechsler Pnimary and Preschool Scale of Intelligence IV

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Sarah, Pearson Coltege Landon student, UK

Sarah works in the marketing team at Nestlé, having
graduated from Pearson College London last September
She says “Education gave me the confidence to take a step
back from a career path that { was unhappy with and find a
new direction It gave me the fexibility to study a full degree
n two years which enabled me to get back on my career
ladder as soon as possible "

“Pearson College London gave me the skills
to 1mpress at mterview, the knowledge to
succeed 1n my new role and the confidence
to apply in the first place”

“Through the dégree, and the environment, lwas able

to understand what | wanted from a career and find
the right move forme *

Noel, Pearson VUE customer, UK

The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA)
has worked in partnership with Pearson YUE to transform
its portfolio of professional-level exams from pen and

paper to computer-based testing Noel Tagoe, Executive
Director of CIMA, says “By maximising the opportunities
offered through technalogical advances in computerised
assessment, we can access a wide range of testing methods,
assess a variety of skills and competencies at different
levels, and offer much greater flexibility for where and when
exarminattons are taken All of which will be of tremendous
benefit to both students and, importantly, employers
These changes will take full advantage of the role that
technelogy plays in the hves of the younger generation,

and reflect the evolution in the workplace ”
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Higher Education

Professional

In courseware, UK revenues dechned, primarily due
to aweak market in Australia, revenues declined
significantly due to phasing and market weakness

Inonline services, our Australlan University
Partnerships business grew strangly with combined
course enrolmenits of nearly 4,000, up 380% from 2014
The growth of our partnership with Monash University
was led by the Graduate Dtploma in Psychology, which
ts now one of Monash's largest postgraduate courses
Our new partnership with Gniffith University started
very strongly, seemng consistent demand for the MBA
programme and the launch of two further courses
Kings College London partnered with Pearson to launch
online postgraduate degree programmes in Psychology
and Law

Total enrolled students at Pearson College doubled
0232

The Pearson Test of English Academic (PTEA) saw
strong growth in test volumes and revenues after
gaining approval from the Australian Department
of Immigration and Border Protection to administer
abroad range of language tests linked to visa
applications

Wall Street English revenues fell shghtly with strong
growth n ltaly offset by declines n Germany

IMAGE
REMOVED

Stephanie, Winner of OQutstanding BTEC Student of the Year
Award 2015, UK

Stephanie studied a Level 3 Diploma in Health and Socfal Care
at Penwith College Inthe UK She is passionate about helping
others and her outstanding achievements in college and in
the local community marked her out to the BTEC Award
Judges as truly outstanding

Stephanie supported herself financally with paid
employment as a community carer alongside her BTEC

She juggled long working hours with her studfes, yet still
far exceeded the 100-hour work experience requirements
of her course, completing a range of placements in hospital
wards, care homes and day care centres She also
participated in many local voluntary profects working with
individuals in her community who are Isolated and lonely

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Operating performance continued

Geography

Growth

Sales Adjusted operating loss

£692m -£12m

Revenues fell 4% 1n headline terms, were flat
at CER and fell 1% in underlying terms

In China, revenues grew modestly reflecting strong
sales of premium services in our direct dehivery
English Language Learning businesses offset by list
disposals In Brazi, revenues were stable with good
growth in private sisternas and language schools,
offset by declines in government funded sistemas and
language schools In South Africa, revenues declined
significantly due to a smaller textbook adoption cycle
and lower enrelments at CTi, due to a reductionin
the number of qualified students graduating from
high school and tightening consumer credit affecting
re-enrolment rates In the Middle East, our business
was tmpacted by the withdrawal from the Saud
Arabian Colleges of Excellence

Adjusted operating profit decreased £44m to a loss
of £12m due to the strengthening of Sterling against
key Emerging Market currencies, revenue declines

in South Africa, a contract termenation charge arising
from the transition of our three Saudi Colleges to new
providers, cost inflation and additional investment in
China, partially offset by the benefits of restructuring
and integration in Brazil

Read about Mpho and MGl on p30 £
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Operating performance continued

Growth
continued

School

In Scuth Africa, there was continued pressure on
Government spending on textbooks due to budget
pressures, which resulted in the value of the textbook
market falling 60% from a peak of R2 9bnin 2013

to an estimated R1 15bn 1n 2015 We continued to
perform well competitively and maintained a leading
markat share

In Brazil, sistemas revenues grew well with strong
growth In private sistemas partly offset by dechinestn
NAME, our public sistema, following the cancellatlon

of alarge cantract as a result of governmentspending
cuts Overall siIstema enroiments fell 7% to nearly
449,000 with declines in NAME partly offset by growth
in our three private sistemas, led by our largest sistema,
COC More than half of COC schools that participated in
the High School National Exam (ENEM) ranked among
the top three schools in thewr municipalities

IMAGE
REMOVED

IMAGE
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Mpho, MGI graduate, South Africa

Mpho Nethengwe is a 28 year-old MGI graduate who
{s now a Writing and Communication Skills and English
Lecturer at her alma mater In Midrand She says

“The skills I acquired at MGI made1t
easier for me to step into my role n the
working world Iam ablc to take on cvery
challenge as 1t comes, to Leflect on,
evaluate and improve on what to do n
order to remamn productive.”
Mpho has ambltions of putting her learning and experience

mnto practice, even explonng a possible future careerin
communications at Pearsan We think she'd be areal asset

In India, enrolments at our managed schools grew
14% to nearly 27,000 students and we launched a
piot in more than 60 schools of MyPedia, an inside
service ‘sistermna’ solution for schools comprising
print and digltal content, assessment and academic
support services

Middle East school courseware and professional
development revenues grew strangly onimproved
distnibutton

Higher Education

In South Africa, after strong growth over a number of
years, student enrolments at CTl universities fell by 16%
to 11,300 drniven by a 13% decline in qualified graduating
high school students and tightering consumer credit
affecting re-enrofment rates

In Mexico, our fully accredited online unrversity
partnership, UTEL, increased the number of students
enrolled by 34% to nearly 12,600

+14%

Enroiments atour
managed schools
nindia grew 14%

IMAGE REMOVED
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in India, Higher Education courseware revenues grew
strongly Cornell University partnered with Pearson
to launch the Cornefl-ILR Expertenced Monagers
Programme in India, with a blended learning approach
combining online and in-person instruction

in the Middle East, our three-year partnershipwith
Tatbah University in Saudi Arabia, to enable its
transformation to a fully blended and personalised
learning model, 1s progressing with over 4,000 students
enrofled tn our sclution in 2015 Qur partnership
with the Preparatory Year Deanship at Um Al Qura
University (PYP-UQU), to provide online learning and
assessment technology has delivered 13,000
MyMathLab, MyITLab and MasteringPhysics licences
We withdrew from an agreement to run three Saudt
Arabian Colleges of Excellence, with the colleges
transitioning to new providers from 30 June 2015
This resulted in a termmation charge

+34%

in Mexico, our fully
accredited online

unlversity partnership,

UTEL, increased the
number of students
enroiled by 34%

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Alvir, English student, Brazil

Alvir s a 17 year-old who has been studying at Wizard for
three years in the beginning, studying Englishwasonly a
way to remermber his father, who used to love the language
But studying evolved into something bigger and helped him
to achieve his goals, he got his first job as an assistant teacher
atWizard, and took the TOEIC exam, achieving the maximum
990 points Ahar says that English has helped him to meet
new people and now ks poalis to live abroad some day

IMAGE REMOVED
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Operating performance continued

Growth
conlinued

Professional

In Pearson English, good growth indirect delivery in
China, private expenditure In language schools in Brazil,
and English Language Teaching (ELT}was partly offset
by the impact of lower public expenditure In language
schools in Brazil

In China, wall Street English {WSE) achieved strong
revenue growth, reflecting success in the premium
segment and the growth in VIP branded offerings
Overall enrolments grew modestly to over 67,000 with
new enrolments growing strongly We launched the
New Student Experience (NSE) in six pilot centres during
December 2015 The NSE delivers a major upgrade

to the Wall Street Enghsh service with adaptive,
personalised learning incorporating Pearson's Global
Scale of Enghsh

Global Education achieved moderate revenue growth
as the market shifted to more intensive premium
courses with smaller class sizes and new products,
which resulted in enrolments dechning 6 5% to 85,110

We launched around 30 new MyEnghshLab products
including Tap Notch 3e and Progress MyTOEFLLab and
the second edition of MylELTSLab successfully launched
in China in WSE and Global Education Global student
registrations for MyEnglshlab and other ELT digital
courseware grew 14% to 739,000 Pearson Testof
English grew strongly inIndia

Grupo Multiin Brazi saw strong revenue growth

at Wizard, our consumer-facing franchised English
language learning business, but this was offset

by declines in government arders due to public
spending cuts We opened 40 new schaol-in-school
units for Multi English franchises in K-12 sistemas
partner schoaols

IMAGE
REMOVED

Angehna, Wall Street Enghsh graduate, China

Angelina runs a wedding planning company tn Shenzhen,
China Learning Enghsh with Wall Street Enghish has
enabled her to attract more international chents She s
now qualified with a top wedding planning institution in
North America and is reatising her dream of giving couples
their perfect wedding memories

fMAGE REMOVED
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Penguin Random House

Pearson owns 47% of Penguin Random House, the
first truly global consumer book publishing company

Penguin Randorn House had a strong performance in
2015, boosted by publication of hundreds of Adult and
Children's bestsellers acrossits territories, including
the fictton mega-successes of Grey and The Girf on the
Tram, which each sotd over 7 ruiliton copies worldwide

The US business published 584 New York Times print
and ebock bestseilers in 2015 (2014 760, based on
abroader New York Times title count than 2015)

The division benefited from the multi-million copy
successes of Grey by EL James and the Adult debut
novel The Girf on the Tramn by Paula Hawkins
Children's authors who extended therr outstanding
sales in 2015 inciude Dr Seuss, JchnGreen, R )
Palacio, James Dashner, Rick Yancey, Drew Daywalt,
and Oliver Jeffers Addittonal notable Adult fities
include The Life-Changing Magic of Tidying Up by Mane
Kondo, Rogue Lawyer by john Grisham, Lost Ocean
by Johanna Basford, Between The World and Me by
Ta-Nehisi Coates, and the movie tie-in paperback
The Martian by Andy Weir

The UK business pubiished 201 titles on the Sunday
Times bestseller ists (2014 206} The dvision enjoyed
outstanding sates for Grey and The Girl on the Train,
which each sold more than 2 million UK copies, and
for Harper Lee's Go Set A Watchman and Jamie Ohver’s
Everyday Super Food Greatdemand continued for
Jeff Kinney's Drary of o Wimpy Kid and john Green's
titles, and for DK Publishung’s Star Wars publications

Penguin Random House's prarmusing 2016 publishing
Iists include new titles from Lisa Brennan-jobs, 8ill
Bryson, Lee Child, Harlan Coben, Phit Collins, Janet
Evanovich, Ina Garten, John Grisham, Jazz Jennings,
Jeff Kinney, Mane Kondo, Johnle Carre, Jojo Moyes,
Jamie Oliver, James Patterson, Nathaniel Phibrick,
Pope Franas, Nora Roberts, John Sandford, Daruelle
Steel and Star Wars

Penguin Random House completed the sale of

Author Sclutions, its supported self-publishing
services company, to an affiliate of Najafi Companies,
aninternational private-investment firm, on

31 December, and sold its Australian ontine bookseller
Bookwaorld to online retailer Booktopia in August

The integration of Penguin and Random House
continued to provide net benefits through
organisational alignments and systems, and
warehouse combinations in 2015, as well as for 2016
and thereafter The North Amernicawarehouse
consohdation was completed i February 2015, and
in December, the UK business announced it will be
gradually closing its Rugby distribution centre and
relocating its nventory to two other focations

The integration in Spatn and Latin America of
Santillana with Grupo Editorial Penguin Random
Hotise remains on course
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Other financial information

Net finance costs

Altfigures n £ millions 2015 204
Netinterest payable (46) (64}
Finance income in respect of

employee benefitplans 4 1
Other net finance costs 13 (30)
Net finance costs (29) (93)

Net Interest payable in 2015 was £46m, compared to
£64m in 2014 The majority of the movementin net
interest payable I1s due to the release of accrued Interest
following agreement of historical tax positions For our
debt portfoiio, our fixed rate policy reduces the impact
of changes in market interest rates, however we were
still abte to benefit from low average US dollar interest
rates during the year as the malority of the Group's debt
is US dollar denomtnated Year-on-year, average three-
manth US dollar LIBOR rose by 0 1% to 0 3% This slight
Increase in floating market Interest rates, along with
the impact of changes in our debt portfolio, foreign
exchange translation and the effect of shghtly lower
levels of average net debtin the pertod led to hittle
change in the year-on-year interest charge on debt
Interest recervable on cash balances held overseas
was reduced from the prior year due mainly to the
weakening of emerging market currencies agatnst
steriing The Group's average net debt fell by £61m,
largely as a result of disposals in the fourth quarter of
2015 offsetting the translation of our predominantly
US dollar debt These combined factors contributed

to the overall decrease in the Group's average net
interest payable from 3 6% to 2 7%

Finance mcome and costs relating to retirement
benefits have been excluded from our adjusted
earnings as we believe the Income statement
presentation does not reflect the economic substance
of the underlying assets and habikities Also included in
the statutory definition of net finance costs (but notin
our adjusted measure} are finance costs for deferred
consideration associated with acqutsitions, foreign

exchange and other gains and losses Finance costs for
deferred consideration are exciuded from adjusted ,
earnings as they relate to the future potential

acquisition of non-controling interests and do not

reflect cash expended Foreign exchange and other

gains and losses are excluded from adjusted earnings

as they represent short-term fluctuations in market

value and are subject to significant volatiity Other

gams and Josses may not be reaised in due course

as itis normally the intention to hold the related

instruments to maturity

In 2015, the total of these items excluded from adjusted

earnings was a gain of £17m compared to a loss of

£29m 1in 2014 Both the gain 1n 2015 and the loss in

2014 mainly relate to foreign exchange differences

on unhedged cash and cash equivalents and other

financial instruments }

Funding position and hquid resources

The Group finances its operattons by a mixture of cash
flows from operations, shori-term borrowings from
banks and commercial paper markets, and longer-term
lcans from banks and capital markets Our objective

I1s to secure continuity of funding at a reasonable cost
from diverse sources and with varying matuntes

The Group does not use off-balance sheet special
purpose entities as a source of iquidity or for any
other financing purposes The net debt position of

the Group is set out below

All figures in Emilllons 2015 2014
Cash and cash equivalents 1,703 530
Marketable secunties 28 16
Net derivative financial instruments (55) 40
Bonds (2,.284) (2,173}
Bank loans and overdrafts (38) {42)
Financeleases (8 (10}
Netdebt (654) (1,639}
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The largest contributors to the decrease in net debt
are the receipt of disposal proceeds, offset by changes
inthe value of gross debt due to exchange rates and
adecrease i the value of our denvative portfolio
Reflecttng the geographical and currency split of

our business, a large proportion of our debt s
denominated in US dollars {see note 1% for our pelicy)
The strengthening of sterling against the US dollar
during 2015 (from $1 56 to $1 47 £1)increases the
sterling equivalent value of our reported net debt

Atthe year end, the long-term ratings were Baat from
Moody's and BBB+ from Standard and Poor's, and

the short-term ratings were P2 and A2 respectively
Both long-term ratings were on negative outlook at the
year end [n March 2016, Standard & Poor’s changed
Pearson's long-term rating from BBB+ (Negative} to
BBE (Stable) The shortterm ratings from Moody's and
Standard & Poor's remnain unchanged at P2 and A2

In April 2015, the Group accessed the capital markets,
raising £500m through the sale of notes maturing in
May 2025 and beaning interestat 1 375% The notes
were swapped to floating rate in US dollars to conform
with the policy described in note 19 The Group has a
$1,750m committed revolving credit faclity During
the year, the maturity of the faclity was extended by
oneyear Thefachty now matures in August 2020

At31 Decernber 2015 this faclity was undrawn The
revolving credit faclity 15 used for short-term drawings
and providing refinancing capabilities, including acting
as a back-up for our US commeraal paper programme
This programme is primarily used to finance our US
working capital requirements, in particular our Us
educational businesses which have a peak borrowing
requiremnent in July At31 December 2015, no
commercial paper was outstanding The Group also
maintains other commutted and uncommitted facilities
to finance short-term working capital requirements in
the ordinary course of business Further details of the
Group's approach to the management of financial nsks
are setout 1n note 19 to the financial statements

Taxation

The effective tax rate on adjusted earnings in 2015 was
15 5% compared to an effective rate of 17 3%1n 2014
Our overseas profits, which anise mainly in the US, are
largely subject to tax at higher rates than that in the UK
(which had an effective statutory rate of 20 25%in 2015
and 21 5%:n 2014} These higher tax rates were largely
offsat by amortisation-related tax deductions and by
adjustments arising fror agreement of historical tax
positions Both these items were more significant In
2015 than they had beenin 2014

The reported tax benefit on a statutory basis in 2015
was £81m (18 7%) compared to a charge of £56m

(22 0%)1n 2014 The statutory tax benefitin 20151s
mainly due to benefits ansing on the increase In
intangible charges Operating tax pad in 2015was
£129m compared to £163min 2014

Discontinued operations

Discontinued operations in 2015 relate to the sate of
the Finanaal Times and the Group's 50% interestin
The Economist The Economist sale was substantially
completed on 16 October 2015 and realised a gain of
£473m before tax The sale of the Financial Times
completed on 30 Novemnber 2015 and realised a gain of
£711m before tax We expect both of these transactions
to qualify for substantial shareholder exemption in the
UK The gains on these transactions and the results for
both 2014 and 2015 to the respective sale dates have
been included in discontinued operations

The sale of Mergermarket to BC Partners, completed on
4 February 2014, resulted in a gain of £244m before tax
The gain on sale and the results for 2014 to the date of
sale have been included in discontinued operattons
Also included in discontinued cperations in 201415 a
gain of £29m relating to adjustrents to liabilities arising
on the formation of the Penguin Randem House group
Although this transaction completed 1n 2013 there

were subsequent adjustments relanng to the potential
transfer of pension habilities and tax
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Other financial information continued

Other comprehensive income

Post-retirement benefits

Included in other comprehensive income are the

net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations The gatn on translatton of £175mn 2014
compares to a lossin 2015 of £69m and Is principally
due to movements in the US doflar A significant
proportion of the Group's operations are based in the
US and the US dollar strengthened in 2015 from an
opening rate of £1 $1 56 to a dosing rate atthe end

of 2015 of £1 $1 47 However at the same time other
currencies have weakened compared to sterling and
this effect was more than enough to offset gains on
the US dollar Atthe end of 2014 the US dollar had
also strengthened in comparisonto the opening rate
rmoving from £1 $1 66 to £1 $1 56 and other currencies
did not weaken to the same extent as they have done
In 2015

Alsoincluded in other comprehensive income 1N 2015
15 an actuanal gain of £118m {including a £8m gainin
respect of associates) in relation to pension and other
post retirement plans This gain mainly arises from
ahigher discount rate used to value the habiities

The gain compares to an actuanal gain i 2014 of
£8m (including a £15m loss in respect of assocates)

Dividends

The dwvidend accounted for in our 2015 financial
statements totalling £423m represents the final
dividend in respect of 2014 (34 Op) and the interim
dividend for 2015 {18 Op) We are proposing  final
dividend for 2015 of 34 Op, bringing the total paid and
payablen respect of 2015 to 52 Op, a 2% Increase on
2014 This final 2015 dividend which was approved by
the board in February 2016, 1s subject to approval at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and will be
charged against 2016 profits For 2015, the dividend
1s covered 1 4 imes by ad)usted earnings We planto
hold our future dividend at the 2015 level while we
rebuld cover

Pearson operates a vanety of pension and post-
retrement plans Our UK Group pension plan has by
far the targest defined benefit section We have some
smaller defined benefit sections in the US and Canada
but, outside the UK, most of our companies operate
defined contributton plans In addition to pension plans
wae also operate post-retirement medical benefit plans
{PRMBs), the most stgntficant of which1s mnthe US In
2014 we amended the ehgibility critena for the US PRMB
plan This amendment resultedin a curtallment gain
and a reduction in the ongoing service cost of the plan

The charge to profit in respect of worldwide pensions
and retirement benefits for continuing operations
amounted to £81m n 2015 (2014 £70m) of whicha
charge of £85m (2014 £71m)was reported in adjusted
operating profit and anincome of £4m {2014 £1m)
was reported against other net finance costs The
increase charge in 2015 1s in part due to the US PRMB
curtallment gain taken in 2014 and an increase In Costs
relating to our defined contribution plans

The overall surplus an the UK Group pension plan of
£190m at the end of 2014 has increased to a surplus of
£337m at the end of 2015 The movement has ansen
principaily due to continuing asset returns, defiat
funding and favourable movements in the assumptions
used to value the habthties Intotal, our worldwide

net surplus in respect of pensions and other post-
retirement benefits increased fromn a net asset of

£27m at the end of 2014 to a net asset of £198m at

the end of 2015

Goodwill and Intangible assets

Following sigmficant economic and market
deterioration in the Group's operations in emerging
markets and ongoing cydical and policy related
pressures inthe Group's mature market operations,
management’s expectations of future returns were
revised downin the course of 2015 It was determined
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dunng the goodwill imparrment review that the fair
value less costs of disposal of the Growth, North
America and Core cash generating units {CGUs} no
longer supported the carrying value of the goodwill
Animpairment of £507m was booked in respect of the
Group's Growth operations, representing impairments
of £269m in the Brazit CGU, £181m in the China CGU,
£48m in the South Africa CGU and £9m in the Other
Growth CGU, thereby bringing the carrying value of
goodwillin those CGUs down to £mil Impairments of
£10m and £13m were also bocked n respect of other
acquired intangibles in the South Africa and Other
Growth CGUs respectively, bringing their carrying value
down to £nil Impairments of £282m and £37m were
also booked In respect of the North Amenica and Core
CGUs respectively, bringing the carrying value of the
goodwill in those CGUs down to fair value less costs

of disposal

In 2014 following deterioration in the market condittons
for the Group's anline tutormng business based inindia,
it was deterrmined in the course of the impatrment
review that the value in use of the India CGU no longer
supported the carrying value of the goodwillin that
CGU Animpairment of £67m was baoked, thereby
bnnging the carrying value of goodwill in the India CGU
down ta £nif An impairment of £10m was also booked
inrespect of other acquired intangibles in that CGU,
bninging their carrying value to £nif Further details
onthese impairments are includedin note 11 ofthe
financial statements

Acquisitions and disposals

There were no significant acquisttions in 2015 The
acquisition of Grupo Multi, Braz:i's leading adult English
language tramning company, for £437m (plus £49mmn
net debt assumed)was announced in December 2013
and completed on 11 February 2014

During 2015 the Group disposed of itsinterestin the
FT Group including its 50% share of The Econormist
The Finanaial Times sale to Nikker was completed on
30 November 2015 for consideratton of £858m and
realised a gain on sale of £711m before a tax charge
of £49m The sale of our 50% share of The Economist
Group to EXOR was substantially completed on

16 Qctober 2015 The value of the investmentinThe
Economist on Pearson's books was not significant
and there was no tax on the transaction with the
result that the gain on sale of £473m largely reflects
the proceeds received Also, in July 2015, the

Group dispesed of Its interest in PowerSchool for
consideration of £222m realising a pre-tax gain of £30m
net of a £70m write down of related software assets

The sale of the Mergermarket group of comparues
In 2014, as noted above, realised a profit before tax
of £244m In addition, in 2014, our North America
business disposed of its joint venture interests in
Safari Books Online and CourseSmart, realising

a profit before tax of £40m, and its Investment in
Nook Mediarealising aloss before tax of £38m

Return on invested capital (ROIC)

Our ROIC 1s calculated as total adjusted operating profit
less cash tax, expressed as a percentage of average
gross invested capital ROICincreased fram 5 6% n
2014105 8% 1n 2015 Reduced tax payments were the
main reason for the movement

Related party transactions

Transactions with related parttes are shown in note 35
of the finanaal statements

Post-balance sheet events

Injanuary 2016, Pearson announced that we are
embarking on a restructuring programme to simplfy
the busimness, reduce costs and position the company
for growth i its major markets The majority ofthe
programme I5 expected to be complete by mid-year
2016 and will involve implementation costs in 2016 of
approximately £320m

SsasnNgJng

duewIcHId NG

Jaedun [B1205 JNO

VIURWIIACE) |

SJUIWIAEIS [epuURUL



38 Pearson plc Annual report and accounts 2015

Risk management

The board has carred out a robust assessment of the
prinapal risks facing the company, including those
that would threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency or Hiquidity Our principal risks
and uncertainties are outiined below, along with a
description of how they are being managed

See pages B2 to 89 in‘Governance’ for detalls on the
board and audit committee's risk oversight during
2015, their ongoing monitoring of nsks, including
deep dives into selected principal nisks and the annuat
effectiveness review €

The goal of our risk management approachis to
support Pearson in meeting its strategic and
operational objectives of growth and simplification
as set out in the chief executive's overview on pages
4to 7, so that the key bustness risks are identified,
assessed and mitigated Qur aim Is to manage risks,
understanding that many risks are external in nature
and cannot therefore be fully controlted

How we manage nsk

We assessed our risk management maturity in 2014
and made improvements in 2015 towards our 2017
target The dragram ‘how we manage risk’ shows our
approach to embedding a Pearson-wide risk culture
This framework is being used to drive improvementsin

risk management across Pearsan, taking a pragmatic
approach that assists n eliminating inefficienctes and
identifying and closing gaps Our Enterprise Risk
Management {ERM) framewaork has been developed
to be aligned with internattonal standards (COSO and
1SO31000) and it aids our camphance with the Financial
Reporting Counat's (FRC) UK Corporate Governance
Code guidance Riskidentification and assessment
were also included 1n the 2015 strategic planning

and acquisition processes, to further embed risk
managementin decision making

Identifying and assessing risk

The board s ulimately responsible for the oversight of
risk management, assisted by the assurance the audit
committee provides with regard to the procedures for
the idenufication, assessment and reporting of nisk

Throughout the year {twice as a minimum}, the
identification of principal nisks is informed using a
bottom up and top down approach through discussions
with each business area, Identifying new nsks as

well as re-assessing those already being monitored

To ard 1n the wdentification of risks and development of
associated mitigating actions, risks are categorised into
four main areas strategy and change, operational,
financial, andlegal and compliance

How we manage nsX

Learn more In the Governance section on pages 82to 89 °

Risk management Risk management Risk management
Foundations Process Culture
Governance
and oversight
Communication
Framework, policy Train ducati
and procedures raining, education
P IMAGE REMOVED and awarenhess
Roles and
responsibifities Embeddingin
decision-making
Appetite and
tolerance Continuous
Improvement
Waorking with
third-parties
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The probability of a nisk materiahsing and the potentral Risk appetite 8
o
impact of each risk across multipte parameters i1s rated Risk appetite 1s the target level of risk the board finds g
based on existing controls, then the adequacy of action d hieve P R 3
lans to address any remarning control gaps 15 also appropriate to accept in order to achieve Pearson's &
a strategy and goais Furtherwork wasdonein 2015 to
assessed Those risks which have a higher probablity define the risk appetite for each of our princapal risks
and significant impact on strategy, reputation or P '
working with the Pearson executive Recommendations
operations, or afinancial impact greater than £50m .
are identified as principal risks are made annually to the board, as part of the board's
princip oversight of nsk management {see page 88 1n
Pearson executives have oversight of risks relevant to ‘Governance’ for more on the board's governance
their areas of responsiiiity, which were induded in of nsk managerment)
o)
g;ilc"uzt?r;l S:bj?gt't?astehgiEZiiT:rr:ilt? ;izp:?:i;ﬂiz; The sermi-annual risk assessment reviews take into g
8approp g account the current tevel of sk compared to appetite B
required and whenever possible Itis not possible to Aconsideration of target risk appetite 15 now included 9:}‘
identify every risk that could affect our businesses, and 3
In key business decistons, such as acquisitions and @
the actions taken to mitigate the risks described below strategic planning 2
cannot provide absolute assurance that a risk wili not BCP ®
materiahise and/or adversely affect our bustness or There are certain nsk areas where we have avery low
financial performance appetite, such as complying with allapplicablelaws,
including those on anti-bribery and corruption or the
Th; gult p:’ts of the rsk;:sizsmegt: descrllz::ad abodve safety and security of learners This means that we take
andheiow are reparted to the audit committee an actions to try to avoid or eliminate this risk as far as
board in detall in addition to the company-wide risks, deh o
possible Inother areas, such as strategy and change, e
this includes risk maps for our main Pearson business h £ d risk-tak g
d geographies we recognise the importance of managed risk-taking @
areasandg it order to achieve business objectives and goals g
3
3
a
Our principal risks (as of 31 December 2015}
Qudined here are our most significant risks that may affect
our future We assess the probability of the risk materialising w o Business transformation and change
and the impact of the risk The risks with greatest potential H o Digrtal and services evolution and
severity are identified as principal risks 5 market forces —
(=20
zx o
T = © Talent §
,.. 'g @ Poistical and regulatory nisk %
z ® | © Acquisitions, divestments andjvs
& © @ Testingfailure
[+ 8
% o0 o gm € safetyand secunty
= =41
cE Eg o Customer facing systems
% v—é 0 5 @ safeguardingand protection
- % P @ Business continuity {new risk) 3
b 5
& 7 gg @ Tax E
g 2® @ Treasury{newnsk) 2
5 !
ﬁ g @ Data privacy and infarmation secunity 5
- o]
N @ intellectual property a
=
ol
§£ @ competition law (new nsk)
—_—>
PROBABILITY ‘g‘ @ Ant-bribery and corruption
2§D Dataquality and integrity (new risk)
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Risk management continued

Key changes to Pearson risks m 2015

The key themes arising from company-wide risk
discussions in 2015 reflect those of our strategic goals -
simplification and growth, underpinned by business
transformation and change to enable these As
highlighted in the chief executive’s strategic overview
on page 4, 2015 was a year of change for Pearson

The theme of change 1s reflected n the relatively ugh
probability of our principal risks, as shown in the map
The level of change increases risk short term, however in
the medium to longer term itwill enhance our controls
for many of our risks, as well as enabling Pearson to
achieve its goal of becoming more efficient, simphfying
the way we work for our customers and learners

More robust risk assessments 1n 2015 haveimproved
our understanding of the nature and scale of risks, such
as data privagy and information security {highlighted

in the audit commuttee chair's statement on page 83)
where external threats continue to increase and we
have programmes of work to close identified gaps

Good progress has been made intmpiemeniing
mitigation plans, especially for these risks with lower
target risk appetite, such as for ABC and in our direct
delivery businesses, where risks such as the safety and
security of both our learners and staff have new roles
and defined plans underway (both highlightedin the
audit committee chair's statement on page 83)

Risk assessment of prospects and viability

This section should be read together with the full
viabifity statement on page 118 @

Pearson's principal risks and our ability to manage them
as outhned in this section are inked to our viability as a
company Thesensks have therefore been taken nto
accountwhen prepanng the viability statement

The board assessed the prospects of the company over a
three-year period, longer than the minimum 12 months
of the annual going concern review Thethree-year
period corresponds with Pearson's strategic planning
process and represents the time over which the
company can reasonably predict market dynamics and
the likely mpact of additions to the product portfolio

The board discusses the company’s strategic planon
an annual basis taking account of a range of factors
including market conditions, the principal risks to the
company, product and capital mvestment levels as well
as available funding Pearson's strategy and business
model are discussed in more detail on pages 2to 2

In assessing the company's wviability for the three years
to December 2018, the board overlaid a‘severe but

Key assumptions

The key assumptions which underpen our three-year
strategic plan to December 2018 are as follows

1 The keycyclical and policy factors that have recently hurt
Pearson (US college enrolments and UK qualifications)
shoutd stabilise by the end of 2017 and improve madestly
thereafter, helped by new product faunches

2 Pearson makes modest market share gainsin
North America higher education subjects where
next generaticn courseware s besng launched

3 US state testing revenues continue to dechne through
2017, as current contracts unwind, before stabllising
in 2018

4 professional certification and clinlcal assessment
revenues continue to grow

§ Pearson businesses in China and Brazil benefit from
theiaunch of new products, including the Wall Street
English New Student Experience

6 Pearson's services businesses {for example, online
programme marnagement, virtual schools, blended
learning in English) continue to grow as new
platforms and products come to marketand capitatise
on market growth

7 The benefits of the compary’s restructuring plan
are delsvered in full, with minimal disruption to
sales, market share and operations frorm this major
programme of change

plausible’ downside scenario onto base case strategic
plan for the group, focusing on the impact of the
following assumptions and key risks

» Further revenue shortfalls in US assessments

» Further revenue shortfalls in higher education
courseware assuming enrolments remain flat.

» Additional revenue shortfalls in growth markets
{pnnaipally South Afnica, Brazil and China) driven
by weaker lozal economic conditions

> Business transformation and change execution sk
associated with timely delivery of the restructuring
programme in 2016 causing the benefits to be delayed
or not fulty reahsed

The board also stress tested the Irmpact on our
kiquidity of all the principal risks listed above occurming
together Although thisis not regarded as a plausible
scenario the test showed that the company would still
have hiquid resources subject to a hirmited nurnber of
management actions

The board's conflrmation of Pearson's wiability for the
three years to 2018 1s included alongside the going
concern statement on page 118
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Strategic and change risks

Risk 2015 activities 2016 plans
Business transformatton  2015was ayear of change for Pearson A number of major At the end of 2015 we undertook
and change transformational change programmes commenced in 2015, including  arigorous bottomup review

the Enabling Programme - a programme of work to deflver a single of our markets, operations
Pearsan-wide solution tointegrate our data systemsand processes  and financial plans The chief
across MR, Finance Procurement and Supply Chatn), @neCRM and executive’s strategic overview

The pace and scope of our
business transforrmation

nitratives Increase the Technology Delivery Centre {TDC) and these continue into 2016 on pages 4 to 7 describes our
executlon risk that
benefits may not be full The Enabling Programme runs untdl 2018 and will detiver sustainable  plans far transforming Pearson
Y Y improvernents in finance, human resources and operatlons In 2016, we will further slmplify
realised, costs of these
our business reduce our costs

changes may increase, of  inaddition tousual gaod practices in place for project and change

and position oursehves for growth
that our buslness 2susual management, there is enhanced governance, monitaring and p rselv 8

activities donotperform  reportng In pace far these most significant change Initiatives Inour major markets
inline with our plans, or The success of the restructuring
our level of customer plan 1s 3 key assumption
service may not meet underpinning achieving our
expeciations. goals by 2018 showing how
critical it is that this risk is
effecuvely managed
Digital and services Our giobal education strategy wili drve a faster move codigitaland  Turning thisriskinto an
o evolution and market services, recognising that this is a significant opportunity for Pearsan, opportunity- successfully
forces aswell as a potentlal rlsk We are transforming our products and Investing Inand delivering the
services for the digital environment along with rmanaging our print nght products and services - 1s
Failure to invest
inventeries The 2015 strategic plannng process took a mare key to our strategy for returning
successfully inand
delver the right In-depth review and challenge of areas for future Investment and to growth by 2018
products and services re-investment in the chief executive’s strategic
As indicated In the sectlen above on Tisk assessment of our prospects  overview on pages 4to 7, we have
and viability, we take into account cyclical market factors in our {aid out a strategy for returning to
strategic planrung process growth We are cambinlng our

lines of business for courseware
into & smagle product organisation,
aswell as rationallsing and

The Global Product Lifecyde continued to be embedded across Pearson
and won an award for BestInnovation Programme at the Corporate

Entrepreneur Awards.

integrating aur preduct
You can read more about the Product Lifecycle and Its governance development capabliities to focus
on page 61inthe ‘Socialimpact’ section on more adaptwve, personalised

‘next generation’ courseware and
we are increasing our assessment
focus onmore adaptive and
personalised online services
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Principal risks and uncertaintics continued

Strategic and change risks

Risk

2015 activitles

2016 ptans

Talent

Failure to atiracy, retaln
and develop staff
including adapting to
newsklll sets required
to run the business

Throughout 2015, we have been successful in promoting our best
internal talent and recruiting indimduals who are giobal leaders in
thesr specific field Globally consistent performance assessment,
and talent and successlon management approaches arein place,
and the annual engagement survey shows consistent scores overall
from the prioryear

See pages 59 to 63 In‘Social iImpact! for more detail on key findings
fromthe engagement survey, as well as information about our
approachto learning and development

As we are golng into a period of
change and transformation, we
will facus on a number of areas
that are key to mitigating talent
risk, nduding clear employee
objectves and development plans,
an all-employee engagement
survey, with actien plans as
appropriate, succession planning
and talent management, an
Internai management and
leadership development
programme supporting 'learning
for all' The employee incentive
pool will also be reinstated

Political and
regulatary risk

Changes in policy
and/or regulations
have the potential to
impact business model
and/or decisions across
allmarkets

We are expanding our global public affairs capability with a specific
focus on coordinated International gavernment relations atross our
keymarkets Building deeper government relations, sncluding working
with business and industry associations, policy research organisations
and other advocacy groups, we can more proactivelyidentify and
rmitigate international political and regulatory risk aswell as bring
greater coordination, darity and canslstency to our work globally

I the US we actively monitor changes through participationin advisory
hoards and representation on standard setting committees Our
customer relationship teams have detalled knowledge of each state
matket We workwith our Industry trade assoclations Inciuding the
Association of Amertcan Publishers and have {aunched athree-year
campaignwith America’s Promise Alliance to ralse high schoot
graduatlon ratesto 90% and to support state fed innavations

In the UK we maintaln relationships with those government
departments and agencies that are responsible for palicy and funding.
We work proactively with them to ensure our programmes meet
existing and new government ohjectives at the right quahity level

Across all of our other markets, there [s a governmentrelations
programme to support sur intermational markets

2015 priontles to continue to be
actively driven m 2016, witha
specific focus onleveraging our
resources in the US and UK to build
global political and reguiatory
relationships and partnerships, to
elevate our international political
profile, and to better understand
future international pohitical and
regulatory trends, increasingly
using trade associatlons and
agencies to inform our decisions
and actions

Building a strong brand and
reputation In the US remains
a priority

Acquisitions
divestments and }Vs

Failure to meetfinancial
and operational targets
of acquisitions Failure to
successfully manage JVs
and drvestments inline
with plans

We perform pre-transaction due diigence and closely monitor
actual performance against operational and financial targets Any
divergence from these plans will resultin management action to
improve performance and minimise the risk of any impairments
Executive management and the board recebve regular reports on the
status of acquisitions and mergers, with a formal review cnce ayear

During 2015, transitional suppart services to Penguln ended and we
completed the sales of the FT, Pearson's stake In The Economist and
Powerschool

Transitional support services to
the FTwill end in 2016

Our continued priorities for use

af cashare

- Maintaining astrong
balance sheet

- Organlcinvestment

- Sustaining our dividend and
malntalning the commitment
to our areditrating

- Acquisitlons in educatlon with
astrong ROIC potential
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Operational risks

Risk 2015 activities 2016 plans
o Testing failure We seek te frinimise the risk of a breakdown in our student marking  Cross Pearson team formed to
A control breakdown or systems with the use of robust quaiity assurance procedures and establish standards for testing
service fatlure 1 our controls and aversight of contract performance combined with risk factors, igentify any gaps
school assessment and our Investmant Intechnology project managerment and skiils agalnst standards and
qualsfications businesses devetopment of our people, ncluding software secunty controls Implement improvements
system monitoring, pre deployment tesing, change controls and
could resultin finanoaf
the use of root cause analysls procedures to learn from incldents
loss and reputational and prevent recurrence
damage P r
In agdition to the internal business procedures and centrols
implemented to ensure we successfully defiver on our contractual
commitments, we also seek to develop and malntain good
relatlonshyps with our customers to minimise risks
o Safety and security The health and safety pollcy was updated and released In 2015 The key health and safety focus
Risk to safety and security Managemeni review processes have been established with will be onexecuting athree-year
key leadership groups and incident datals collected every strategy We continue toimprove
due toincreasing loca!
six months globally risk assessment in the due

and global threats diligence process with mergers

An implementation plan has been developed, with the objective and acqulsitions, as webl as In our

of delivering a pragmatic corporate security function which existing andfuture operations
supperts our leafmers. and employees within a safe and secure
learning and working environment Ongolng engagement with
J 5 Pearson leadership ensuresthat
health and safety is Integrated inta
business agendas

Security activity wilt be prioritised
based upon an assessment of risk,
which Is constantly evaluated

Customer facing Effective project management discplines are in place to ensurethat 2016 will focus on the next tier of
systemns enhancements and new products meet the required standards priority products and fufty
Real-time monitoring and reporting of operational performance embedding the quahty inltiative In

Falure to maintam and
support customer facing
services systems, and The GQuality Task Force, established In 2014 to lmprove customers’

are used to Identify any issues and direct appropriale responses business as usual Plans incude
more thorough testing, easier

onboarding and greater access to

platforms, ncuding back-to-school experience, 1s now part of business as usual In2015, g
addressing quality issues  thisinitiative delsvered significant improvemnents with fewer ﬁ::fnsiteorl ‘a’::;sﬁ:':tohr:f:oagg::s
and execution ontime Incidents overal!, less unplanned downtime, faster resolutionof tathe nenn.%ork and se curﬁy
of new products and Issues, better protection against denial of service attacks i
enhancements QOther langer term Inftiatives are
underway to further improve the
customer experience
Safeguarding and We continue to take safeguarding as a fundamental obligation and Actnatieswill focus on conttnwing to
protection high prionty address riskinthe direct delivery
Fallura to adequately There s increased understanding and reporting of safeguarding businesses, witha focus on those
inless regulated countries The
protectchildren and concerns in many of the countries where we delver services
Implementation ofa safeguarding
learners, particularly .
inour direct delive: See page 61 in the 'Social impact’ section for mare on our self assessment tool and incdent
Ty relationships with learners and customers reporting system will assistin
businesses
developing metrics
Business continuity Previousty reported as a component of other risks, thss isnowbeing  The new business continulty policy
(new risk) reported as s separate risk to provide greater clarity will be Implemented in 2016,
d
Fallure to have plansin Pearson's business continulty policy has been refre shed In 2015, including additional tools and
software to support a standard
place or plansare not identifying our exposure and risk as they refate to key products, global approach tobusiness
properiy execuled sltes, services and supply chaln This will be impiemented in 2016 P
continuity planning
Crisis managerment and

Technology lncide;r.s are dealtwith reactively and p:joa:live The new crists managerment

cose T st econry Pt oIS famevorwilveembrdied

disaster recovery schedule is In place for testing data centres through testing and scenarios
The resilience of technology

platforms and systems will be
further reviewed and improved

technology disaster
recavery plans may
not be comprehensive
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

Financial nsks

Risk

2015 activitles

2016 plans

Tax.

Riskthat changes ntax
law or perceptions on
tax planning strategies
lead to higher effective
tax rate oT negate
reputational impact.

Our tax strategy reflects our business strategy and the kcations and
financing needs of our operations In common with mary companses,
we seek (0 manage our tax affairs to protectvatue for our sharehoiders,
inline with our broader fiduciary duties, We are committedto complying
with ali statutory obligations, to undertake full disclosure to tax
autheritles and to follow agreed polides and precedures with regard

to tax planning and strategy

Oversight of tax strategy 1s within the rermit of the audit committee,
whuch recelves areport on this topic at least once ayear Allofthe
audit commlitiee members are independent non-executive directors.
The chief finanaal officer ks responsible for tax strategy, the conduct
of our tax affairs and the management of tax risk are delegatedtoa
global team of tax professlonals

See page 145 for detalls of tax accounting policy

There s now known legislative
change in the UK on tax reporting
requirements in 2016 and almost
certalnchange ontax treatment
of financing structures Achange
to US legistation Is possible

Work has been performed o
prepare systems for the increased
tax disclosure requirements
relating to country by country
reporting

Treasury (new risk)

Inability to mitigate
treasury financlal risks,
mduding the fallure

to secure adeguate
committed funding,
the failure to manage
exposures to financial
counterparties and
the failure to manage
exposures to market risk
such as interest and
forelgn exchange rates

The treasury risk is now being reported as a principal risk due
1o currency and finanaal market volatlity, as well as the recent
changes to our credit rating

Qur approach to the mitigation of treasury financlal risk, including
funding risk flnancial counter party risk and exposures to interest
and foreign exchange rates [s covered inmore detail in note 19,
starting on page 181

in 2016, we will continue to operate
Inline with our treasury policy
More on this can be found in

note 19, starting on page 181

Legal and comphance risks

Risk

2015 activities

2016 plans

Cata privacy and
infarmation security

Risk of a data privacy
incident or other faliure
to comply with data
privacy regutations and
standards; and/era
weakness In information
security, ncluding a
failure to prevent or
detect a malicious attack
on our systems, could
resultin a major data
privacy breach causing
reputational damage
and financlattoss

Data privacy- A data privacy office has been established and a 2015-
2016 data privacy strategy developed The implementation of the
strategy is overseen by the data privacy governance board which
has operated throughout 2015 We test and re-evaluate our data
security procedures and controls across all our businesses with the
alm of ensuring personal data is secured, and we seek to comply
with relevant legrslation and contractual requirements We regularfy
monltor regulation changes to assess thelmpact on existing
processesand pregrammes Thedata privacy office Is working with
those lenited parts of the business affected by the Safe Harbor
decislon to transfer them to model contract clauses.

Annual maining on data security and privacy was introduced in 2015 for

all employees In addition, all Pearson staffwho deal with US student
dataare required to take educational data protection training

Information security Pearson has an established globalsecurity
organlsational model, and standard-based informatlion security
controls and practices Security policles have allbeen updated in
2015 We have established a global security operations tentre that
provides angolng monitering of potential malicious attacks on our
infrastructure and systerns

The data privacy and information
sacurityimprovement
programmes will continue
through 2016 into 2017 and will
implement critical processes to
drive best practices
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o
c
Legal and compliance risks §
Risk 2015 activities XHéplans :Eé
ntellectual property We seek to mitlgate these risks by belng generally vigllant and We wiil cantinue to streamiine our é
@ Ifwe do not adequately depinying policies and internal and external resources to ranage portfollos procure and register
protectour ntellectual and protect our intellectual property We co operate and advocate expanded rights in our highvalue
groperty and proprietary through trade assoclations, monltor advances in technology andlaw [P globally, monttor activities and
rlghts our competitive and, when appropriate, take lagal or collective enforcementattons  regulations and proactively
pasion and profits may with othar publishers to secure our rights We haveinplace apatent  enforce our rights, taking
be adversely affected and programme to establish enforceabfe patent rights to protect our necessary legal action
limit our ablity to grow technology innovations and promote appropriate confidentiality
andtrade secret protocols Qurglobal IPlegal functien also helps
us clear and protect our key brands and patentable Innovations o
Competition law In Octobear 2015, a lawyer speclalising in competltion law was Based uponthe completed risk 5
@ (new risk) appolnted 1o ensure we are fully compllant with atl laws and assessment, we wlil develop and B
regulations A planhasbeenputinplace to performafullrisk implement actions prioritising key g‘
Fatture to comply with 2
ant-trust and competition assessment given the evolving complexity of leglslation and risk areas 3
legislation regulation in this area This evolving complexity is why this risk 3
has now been Included In the principal risks B
Ant: briberyand We have arisk based programme of training (online and face to Training and awarenessin 2016 will
@ corruption (ABC) {ace), with code of conduct certification including a clear statement focus on the revised ABC pollcy for
Fallure to effectively of ABC policy The policy was revised in 2015, with no change to higher risk countries and activities
Pearson's ‘zero tolerance’ principle In2015, the Business Partner
mznage risks assaciated Code of Conduct Jaunched, which will help to mitigate third-party Third party due diligence wil
with compliance to global ABC risk ' continue to be enhanced taking
and lecal ABC leglslation. Into aceount the benefits from
See page 60 In the ‘Social impact’ section for more detail onwhat1s business transformatlen o
covered by the Code of Conduct. implementatlons, such as the =
Enabling Programme o
2
Data quality and integrity Data quality and integrity is now being reported as aprinapal nisk The primary focus Is onthe R
0 (new risk) due to its importance In supporting business change inltiatives Enabling Programme which will g
Unavallability of timely such as the Enabling Programme and OneCRM {as highlighted nisk 1, n time, deliver significant 5
business transformation and change} Datais key to their success improvements in data quality
complete and accurate facllitate better Informed
data lmits informed APearson Data Services team has been created and a data :nd ?c Kin
decision-making and governance target aperatng model agreed which defines data eosion-making
Increased risk of non ownership accountabllity at executive level to ensure that data The 2016 roll outs require the
compliance with legal, Initlatrves align to business strategy pnorities and inivatives migration of a significant number
regulatory and reporting of datasets
requirements,
2
3
5
&
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Targeting growth through efficacy

The road to empowering the
lives of 200 million learners
annually by 2025

Introduction

Over the |last few years, we have been progressively
measurmg and increasing our impact on {earner
outcomes We are afready helping milkons of learners
progress in their lives, to become more literate and
numerate, move from school to college, learn a new
language, or secure a new career which offers better
prospects for them and their families

To advance Pearson’s reach and impact and to position
the company for sustainable growth, we have
embarked on an ambitious efficacy programme

which has evolved the way we manage our business,
our approach to product development and our
relationships with customers

In 2013, our drive to build a company centred around
‘what works’ in education led to a commitment to
pubhcly report on the learner ocutcomes delvered

by our preducts in 2018

In 2014, Pearson started embedding the efficacy
framework and approach at the centre of our business
model, cenducting efficacy reviews and using those
nsights to improve our products and how we serve
our customers In preparation for 2018 we started the
process of publicly reporting on efficacy, profiling the
progress of five key products

In 2015, we expanded the focus of our work, gathering
evidence for more products and services We areseeing
increased interest in our efficacy approach fromour
customers and it has become a bigger factor In sales
decisions We are reporting publicly on the efficacy of
many more products alongside this report

Key achievements in 2015

2014 first wave products IMAGE
Gathering REMOVED
evidence

For all ‘first wave’ products (products chosen based on
strategic importance, market position and revenue)
we have worked with customers to refine their learner
outcomes, are now gathering evidence of their
impact, and have been completing efficacy-led
product Improvements

We made great progress in 2015, achieving the following milestones:

2015 second wave products IMAGE
Defined learner REMOVED
putcomes .

We have also defined fearner outcomas and metrics for
all 'second wave' products (products representing a wider
range of geographies in our portfolio), In addition to
evaluating existing evidence and Implementing plans to
gather more evidence of impact. Going forward we will
continue to build an evidence base for these products and
make Improvements

IMAGE
REMOVED

Competitive edge

Importantly, we are increasingly seeing cur Sates and
Marketing teams working with our Efficacy teams to
provide a competitive edge to Pearson's proposals Our
commitment to build more effective products has already
resulted in increased customer demand for such products
and, therefore, increased revenus We lock forward to
seeing this trend continue inte 2016 and beyond
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In 2016, we continue to make progress evaluaung and
improving the efficacy of our products Efficacy has
become central to our growth strategy Our knowledge
and capabilities are maturing Both our current
portfelio and the way we identify future acquisitions
are grounded 1n a commitment to demonstraung
effective learner outcomes We are delivering on our
commitment to report on these too

Our efficacy journey

“Hold us accountable for our impact [ we
fail, we fail as a business”

John Fallen Chuef executive officer

Building on last year's reports, this year our public
efficacy reports reflect what we've learnt since 2013
They include more detall on the tmpact each productis
having, iImprovements made to date, future product
research and improvement plans and, importantly,
stories from our customers Highlights of thiswork
follow, but to read the full reports, please visit

efficacy pearson com

Today we continue to refine our efficacy pracuce, and,
although our knowledge has matured, we remain
ploneers We continue to encourage everyone, from
our customers, to learners, to policymakers, to
nvestors, to join in and challenge us, to tefl us how we
canimprove our approachand i turn our products
and services

Efficacy leading to product improvement

The efficacy review pracess has been designed to

help teams identify areas of improvement in product,
customer relationships and internal capacity to deliver
The product improvement process is specifically
designed to ensure that the praduct will benefit
learners and customers, eventually making itmore
commeraally successful Examples of these
improvernents are filustrated below

Efficacy approach and activities

o Define ;ntended learner e Review products to e Conduct research to Support customersto
outcomes ensure they are positioned measure the efficacy of effectively Implement the
to deliver on those products and feed Insights products to get the best
outcomes, and put in place back nto preduct outcomes possible
efficacy improverment development
programmes
Product Improvement

Wall Street
Enghsh

New studenit
experience

»Launch of algorithm identiylng students atnisk of dropping out, providing insights for effective
interventions tmproves learner outcomes as well as centre profitability

3Class-leve! analytics to demonstrate that students perform eqgually, whether they are using print
or digital manuals, 2nother change that will improve centre efficiency

» Optimising duration of language videos will increase learmer engagement and encourage them
not to break thelr study rhythm

Pearson Schools
India

»Augmentation of teacher numbers and quahty as a direct resuit of the efficacy review

»improved data systems, which now provide teachers with data at a concept and student level,
aiming for 48-hour turnaround time

» Adoption of Big English, an Enghsh language learning product, to increase student Engfish
proficiency, teachers also being supported to improve their own English skills where required

» Mare teacher-to-teacher collaboration and mterventions driven by efficacy Our School
Management Improvement Framework, as well as a new professional Development programme
to improve school leadership
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Targeting growth through efficacy continued

2015 efficacy reports:
product highlights

Selected examples of our

efficacy reports are included below
The remainder of the reportscan

be found at efficacy pearson com @)

IMAGE REMOVED

In the last decade, the number of college
students majoring in STEM fields -
science, technology, engineering, and
mathematics - has mcreased rapidly

Between 2007 and 2011, STEM majors in the US Increased
by 48% Today, approximately 40% of male college
graduates and 29% of female college graduates earn a
degree in one of the STEM disciplines These areas of
study offer students practical and applicable skifls upon
entering the professional world and also create significant
economic opportunity

MasteningChenmistryis an onfine tutonal and problem-
solving tool for students to practise and reinforce their
understanding of college-level chemistry - a vital tool for
any successful STEM degree The productiaunchedin 2004
and today reaches about 350,000 students In the United
States, and 50,000 more in 60 countnes around the world
MasteringChemistry uses personalised instruction to
improve competency inchemistry and prepare students
for success in chemistry courses Learners benefit from
seif-paced tutorials featunng spedfic, wrong-answer
feedback and hints that emulate the tutor New content
features have been added to increase student achievement
and retention For example, there are additionaf adaptive
oppertunities through new Dynamic Study Modules,
which are desigried to help students study on thewr own
more effectively, using adaptive algorithms that adjust

the content based on each student’s understanding of

the concepts

For detail on the efficacy of this product go to
efficacy pearson com )

Alongside this annual report, we are publishing
several reports to share our efficacy progress
and the outcomes achieved by some of our most
powerfut products and services We will continue
to develop the capability to report transparently
on the efficacy of products across our portfolio

IMAGE REMOVED
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IMAGE
REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Connections Academy schools are
accredited, tuition-free, onhne public
schools for K-12 students, providing
apersonalised approach tolearning,
supported by ce1tified teachers and
acustom curriculum

Since the first Connections Academy opened in 2002, the
schools have been established in 26 US states and have served
nearly 270,000 students who - for academic, personal or

professional reasons - may be better suited to online rather
than bncks-and-mortar education

Connections believas that all students perform better
when they receve individual attention in a safe, nurturing
environment - what Connectlons calls Persenalised
Performance Learning® Students are able to accelerate
learning in areas of strength or receive extra attentionin
areas of weakness indwidualised learring does not mean
learning alone - students meet regularly in online Livelesson
sesslons and have apportunities to share deas and
experiences, while having fun learning together In-person
events, dubs, activitles, and field trips help students stay
connected and make friends Parents, asLearning Coaches,
are closely invoived in their children's education

For detall on the efficacy of this product go to
efficacy pearson com )

IMAGE
REMOVED

CTI Education Group (CTI)1s an
mstitute of higher education that
serves approximately 11,000 students
across 12 campuses 1n South Africa

The institute focuses on armung students with real-life
caraer skills, training them to succeed as employable
graduates in a competitive 2 1st-century economy

Because career-readiness 1s such a steadfast prionity for
the institute, CTl has developed a number of strategies
designed to ensure that all of its graduates are well
prepared for a highly demanding employment market. For
example, a virtual employabiity centre willopen in 2016 to
serve as aresource hub for students looking to enter the
jobmarket The virtualhub will be followed by six physical
employability centres to provide personalised, face-to-face
job coaching Finafly, employability competenaes are firmty
embedded into the CTI curniculumn, which focuses primarlly
on information technology, commerce and law

For detail on the efficacy of this productgo to
efficacy pearson com )

IMAGE REMOVED
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Targetng growth through efficacy continued

IMAGE REMOVED

The path towards audited efficacy statements

IMAGE REMOVED

With 85% of young millennials in the US
owning smarlphones 1n 2014 according
to Nielsen, education innovators have
come to understand that hardcover
textbooks are no longer in line with
students’ prunary consumption hahits

REVEL is a digltal resource that offers students online
and mobhile access to humanities and social sciences
course materlals The programme Iincludes embedded
assassments, Interactive components and videos
Integrated within the narrative content to reinforce key
concepts REVEL provides instructors an assignment
calendar, which allows themto indicate to students when
work must be completed with reminders and study tips
to help students stay on track throughout the course

REVEL was launched in 2014 to foster independent
self-initiated learrung outside the dlassroam, so that
students and educators are better prepared inside the
classroom REVEL allows students to access their learning
anytime, anywhere, with an engaging experience that
encourages class participation and course completion

REVEL helps instructors address a particularly thorny
challenge they face in the humanities and socal sciences -
that students don't do their assigned reading and come to
class under-prepared REVEL provides spedalised toolsto
allowinstructors to plan for and address this challenge

For Detail on the efficacy of this productgoto
efficacy pearson com §)

Auditing efficacy

From the start of our efficacy work we planned to have
our efficacy statements audited in the same way as our
financials each year In order for our focus on learner
outcomes to transform our business, it 1s essental that
our custormers trust any efficacy statements that we
make We are pleased to announce that thiswork is
underway This year we began work with an external
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers {(PwC), to ensure that
any efficacy staternents we make stand up to audit

we have now published 13 product reports PwCwill
collaborate with us during 2016 to continue to strengthen
our reporting process

tn 2016 PwC wilt work with us to
sStandardise and stabilise our efficacy reporting processes

» Further align our evidence o support product efficacy
statements

» Run a mock audit of a sample of efficacy statements in the
2016 annual report in preparation for 2018
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Our plansfor 2016

Expand the evidence of impact With efficacy processes
in place for our ‘first wave' and 'second wave’ products,
we will expand the breadth of evtdence we are
coliecting across even more Pearson products, further
demonstrating thewr impact on learner outcomes

Leverage afficacy to develop models of product
improvernent While all products engaged in the efficacy
process undergo an tmprovement cycle, in 2016 we will
deepen our efficacy focus on several products that
span our business models (e g managed services,
courseware) to establish a ‘gold standard’ miodel of how
our efficacy process teads to product improvement

Further embed efficacy (nto our orgarisation and
portfolio More product teams around the company will
embrace the efficacy approach Efficacy will be better
embedded in internal processes such as acquisition and
strategic planning

Share our efficacy story with the world Lead a global
conversation across the education sector aboutthe
impact of Pearson's efficacy work, demonstrating how
effective education products and services deliver
enhanced learner outcomes and positioning Pearson
at the forefront of the industry

The remaining education challenge

Education matters more than ever Itis the most
important factor in driving economi¢ and social
progress Researchshowsthat better education helps
individuals, famihes and countries prasper, improves
heaith outcomes and buids cohesive societies There
are huge challenges to overcome, as noted in the
adjacent diagram

There 1s growing consensus that addressing these
pressing educational and giobal development issues
and thereby meeting the needs of learners, employers
and governments will require everyone invoived in
education to work together and focus on solutions
which can be shown to make a difference

in 2015 we joined world leaders at the United Nations in
comrmtting to the UN World Sustainable Development
Goals (SDGs) to make the world a better place by 2030
These goals represent global challenges across both the
developed and developing world and all of Pearson’s
major markets Pearsonwill use these goals to inform
our own sustainability plan We will leverage our
irvestment In efficacy and our growth strategy to fuel
the financial success of Pearson, demonstrate progress
in achieving our mission, and be a global leader In
addressing Goal 4 of the SDGs, “to ensure inclusive

and equitable quality education and promate [ifelong
opporturities forall *

Through efficacy we are capturing our impacton
tearner outcomes at a product level, thereby providing
customerswith praducts and services that are effective
learning tools, and, as a result, expanding our reach

We now have the opportunity to measure the collective
reach and impact of all of our products, and to report
on our growth In new ways

In the next ten years, we at Pearson believe that the
world should be a place where far more people are
making much more progress in therr hves through
learning - and we are makimg an ambitious plan to
getthere

Access to high quality education

58m

primary-aged children IMAGE
are notin school

250 mifleon chitdren REMOVED
worldwide are sn school

but are ot learming

Literacy and numeracy skills

adults, globally, are illiterate In REMOVED

developed countries, 200 mithon
young people strif have not mastered
basic iteracy and numeracy skills

Employability and English language skills

206m

adults are unemployed 290 million
young people are out of work
Meanwhile 40% of employers are
unable to find qualified candidates
to fill vacancies

IMAGE
REMOVED

1 LINESCO Policy Paper, June 2014 (58m children notinschooly

2 UNESCO Education For Al Montoring Re port, Apnl 2013
{250m inschoel but natiearning)

3 WIS Fact Sheet, Sept. 2015 (750m (iterate)

4 International Labour Organsation, Global Employment Trends
2012{206m edult unemployed)

5 The Econemist, April 2013 {290m young people out of work)
& The Economist April 2013 (40%unable to find qualified candidates)
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Targeting growth through efficacy continued

The Plan

By 2025, Pearson commits to empower the hves of 200 nullion learners annually, more than doublmg our current
reach and doing 1t through the delivery of more effective products and services

primary and secandary
learners annually access
high quahty education

We are bullding on our >We will help 2 million post-

efficacywork toset secondary learners annually
ourselves ambitious

access high quality education
growth targets

and numeracy for 50 milllen
learners annuaily

»We will help 50 million
learners annuaily gain
the knowledge and skills
required for study and
employment

»We will help advance the
Englishlanguage skills of
75 million learners annually

Access Success Progress
Our goals Enhance access Help more learners Help more people

to high quality gain the knowledge make measurable
educalion that leads and skills required progress 1n their

Tomeetour commitment | ¢ magningful for Iife and career lite and career

to empower the lives of

200 million learners outcomes successin the through learning

annually, we have set 215t century

three goals

'2025 targets sWe will help 10 millien 3 We will help Increase hteracy > We wifl help 25 mililon

g learners annually transition

into the workforce after
further or higher education

yWewill help 20 milhon
learners advance their
carear prospects annually

Gnline degree and virtual school
programmes can improve
tearner access to quality primary
and secondaryeducation,

Our goals and targets currently those programmes
align with our core are helping 1 8 milionieamers

Strategic
alignment

Our preducts that support adult
Englishlanguage leaming can
provide learners with the skills
required for successin a global
workforce Products sich as
MyEnglishLab and many others
allowus to help advance the

Ourworkforce readiness
products supportiearners to
make measurable progress
intheir Ives and careers
Products such as Myl TLab
help approximately 15 miflion
‘learners to transition nto the

strategic priorities to annually accessqualty
education 8y 2025, we aim English language skills of workforce annually By 2025
For more see strategic to heip 10 million 30million learners annually we aim ta help 25 miflion
overview onp04 € By 2025 we alm to help learners annually transition
75 rmullion iearners annually ntothe workforce after higher
or further education
From 2016 to 2025 In 2016, we wilt

While our efficacy work continues, we will sharpen the
focus of our portfolic, Investments, partnerships, and
campaigns to meet the goal of reaching, and positively
impacting, 200 milion learners with increasingty
effactive products This approach will eventually be
embedded into every area of our business so that we
are positioned for growth

» Define company-wide trajectories and set product-level

targets and trajectories

»Tie KPIs to the targets across Pearson, measuringthe
performance of aur business leaders and executives by
their contnibutions to these goals

» Develop and implement a system capable of tracking
our prograss towards these goals

»Agree upon processes for determining new acquisitions
and investments in our current and future portfolio
based on thew contribution to our goals
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Timeline
2013 2016 2018 2025
Public launch of our Build on efficacy commitment Firstmajor public reporting Meet our impact and
efficacy commitrment toset targets for our impact on efficacy progress and reach targets
and our reach progress againstour impact
and reach targets
Setting the targets Pearson's ambitious research programme

»Qur targets are denved from the key educational
challenges facing learners, market reahties and
opportumties identified by our business leaders
where Pearson has opportunity to grow

» Qur product portfolio was evaluated to determine
the areas where Pearson can measurably have the
greatestimpact on global education

»>The targets are set based on current reach and
market trends Choosing these targets will help
organise and measure Gur energy to grow
the company

We are at a critical juncture in our hustory and the
education sector 1s at a critical junicture in its evolution
With far greater data being made available on learners’
performance and morewillingness to use that data to
improve education, we have a singular cpportunity to
have greater impact with our products as well as reach
maore people

Our targets to increase our reach and impactwill drive

us towards commercial success and our russion to help

people make progress i their lives through learning

The number of learners reached by Pearson

200m

By 2025,
Pearson aspires IMAGE
to empower the REMOVED

lives of 200 millian
learners annually

World-leading research continues to be a prionty for
Pearson We workwith the best minds in education to
bring their diverse and independent insights to awider
audience These include two reports published in 2015
with world-renowned educaucnalist Professor john
Hattle, What Doesn't Work in Education the Politics of
Distraction, and What Works Best in Education the
Politics of Collaborative Expertise

These papers have been read 70,000 imes via our
website and have redefined our ambition for the global
reach of Pearson's thought leadership They have
formed the basis of engagements with government
officlals, stakeholders and academia in key markets
across the world

In 2016, we look forward to buitding on this momentum
with releases on critical topics including adaptive
learning, artificial inteliigence in education, and bullding
efficacy into fearnung technologies
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Our social
1mpact

Learning is the means by which people
progress in their lives.

At Pearson, our commercial success and delivering onour
social purpose are mutually reinforcing Our aim s to help
people flourish and make progress in their lives through
education and learning

Our promuse 1s progress for the millions who learn with us and
efficacy (p46) Is the key mechanism by which we will deliver
This means a clear focus on developing products and services
that have a measurable impact on improving students' lives
through learning

This year, we have gone further by setting clear goals on
the number of learners we will support through our products
and services

Purpose reinforces success in a number of ways - It attracts
and helps us retamn talent, something we know to be true
from the results of cur engagement survey, it NSpIres our
customers, builds confidence, drives performance and helps
foster innovation

Qur strategy is focused on extending and deepening our
impact, but we also know that ‘how’ we deliver is central

to our purpose Acting responsibly helps us to deliver better
outcomes and to meet the expectations of our stakeholders

Our sooial Impact strategy

Sustainability Impact Innovation
We investin our people, We contribute to significant - We actively partner and
our communities and social and environmental invest in new models of
work to reduce our campaigns fearningto help find

solutions to the biggest

environmental footprint
unmet educat:onal needs
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Overview

1. Sustainability

Pearson has an active role
Lo play in finding solutions
1o our global sustainability
challenges, which is integral

to our business strategy
and how we report on ou
most material issues.

r

1 Sustamnahlity ps6-58 Q)
2 Our values and behaviours ps9-60 )
3 Our relationships p61-63 Q)
4_ Our planet p63-64 &)
5 Impact campaigns p65-66 €Y
Project Literacy
Employee engagement
p67 Q)

6 Social iImnovation

From June 2016 we will report in more detai
in our 2015 Sustainability Report avaliable on
pearson com/social-impact

Towards a new strategy

During 2015 we began a review of our sustainability
practice, to ensure that our strategy, activities and
reporting efforts

» Reflect best practice in sustainability

s Are fit for purpose in a rapudly changing business cimate
» Aligrt with current business and stakeholder priorities
>Match our ambition and business strategy

» Reflect how our business model can link to the UN's
Sustainable Development Goals

Pearson has a broad definition of responsible business
and has established a set of comrmitments across a range
of social, community and human rights principles to

Ensure that our products and services are inclusive,
appropriate in content to the age, location and ability
ofthe learner, and are easy and safe to use and access

Respect and protect how we use and share data
entrusted to us by learners and our custormers

Inform, support and equip colleagues to work
collaboratively

Encourage and reward high performance, nurturing
talent and creating a culture where all are able to realise
their individual potential

Provide a safe and healthy workplace for our employees
and the learners we serve

Extend our commitments on labour standards, human
nghts and environmental responsibility to include our
suppliers and business partners Thisindudes aconcern
across the value chain for ensuring our activities are free
from slavery, servitude, forced or compulsory labour and
human trafficking

Provide opportunities for Pearson peopie to be good
citizens and to get involved In their local communities

Deliver against our targets on aur response to climate
change and to make more efficient use of resources

Pearson has In place policies to support recognised
human rights pnnaiples These include health and safety,
safeguarding, non-discrimination and a right to quatity
education Asa founder signatory to the UN Global
Compact, we have also made a senes of commitrments

to the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the ILO
declarattons on fundamental principles and rnghts at work,
the Rio Declaration on Environment and Development
and to reflect a zero tolerance approach to bribery

and carruption

The approach we've taken for our sustalnability review
and the resulting sustainability map are opposite on p57
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Pearson sustamnability review - five key phases

o Assess Conduct e Define, Create e Devise
current state matenaliy ambitions, implementation reporting
analysis visions and roadmap strategy
goals

We have completed a third-party review of poltties and
reporting, abenchmark against competitors and leaders,
aswell as internalinterviews with Pearson executives

A new sustainability map captures our mest materlal issues

Pearson sustainability map

This has been reviewed by internal experts and, to date, nearly
40 Pearson executives have been consulted Thiswiltbe
finallsed in 2016 and form part of our sustainability reporting
Detailed below s our current thinking

Mission Help people make progress in their lives
through access to better learning
Agnment Quality Decent work and Reduced Our framework
i cen uce
with UN 4 education economic growth ].O inequatines indirectly addresses
sustatnable theother 18 goals
development eother 148
goals IMAGE IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED REMOVED
~
Ambition Be atrusted partner Reach more learners Create the future
operate responstbly be mnclusive of education lead in
product tnnovation
IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED
Strategic Operateresponsibly Maximise social Impact by reaching Lead in product Innovation and
intent new markets and expanding access excellence to create education that
to our products mests sodety’s future needs.
v v v
»Value our learners, »Reachmore of the peoplewhoneed ) Produce productswhichimprove
customers and partners abetter education the most the way educationis delwered
>Respect and progress »Make our products accessible to yAdvance the skilis, competencles
our employees everytype of learner and quahficatens needed for Life
»Promote stewardshup in our > Consider the affordability of andworkin the 2ist century
everyday operations our products inrelationto the yEmpower leamerstobe
»Actvely contribute to the type of rarket and its customers’ global citzens
communities where we work income levels
>Delver products which give

learning outcomes we promuse
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1 Sustamabihty continued

IMAGE REMOVED

Pearson and the UN sustainable development goals

in 2015 we joined world leaders at the United Nations
1in committing to the UN sustainable development
goals [SDGs) setting out therr ambstion for a more
peaceful and prosperousworld These goals
represent global challenges thatimpact education
acrosstheworid Goal 41s particularly impaortant
for Pearson - “to ensure inclusive and equitable
quality education and promote hifelong learning
opportunities for all “ We are playing our partin
contributing to this goal, through contributing
educational expertise, knowledge and resources
to help address these pressing challenges

We are also working in partnership with others
to make a difference

»We are supporting Project Everyone —an
organisation with a simple but mighty ambition
- to share the global goals with all 7 billion people
on the planet

>We have Joined the Global Citizen movement
- an organsation dedicated to creating change
and taking action to address the world's
biggest challenges

H

Governance

Corporate responsibility cannot be separated from
ourbusiness and reputation The reputationand
responsibility comrruttee, a formal committee of the
board, provides ongoing oversight, scrutiny and
challenge across the entire responsible business agenda
Learn more onp90

The Pearson executive drives the implementation of
business strategy, including our response to the key
Issues and opportunities we face Theresponsible
bustness leadership councit oversees the development
and implementation of our responsible bustness
strategy on behalf of theboard Itis chaired by our chief
corporate affairs officer and comprises senior executives
from across the global business

Stakeholders

Public and private sector customers regularly seek
mnformation on how we go about our business, while
many iearners and employees want to understand our
approach to sustamnability Socally responsible investors
and non-governmental organisations look at issues such
as supply chain standards and ethics

Our approach to responsible business s informed
by the priorities and views of our many stakeholders
A priority for us will be testing our new sustainabihity
framework with stakeholders as part of a continuing
focus onidentifying, engaging and Inspiring our
prionty audiences
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2. Our values and behaviours

Employee engagement

Our organisatronal structure continues to evolve to
better deliver on our business strategy and to position
the company for growth We cantinue to invest In our
single operating model, and in particular m standardising
systems and a smaller number of global platforms

At the same time, we are accelerating our shift and
investment in digital products

Change can be inspiring but also brings operational risk
The link between employee engagement and business
performance is well established, and our 2014 employee
engagement survey had some key lessons for us

» Qur purpose to improve lives through learming 1s clear
and compeliing

» Our focus on efficacy 1smproving our products
and services

»Values and behaviours are critical to our success,
but need to be more clearly articulated

> Inthis ime of change, our leaders and managers
need to communicate more often and more clearty
their expectations of working together in a more
Joned-up way

» More work s needed to clanfy to employees how our
new structure works and how it helps deliver outcomes
for learners

Based on this, we set the following agenda for the work around our values in 2015 and beyond

Priorities in 2015 and beyond Activities in 2015

Leaders more consistently model
the behaviours required forus to
be successful

»Many of our leaders have written, spoken or tweeted about our values in 2015, and the
valuesthemselves have been integrated Into business processes and communicauon

>Following consultation and research, we introduced ‘accountable’ as a fourth vatue,
alongside our current values of brave, imaginative and decent, to provide positive
tenslon and increase our focus on responsibility and delivery

drving the nght behaviours across the
organisation

defined high, expected and low performance for each behaviour, for all employees as
well as for more senor leaders Clear behavioural expectations provide more clanty in
terms of what the values look hike day-to-day

People feel safe to speak out and
challenge where our values are not
being tved

3In 2015, we provided much clearer guldance on how to assess values and behaviours
in a performance review

» The values and behaviours were used to help shape the revised Pearson Code of
Conduct, with a particular focus on speaking up and challenging behaviour that is
not consistent with our values

Employees see evidence of the values > »We created a clear set of behavioural expectations against each of the values, and

our values, Employee Value Proposition
and culture

Candrdates are attracted to Pearson by yWe created and launched arange of simple but powerful toclkits to help leaders,
managers and teams explore and understand what the values and behaviours look

like In thelr own context

Evidence that our values drive
performance, engagementand
retention of key talent

»Welcome to Pearson, our award-winning global anboarding toal, has been updated to
ensure that all new hires are familiar with the values from day one We continue to have
high recall of the values, and strong identification with thern, as evidenced in our 2015
engagement survey (see beltow)

The 2015 engagement survey found that 89% of employees agree that ‘Pearson’s values are Important to me’ - even
higher thann 2014 (84%) The survey also indicated that behaviour consistent with our values was significantly more
visible to employees, and that all four values are more prevalent witiun most parts of our company As part of our work
on culture, we found that the way Pearson's colteagues treat one another and the values themselves are factors in the

decision to jon and stay at Pearson
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2 Our values and behaviours continued

Qur values

Brave

Takes bold and decisive action
to deliver ambitious outcomes

AN

Decent

Listens, encourages and
respects difference, treats

and champions a culture of all people fairly, with
hugh performance IMAGE REMOVED honesty and transparency
I
THE
LEARNER

Imaginative
Looks beyond thelr Accountable
wmemediate job bath inside Drives resuits by owning
and outside of Pearson and the solution, getting the
introduces new ways of right peaple involved and
seeing, thinking and working delwering on promises
Gur behaviours

Brave I l Imaginative _] [Decent l | Accountable I
Shows determination Assesses complex 1ssues Is honest, transparent and Takes ownership of
and courage in the face from multiple angles and stralghtforward when own work and drives to
of obstacles and setbacks addresses problems that working with others successful completion
Offersid don't have clear solutions a I | i and closure

ers (deas oropinions or sutcomes Builds trusting relationships {

without fear of enticism or
professional risk

Offers creative ideas and
Innovative solutions to

Sets high standards for own
solve problems and address
and others’ performance opportunities
Takes a broad perspective
to identify opporturuties
and solutions
Code of conduct

with a broad range of
people inside and outside
Pearson

Looks for and includes
diverse viewpoints and
tatents of others

Raising concerns

dentifies and involves
others to accomphish
indvidual and group
outcomes

Follows through
on cammitments

Our values arereinforced by our code of conduct

which covers, among other things, individual conduct,
safeguarding of learners, employee nights and
responsibilities, community involvement, the
environment and our social obligations We make sure
everyone 1s aware of the Code and this forms part of the
onboarding process This year, we completed a materiat
review and rewrite of the Code induding detarted
additional guidance and case study support The Code
was crculated early in 2015 to every Pearson employee
and they were asked to confirm they had readit,
understood it and to affirm that they would comply with
it Over 99% of employees have signed upto the Code

We aperate afree, confidential telephone hefpline and
website for anyone who wants to raise a concern and we
have a clear non-retaliation policy in place to encourage
peaple to share the issues they have [n 2015, we had

119 concerns (112 1n 2014} raised through the ethics
reporting process These wereinvestigated and, where
possible, the outcome shared with the whistieblower
This year, as in most years, the majority of the concerns
related to HR practices Matenial concerns raised are

reported to the Pearson aucht commuttee
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Learners and customers

Our people

Our primary responsibihity tolearners is to ensure that
every product or service we sell can be measured by
what it helps them to achteve ltis also the primary
contribution we can make to society Our secttonon
efficacy descnbes the commitments and progress we
have made

Last year, we adopted the Pearson product hfecycle
frarework for managing our products, services and
platforms This introduced a untfied preduct strategy
that brought a single global approach to shape how

we invest, develop, market and deliver our products

We have identified & number of prionty products for
Investment, selected for their potential to generate

the most business vaiue and deliver the greatest
learner outcomes at scale These are the focus of our
commitments Our products are increasingly digital,
offering opportunities to tallor and personalise learning
around individual needs Atthe same time, many people
have concerns over the security and privacy of data

We have established a governante body within Pearson
to oversee our global approach to thesessues

Product development s part of awider approach to
better understanding product and customer experience
Last year, we introduced the Net Promoter Score (NPS)
system inte Pearson This is one of the most recogrused
methods of measurning customer loyalty and to date over
150,000 of our customers have shared thewr comments
Corporately, we have also invested in a brand tracker -
seeking the views of learners, parents and educatorson
Pearson in our largest markets

One area inwhich we can do more 1s to integrate our
approach to managing customer relationstups We are
now implementing a single global platform - Salesforce -
for our marketirig, sales and servica functions Starting
with cur businesses in South Africa and the Higher
Education sales teamsin the United States, we will be
adding new markets, geographies and capablities in
2016 Asingle custormer view will help improve our
responsiveness to customer needs

Aswe grow through operating and owning learning
institutions, we have new responsibilities to safeguard
and protect learners through providing a safe, age-
apprapriate learning environment, whetherina
classroom or oniine Our new head of safeguarding has
spearheaded our workn this area through assigning
local business leads, establishing common reporting
frameworks, launching a new safeguarding online
learning module and training strategy, as weil as piloting
anew approach to incadent prevention

Highlights during the year include

» Reinforaing our single global approach to performance
assessment Introduced i 2014 and refined in 2015, this
I1s designed to hefp our employees agree expectations
for the year and to motivate people to act consistently
with our values and business strategy

*Acontinuing commitment to internal iearming and
development Pearson has a single global platform - Milo
-foriearning and development Employees completed
approximately 200,000 courses relevant to employee
development during 2015 Through Milo, we delivered
aglobal employee Induction module called ‘Welcome
to Pearson' and a suite of management modules on
ways of working Employees and managers use Milo to
record their individual goals, monitor their progress,
and assess their performance Pearsan also began the
implementation of a single global recruitment process,
which will allow all employees access to job openings
around the wortd and introduces a consistent approach
to internal movement

» Ensuring our employees and the learners we serve are
safe, resient and productive Our goalis to achieve zero
harm for cur employees, contractors and learners,
working to prevent incidents before they occur In 2013,
we launched arevised Global Health & Safety Policy
which included 39 minimum performance standards for
implementation at alf of our locatrons in the world In
June 2015, Pearson secured the RoSPA Bronze Award for
health and safety performance for our global operations
Ahealth and safety strategic plan s in place for 201517
with 11 focus areas, each with clear accountabihty and
measures of performance

> Helping employees understand howwe are doing as a
company, inctuding how world and sector trends might
affect them and their business We provide
comprehensive and relevant information an our
performance induding presentations, smal group
discussions, messages and webinars Senor leaders also
use technology to reach all areas of Pearson, through
initiatives such as virtual town halls The chief executive
hosts a regular call to update all employees onstrategy
and to share new innovations from across the company
Inthe UK, we have set up an employee engagement
group involving members elected by staff as well as
trade unton representatives
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3 Qur relationships continued

Diversity and inclusion

At Pearson, we value the power of difference Itdrives

Innovation, productivity and engagement, helping create a
culture of apportunity, where every employee and learner
isvalued That'swhywe're committed to ensuring thatthe

core principles of diversity and inclusion are embedded
across our entire business, so thatwe reflectour
customers and learners, and where our people can be
themselves and contrthute fully to our mission to iImprove
lves through fearning

Thethree pillars of our approach are

Equality Diversity Inclusion

Champion fair Celebrate what Create a single

treatment, makes us different, | globalworking

respectand equal | ourindividual and | environment and

opportunity for arganisational culture, where all

all our peaple culture, work our people can
styles, values, pringther full
behefs, selvestowork,
experlances, are valued for their
backgrounds, differences and
preferences and can contribute fully
behaviours ta our compary

purpose

We are committed to attracting, retaining, engaging and
developing the best people We knowthatareating and
sustaining annclusive work environment is aritically
important from the boardroom down, regardless of race,
gender, gender identity or reassignment, age, disabibty,
religion or sexual onentation

Highlights of our activities include:
3 We have 30% female board members, ahead of the

25% by 2015 target set by Lord Davies for the UK's

350 largest companies

>We remain an enthusiastic member of the 30% Club which
brings together chairs and CEOs to work together on
gender balance We partucipate in their cross-company
mentoring programme which helps the development of
talented mid-career women

» Raising awareness about the impact of unconscious bias
on key people management decisions To date, over 4,000
employees have completed our interactive training on

the topic

sIn the UK, we are members of the Stonewall Diversity
Champions programme and participate in the Stonewafl
Workplace Equality Index, benchmarking how we perform
as an LGBT-fnendly employer against over 400 UK
organisations Inthe United States, Pearson again
recarded a perfect score of 100% in the 2015 Corporate
Equality Indexrun by LGBT advocacy organisation,
the Human Rights Campaign

>We have involved over 3,000 employees in global
employee resources groups Networks include Women
in Learning and Leadership {WILL)which currently has
15 chapters, Pearsan Spectrum for LGBT colleagues and
allies, Pearson Parents, Pearson Able for colleagueswith
disabilities and accessibility advocates, Pearson Veterans
for mulitary familtes and veterans, and the Pearson Latino
Network, dedicated to addressing the needs of Hispanic
and Latino employees and learners

> Disability 1s animportant part of our wider commitment
to diversity andinclusion Wework to ensure that
appropriate procedures, traming and supportare in
place for people with disabilities to ensure fair access to
career and progression opportunities Our Able network
of empioyeeswill help usimprove practice

Women in Pearson (%)

Boardofdirectors  Senlor leadership*  Aliemployees
33% % 34% 59%
2015 1116 2015 2015
30%2014 35%2014 58% 2014
22% 2013 31%2013 57%2013

* Tworeportinglines from chief executive

Allemployees (number)

Senlor leadership*  All employees**

J 6781 G

Board of directors

7
6 L.O 68
1116 men

3 Q35 Q 24260 Q

* Tworeporting ines from chief executyve

** Derived from HR systems and mcludes the FT
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4, Our planet

Supply chain and partners

Pearson purchases goods and services valued ataround
£1 5bn each year This total includes our investment in
research and development of new digital products and
Services

Speaific dlauses refating to our commitments made

under the UN Global Compact are anintegral part of our
contracts for key suppliers These standards include the
rejection of forced and compulsory fabour, a respect for
diversity, a mmimurn age towork on Pearson projects and
comphancewith employment laws and regulations

This year, we reviewed our approach to franchise
partners and introduced a common contract template
governing our responsibilities on health and safety,
labour standards, combatting corruption, safeguarding
and the environment

Communitres

In 2015, our community Investment was £10 7m, or 1 5% of
pre-tax profits In 2014, Pearson adopted a new strategy
which established increasing literacy rates worldwide as
our anchor social impact campangn issue, along with 2
focus on employee engagementin communities Read
more on pages 65-66

We are comntted to playing an active role in helping
shape and inform the global debate around education

and learnmg policy A major milestone this year was the
launch of the UN Sustainable Development Goals and,
with others, we successfully advocated for the inclusion of
educabion as a core goal We also contributed to the debate
dunng the UN General Assembly in September aswell as
to Project Everyone to spread theword anthe goals

We are a board member representing the private sector
on the Global Partnershp for Education, having been
one of the first companies to jointhe intiative GPE
brings together over 50 developing countries, donor
governments, international crganisations, the prvate
sector, teachers, and cvil sodiety/NGO groups to support
developing countnes with their education sector plans
through finandal assistance and technical expertise
www globalpartnership org

We also behieve that the wider private sector has an
important contribution to make in developing educaton
and {earming policy We helped establish, and conunue
to support, the Global Business Coalition for Educaton,
helping focus the wider business community on the
challenges faced by developing countnes to promote
learming http /gbc-education orgfabout-us

We balieve that we have a responsibility to piay our partin
pratecting the natural resources onwhichwe all depend

Climate change

Pearson mamntained our chimate neutral status for our
directly controlled operations - & commitment we first
achieved in 2009 We do this through carbon reduction,
purchase of renewable energy, renewable energy
generation at our sites and the purchase of carbon
offsets

Highlights of our activities mnclude

> Pearson retains global certificabon against the Carbon
Trust Standard We were the second ever organisation
to secure the standard which recognises leadership
in measuring, managing and reducing year-on-year
carbon emissions

» Pearson completed our work to build a carbon footpnint
analysts tool for our book publishung in the US and UK
This will help us target the most effective reductions

»We maintained our record of purchasing 100% of the
electricity we use from green power representing over
141,000 MWh of electrncityin 2015 Dunng COP21in
Paris, Pearson announced that we had signed up to
RE100, Joining over 50 compantes helpmng build the
market for renewable electrcity

»We continue to generate renewable electriaty at
five sites and have 2 6 MW of wind and solar assets
installed

» Pearson s certified against ISO14001, the environmental
management standard in the UK and Australia During
2015, Pearson completed the work to become certified
against IS0 50001, the energy management standard

» Our River Street offices in Hoboken, New Jersey, became
the latest to secure LEED certification, an internationaily
recognised mark of environmental excellence in facilities
management. Pearson ocauptes 840,000 square feet
in LEED certified buildings including our offices at
330 Hudson Streetin New York

Our approach to managing other matenally important
emissions - such as embedded carbon dicxide in
purchased raw matenals as well as business travel by
air -are detailed tnour 2015 Environment report

This wiil be published m June 2016

Targets

25%

reduction in gperational
emissions by the end of
2015, based on a 2009 base
year We achieved 30%

100%

To maintain our record of
purchasing 100% of the
electricity we use from
green power Achleved
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4 Our planet continued

Global Greenhouse Gas (GHG) ermissions data (Metnc tonnes of CO,e)

Calendar year Calendar year
0

Emisslons frorm 2015

Calendar year Calendaryear
Intenslty ratios 2014 2015

Combustion of fuel and operation

Scapes 1and 2 {tonnes CO.e)/

of facihties {(GHG Protocok scope 1) 25,027 22,343 sales revenue £ {millions) 266 248
Electricity, heat, steamn and cooling Scopes 1and 2 {tonnes CO,e)/FTE 317 270
purchased for ownuse (GHG

Pratocol scope 2) 104,715 88,381

Total 129,742 110,724

Carbon ermssions The scope 1 and scope 2 carbon emissions are calculated according to The Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standard (Revised Edtion) together with the latest emission factors from recogrused sources Including but not limited to DEFRA
the Internatonal Energy Agency, and the US Environmental Protectlon Agency No material scope 1 or scope 2 emissions have been excluded

from the reported GHG emisslons

Material use Forests

When purchasing paper for our books, security and
sustatnabtlity of supply are very importanttous
Paper use remains a prionity environmental issue
and we continue to focus on sustainability sourang
and being more efficient in howwe use paper We

> First adopted and publicly disclosed our environmental
sourcing policy for paper in 2003

» Collect and map data on the forest of ongin, certrficatton
systems applicable and recycled content for the papers
we purchase

> Talk about our gurdelines with our key paper suppliers
whenwe meet and as part of our contract negotrations

> Discuss our approach to paper purchasing with
customers, environmental groups, Investor analysts
and other interested stakeholders

OQur performance Qur social impact rankings

»Signed up to the WWF Save Forests campaign and added
ourveice for the inclusion of printed material within the
scope of the EU Timber Regulation

>Hold Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) chain of custody
certification, allowing books to carry the FSClabel for our
businesses tn North America and in the UK

> Are members of Industry bodies dedicated to responsible
forest management We have been members of the WWF
forest and trade network for over a decade and are a
founder member of PREPS - the publishers database for
responsible environmental paper sourcing -whichwe use
across our global business

sinvest tn forest-based carbon offsets for any part of our
chmate footprint we cannot reduce or avond through
other means Since 2009, this programme has seen over
1,300 hectares of forest protected in Canada, Colombua,
Costa Rica, the US and the UK

/
Visit pearson com/environment to learn more g

One waywe assess how we are doing as a responstble business 1s to maintatn our position in key indices

and benchmarks of social responsibility

Index/year 20M 2012 2013 2014 2015

Dow Jones Sustainability Indices* Global Gold Sitver Bronze Bronze

Sector Leader Class Class Class Class

BITC Corporate Responsibifity index Platinum Platinum Platnum Platinum 5%+
{retatned) (retained)

Inclusicn in FTSE4Good Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

Yes Yes

Corporate Kmights index of the Global 100
most sustalnable corporations

* Forthe last decade, we have been included in the £JS! Warld index
whichinctudes only the top 10% of companles in eachindustry
assessed for sustalnability performance

+* BITC introduced a newrating system in 2015

We welcome feedback onthis aspect of the
company as we do on any other Please e-mail
amanda gardiner@pearson com with any gquestions
or ideas you may have
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Pearson has changed its approach to community
mvestment We beheve thatwe can make more of
a difference to people'siives through focusing on
asmall number of campaigns and 1ssues, where
working together with others can accelerate the
impact of learning

As the world's learning company, Pearson has a lot to
offer beyond traditional cash donations - we can also
bring the expertise and enthusiasm of our people, as
well as a wealth of relevant products and services

This approach also delivers value for the company

By getting invalved 1n social campaigns, our employees
can develop new skills, insight and energy and apply
this to their work at Pearson OQur soclalimpact
campaigns also raise Pearson's profile, differentiate us,
and increase awareness of 1ssues that inhibit access

to better learning outcomes

In 2015, our pnimary focus has been on developing our
flagship campaign, Project Literacy Alongside this, we
have also offered employees a range of new ways to get
involved inworthy causes and their local communities

Project Literacy

literacy remains a huge challenge Onenten people
worldwide, or over 750 miilion adults, are tliterate, two-
therds of whom are women This is a staggering number
of people

We also know that being Iiterate is fundamental
to building a world in which everyone has the chance
tolearn

Literacy is an Issue where we believe that Pearson can
make a substantial contnbution, butis far from sufficient
onits own This 1s why we launched Project Literacy -
amovement with a shared vision to putliteracy within
everyone's reach, unlocking the potential of pecple,
communities and whole economies To date,

40 organisations have joined the campaign

Project Literacy - headlmes

To shape our campaign strategy and focus, we
researched the views of the public, the private sector
and literacy charittes to understand both the current
landscape and to benchmark awareness of iliteracy
as anurgentissue We found that

a) Hhteracy 1s not viewed as a major global or
national issue However, when illiteracy is connected
to sacial and economic challenges such as paverty,
interest rises

b} The vast majority of funding is for chuld Iiteracy
leaving adult, and in particular women's, iteracy
under-funded

¢) More Investment 1s needed to support familtes to
help their children develop literacy skills before
starting school

Based on these insights, Project Literacy refinedits
focus and strategy as a five-year campaign dedicated
to bullding a movement and partnerships that will act
together to close the global iteracy gap

Building partnerships Partnerships are critical to the
success of Project Literacy Our partnership selection
process is based on a theory of change developed m
collaboration with the Pearson Efficacy tearmn and

Resuits for Development {(R4D}, a US non-profit that
specialises in monitoring and evaluation for internationat
development programmes

Engaging employees in social impact

Qur people are our best ambassadors and advocates
One waywe support themis to provide opportunities
to give time and money to invest in their communities
We use Project Literacy as alever, butwe also support
our employees to make an impact on causes they care
about through opportunities to volunteer, donate and
to share their social impact stories Over the course of
2015, 30% of employees participated in socal impact
activities at Pearson

969m

peopte reached through
meda, secial reach and
IMAGE events
REMOVED

11,460

people have sought
volunteering opportunities
with our Project Literacy
partners

Celebnties and influencers

supporting the campaign
IMAGE Richard Bransan, Chelsea
REMOVED Clinton and Prers Morgan
Events marked by
4'49 ,477 Project Literacy”

World Book Day, Mandela
Day, Internatronal Youth
Day, International Literacy
Day, UNGA weaek,
International Hurnan Rights
Day, and Gwing Tuesday

viewsof Project Literacy
articles published by GOCD
Magazine, a social purpose
media company
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5 Impact campaigns continued

The three pillars of our theory of change that guide our partnership investment decisions are

Advancing
best practice

We partner with organisations
implementing proven literacy
Interventions to help them grow
Why? Because there are some
things that we already know work
tomprove hiteracy, and we need
moreof them

A4
Naticnal Literacy Trust (NLT)

Innovating
new solutions

We partner with organisations
to design, build and rigorously
test new approaches to tackling
iliteracy Why? Because new
solutions will be needed to
reach the most marginahsed
and achteve scale

v
Worldreader

Raising awareness and
mobilismg action

We are bullding a network to
advacate collectively for greater
investment in and attention to
hteracy Why? Because the extent of
the problem and its potential impact
1s huge, we'll need everyone united
to close the iteracy gap

v

Unsigned petition

ProjectLiteracy and NLT are
partnering together to replicate Early
Words Together, a targeted lliteracy
peereducation programme for
famiies with children aged 2to 5,

n 30 schools across the London
metropolitanarea Asan integral
component of the programme,
Pearson and community volunteers
are recruited and trained to help
parents improve thelrhome learning
environment and adopt behaviours
that support literacy using evidence-
based approaches and materials

Volunteering

Project Literacy and Worldreader are
partnering together on a mobile
technology pilot project in India -
Mobile Reading to Children -to
empower parents to tatk more

and read more to their children,
specifically through the use of mobile
devices With theWorldreader mobile
app, which 1s available on feature
phones and smartphones, we will

be prowviding arich bank of locally
relevant content at low cost for
200,000 low-income parentsin
Delhiwho have children aged 6 and
younger Additional partners include
Resuits for Development, Center for
Knowledge Socletles, Society for All
Round Development, Katha, and
Health and Farmily Plannmng
Organrzation

Giving

In September 2015, 16 Project
Literacy partners joined forces to
sign an open letter to world leaders
meeting at the United Nations
General Assembly (UNGA), calling
onthemto rake literacy a key part
of the sustainable development
agenda The letter was published

1n The New York Times and The
Guardlan This letter, combined with
the launch of our global ‘Unsigned
Petition’, reached 410 miflion people
through sedal medla The petition
is our major call to action for 2015
and 2016, serving as a striking and
visual reminder of the global scale
ofiliiteracy and the 750 milllon
people worldwlide who cannat sign
for themselves

We now have formal volunteening programmes In place
in the US and the UK wath Project Literacy partners
including Reading Partners, Jumpstart and the Nationat
titeracy Trust In 2015, our employees volunteered
over 10,000 hours with 40% of those linked to Iteracy
For one programme - Read for the Record run by
jumpstart - our employees contributed approxamately
1,000 volunteenng hours and helped 7,000 chiidren

Sharnng

Pearson employees helped inspire others by
contributing mare than 1,400 stones about literacy
volunteerning or donating, either on social media or
on our internal commuruty engagement hub

Pearson has teamed up with Kwa, the world's targest
micro-lending platform, to provide micro-loans to people
around the world who are locked out of tradittonal
banking systems To date, employees have made more
than $600,000 of loans to Kiva entrepreneurs, making
Pearson third globally for total amount loaned by a
businesson Kiva

In September, we launched a matching gifts campaign
to mark the launch of the Global Geals and Project
Literacy presence at UNGA Throughout the entire
month, employees across Pearson who gave to chanties
received a4 1 match from Pearson The campaign raised
over $430,000 Overthe course of the year, employees
supported more than 1,700 charities
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Lack of access 1o quality education for low-income and
marginahsed families 1s a global challenge that impacts
both developing and developed econermies

Central to our approach is a belief that commerctal
solutions can accelerate access to quality, affordable
education, while presenting new business opportunities
for Pearson Uncovering, developing and scaling
solutions, especially in places where education
standards fail well behind the best in the world, can
require us to chailenge the way we think about our
bustness We investin new technology aswell as test
innovative partrerships for our products to reach

these markats

IMAGE REMOVED

Social nnovation in practice - the Pearson
Affordable Learming Fund

The Fund launched In 2012 and has a maximum commitment
level of $65m in capital Its ambition is to reach millions of
students from low income families by 2020, allowing access
to high quality affordable education Integraltolts approach
15 to setimprovements in learning outcomes and market-
based returns as conditrons of continued investment. The
Fund has invested in innovative education start-ups n South
Africa, Nigaria, Ghana, Indla and the Philippines The Fund
goes far beyond financial backing in thatit contnbutes to
good governance, and operational support to education
entrepreneurs The Fund enables innovation fromwhich
both Pearson and governments can learn, the cost per
student in the schools i the fund portfolio is on par or

lower than the per pupil costin the public sector

One example I1s Every Child Learning - our partnership
with Save the Children Our shared vision s to work
together to find sustainable ways for the education
system injordan to cope with the influx of displaced
Syrian refugee children We have donated £500,000
to fund the establishment of two Save the Children
education centres in Armman, which are supporiing
Syrian refugees and host community children (5 ta 13
years old} to get a quality education We have made

a further £1m cormnmitment ta work jomntly with Save
the Children to scope, research, design and develop
new education solutrons That means geing beyond
traditiona! philanthropy to leverage the full potential
of Pearson’s global operations, networks and people

IMAGE REMOVED

Every Child Learning

Prowviding education for children in conflict and emergency
settings presents many unique challenges As the conflictin
Syria enters its sixth year, over two milbon Syrian children are
na longerin school and even more are vulnerable to the risks
of child labour, early marriage and recruitment into miliza
groups To address this critical issue we have jomned forces
with the international organisation Save the Children to
launch Every Chuld Learning. The three-year partnership
worth £1.5m will increase educational opporturites for
Syrian refugees and host communities, and innovate new
solutions to help improve the dellvery of education in
emergency and conflict-affected settings
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IMAGE REMOVED

Governance
report

Governance overview Remuneration
70 Seniorindependent 94 Remuneration committee
director’s letter Introduction
97  Summary of remuneration policy
Leadership & effectiveness 101 Annual remuneration report
72 Board of directors 116 Information on changesto
74 Board governance and activities remuneration for 2016
79 Chalrman’s succession
80 Nomination committee report Additional disclosures
118 Report of the directors
Accountability 121  Additional shareholder
82 Auditcommittee report informaton
88 Risk governance and control
Engagement
90 Reputation & responsibifity
committee report
92 Shareholder engagemeant
93 Wderengagement

Note: This seclion constitutes our directors’
reportas recrred by UK legssbaton.
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Governance overview

From Vivienne Cox, Senior independent director

Vivienne Cox
Senior independent director

IMAGE REMOVED

During times of change, good
governance is paramount. As a
board we organise our work around
four major themes where we believe
we can add value: governance,
strategy, performance and people.

In this Governance section

Leadership & effectiveness p72-81Q)
Accountability p8z-308)
Engagement po0-3 @
Remuneration po4a-117
Additional disclosures p118-123Q

Dear shareholders

The past year has seen some notable changes at
Pearson, mn terms of both persannel and portfolio,
and as senior independent director, the board feltit
was appropriate for me to set out these changes for
you In greater detail

After ten years at Pearson, during which our business
and the wider economy inwhich we operate have
transformed markedly, Glen Moreno stepped down as
chairman at the end of 2015 Whilstthe last few months
of 2015 were challenging for Pearson, Glen's legacyto the
company can be seen In the well balanced and forward-
thinking board of directors he has assembled which is
working hard to steer Pearson back to growth Having
worked alongside Glen for the past four years on the
board, and on behalf of Pearson as awhole, | would like
to thank him for his deep commitment to Pearson and
its rission and wish him the very best for the future

Glen's successor as Pearson chairman, Sidney Taurel,
officially took up his postin January 2016 and we are
confident that his experience and dedication will help
guide Pearson towards successful delivery of its key
priorities Read more about Chairman succession
onp7g o

Governance principies

Duning times of change, good governance |s paramount
The board was closely involved with the strategic
decislons to sell Pearson’s interests in the Financial
Times, The Economist and PowerSchool, providing input
and challenge as matters progressed We will continue
to do so throughout the current phase of change

Our role and activities As a board we organise our work
around four major themes where we believe we can add
value governance, strategy, performance and people
Our board calendar and agenda provide ample time

to focus on these themes and we have set out some
examples of the business considered by the board, as
well as the governance practices to which we adhere, on
the pages that follow Learn more about Board meetings
and activities on p75 €

UK Corporate Governance Code This year, for the first
time, we are reporting against the 2014 edition of the

UK Carporate Governance Cade (the Code) The board
believes that during 2015 the company was in full
compliance with all relevant provisions of the Code
Adetailed account of the prowisions of the Code can be
found on the FRC's website at www frc org uk and we
encourage readers to view our compliance schedule on
the company website at www pearson com/governance
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Board and management

Engagement See full section on p90-93 @)

The Pearson board consists of senior executive
management alongside a strong team of non-executive
directors drawn from successful international
businesses and education tnstitutions with experience
of corporate strategy, education, emerging markets,
technotogy and consumer marketing

Board changes As 15 best practice, we continually

assess and refresh the board to ensure we maintamn

an appropriate balance and diversity of skills and
experience InApril 2015 we also bid farewell to David
Arcutus and Ken Hydon, who each served on the board
for nine years, as remuneration and audit comimitiee
charmen respectively In addition to our new chairman,
we have also welcomed two other directors to our board
stnce our last report to shareholders Coram Willams -
along-time Pearson and Pengwin Random House
colleague - joined the board on 1 August 2015, assurming
the role of chief financial officer following Robin
Freestone’s departure, and in January 2016, Lincoln
Wallen jomed the board as a non-executive director
bringing with im a weaith of digital and technology
experience We welcome Coram and Lincaln to the
board, where they are already making valuabie
contributions to our governance and deliberations
Learn more about our Board of directors on p72-73

Board and executive structure and balance Our board
consists primarily of non-executive directors, who

bring a strong independent viewpoint, complementing
the executive perspectives of Jjohn Fallon and Coram
Willams In addition, we invite members of the Pearson
executive to attend a number of the board's sessions to
bring insights and thoughts from across the business,
such as at the board's overseas strategy sessions i Palo
Alto, California and New Delhy, india Learn more about
the Overseas strategy sessiens on p93 ©

Accountability See fufl section on p82-89 Q)

Akey elernent of the board and audit committee’s work
each year 1s consideration of Pearson’s risk appetite and
the review of our pnncipal nsks The 2014 edrtion of the
Code introduced a requirement for the board to assess
the company’s prospects taking inte account the current
position and principal risks, and to make aviability
statement on this basis The audit committee supported
the board in this process by examining the analysis

and assumptions underlying the wiability statement,
considering the required inputs and evaluating the
proposed disclosures resulting from the process

Learn more about Risk management on p38-40

and read the Viability statement on p118 ©

Engagement with shareholders and society asawhole 1s
key to Pearson's misston to help people make progress
in therr lives thraugh access to better learning We have
announced iImportant partnerships during the past year,
such as Project Literacy and our partnership with Save
the Children, and the launch of the UN's Sustainable
Development Goals has presented an opportunity for
Pearson to become engaged with awide section of
stakeholders As a result, our reputation & responsibihity
commuittee continues to expand its areas of focus, with
increased sight of Pearson’s soclatimpact initiatives,
social and traditional media engagement acuvity, and
employee engagement matters We also welcomed a
number of shareholders toour Annual General Meeting
{AGM)which, as always, was a valuable opportunity

for our board and senior management to respond to
shareholders' views and questions

Remuneration See full section on p94-117 @)

This year's directors' remuneration report refers to
furtherincremental changes we have made inline

with policy in 2015 t0 better align executive director
compensation with the interests of our sharehalders
and how this policy was operated in 2015 To putour
reportinto context, we have ncluded a summary of the
approved directors’ remuneration pohicy report from
2013 which 15 not subject to a vote Qur remuneration
policy was reviewed i3 2013 to align with the company’s
strategy and organisation ang was approved by
shareholders atthe 2014 AGM We continue to operate
executive remuneration in ine with the approved policy
and at present do not anticipate seeking shareholder
approvat for our policy again until required to do so at
the 2017 AGM

Conclusion

I hope this report tlearly sets out how your company s
run, and how we align governance and our board agenda
with the strategic direction of Pearson We always
welcome questions or comments from shareholders,
either via our website (www pearson com)or in person
at our Annual General Meeting

IMAGE REMOVED

Vivienne Cox
Senior independent director
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Board of directors

Chairman

Executive directors

1)

IMAGE REMOVED

Sidrey Taurel Chairman
aged 67, appointed 1 January 2016

IMAGE REMOVED

John Fallon Chief executive
aged 53, appointed 3 October 2012

IMAGE REMOVED

CoramWiiliams Chief financial offtcer
aged 42, appointed 1 August 2015

Sidney has over 40 years of axparience In
bustness and finance andis currently a board
director and ehalrman of the Compensation
Commitiee at I6M Corporation Heisalso a
director at McGraw Hill Financial Inc, arole
trorn which he will step down during 2016
Sidney [s senlor advisor at globalinvestment
bank Moelis & Co and an advisory board
mernber at pharmaceutical firms Takeda
Pharmaceuticat and Almirall He was chiel
executive officer of global pharmaceutical
firm Ell Lilly and Company from 1998 untll
2008, chairman of the business from 1999
untll 2008, and has been chalrman emeritus
$ince 2009 Sidney has received three US
presidential appoiniments to the Homeland
Security Advisery Councl, the President's
Export Council and the Advisory Committes
for Trade Policy and Negotiations, and Is an
officer of the French Legion of Honour

Johnbecame Pearson's chief executhve on
1January 2013 Since 2008 he had been
responsible for the compary’s education
businasses outside North America, and
amember of the Pearson managernent
committee He jolned Pearson in 1997
asdirector of communications and was
appointed president of Pearsoninc in2000
in 2003, he was appointed CEQ of Pearson's
educational publishing businesses for Eurcpe
Middle East and Africa Prior tojolning
Pearson, John was director of corporate affalrs
at Powergen plc, and was also amember

of the company’s executive committee

£arlier In his career, John held senlor public
policy and cormmunications roles in UK locat
government Heis an advisory board member
of the Global Business Coalition for Education
and amember of the Council of the University
of Hull

Non-executive directors

Coram jolned Pearsonin 2003 and hasheld 2
number of senlor positions including finance
and operations director for Pearson's English
Language Teaching business in Eurape,
Middle East & Africa, interim president of
Pearson Education ltalla and head of financiat
planning and analysis for Pearson n2008
Coram became CFO of The Penguin Group
and was latterly appointed CFO of Penguin
Random House m 2013 Coramwas trained at
Arthur Andersen, and subsequently worked
in both the auditing and consulting practices
ofthe firm

(511 ]

6o

IMAGE REMOVED

Harish Manwani Non-executive director
aged 62, appointed 1 October 2013

Key 10 committees

[ O

Audit Committee IMAGE REMOVED
Committee  Chalr

o o

Nominatlon Remuneration Linda Lorimer Non-executive director
Committee  Committee aged63,appointed 1 July 2013

o Linvda has a deep background in education
Reputation & strategy, administration and public affairs,
Responsibliity Shels senfor counsellor to the president and

pravost of Yale University and until recently
served as vice president for Global & Strategic
Initiatives at Yale where her duties iIncluded
oversight of Yale's Office of International
Affalrs and Office of Digital Dissemination
Over a 30 year career In hugher education,
she has been responstble formany of

‘Yale's administrative services induding

the uruversity's public communications,
alumni relations and Office of Sustamnability
Previousfy Lindaserved as president of
Randoiph-Macon Woman's College in Virgmia
and was chalr of the board of the Assodation
of Amenican Colleges and Universities She
alsoserved on the boards of several public
companies including as presiding director

of the McGraw-Hill Companies

Harish has an extensive batkground in
emerging markets and senlor experience

in a successful global organisation He

was previously chief operating officer of
consumer products company Unflever, having
joined the company in 1976 a5 a marketing
management iralnee In India, and held
senuor management roles around the worlg,
induding NorthAmerica LatinAmerica,
Europe, Africaand Asia He Is non-executive
chairman of Hindustan Unifever Limited In
Indila, and serves on the boards of Whiripool
Corporation, Qualcommi Inc. and Nielsen
Moldings He s atso on the board of the
Incian School of Business and the Econormc
Development Board (EDS) of Singapore, and
is global executive advisor at Blackstone
Private Equity
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Non-executive directors
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Elizabeth Corley, CBE
Non-executive director
aged 59, appointed 1 May 2014

IMAGE REMOVED

0008

Vivienne Cox, CBE
Sendor independent director
aged 56 appointed 1 January 2012

Elizabeth s non executive vice chair
afAllanz Global Investors, where she

was chief executive offlcer from 2005 to

2016 She was previously at Merrill Lynch
Investment Managers (formerly Mercury
Asset Management) and Coopers & Lybrand
Elzabeth s acting chairof the FICC Markets
Standards Board, a member of the ESMA
stakeholder group and an advisory council
member of TheCityUK Sheis a non

executive director of BAE Systems plc.and

the Financlal Reporting Councll In addition
sheis amember of FEAM's management
committee the CFA Future of Finance Councll,
the Supervisory Beard of Euter SA a counclt
member of the City of London IRSG and a
member of the Committee 07200 Sheisa
fellow of the CFA and the Reyal Saclety of Arts
and [s also a crime fictfon author

Non-executive directors

Vivienne haswide experience in energy,
natural resources and business Innovation.
She worked for BP plc for 28 years, In Britain
and Continental Europe, In postsincluding
executlve vice presidentand chief exacutive
of BPs gas, power and renewables business
and its alternative energy unit. She Is non-
executive director of Stena International
and chalrman of the supervisory board of
Vallourec which supplies tubular systems
for the energy Industry She s also lead
Independent director at the UK Department
for International Development Vivienne was
appointed Commander of the Order of the
Britsh Emplre (CBE) Inthe 2016 New Year
Honours for services to the UK Economy
and Sustainability

600
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Josh Lewlis Non-executive director
aged 53, appolinted 1 March 201

Josh's experlence spans finance, education
and the development of digital enterprises.
He s the founder of Salmon River Capltal
LLC, aNew York based private equity/
venture capital firm focused on technology-
enabled businesses in education, financial
services and othersectors Overa 25-year
career In active, prinupal investing, he has
been Involved in a broad range of successful
companies including several ploneering
enterprises [n the education sector in
addition, he has tong been active Inthe nan-
profit education sector, with associations
including New Leaders New Classrooms
and the Bilt & Melinda Gates Foundation

He 15 also a non-executive director of several
enterprises in the fin-tech/data, education
and other secters

088
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Tim Score Non executive director
aged 55, appownted 1 January 2015
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Uncoln Wallen Non-executive director
aged 55, appointed 1january 2016

Tim has extensive experience of the
technology secter in both developed and
emerging markets, having served as chief
financial officer of ARM Holdings plc, the
world's leading semiconductor IP company,
apositlon he held for 13 years Helsan
experienced non-executive director and
currently sits on the boards of The Britsh
Land Company plcand HM Treasury He
served on the board of Nattonal Express
Group plc from 2005 to 2014 inchuding time as
interimi chalrman and slx years as the sepior
independent director Earlier in his career Tim
held sensor finance roles with Rebus Group
Wilam Baird BTR plcand others

Lirvealn is chief technology officer for
DreamWorks Animatlon the global family
entertalnment company, a position he has
held since 2012, having joined the company
a3 head of researchand developmentn
2008 Priar to this, Lincoln served as chief
technelogy officer for the mobile business
of Electromic Arts, inc., aleading interactive
entertainment software company Hehas
held sentar positions atCriterion Seftware
MathEngine plc and 15 a non-executive
director of the Smith Institute for Industrial
Mathernatlcs & Systemn Englneening Lincotn
is also an advisory board member of Hewlett
Packard Enterpnise and a member of the
STEM Advisory Commilttee of the National
Academy foundation Lincolnwas formerty
alecturer and reader in computation at the
Unwversity of Oxford

Pearson board
members bring awide
range of experience,
skills and backgrounds
which complement
our strategy.

Experience of chairman and
non-executive directors

Digstal/technology

experience IMAGE
)

63% REMOVED

Emergeng market

experience IMAGE
)

38 /) REMOVED

Education/learning

sector experence IMAGE
0

63 /) REMOVED
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Board governance and activities

Board of directors

Composition of the board The board currently consists
of the chairman, Sidney Taure!, two executive directors
including the chief executive, johin Falton, and seven
independent non-executive directors

Chairman and chief executive There 1s a defined sphit
of responstbilities between the chairman and the chief
executive Theroles and responsibilities of the chairman
and chief executive are clearly defined, set out inwriting
and reviewed and agreed by the board annually

Chairman’s significant commitments There were no
changes to the chairman’s sigrificant commitments
between his appomtment to the Pearson beard on

1 January 2016 and the date of this report Mr Taure!
has announced that he will step down from the board
of McGraw Hilt Financial, Inc atits 2016 annual
shareholders’ meeting

independence of chairman Sidney Taurel was
considered to be independent upon s appointment
aschairmanon 1 january 2016

Indepandence of directors All of the non-executive
directors who served during 2015 were considered by
the board to be independent for the purposes of the
Code Lincoln Wallenwas considered to be independent
upon his appointment to the board on 1 january 2016
The board reviews the independence of each of the
non-executive directors annually Thisincludes
reviewing ther external appointments and any potential
canflicts of interest as well as assessing thew indvidual
crcumstances inorder to ensure that there are no
relationships or matters likely to affect thew character
orjudgement In addition tothis review, each of the
non-executive directors Is asked annually to complete
an independence questionnaire to satisfy requirements
anising fram Pearson’s US histing

Key roles
Role Name Responsiility
Chairman Sidney Taurel The chairman is primartly respensible for the leadership of the board and ensuringits

effectiveness The chairman sets the board's agenda and promotes open, constructive
debate of all agenda items and effective decision-making He also ensures that the views
of shareholders are communicated to the board

Chief executive johnFalton

The chief executrve 1s responsible for the operationa! management of the business and for

the development and implementation of the company’s strategy as agreed by the board
and management. He Is responsible for developing operational proposals and policies for
approval by the board, and promates Pearson’s culture and standards

Senior Vivienne Cox The sentor ndependent director’s role Includes meeung regularly with the chairman and
independent chief executive to discuss specific issues, as well as being available to shareholders generally
director should they have concerns that have not been addressed through the normal channels
Committee Tim Score, Elizabeth  The commuttee charmen are responsible for leading the board committees and ensuring
chairmen Corley, Vivienne Cox  thelreffectiveness Theyset the cammittees’ agendas, in consultation with the company’s
and SidneyTaurel  management, and reporttothe board on committee proceedings
Company Stephen jones The company secretary acts as secretary to the board and its committees, ensuring
secretary compliance with board procedures and advising on governance matters He is responsible,

under the direction of the chalrman, for ensuring the board receives accurate, timely and
clear information The company secretary organises new director inductions and ongaing

director traning

Gender spht of board

Length of tenure of non-executive directors

@ Men 7

@ Women 3

Figures as at 4 March 2016

IMAGE
REMOVED

@ Under 3years 5
@3tobyears 2
Frgures as at4 March 2076
IMAGE
REMOVED
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Conflicts of interest Under the Companies Act 2006

{the Act), directors have a statutory duty to avoid
conflicts of interest with the company The company's
articles of associatton {Articles) allow the directors to
authonse conflicts of interest The company has
established a procedure to identify actual and potential
conflicts of interest, including all directorshps or other
appointments to, or relationships with, companies which
are not part of the Pearson group and which could give
rise to actual or potental conflicts of interest Once
notrfied to the chairman or company secretary, such
potential conflicts are considered for authonsation by
the board at its next scheduled meeting The relevant
director cannot vote on an authorisation resolutron, or
be counted in the quorum, in relation to the resolution
relating to hus/her conflict or potential conflict The board
reviews any authorisations granted on an annual basis

Board meeting focus dunng the year 2015

Board meetings

The board held six scheduled meetmgs in 2015, with
discussions and debates focused on the key strategic
1ssues facing the company Major items covered by the
board in 2015 are shown in the table below In addition
to the six formal meetings, the board met by telephone
inJanuary 2015 to consider the January trading update
to be issued to the market, and by telephone in October
2015 to consider the market's reaction to Pearson’s
October trading update and to begin to plan the
proposed strategic course of action

The role and business of the beard

The board 1s deeply engaged in developing and
measuring the company's long-term strategy,
performance and value We believethatitaddsa
valuable and diverse set of external perspectives and
that robust, open debate about significant business
1ssues brings an addional discipline to major decistons

Topkc Activity

Annual review of authormsed conflicts of interest

Facus on forthcoming AGM and review of

Governance

!

chairman and chief executive

Review of divislon of responsibilities between

shareholder issues

Shareholder activism and defence plan

Appolntment of company secretary

Treasury policy approval

Update on Pearson System of Courses (P$aC)
Induding hands-on demonstration of courseware

South African Black Economic Empowerment
(BEE) overview

Supply chaln gutsourcing arrangements

Risk appetite

Approval of committee terms of reference

Enterprise risk managementraview Read more
onp38
Approval of schedute of autherity hrmits

Uperating and strategic plan updates

Brand strategy Read more on p7

Regular proguct demonstrations

Consideration of propesed corporate transactions
Including sales of PowerSchool, the Financlat Times
and The Economist

Offsite strategy meetmg in Califorma focusing on
digital disrupbion in educatton

Offsite strategy meeting in New Delhi focusing on
Brazil, China India and South Africa Read more

onp93®

Performance

204 prellminary results and annual report and
accounts

Review of investar relations strategy and share
price performance

Interim resuits and trading updates

Balance sheet strategy

Triennial pension valuation

Final and interim dhvidend proposals

Monthly management reporis

Draft 2016 operating plan and three-year financlals

People

I

Overwiew of The Summit’ - Pearsen’s senior
leadership conference

Rising Stars breakfast at overseas strategy meetings

India key talent and leadership team dinner at
New Delhl strategy meeling
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Board governance and activities continued

A schedule of formal matters reserved for the board's
decision and approval is available on our website, at
WWW pearson com/gevernance

The board recewves timely, regular and necessary
finanaal, management and other informatien to fulfilits
duties Comprehensive board papers are arculated to
the board and committee members atleast one week in
advance of each meeting and the board receves regular
reports from the chief executive In addizon to meeting
papers, a library of current and hustoric corporate
information 1s made avallable to directors electrorucally
to support the board’s decision-making process
Directors can ohtain independent professional advice,
atthe company’s expense, in the performance of their
dutres as directors All directors have access to the advice
and services of the company secretary

Non-executive directors meet with local seror
management every time board meetings are held at the
locations of operating companies, such as during the
board's 2015 visits to Palo Alto, California and New Delhy,
india This allows the non-executive directors to share
their expenence and expertise with sentor managers as
well as allowing them to better understand the abrlities
and motivations of sermor management, which in turn
wiil help them assess the company’s prospects and plans
for succession

Standing committee

A standing committee of the board was established

to approve certain ordinary course of business items
such as banking matters, guarantees, intra-group
transactions and to make routine approvals relating to
employee share plans

The commuittee has written terms of reference, reviewed
and approved each year, which clearly set outits
authority and duties These can be found on the
company website at www pearson com/governance

Culture and values of the board

As evidenced during its externally fachitated evaluation
in 2014, as awhole and at an individual level, the board
feels wholly committed to Pearson’s values and mission
The reputation & responsibility commuttee's remit
includes oversight of Pearson’svalues and culture,
andit has continued to monitor work in these areas
throughout the year

Board attendance

The following table sets out the attendance of the
company's directors at scheduled board meetings
during 2015

fBoard
meetings
attended
Charrman
Glen Moreno 616
Executive directors
John Fallon &6/6
Robin Freestone(nate 1) 414
Coram wiltlams {note 2} 272
Non-executive directors
Dawid Arculus (note 3} 272
Elizabeth Corley 6/6
Vivierine Cox 6/6
Ken Hydon {note 4) 172
JoshLewts 6/6
Linda Lorimer 6/6
Harish Manwani 6/6
Tim Score 6/6

Note1 Stood downon  Auguist 2015

Note 2. Appointed on 1 August 2015
Note3 Stood down on 24 April 2015
Note4, Stoed down an 24 April 2015. Unable to attend ene meeting due to

personal reasons
Successlon planning

The board considers oversight of succession planning -
not anly at board and executive management level but
for afl key positions throughout the business - as one of
its prime responstbilities At board level, the primary
focus during the year was to identify suitable candidates
for the role of chalrman

The company has formal conttngency plans in placefor
temporary absence of the chief executive for health or
otherreasons The matter of chief executive succession
15 a standing item for discussion and review by the
chairman and chief executive annually Succession
planning for the board and chair 1s considered annually,
and as part of the recent restructuring programme,
there has been a review of key positions at executive
management level




Section 4 Gavernance/Leadership & effectveness 77

Board evaluation

As reportad last year, towards the end of 2014, an
externally faciitated board effectiveness review was
conducted by external evaluator, JCA Group in addition
tofacilitating this review, JCA Group used the information
and insight they had gleaned from the indmdual
members of the board to help them form a brief and an
overview of the characteristics that Pearson would be
looking for in a new chairman JCAthen used this insight
to inform the chairman search which took place during
2015, and resulted in the eventual appomtment of Stdney
Taurel as Pearson chalrman See p79 for a full review of
chairman succession at Pearson €

The board evaluation for 2015 was conducted onan
internal basis With the forthcoming departure of

Glen Moreno, the arrival of a new chairman, together
with the appointment of a new CFO and theimminent
appomtment of a new company secretary, [t was agreed
that the 2015 review should focus mainly an the support
and information that the board and commuttees receive
tn order to ensure that the existing processes are
suffinent and fit for purpose Tothatend, Stephen Jones,
Pearson's company secretary, interviewed each of the
non-executive directors to understand their thinking

on a number of board and committee-related support
activtbies

Process and recommendations

The review focused on the scheduling, arrangements
and logstics for all board and committee meetings, the
quality and usefulness of the regular information flow
to the board and commuttees, including the use of
electronic board papers, regular CEO and CFO updates
and other informatien, board induction and training,
the payment of non-executives’ fees and expenses

and any other tems or suggestions for improvements
The exerase proved very useful as an opportunity to
take stock of current practice, to test whether the board
views that as appropriate, and to think about those areas
where improvements could be made As a result of these
discussions, we are re-thinking the schedule of board
and commuttee meetings durmg the course of the year,
including the topics to be considered at those meetings
andthetr venues In additton, we arerefining some of
the information that the board receives In order that the
non-executives be able to be more effective We heard
that more could be done by management to‘curate’
some of the information that s sent to non-executives
and to make clear to them what is key information

and what is useful to know We are also refining the
regular CEQ and CFO updates to the board, inorder
to ensure they provide exactiy the Information that the

board requires to help it track progress against a number
of key milestones This s anongoing process, and wa wili
continue to monitor the effectiveness of our internal
processes and to compare what we do against others

Personal objectives

In addition to the evaluation of the board as awhole,
executives are also evaluated each year on their
performance against personal objectives under the
company's annual incentive plan

The non-executive directors, led by the senior
independent director, also conduct a review of the
chairman’s performance

Committee evaluation

In addition to the review of the board, committees and
indwidual directors described above, the audit and
remuneration committees each undertook a further
evaluation process ta review their performance and
effectiveness, as they do each year

The process involves distnibution of questionnaires to
audit and remuneration committee members, aswell as
key stakehalders i each comrrittee, seeking views on
mattersincluding commuittee roles and responsibilities,
quality and tmeliness of meeting matenals, opportunity
for discussion and debate, dialogue with management
and access to independent advice Responses are then
evaluated and presented to the respective committee at
a scheduled meeting, with key themes being drawn out
for discusston

Directars’ training and induction

Directors receive a significant bespoke induction
programme and arange ofinformation about Pearson
when theyjoin the board This includes background
information on Pearson and details of board procedures,
directors' responsibilities and various governance-
refated issues, Including procedures for dealing in
Pearson shares and ther legal obligations as directors
The induction alse typically includes a sertes of meetings
with members of the board, the Pearson executive and
semior management, presentations regarding the
business from senior executives and a briefing on
Pearson's Investor relations programme The induction
programme for Lincoln Wallen 1s ongoing, talored to

his specific areas of focus, such as time with Pearsorn's
technology leaders, and relevant to the board
commuttees he has joined Read about the induction
programme for Pearson’s new chairman, Sudney Taurel

onp79 @
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Board governance and activities continued

Ali directors recewve training in the form of presentations
aboutthe company’s operations, through board
meetings held at operatronal locations and by
encouraging the directors to visit local facilities and
management as and when their schedule allows,
inciuding if they are travelling to a country or region on
non-Pearson business The company secretary and
general counsel, in conjunction with Pearson's advisers,
monitor legal and governance developments and update
the board on such matters as agreed with the chairman
Directors can also make use of external courses

Directors’ indemnitres

Aqualifying third party indemnity (QTP1), as permitted
by the Articles and sections 232 and 234 of the Act, has
been granted by the company to each of its directors
Under the provisions of the QTPI the company
undertakes to indemnify each director against hability
to third parties {excluding criminal and regulatory
penalties) and to pay directors’ costs asincurred,
provided that they are reimbursed to the company

if the director s found guiity, the court refusesto
grant the relief sought or, in an action brought by the
company, judgment)s given against the director

The indetmnity has been in force for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015 and 1s cutrently in force

The company has purchased and mantains directors’
and officers’ insurance cover against certain legal
habilities and costs for claims in connectionwith any
actor omisston by such directors and officers in the
execution of ther duties

Board committees

More committee tnformation

Audit committes p82°
Normination committee pao @
Remuneration committee p94Q
Reputation & responsibility committee p90®
Standing committee p7e

The committeas focus on their own areas of expertise,
enabhing the board meetings to focus on governance,
strategy, performance and pecple, thereby making the
best use of the board's time together as awhole The
committee chairmen report to the full board at each
meeting immediately following thetr sessions, ensunng
a good communication flow whilst retaining the ability to
escalate items to the full board's agenda if appropriate

Board committee attendance

The following table shows attendance by directors
atcommittee meetings throughout 2015

The board has established four formal committees
audit, normination, remuneration, and reputation &
responstbility The chairmen and members of these
comimittees are appointed by the board onthe
recommendation (where appropnate) of the nomination
commuttee and in consultation with each relevant
committee chairman |n addition to these formal board
committees, the standing committee also operates

with board level input

Reputation &

audit Remuneration Nomination responsibility
GienMoreno - 474 6/6 -
David Arculus
(note 1) 212 U2 212 -
Elizabeth Corley - 414 6/6 -
Vivienne Cox 4/4 4/4 6/5 3/3
Ken Hydon
{note 2) 212 12 1/2 -
Josh Lewis - 474 6/6 -
Linda Lorimer 4/4 - 6/6 3/3
Hansh Manwani - - B/6 3/3
TimScore
{note 3) 4/4 11 6/6 -

Note 1 Stood downon 24 Aprii 2015

Mote 2. Stood downon 24 April 2015. Unable to attend one remuneration committee
and one nomination mesthg dus to p | reasons

Note 3 Joinad ! jties on 2 October 2015
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Commencing the search

Following Glen Moreno’s announcement at the 2015
AGM that he was planning to step down as chairman by
the end of the year, Pearson commenced its search {or
asuitable successor The selection process was led by
Vivienne Cox, our senior independent director, and an
external search firm, JCA Group, was engaged to assist
and advise Pearson on the search and appointment
process

Taking the findings from the 2014 board effectiveness
review as a starting point, and in consultation with the
nomination committee and the chief executive, JCA
designed a speafication for the desired candidate which
included the fallowing key attributes

*Highly experienced leader of farge global businesses,
ideally with a proven track record as a chairman

»Truly global player in outlook, approach and
understanding with deep knowledge of and experience
in Pearson's key geographic markets

»Genuine interest in embracing digital technology to
benefit the customer and the company

In agreeing the specfication, the board emphasised the
importance of finding someone who was excited by and
demonstrated empathy with Pearson’s mission, values,
goals and people

Choosing a successor

Candidate profiles were prepared byjCAfor
consideration by Ms Cox, who then consulted the
nomination committee and chuef executive to agree a
shorthst of strong candidates She held imtial meetings
with the shorthisted candidates, and recommended a
number of them to progress through to the next stage,
where they met with the chief executive, following
which a search sub-committee was formed, comprising
Linda Lonimer and Tum Score, who each metwith the
strongest candidates

Ms Cox reported regularly to the nomination committee
throughout the search and interview stages, and
following consideration of interview feedback it became
clear to the board and the normination committee that
Sidney Taurelwas the most suitable candidateto
succeed Glen Moreno as chairman Agreement

having been reached, the nomination comrmuttee
recommended that the final deciston be delegated

to a standing committee of the board to formalise

Mr Taurel's appointment once the necessary checks

had been satisfactorly completed

Chairman’s selection process

JCA Group was engaged with a clear setof criteniz (o find
a highly expenienced global business leader, with proven
ability tolead an Industry through a period of change,

of which technology 1s a key part, and in dealing with a
complex regulatory environment

1 Identify Using the agreed brief, JCAand the senior
independent directar considered and refined a histof
potential candwdates, seeking input from the nomination
committee onwhich candidates should be approached

2 Interview The senior independent director led a series
of Intarviews with the shortlisted candidates Preferred
candldates then met with the chief executive and with the
twa members of the search committee, following which the
nomimation committee met ta discuss feedback

3 Select After further meetings, Including with Glen
Morene, Sidney Taurel was recommended for appointment
He was selected having successfuilly led a global
muftinational campany, operating in some of the most
challenging political and regulatory environments, and
having hved and worked all over the world, incluging the US,
UK and Brazil - three of Pearson's most important markets

4 Appeint Sidney's appomtment as charrman was
approved and announced n October 2015 to take effect
on 1 fanuary 2016, the date of his formal appointment to
the Pearson board

Appomtment and induction

Pearsan approved and announced the appointment of
Sidney Taurel on 26 October 2015, and he joined the
board on 1 January 2016, assuring the role of chairman
immediately upon appointment

Mr Taurel met the independence regquirements set outin
the Code on appointment and has confirmed heis able
to dedicate the requisite ume to the role

Acomprehensive induction programime was putin
place for Sidney during the three months foliowing the
announcement of kus appointment. A series of one to
one meetings was held with members of the Pearson
execubive to enable Sidney to understand afl aspects
of Pearson's global business, the challenges facing the
enabling functtons such as technology, HR and corporate
affairs, and the wider trends in education Sidney also
metwith Pearson’s brokers, corporate advisers and
lawyers to understand broader regulatory matters
and obhgations During his US-based induction, Sidney
attended Pearson's national sales conference focusing
on issues and hot topics in the US business, and spent
time 1n Washingten, DC with the corporate affairs and
government relations team
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Nomination committee report

Chairman of nemination commrttee
Sidney Taurel

Members Elizabeth Corley,

Vivienne Cox, Josh Lewds, IMAGE
Linda Lorimer, Harish Manwani, REMOVED
Tlm Scare Sidney Taured

and Lincoln Wallen

“As chairman of the nomination
commuittee, one of Glen Moreno’s
outstanding legacies to Pearson
was his ability to attract first-rate
non-executives to the Pearson
board. Ilook forward to chairing
this committee as we work to
continually refresh the board,
its committees and to think about
succéssion planning at senior levels

”

Committee responsibsiiiies include

1 Appointments identifying and nomimating candidates for
board vacancies

2 Balance Ensunng that the board and its committees have
the appropriate balance of skilis, expentence, independence,
diversity and knowladge to operate effectively

3 Successton planning Reviewing the company’s leadership
needs with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the
organisatron to compete effectively inthe marketplace

Key activittes in 2015

Objectives Actions

Succession process and Appointment of Sidney Taurel
appointment of new ascharman

chalrman of the board

{dentify and appoint Appointment of Lincoln
additional non-executive wallen as nen-executive
director with digital director with experience
technology experience n digital technology
Cemplete search process Appomtment of

for new chief financlal Coram Willlams as
officer chief financlal officer

For nomination committee attendance
see overview tableon p78 @

Normination committee role and composiion

The committee primartly momnitors the composition and
balance of the board and its committees, and identifies
and recommends to the board the appointment of

new directors and/or commmttee members The
chairman of the board also chairs the nomination
committee, and all non-executive directars serve as
members of the committee The chief executive attends
committee meetings by invitation

Chairman role

Although the chairman of the board chairs the
nomination comrmittee, he 1s not permitted to chair
meetings when the appointment of his successor 1s
betng considered or during a discusston regarding his
performance Atsuchtimes, the senior iIndependent
director will chair the meetings, such as during the
search process for Gfen Moreng's replacement during
2015 when Vivienne Cox chaired the committee's
meetings Leam more about Chalrman succession
onp79 O

Committee meetings and appointments

The nomimation committee meets at least once ayear
and at other times as and whenrequired During 2015,
the committee met six times wath its pnmary focus being
to discuss the search critena, prepare role descriptions
and consider sultable candidates for the role of chairman
of the board and for an addiional non-executive director
with particular expenence in digital technology to
complement our strategy The non-executive search
culminated in the successful appointment of Lincoln
Wallen to the board with effect from 1 January 2016

Terms of reference

The committee has written terms of reference which
clearly set outits authority and duties These are reviewed
annually and can be found on the company website at
www pearson com/governance €
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Pearson uses a number of leading firmsn its board
and executive search activities JCA Group was engaged
to assist with the recruitment of Sidney Taurel in
addition to board search activity, JCA Group facilitated
Pearson's board evaluation in 2014 JCAGroup has no
other connection to Pearson apart from n relation to
searchactivity and the external facilitation of the 2014
board evaluation An external search consultancy,
Spencer Stuart, was used during the recruitment process
for Lincoln Wallen Spencer Stuart does not have any
other connection to Pearson apart from as asearch
consultancy

Learn more aboutthe Board of directors on p72-73°
Diversity

The board embraces the Code’s underlying principles
with regard to board balance and diversity, including
gender diversity The nomination committee ensures
that the directors of Pearson demonstrate a broad
balance of skills, experience and nationalities, to support
Pearson's strategic development and reflect the global
nature of our business

The normination committee and the board always
take account of diversity in its broadest sense when
considenng board appointments whilst ensuring that
appointments are made based on ment and relevant
experience We believe the global backgrounds of our
board members contribute to diversity of experience
and thought

In 2011, Lord Davies set FTSE 100 compantes atarget
of having 25% female representation on thewr boards
by 2015 Pearson s proud of the gender diversity of
its board, having exceeded Lord Davies target with
309 female representation an the board, and notes
Lord Davies’ recommended next steps for continued
improvement in diversity on boards, including the
extension of good diversity practices to the layers of
executive managemant below the board

immediately below board lavel, the Pearson executive,
not including the chief executive and chief financial
cfficerwho are main board directors, has two female
members out of a totat of nine (representing 22%)

Our senior leadership team, up to and including two
reportung levels from the chiefexecutive, shows a strong
pipeline of female talent with women representing 34%
of our senior leaders

Pearson consicers diversity as an important Issue across
the company, ot just at board level Gne of the key aims
of Pearson's diversity policy is to increase the number

of leaders corming from a diverse background, such

as through our range of networks and advancement
programmes for employees Learn more about

Dwversity and inclusion throughout Pearson on pé2 )

IMAGE REMOVED

Sidney Taurel
Chalrman of nomnation committee
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Audit committee report

Chairman of audit committee
Tim Score

MembersVivienne Cox,
Linda Lorimer, Tim Score
and Lincoln Watlen

IMAGE
REMOVED

“During 2015, the committee
conducted a number of deep dives
into selected principal risks, and
as chairman of the committee,

I work closely with Coram Williams
to ensure Pearson's finance
function is well-placed to support
the global business effectively.”

Committee responsibiliies include oversight of

1 Reporting The quality and integrity of financial reporting
and statements and related disclosure

2 Policy Group pohcies, including accounting policies
and practices

3 External audit External audit, including the appomtment,
qualification, independence and the performance of the
external auditor

4 Risk and snternal control Risk management systems and
internal control environment including the performarice of
thenternal audit function

5 Complance Compliance with legal and regutatory
requirements in relation to finanaeal reporting and
accounting matters

For audit committee meeting attendance
see overviewtable on p78 °

Terms of reference

The commuttee has written terms of reference which
clearly set outits authority and duties These are reviewed
annually and can be found on the company website at
www pearson com/governance §

Audit committeerole

The commuttee has been established by the beard
primarily for the purpose of overseemng the accounting,
flnancial reporting, internat control and risk
management processes of the company and the audit
of the financial statements of the company Asa
committee, we are responsible for assisting the board's
oversight of the quality and integrity of the company's
external financial reporting and statements and the
company's accounting policies and practices

Pearson’s internal auditor has a dual reporting ine to the
chief financial officer and to me, and external auditors
have direct access to the committee to ralse any matters
of concern and to report on the results of work directed
by the committee As audit committee chairman, I report
tothe full board at every board meeting immediately
following a committee meeting As a commutteg, we

also review the independence of the external auditors,
includmg the provision of non-audit services (further
details of which can be found on page 119 and note 4

to the financal statements), ensure thatthereisan
appropriate audit relationship and that auditor
abjectvity and independence are upheld

Audit committee changes

2015 saw the retirement from Pearson of Ken Hydon,
who had been chairman of the committee for nine years,
and Dawvid Arculus, also along-serving member of the
committee 1took over from Ken as committee chairman
in April, and have since worked with Coram Willams
looking closely at Pearson’s finance function to ensure st
15 well-ptaced to support the globai business effectively
In March 2016 Lincoln Wailen joined the committee,
bringing extensive technology experience, and together
we have a good balance of skills and knowledge on the
committee with expenence covering all aspects of the
sector inwhich Pearson operates

Fair, balanced and understandable reporting

We are mindful of the Code’s provision C 11 relating to
fair, balanced and understandable reporting and we
build sufficient time inte our annual report tmetable to
ensure that the full board receives sufficient opportunity
to review, consider and comment on the reportasit
progresses Learn more about Fair, balanced and
understandable reportingon p119 @

Risk assessment, assurance and integnty

Akeyrole of the committee 1s to provide oversight and
reassurance to the board with regard to the integrity
of the company's financial reporting, internal control
policres, and procedures for the identification,
assessment and reporting of risk Durmg 2015 we
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conducted a nurmber of deep dives into selected
principal risks Learn more about Principal nisks and
uncertainties on pa1-45 Q)

Data security and data privacy

Recognising particular sensitivibies around the schools
and assessment data heid on our systems, the
committee undertook deep dives In each of these nisk
areas, and updates from the civef information security
officer and newly-appointed chief privacy officer feature
as regular items an the committee’s agenda Toensure
adequate visibility of data security and privacy protocals
throughout the company, new pohcies and procedures
were developed duning the year, including the
introduction of mandatory data secunity and privacy
training for employees

Focusing on data security, the committee considered
progress made to date and reviewed the roadmap
for the next two years, iIncluding the aim of continuing
toincrease Pearsan's data security nsk maturity

Key to developing this matunty has been the shift

of data security from a purely technicat nsk to a
business criiical one

The nsk management framework around data privacy
needs to take Pearson’s global footprint into account
Chalienges exist in North America due to the large
number of federal and state laws on data privacy,
which are coupled with a changing picture globally
as Junisdictions update their laws in a fast moving
environment Data privacy has been identified as

a global strategic nisk for Pearson, leading to the
appointment of a chief privacy officer at the start of
2015 Meaningful progress has been made since that
appointment, inciuding the development of a new
governance framework ta address data privacy nsks

Business transformation

Ongoing business transformation, the next wave of
which was announced in January 2016, 1s another of
Pearson's key risks and opportunies The committee
recewves regular updates on the transformation as a
whole and duning the year carried out a deep dive into
The Enabhing Program As animpaortant operatcnal
simphification project, The Enabling Program will feature
as astanding item on the committee's agenda in 2016
aswork progresses Learn more about The Enabling
Program on p6 and 41€)

Update on previous areas of focus

Last year, we highlighted health and safety (H&5) and
ant-bribery and corruption {ABC) as areas to which the
committee had pard particular attention During 2015,
the committee contimued to momtor those areas,
reviewing progress made and audit results

The commuttee reviewed the overall H&S landscape at
Pearson, in particular evaluating the progress made
since the launch of the global H&S policy in December
2013 i noted that continued improvements are bemg
implemented in standards, facilitated by the support
of H&S coordinators, and was satisfied with the
developments In relation to safeguarding and the
progress that the safeguarding officer has made since
appotntment in August 2014

The commuittes reviewed the ongoing implementation of
ABC policies, where progress to date has been good, and
noted that a more comprehensive and risk-based ABC
training programme would continue to be rolled out in
2016 We also constdered how the compliance and legal
functions were working together to ensure appropriate
stances in each Jurisdiction, while maintaining Pearson’s
zero tolerance approach to ABC

Audit committee meetings and activities

The committee met four times during the year with
the following in attendance the chieffinancial officer,
general counsel, SVP internal audt and compliance,
members of the senior management team, and the
external auditors Additionally, the chief executive and
chairman penodically attended comrnittee meetings
One of the internal audit directors and the VP comphance
and risk assurance also attend meebngs, gving the
committee direct contact with key leadership inthose
areas The committee also metregularly n private
with the external auditors and the SVP internal audit
and compliance

At every meeting, the committee considered reports

on the actvities of the internal audit and compliance
functions, including the results of internal audits, nsk
reviews, project assurance reviews and fraud and
whistleblowing reports The commuttee also monitored
the company’s financial reportng, internal contrels and
risk management procedures, reviewed the non-audit
serwces provided by PwC and considered any significant
legal claims and regulatoryissues Inthe context of their
impact on financial reporting

Learn more about the Key activities of the audit
commuttee on p84 ©

IMAGE REMOVED

Tim Score
Charrman of audit comrnittee
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Audit commuittee report continued

Audit commsttee meeting focus durmg 2015

Reporting

Accounting and technlcal updates

Impact of legal ¢claims and
regulatory Issues on financlaf
reporting

The 2014 annual report

and accounts prefiminary
announcerment, financial
statements and Income statement

Form 20 Fand related disclosures
including the annual Sarbanes
Oxley Act section 404 attestatson of
financlal reporting internal controls

Review of interim results and
trading updates

Policy

Accounting matters and
Group accountsng policies

Analysis supporting viabllity
statement Read more an p40 Q)

Annual review and approval of
external auditar policy

Annual review of treasury
policyand strategy

External audit

Provision of non-audit
services by PwC

Recelpt of the external auditors’
repcrtonthe Form 20 Fand
onthe year end audit

Reappolintment of the
external auditors

Confirmation of auditor
Independence

2015 externaf audit plan

Remuneration and engagement
letter of the external auditars

Revlew opinicn oninterim results

Review of the effectiveness
of the external auditors

Riskand
mternal control

Internal audit activity reports
and review of key findings

Enterprise risk management
Read moreonp38§)

2016 Internal audst plan

Assessment of the effectiveness of
theinternal control envirenment
and risk management systems

Review of Internal auditterms
ofreference

Risk deep dives datasecurity,
data pravacy, health & safety,
Jege! risks and legal function
anti bnbery and corruption,
tax

Data security incldents reporting

Treasury risk review

Complzance
and governance

Fraud, whistleblowing reports
and Code of Conduct matters

Compllance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code

Revlew of the committee’s
terms of reference

Review of The Enabling Program
as it proceeded

Cempliance with SEC and
NYSE requirements Including
Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Review of the effectiveness of
the committee and the group
Internad audit function

Members

Audit committee meetings during 2015

All of the audit committee members are independent
non-executive directors and have financial and/or
related bustness experience due to the senior positions
they hoid or have held in other histed or publicly traded
companies and/or simular public organisations Tim

Score, who assumed the charmanship of the committee

nApril 2015, 1s the company's designated financial

expert, having recent and relevant financial experience,

and is an Associate Chartered Accountant He also
serves as audit committee charman for The Bntish
Land Company plc and until 2014 was audit comnuttee
chairman at Natronal Express Group plc

The qualificattons and relevant experience of the other
committee members are detailed on p72-73 °

During the year, the matters considered by the
committee included those shown in the table above

In February 2016, the committee also considered
the 2015 annual report and accounts, including the
prelminary announcement, finanaal statements,
strategic report, directors' report and corporate
governance compliance statement
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External audit

The committee reviews and approves the appointment
of the external auditors, taking account of the views

of management The committee reviewed the
effectiveness and independence of the external
auditers duning 2015, as it does every year, and

remains satisfied that the auditors provide effective
independent challenge to management

In 2015, the external auditor review was conducted by
distnibuting a questionnaire to key audit stakeholders
including members of the audit committee, the chief
executive, chief financal officer, company secretary,
SV Internal audit and comphance, SVP finance for

each Geography and Line of Business and other heads
of corporate functlons Overall, responses to the
questionnatre were very positive, iIndicating an effective
external audit process As partof the follow-up to

the review, the lead audit partner explained to the
committee how PwC were monitoring and evaluating
each area highlghted in the review and confirmed that
theywould consider how to adapt their approachinlight
of speafic comments recaived

In addition, 1 accordance with Pearson’s external
auditor policy, internal audit performs an annual
assessment of audit fees, services and independence
which farms the basis of a recommendation by the
committee to the board in respect of the appointment
and compensation of the external auditors

The committee will continue to review the performance
of the external auditars on an annual basis and will
consider their independence and objectmty, taking
account of all appropnate guidelines There areno
contractual obligations restricting the committee’s
choice of external auditors In any event, the external
auditors are required to rotate the audit partner
responsible for the Pearson audit every five years

The current lead audit partner rotated onto Pearson's
auditin 2013

Pearson's last audit tender was in respect of the 1996
year end, and resulted in the appolintment of Price
Waterhouse as auditors Developments at an EU level
regarding mandatory audit rotation for tisted companies
have changed the UK landscape on audit tendering and
rotation The committee has reviewed the timetable
for tendering and has taken inte account all relevant
regulation and guidance New EU regulations and the
ruling by the Competition and Markets Authority (CMA)
hasimposed mandatory tendering and rotation
requirements from 2016

In considering the appropriate audit tender imetable for
Pearson in light of these requirements, the committee
has also taken account of the signiftcant bustness change
being experienced by the Group andis monitoring the
extent to which the Group 1s drawing upon the services
of other accounting firms The Group has commenced

a serles of programmes to iImplement major efficiency
improvements across all our enabling functions -
technology, finance, HR - to bring the general and
administrative costs of running Pearson more In line
with global best practice, these include a major

finance transformation programme, Including the
implementation of new financial systems and changes
to our transaction processing and controt activities, that
we expect to continue through 2016, 2017 andinto 2018
The Group is supported in these changes, and more
broadly, by external advisers including accounting firms

it 15 the committee’sintention to appropriately manage
auditor independence and rotation, firstly, to ensure
thata tender has the right level of sutably qualified and
independent firms competing, including atlowing for a
planned transition and, secondly, toundertake thistn a
way that does not unnecessarlly disrupt the business
changes underway and provides consistency of
independent oversight from external auditors through
those changes

Notwithstanding that the above EU mandatory rotation
rules require a new auditor to be appointed no later
than for the 2024 year end, it is the current expectation
of the committee that an audit tender process will be
conducted in 2018 in order for the auditor selected as &
resuli of the tenderto be appointed for the financial year
ending 31 December 2018 For the reasons outhned
above, the commuttee considers thistiming to be in the
best interests of the Group's members and will continue
to momitor this annuatly in hght of the effectiveness and
independence of the current auditors

Once the next audit tender occurs, the Group will adopt a
policy of putting the audit contract out to tender at least
every tenyears

Comnpliance with the CMA Order

Pearson confirms that It was in comphance with the
prowvisions of The Statutory Audit Services for Large
Companies Market Investigation (Mandatory Use of
Competitive Tender Pracesses and Audit Committee
Responsibihties) Order 2014 during the financial year
ended 31 December 2015 Learn more about Audrtors’
independence and non-audit services on pi19 [+
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Audit commuittee report continued

Significant 1ssues

Area of focus

Issue

Action taken by audit committee

Qutcome

Impairment
reviews

Read more innote 11
on p164°

Pearsan carries sigrtficant
goodwill Intangible asset
balances Therels judgernent
exercised in the idenufication
of CGUs and the pracess

of allocating goodwillto
CGUs and aggregate CGUs
and in the assumplions
undlerlying the impairment
review In 2015 Pearson made
significant impalrmentsto
goodwill and Intangible
assetsin certaln CGUs

The committee ¢onsidered the results of the Group's
annual geodwll impairment review and the key
assumptions which are cansldered tohe the cash
flows derived from strategic and operating plans,
long term growth rates and the weighted average
costof capltal The committee considered the
sensitivities to changes In assumptions and the related
disclosures required by IAS 36°lmpairment of Assets’
The committee noted that significantimpairmenis
had arisen primarlly as aresult of deterioration in
expected cash flowover the strategic plan period
and considered sensltivity to assumpitions in relation
to other businesses.,

Annual impairment
review finalised with
confirmation of an
impairmentin China,
Brazil, North America
and other Growth and
Core territories, and
sufficlent headroom
inother CGUs

Revenue
recognition

Pearson has a number of
revenue sireams whare
revenue recognition practices
are complex and management
assumptions and estimates
aranecessary

The committee regularly reviews revenue recognition
practice and the underlying assumptians and
estimates In addltion, the commitiee has visbility of
internal audit findings relating to revenue recognition
conttols and processes and routinely monitors the
views of external auditors onrevenue recognition
[ssues During the year the committee reviewed
revenue recognition in respect of services provided

to charter schools through Pearson's Connections
business, and onergus contracts The committee also
continued to monltor the Impact of the new revenue
recognition standard IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts
with Customers' and noted that although the standard
would nat be adopted by Pearson untll 2018 the
committee would need to understand the Implications
of the change well before thatdate

Assumptions
underlying revenue
recognitionwere
reviewed and
challenged and
conslderedtobe
appropriate

Tax

There are a number efissues
In different countrres where
management judgements and
assumptions are made as te
the correct tax treatment.

The committee considered Pearson s approach to tax
provisioning. Pearson operatesin a large number of
countrles and, accordingly, its earnings are subljectto
tax Inmany jurlsdictions The judgement in relation to
tax provisioning Is a combination of the committee's
assessment of the specific open tax issues and also
areview of the time perlods in which Pearson’s tax
affalrs are open to enquiry by local taxinspectors in
Jjurisdictlons where 1t has a larger taxable presence
The committee addressed this matter through the
presentation of a management repart.on Pearsan’s
tax affalrs by the head of group Lax and thraugha
presentation of the external auditors’ assessment

of the compariy's tax provisioning

The committee

was satlsfied with
Pearson's approach
to tax provisloning
taking accountofthe
views of management
and the assessment
of the external
auditors

Disposal
accounting

Pearson disposed of its
Interest In The Financlal
Times, The Economist
and PowerSchoal

The committeereviewed tha dispesal accounting
and disclosure and considered the maln judgements
relating to tax treatments, and impairment of related
assets on the PowerSchool disposal

Accounting
treatments and
valuations confirmed
as appropriate
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Significantissues continued

During the year, the committee discussed the planning,
conduct and condusions of the external auditas
it praceeded

At the July 2015 audit committee meeting, the committee
discussed and approved the external audit plan and
reviewed the key risks of misstatement of Pearson’s
financial statements, which were updated at the
December 2015 committee meeting

The table opposite sets out the significant issues
considered by the audit committee together with
detalls of how these items have been addressed The
cormmittee discussed theseissues with the auditors at
the time of their review of the half-year intenim financial
statements inJuly 2015 and again at the conclusion of
therr audit of the financial statements for the full year
in February 2016

Allthe significant issues were areas of focus for the
auditors Learn more in the Independent auditors’
reporton pl 26Q

In December 2015, the commuttee discussed with the
auditors the status of their work, focusing in particular
onnternal controls and Sarbanes-Oxley testing, and
covenng the significant issues cuthined above

As the auditors concluded their audit, they explained to
the committee

» The work they had conducted over revenue, working
alongside management to assess several complex
revenue contracts

» The work they had done to understand Pearson’s tax
strategy and identify business and legislative risks, to
evaluate key underlying assumptions and assess the
recoverability of deferred tax assets

» Their evaluation of the recoverability of digital platforms
and pre-publication assets

» Their focus on segments, CGUs and goodwill impairment
and theimpact of Pearsan's transformation on those

» The resufts of their controls testing for Sarbanes-Oxiey
Actsection 404 reporting purposes and in support of
their financial statements audit

» The results of the company's ‘going concern’ and viability
statement reports

The auditors afso reported to the commuttee the
misstatements that they had found mthe course of
theirwork, which were msignificant, and the committee
confirmed that there were no matenal items remaining
unadjusted in these financial statements

Audit committee training

The commuttee receives regular technical updates as well
as speaficor personal training as appropnate

Commuttee members also meet with local management
on an ongoing basis, such as when travelhing for overseas
board meetings, inorder to gain a better understanding
of how Pearson's policies are embedded in operations
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Risk governance and control

Control environment

The board of directors has overall responsibility for
Pearson's systems of internal control and risk
management, which are designed to manage, and
where posstble mitigate, the risks facing Pearson,
safeguard assets and provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against matenal financal
misstaternent or loss The directors confirm they have
conducted a review of the effectiveness of Pearson's
systems of risk management and internal controf in
accordance with provision C 2 3 of the Code and the
FRC's Code Guidance These systems have been
operating throughout the year and ta the date of
this report

Responsibihity for monitoring the effectiveness of the
company's risk management and mnternat control
systems has been delegated to the audit committee
bythe board Ateach meeting, the auditcommittee
consfders reports from management, internal audit
and the external auditors, with the alm of reviewing
the effectiveness of the internal financial and operating
control environment

Each business area, including the corporate centre,
maintains internal controls and procedures appropriate
to its structure, business environment and risk
assessment, while complyting with company-wide
policies, standards and guidelines

internal control and risk management

Qur internal controls and risk oversight have been
reviewed as a resuit of the FRC Guidance and changes
made to ensure comphance These changes indude
more robust executive ownership and assessment of
controls and PLC nsks as well as the preparation of a
viability statement.

The board, assisted by the assurance the audit
comrmittee provides, oversees the enterpriserisk
management (ERM) framework, nsk appetite validation
and viability statement verificatton processes outhined
in the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section on p41
Day-to-day enterprise risk management is undertaken
by a dedicated tearn, accountable to the board and
audit committee The board vahdates the nsk appetite
for each pnncipal risk (as recommended by executive
managemeant) early in the year The identficatton

and mitigation of significant business risks 1s the
responsibiity of sentor management and leadership
teams for each business area

The results of nsk assessments and reviews are reported
to the Pearson executive, the board and the audit
committee Forexample, i 2015, allidentified Pearson-
wide top risks were reviewed by executive management,
then by the board and audit committee on asemi-annual
basis Inaddition, throughout the year, the audit
committee considered the oversight of specific selected
principal risks, through a series of nsk deep dives The
internal audit plan s also alignedto our greatest areas of
risk and the audit committee considers issues and risks
arsing fromanternal audits

The risk assessment and reporting criteria are designed
to provide the board with a consistent, Pearson-wide
perspective of the key risks The reportsto the board,
which are submitted twice per year, include an
assessment of the probability and impact of risks
materialising, as well as risk migation wrutiatives and
therr effectiveness

Learn more about our risk management process, the
principal risks and mitigating factors on p38—45°

Financial management and reporting

There I1s a comprahensive strategrc planning, budgeting

and forecasting system with an annual operating plan

approved by the board of directors Monthly financial

information, mcluding trading results, balance sheets,

cash flow statements, capital expenditures and

indebtedness, 1s reported against the corresponding

figures for the plan and pnior years, with corrective

action outlined by the appropniate senior executive

Pearson’s senior management meet periodically with

business area management to review their business

and financial performance against plan and forecast

Major nsks relevant to each business area as well as

performance against the stated financtal and strategic |
objectives are reviewed in these meetings |

We have an ongoing process to monitor the risks and
effectveness of controls in relation to the finanaal
reporting and consolidation process including the
related infarmation systems This includes up-to-date
Pearson finanaal policies, formal requirements for
finance functions, consolidation reviews and analysis

of matenal variances, finance technical reviews, and
review and sign-off by senior finance managers The PLC
finance function also monitors and assesses these
processes, through a finance comphance function
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These contrals include those over external financal
reporting which are documented and tested in
accordance with the requirements of section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which 1s relevant to our US sting
One key controi in this area s the disclosure committee,
which submits reports to the audit committee This
committee is chaired by the SVP internal auditand
compliance, and members indude the chief financial
officer, general counsel, SVP investor relations, company
secretary aswell as senior members of financial
management The primary responsibility of this
comrruttee Is to review Pearson's public reporting and
disclosures to ensure that information provided to
shareholders 1s complete, accurate and complhiant

with all applicable tegislation and histing regulations

The effectiveness of key financial controls1s subject
to management review and self-certification and
independent evaluation by the external auditors

internal audst

The Internal aucht function 1s responsible for providing
independent assurance to management and the audt
committee on the design and effectiveness of internal
controls to mibgate strategic, finanaal, operational and
compliance risks The risk-based annual mternal audit
plan 1s approved by the audit committee Management
action plans toimprove internal controls and to mitigate
nsks, or both, are agreed with each business area after
each audit Formal managemant self-assessments allow
internat audit to monitor business areas’ progress in
implementing management action plans agreed as part
of internal audits to resclve any control deficiencies
Progress of management action plans s reported to the
audit committee at each meeting Internal audithas a
formal collaboration process in place with the external
auditors to ensure efficent coverage of internal controfs
Regular reports onthework of internal audit are
provided to executve management and, via the audit
committee, to the board

The SVP internal audit and compliance oversees
comphance with our Code of Conduct and works with
serior legal and human resources personnel to
mvestigate any reparted inadents including ethical,
corruption and fraud allegatlons The audit committee
1s provided with an update of all significant matters
recerved through our whistleblowing reporting system,
together with an annual review of the effectiveness of
this system The Pearson anti-bribery and corruption
programme provides the framework to support our
compliance with various anti-bribery and corruption
regulations such as the UK Bribery Act 2010and the US
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act

Treasury management

The treasury department operates within policies
approved by the board and its transactions and
pracedures are subject to regularinternal audit Major
transactions are authonsed outside the department
atthe requisite level, and there I1s an appropriate
segregation of duties Freguent reports are made to the
chief financial officer and regular reports are prepared
for the audit commuttee and the board Thetreasury
policy is described in more detarl in note 19 ta the
financial statements

Insurance

Pearson reviews its nisk financing options regularty to
determine how the company’s insurable nsk exposures
are managed and protected Pearson purchases
comprehensive tnsurance cover and annually reviews
coverage, \nsurers and premwum spend, ensuring the
programme is fit for purpose and cost-effective

Pearson's insurancesubsidiary, Spear Insurance
Company Limited, 15 used to leverage Pearson’s risk
retention capability and to achieve a balance between
retalrung insurance nsk and transferring it to external
nsurers
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Reputation & responsibility committee report

Chairman

Vivienne Cox

Members Vivienne Cox,

Josh Lewis, Linda Larimer, IMAGE
Harish Manwan REMOVED

“Throughout the year, the committee
provided oversight and input as
Pearson continued to develop its
sustainability practices, including
the launch of Project Literacy and
progress towards efficacy reporting.
Our priority is to ensure Pearson’s
activities and policies align
with our business strategy and
stakeholder priorities.”

Progress against 2015 targets

Reputation & respansibility comimittee role

Having been formalised in 2014, the remit of the
reputation & responsibility committee expanded during
2015, reflecting Pearson's continuing commitment and
ambition around its corporate reputation, our behief

in the Importance of fulfiling our obligations to the
communittes in which we work, and maximising
Pearson's positive impact on society

The comrmuttee’s work is closely aligned with the
company's sustainable business imtiatives and our
meetings are now preceded by meetings of Pearson's
responstble business leadership counctl - an internal
governance group - ensunng that we are able to provide
the necessary scrutiny and chaflenge to the council as
our sustainability strategy 1s developed and integrated
into the business Read more about Soctalimpact

on p55-67

Terms of reference

The committee has written terms of reference which
clearly set out its authority and duties These are
reviewed annually and can be found on the company
website at www pearson com/governance

At the start of 2015, we set out to achieve a number of ambitious goals during our first full year as a formai board

committee You can read more about aur progress below

Areas offocus

Progress

Oversee delivery of our strategy for managing our
reputation and maximsing our contnbutien to society
within the organisation

This was a regular feature of our meetings throughout the year as
Pearson builds its reputation management capabilities through an
increasingly proactive approach In particular we have explored in
depth the work being done in our US market to proactwely manage
Pearson's reputation

We also developed and adopted a new process for managing global
reputation risk, which takes Into account our expanded activity and
exposure [n growth markets, as well as our presence In certain high-
risk countries.

Meoniter Integration of social impact Into Pearson's
bustness following the dosure of the Pearson
Charnitable Foeundation

The committee provided input Into a number of soclal mpact
projects established and acceleratedin 2015 particularty high-profile
initiatives such as Project Literacy and our Every Child Learning
partnership with Save the Children

Review progress towards 2018 efficacy commitments

Through facused sessions at two committee meetings, we reviewed
progress toward meeting our efficacy commitment, and made
recommendatlons for improving the efficacy measurement,
reporting and audiung processes Learn more about Efficacy
onp46-53Q
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Key activities in 2015

Committee aims for 2016

Key areas of focus for the committee were thelaunch

of Project Literacy, our progress towards external
efficacy reporting, plans to link the UN's sustainable
development goals to our business madel, and the
ongoing work around Pearsor’s brand and culture

In all of these areas, our priarity is to ensure Pearson’s
activitiesand policies align with our business strategy
and stakeholder prionties, while reflecting best practice

In addition, Pearson has formalised a process for its
reputational risk management, mvolving business
leaders and corporate affairs representatives, and the
committee now receives a reputational nsk report at
every mesting The committee also conducts deep dives
into areas of particufar reputational impact, such as
through a focused session in 2015 on Pearson's US
reputational strategy

More detail about the commuttee's responsibilities, and
the activities it undertook m each area of its remit, s
gven below For reputation & responsibility committee
meeting attendance see overview table on p78 (]

Comrmttee responsibilities

In 2016 the committee wili continue to maintain a clear
focus on reputational management in the US - our
largest, and most reputaticnally high-profile market

We will oversee Pearson's continuous progressin
embedding social Impact Into our strategy and business
maodel, continue to monitor our corporate culture,
ensuring employee engagement and values remain
strong to help ensure Pearson s in good shape for the
future, and we will undertake a review of the ethical
business priorities identfied in 2015

iIMAGE
REMOVED

Vivienne Cox
Chalrman of reputation
& responsiblity committee

Topic Responsibllity Activity Strategy
Pearson's reputation among Updates on reputational hot toples’ at eachmeening Communicalions
Reputation malor stakeholders meluding strategies, policies
governments, investors, Review of US reputational strategy and plans refated to
employees, customers leamners  woriing with the audit committee to ensure that reputationalissues
and the educationcommunily  peaith & safetyIssues are properly considered from and the people,

a reputation and responsibility perspective

processes and policles
that are Inplace to

Oversight of Pearson s appreach  Overview of reputational nsk approach in growth and manage them
Risk te reputational aisk, including US markets throughin country personnel and central
ensuring that clear roles have corporate affaws tearn
been assigned for management
& 2 Reguler consideratfon of reputational nsk dashboards

Socalimpact inltlatives, sncluding  Progress on efficacy, Incduding launch of ‘On the Road"
Social Pearson s nen-financial public publication and draft reporting framework

commitments and progress

towards them Introduction to new reach and impact strategy

Commitment to UN sustainable davelopment goals

and integration Into business model

Launch of Save the Chiidren partnership

Management of the Pearson

Brand tracker update

brand to ensure that its valize and
reputation are malntained and
enhanced Pearson's approachto

Brand and
cultuie

Review of progress on employee values
and engagement

values and desired behaviours
that form our carporate culture

monitoring andsupportingthe  Frolavee partiaipation in sotial impact ackwvities

Consideration of ethscal issues in the wader context of

Ethical business standards,

Ethics including Pearson's approachto  reputational niskidentification
issues relevant tolis reputation
as aresponsible corporate cirzen
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Shareholder engagement

Engaging with shareholders

Pearson has an extensive programme of communication
with all of its shareholders - large and smalf, mstitutional
and private

Shareholder autreach in 2015, we continued with our
shareholder outreach programme, seeing approximately
790 institutional and private investors at more than 450
differentinstitutions in Australia, Canada, Dubai, Greater
China, Continental Europe, Ind:a, Japan, Singapore, South
Karea, Taiwan, the UK and the US

Trading updates There are five trading updates each
year and the chief executive and chief financal officer
present our preliminary and interim results updates
They aiso attend regular meetings throughout the year
with investors in the UK and around the world, tatored
to mvestor requirernents, to discuss the performance
of the company, the company’s strategy, our change
programme, structural changes tn our markets, and
nsks and opportunities for the future

Chairman meetings The chatrman meets regularly
with significant shareholders to understand any issues
and concerns they may have This s in accordance with
both the Code and the UK Stewardship Code The non-
executive directors meet informally with shareholders
both before and after the AGM and respond to
shareholder queries and requests as necessary The
chairman ensures that the board is kept informed of
principal investors’ and advisers’ views on strategy,
and corporate governance

Visit pearson com

Consultations During the year we also consulted

with our mayor shareholders and with shareholder
representative bodies on our directors’ remuneration
report, and the significant minorty vote agamnst the
2013 annual remuneration report at the 2014 AGM
Read about Remuneration on p94

Private investors Private investors represent over
80% of the shareholders on our register and we make
a concerted effort to engage with them regularly
Shareholders who cannot attend the AGM are

nvited to e-matl guestions to the chatrman in
advance at chairman-agm@pearson com

We encourage our private shareholders to become
maore nformed investors and have provided a wealth of
information on our webstte about managing Pearson
shareholdings, see www pearson com/investors/
sharehalder-information html for further information,
orturn to p227 of this report We also encourage all
shareholders, who have not already done so, to register
their e-mall addresses through our website and with our
registrar This enables them to receive e-mail alerts when
trading updates and other important announcements
are added to ourwebsite See additional Shareholder
information onp227 ©

» Investor relations information

» Company announcements and shareholder
presentations, webcasts and conference calls

> Pastannouncements and presentations
>Historical financlal performance

»Share price data

> Calendar of events

> Information about our businesses
and their websites

»Corporate respansibility
policies and activities

IMAGE REMOVED
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Share dealing

Due to its continued popularity we again provided
shareholders with smaller holdings the opportunity to

use our registrar’s low-cost share dealing service, gving

them the chance to add to or reduce their stake in
Pearson at significantly reduced dealing rates, or to
donate shares to charity with ease This service proved
very popular with shareholders, and consequently we
intend to offer it agarn at a future date

We believe itis important that our employees have a
shared interest in the directton and achlevements of
Pearson and are pleased to say that a large number
of our employees are shareholders in the company

Annual General Meeting

Our AGM, on 29 April 2016, 1s an opportunity for
all shareholders to meet the board and to hear
presentations about Pearson’s businesses and results

Engagmng with all stakeholders

We post alil company announcerments o our webstte,
WWwW pearson com, as soon as they are released, and
key shareholder presentations are made accessible
viawebcast or conference call Qur website contains a
dedicated investor relations section with an extensive
archive of past announcements and presentations,
historical financial performance, share pricedataand a
calendar of events It aiso includes information about
all of our busmesses, links to their websites and detalls
of our carporate respansibility policies and actiities
Learn more about our approach to corporate
responsibility in the Soaial impact section on p55°

Boardvisit to India

IMAGE REMOVED

in October 2015, the board visited New Dethi,
India, for a three-day meeting focused on our four
most important Growth markets - Brazil, China,
India and South Africa

in each of these countries, Pearson's presence has
grown markedty in the last few years and in each of
them, to varying degrees, Pearsonis operating in

a challenging economic chimate, whilst continuing
to chart a path to the next phase of sustainable
growth These are important markets to Pearson’s
tong-term future, where the fundamental demand
for good quality education and training, leading to
ajob and a better ife, remain strong

Overview of growth markets Providing context for the meeting,
Pearson’s President, Growth and SVP finance, Growthled an
overviewof performance and strategy across the four maln
Growth markets, following which the business leaders of each

of Brazil, China and South Africa gave a more In depthreview of
the apportunities and challengesin those couniries considering
the macro economic conditions and demographics particular o
gachterritory

Focus on India Non executrve director Hansh Manwani set the
scene for the focus on India, and the board then took a dloser ook
at Pearson's operations through a session with the head of our
Indsa buslness, learning about the huge potential n India and the
demand for better, more job relevant education. The board also
spent time with Pearson’s Indla leadership team and keytalentand
heard from a range of partners, policymakers and key influencers

Learningin action The board visited Jaypee public school, which
provided an opportunity to see first-hand the impact of Pearson s
school management improvement framework, to view the
MyPedia integrated learning toolin action and learn about our
health & safety and safeguarding Inltiatives The board aiso spent
time at a Pearson learning centre, learning about Pearson's work
to transiate educatlon and tralning into employment, and engaged
with representatives of Avantl Learning Centres and Zaya, two
inftiatives funded by the Pearsen Affardable Learning Fund

Learn more about our Growth markets on p29 32Q)
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Report on directors’ remuneration

Parti Letter from the chairman of the remuneration commuttee

Charman of the
remuneration committee
Elizabeth Corley

IMAGE
REMOVED

Current Members

Tim Score, Vivienne Cox,
Elizabeth Corley, Josh Lews
and Sidney Taurel

“It has been a tough year for Pearson
and our remuneration outcomes
have reflected this. zois brought
challenging market conditions and
significant changes As we continue
1to 2016 we will be considering our
remuneration policy proposals for
2017 in this new environment and
context for the business.”

Inthis remuneration section

Part 1 Letter from the chalrman pa4
Part 2 Summary of remuneration pohcy pa7 O
Part 3 Annual remuneration report pioi €

Terms of reference

The committee's full charter and terms of
reference are available on the Governance
page of the company’s website at

Www pearson com/governance

IMAGE REMOVED

See p114 for alignment of pay with Total Shareholder Return )

Dear shareholder

On behalf of the board, | am pleased to present the
report on directors’ remuneration for 2015 Thisis my
first report as chairman of Pearson’s remuneration
committee, having succeeded Sir David Arculus at the
Annual General Meeting (AGM) In April 2015 The
opportunity to learn about and study the history, pelicies
and procedures of remuneration at Pearson, with the
support of fellow committee members, has been
invaluable, as has the feedback and engagement with
key shareholders My board colleagues and | are aware
ofthe importance and sensitivity among investors and
the public more generally, of remuneration topics and
we feel our responsibilities keenly

As outhined inour strategic report, 2015 was a year of
change and challenge for Pearson with continued market
headwinds and the in-year disposals of PowerSchool, the
Flnancial Times Group and our stake in The Econormist
While we have been performing well competitively and
gained market share across many areas of our business,
year end results were lower than projected at the start of
the year Thiswas largely driven by the persisting cyclical
and policy-related turbulence m our major education
markets While this is expected to abate over the next
two years, we saw a reduction in our annual operating
profit for 2015 of approximately £230m from its peak

Despite the challenges encountered, we remain focused
on executing the busness strategy, transforming
Pearson to be the standout company in education
globatly and developing our long-term growth
opportunities The 2015 divestments were animportant
part of these aims We are confident that education
rermains an attractive investment opporturity with

iMAGE REMOVED
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the growth potential to enable us both to serve more
students around the world, and to deliver goad,
sustainable returns to our shareholders

We do not intend to make any remuneration policy
revistons ahead of the 2017 AGM  However, we keep the
effectiveness of our current remuneration programmes
under review and, partly in ight of recent trading
conditions and the speofic strategic goals for 2016,

we have conciuded that some changes are warranted
These are detaited In this reportand, for those yet to

be finalised, we are engaging with our key investors

Whathappened In 2015

Remuneration for executive directors 15 closely tied to
business performance with a high proportton of total
remuneration delivered through variable pay designed
to reward achievement of short and long term strategic
objectives Asa result of the performance challenges
noted in this report, the outcomes under these schemes
were as follows

»Annual incentives patd to executives for 205 were 2ero,
reflecting below-threshold performance in a tough
trading environment

s Long-term incentives vesting In 2015 did not pay out
This 1s the third consecutive year of nif pay-out, reflecting
below-threshold performance against the company’s
three-year targets for earnings per share growth, return
on inwested capital and relative total shareholder return

Given the environment within which the leadership team
15 expected to guide Pearson through avery significant
period of change, without receiving any borus or long-
term Incentive payments, the committee agreed for 2016
incentive and retention arrangements for selected key
employees, which wall vest, ornot, in 2017 No executive
directors participate i these icentives

future measures of performance against pay

We expect our busfness to stabilise in 2017 and return
to growth in 2018 Our bustness ptan until then focuses
on operational execution, tight cost management

and asharper, more focused strategy The focus of
restructuring 1s not oniy to reduce costs butalso to
make the company faster, leaner and more agle

We are creating a single global product organisation,
Integrating our school, clinlcal and professional
assessment operations in North America and are scaling
back our exposure to farge, direct delivery operations
We are also making productivity improvements across
ali our enabling functions such as Technology, HR and
Finance and we plan to rationalise our property portfolio
and consolidate major agreements to drive greater

cost effitiency

Commuttee responsibilibes

1 Determmne and review palicy Determine and regularly
review the remuneration policy for the executive directors,
the presidents and other members of the Pearsen executive
who reportdirectly to the CEQ (executve management)
This pelicy includes hase salary, annuatand long-term
incentives, pension arrangements, any other benefits

and termination of employment

2 Review and approve implementation Regularly review
the implementation and operatfon of the remuneration
policy for executive management and approve the
ndrvidual remuneration and benefits packages of the
executive directars

3 Approve performance related plans Approve the design
of, and determmine targets for, any performance-retated

pay plans operated by the company and approve the totat
payments to be made under such plans

4 Review long-term plans Review the design of the
company’s long-term Incentive and other share plans
for approval by the board and shareholders

§ Settermnation arrangements Advise and decide on
general and speaficarrangementsin connection with
the termuinatlon of employment of executive directors

6 Review targets Review and approve corporate goals and
objectives relevant to CEO remuneration and evaluate the
CEO's perforrance In light of those goals and objectives

7 Determine chairman's remuneration Delegated
respansiblfity for determining the remuneration and
benefits package of the chairman of the board

8 Shareholder engagement Ensure the company maintains
an appropriate level of engagement with its shareholders
and shareholder representative bodies in relation to the
remuneration poficy and its implementation

9 Appolintremuneration consultants Appoint and
set the terms of engagement for any remuneration
consultants who advise the committee and monitor
the cost of such advice

In these circumstances, we intend to design our incentive

plans for 2016 to ensure that our executive and other
employees are motivated and incentivised to achieve

ourimportant aims over the short term, while sustaiung

astrategic focus on longer-term goals The plan targets
are still to be finalised but the current thinking suggests

For the Annual Incentive Plan (AIP)

»The 2016 sales and cash metrics and weightings remain

unchanged from 2015 However, toalign the AIP with
the specific restructuring achievements required n
2016, as noted In the income statement measure iIn our
guidance to investors, Operating Profit after the cost of
restructuring will be added to the metrics with a 30%
welghting To accommodate this change, the weighting
for earnings per share (EPS)would also be 30% (down
from 60% weight for 2015)
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Part1 Letter from the chairman of the remuneration committee continued

»For 2016, the range of normal rewarded performance
would be wider than th previous years - and, in
consequence, both the threshold performance and
the on-target funding are set to be lowerthan In 2015

For the Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP}

»Targets for the 2016 LTIP awards are planned to be set
following the April remuneration committee meeting,
having allowed key shareholders the opportunity to
consider our plans on how to account for the revised
growth expectations explained in our January 2016
trading update, and in line with policy

> The targets will be fully disclosed in the 2016 reporton
directors’ remuneration

»>The targets and weightings will continue to be based on
EPS {one-half), ROIC {one-third} and TSR (one-sixth) with
on-target levels planned to be in line with the delivery
of the market puidance operating profit of £800 milhon
in2018

Looking forward to 2016

The committee has reviewed the base salary levels for
executive directors in light of 2015 business performance
and concluded that it would not be appropriate to award
asalaryincrease for 2016

In preparation for the policy vote in 2617, we expect to
conduct a thorough review of our remuneration policy

Principles of remuneration policy

in 2016 to test and ensure Its effectiveness and
appropriateness far the company, which finds itself
In @ new gperating environment and context to that
prevaiing in 2014 We are committed to engagement
with our shareholders during this review and will

welcome comments and feedback

The operation of the current LTIP will be considered as
part of the policy review, i parallel with a periodic review
of the remuneration committee's terms of reference

Qur new policy - changed or not - and any new or
renewed planswill be put to shareholders for approval
atthe 2017 AGM For information on our anticipated
changes to remuneration for 2016 see page 116

My meetings with shareholders in 2015 have been
helpful inunderstanding perspectives and [ look forward
to continuing the dialogue in 2016 and beyond

We are confident that our response to the changes and
challenges described here will make Pearson a simpier,
focused and stronger company and thatwe will position
the company to achieve a sustained period of growth

IMAGE REMOVED

Elizabeth Corley
Chairman of remuneration committee

4 March 2016

The purpose of the remuneration policy is to support the company's strategy to delver sustained performance and
create long-term value 1n the Interests of all stakeholders Our rermuneration policy principles are highlighted in the
panel below and a summary of aur directors’ remuneration policy repart, approved by shareholders atthe 2014 AGM,

1s provided on pages 97 and 98

We continue to operate executive remuneration in ine with the approved policy and do not anticpate seeking
shareholder approval for our policy again until required to do so atthe 2017 AGM See table on page 98

Sustainability and Pay for performance Alignment
affordability

Robust and transparent f Designed toreflect
Base :—"—“—L,nkw pay md,tf’:ns Annual F e abie pay Annual " sharehoktervalue
salary across the Group ncentives +Funded throughresults incentives creation

»Strongrationale »Aligned fully with KPis

forincreases EPS, operating profit,

»Funded through

Annual results

incentives

sales and operating

cash flow Long-term
»Matus and clawback incentives

rStrong hnk to
performance

» Malus and clawback Long-term

incentives

>Stronglink to
performance

»Malus and clawback

Long-term
ncentives

»Paymix focuses on
variahle pay

»Designed toreflect
shareholder value
creabion

» 2-year holding
post vesting

»Funded through results

1 Allgned with strategy
through KPIs EPS, ROIC
and TSR

»>Malus and clawback

Shareholding
guldelines

+ CEQ 300%
CFO 200%

+Pearson
executive 100%
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Part2 Summary ol 1emuneration policy

Intreduction to summary of remuneration policy

The company’s policy on directors’ remuneration

was approved by shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting on 25 Aprit 2014 Weissued an RNS statement
of further information on the remuneration policy on
9April 2014, to clarify the use of the committee’s
discretion over certain elements of remuneration in
exceptronai crcumstances

To help shareholders understand the context of
remuneration practice reported in the annual
remuneration report that follows, and specifically the
hmits applied to directors’ remuneration, we have
Included below some key points and a summary of
pertinent sections of the remuneratlon policy for
information only For further detail, please refer to the
full remuneration policy and the clanfication statement
on the Governance page of the company’s website at
WWW Dearson com/governance

Scope of policy
The policy apphies to executive directars, the chairman
and non-executive directors

Reference s also made to the remuneration policy for
other members of the Pearson executive {currently nine
innumber) who are not directors but who fall within the
committee’s remit

Duration of policy

The policy took effect on 25 Apri 2014 and Is expected
to rernarn in force unti the next binding vote on our
remuneration policy, which 1s planned for the 2017 AGM

Use of discretion

The committee has avoided, where possible, including
general discretions in the policy table However,
exceptional or genutnely unforeseen circumstances
may arise in the future and in those circumstances it
may ben shareholders’ interests for Pearson to putin
place remuneration arrangements that are outside the
terms of the policy If this happens, the commuttee wili
be permitted to smplement remuneration arrangements
that it constders appropriate in the arcumstances In
these circumstances, Pearson would consultin advance
with major shareholders before it does so and would
explamn the exercise of this discretion in the following
year's directors’ remuneration report

As clanfied in the RNS statement of further information
onthe remuneration palicy an 9 Aprd 2014, this
discretion would only be used in the very narrow
circumstances articulated in the policy - thatss, in
exceptional or genuinely unforeseen circumstances
The committee considers that these circumstances
would arise highlyinfrequently, if at all, in the hfetime
of the policy The committee wouild regard reliance

on this discretion as a matter of utmost seriousness
and, in relation to our stated obligation to consult in
advance with major shareholders, woufd not proceed
unless thare was clear consensus in favour among
those consulted Further, the committee would ensure
that the value of the remuneration arrangement put in
place in rellance on this discretion would fall within the
normal limit (as stated in the policy) for the efement of
remuneration to which the arrangement relates

As part of the approved policy, the committee also has
discretion to award base salary tncreases, allowances
and benefits, and long-term incentive plan awards

1n excess of the normal maximum fimits to current
ornew directors As clanfied in the RNS statement,

this discretion will only be exercised in exceptional
circumstances other than in the case of ncreases in the
cost of benefits that are outside Pearson's control and
changes inbenefit providers Again, Pearsonwould
consult with major shareholders before exercising any
such discretion and such exeraise would be imited by
reference to the safeguards described above, including
only proceeding where there was clear consensus n
favour among those consulted In these circumstarces,
the committee would ensure that the maximumvalue of
the remuneration arrangement put in place in reliance
on this discretion did not exceed a margin of 25% over
the normal maximum limit for the elementin question
(as stated n the policy}

Legacy arrangements

Given the long-term nature of some of Pearson’s
remuneration structures - including obhigations
under service contracts, incentwe plans and pension
arrangements - a number of pre-existing obligations
remalnedin piace at the time that the new poficy
became effective, including oblhigations that are
*grandfathered’ by wvirtue of being inforce at 27 June
2012 Pearson’s policy Is to honour pre-existing
oblgations, commutments or other entittements that
were entered into before the effectve date of this policy
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Part 2 Summary of remuneration policy contimied

Summary of remuneration policy

For more information piease refer to the full remuneration policy on the Governance page of the company’s website at
Www pearson com/governance

Element of Purpose and Exceptional limit as clarifiedin
remuneration link 1o strategy Performance conditions Narmal fimit RNS statement of 9 April 2014
Helpstorecrult,reward  Performance ofboththe Base salaryintreases  Up to 25% over normal hmitin

Basesalary >

andretain Reflects
competitive market level
rale, skills experience
and individual
contribution

cornpany and the individual
are taken into account when
determining an appropriate
level of base salary Increase
eachyear, If any

are not ordinarily more
than 10% per annum

specific individual sltuations
including internal promotiens
and material changes to the
business or the role

Allowances
and benefits

Help to recrult and
retain Reflect the local
competitlve market

Noneg

Total valie not
ordinarlly in excess of
15% of base salary In

anyyear

Up to 25% over normal limitln
specificindividua! sltvations
including changes [nindividual
circumstanices such as health
status and changes in the role
such asrelocatlon Inexcess of
258% over nermat limlt Inthe
case of Increases inthe cast

of benefits that are outside of
Pearson's control and changes
in benefit providars

Retirement
benefits

Help to recruit and
retain Recogniselong
term commitment

None

As setout In approved
remuneration policy

Nong

Annual
Incentives

Motivate achievernent
of annual strateglc

goals Facus onkey
financial metrics Reward
individua! contributlon

The commlttee has the
discretion to select the
performance measures,
targets and refative welghtings
fromyear to year Funded by
Pearson global annual financial
results, normally related to the
performance agalnst targets
for Pearson’s adjusted earnings
per share (or operating profit),
sales, and operating cash Aow
individual annual incentive
pay-outs also take into account
individual performance against
personal objectives

QOverallimit 200%

of base salary 2015
maxtmum opportunity
15 180% for the chief
executive and nomore
than 170% for other
executive directors
and members of the
Pearson executive

None

Long term
incentives

Help torecruit, reward
and retaln Drivelong-
term earnings share
price growth andvalue
creation and align
interests of executives
and shareholders
Encourage long

term shareholding
and commitment 1o
company

Link management's
long term reward and
weakth o corporate
parformancelna
flexsble way

The committee will determine
the performance measures,
weightings and targets
governing an award of
restricted shares prior to
grantto ensure continuing
allgnment with strategy and
thatthe tarpets are sufficienty
stretching Awards vest subject
tothe following performance
conditions one-halfon
earnings per share growth,
one-third on return on Invested
capital (ROIC), one sixthen
relative total sharehalder
return (TSR} Performance
tested over three years

Maximumface

vatue of 400% of

base satary Other
than in exceptional
circumstances on
recrultment, itfs the
company’s normal
pellicy not to award
restricted shares lo
executive directors
and other members of
the Pearson executive
without performance
conditions

Upto 25% over normal Imitin
excephional circumstances, for
example, for retentlon purposes
or wa reflect particular business
situatlons The discretion to
award restricted shares without
performance conditions to
executive directorswill not

be used other than where tis
appropriate to compensate a
new director on a dike for like'
basis for Incentives foregone

at a previous employer

See Total single figure remuneration chart on page 105 ©
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Non-executive directors and chairman

Pay and performance scenarto analysis

Non-executive director remuneration has been designed
to attract and retain high calibre indrviduals, with
appropriate experience or iIndustry refevant skilts, by
offering market competitive fee fevels

The structure of non-executive directors' fees
with effect from 1 May 201415 as follows

The remuneration policy approved by shareholders
n 2014 required a scenano chartinthe format set out
below for 2014 remuneration Although notregquired,
the company has updated the scenario charts below
so as to apply to 2016 remuneratton

Consistent with its policy, the committee places
considerable emphasis on the performance-linked

Director Fee | dl
nts, tand long-term incentives
Non-executive director £70,000 elements, e annuatandlong-te ¢
Charrmanship of audit committee £27,500 The chart overleaf shows what each director could
Chairmanship of remuneration committee £22,000 expect toreceive 1n 2016 under different performance
scenarios, based on the following definitions of
Chairmanship of reputation & f
responsibility committee £10,000 pertormance
Membership of audit committee £15,000 Performance Elements of remunesation
Membership of remuneration committee £10,000 scenarlo and assumptiens
2016 basesalary allowances, henefits, and

r“:":)br;’;n:f chol':.]il:“tat;l:n & £5.000 Maximum retirement benefits at the same percentage

p ¥ " of base salary as in 2015, maximum individual
Senlorindependentdirector £22,000 annual Incentive as per policy; maximurm vatue

Thetotal fees payable to the non-executive directors
{excluding the Chairmany) are subject to the lirmit set out
in the artictes of association of the company {currently
£750,000) and are increased by ordinary resolution from
time to time:

The charman’s fees remain unchanged at £500,000
peryear

For moreinformation on non-executwve directors’
remuneration, please refer to the full remuneration
policy on the Governance page of the campany's website
atwww pearson com/governance

of 2015 long termincentlve award

2016 base salary allowances benefits and
Target retirementbenefits at the same percentage
of base salary as In 2015, target tndividual
annualincentive as per policy; targetvalue
of 2015 long term incentive award (Willis
Towers Watson's independent assessment
of the expected value of the award, | e the
net present value taking into account all the
conditions}

|

2016 base salary, allowances, benefits, and
retiremnent benefits atthe same percentage
of base salary as In 2015, ho annual or long
term ncenthves

Minimum

Note The walue of long-term incentives does not take intoaccount dividend awards Lhat
are payable on the retease of restricted thares nor arny tharges nshare prce.

On this basis, the relative weighting of fixed and
performance-related remuneration and the absolute
size of the remuneration packages for the chief executive
and the chief financal officer (as represented by the
current Incumbent) are set out on the next page

We will continue to review the mux of fixed and
performance-linked remuneration on an annual basss,
consistentwith our overall policy
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Part 2- Summary of Remuneration policy continued

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMQVED

Further information on remuneration policy

For further information on the following aspects

of the remuneration policy, piease refer to the full
remuneration policy and the RNS statement of further
information on the remuneration policy of 9 Aprif 2014
onthe Governance page of the company’s website at
Www pearson.com/governance é

»Sefection of performance measures and target setting

» Legacy arrangements under the annual bonus share
matching plan

> Remuneration policy for other employees

» Service contracts and termination provisions
»Recruitment policy

» Employment conditions edsewhere In the comparny
» Executive directors’ non-executive directorships
»Shareholder views

in 2016, we intend to conduct a review of our
remuneration pohicy to put to shareholders
for our next policy vote in 2017
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Part 3 Annual temuneration report

This report comprises a number of sections

The rermuneration committee

Movements in directors’

andits activities p102103Q interests mn share options’ p11i

Voting outcome at 2015 Annual Paymentsto former directors’ p111Q

General Meeting p104Q Interests of directors and

Single figure of total remuneration and value of shareholdings' p112Q

Prior year comparison p10s Q Executive directors’

Annualincentive’ p106 @ non-executive directorships . p113Q
, Long-termncentives® p1067 @ Historical performance

Retrement benefits® [{0:X +) and remuneration p1140

Remuneration pard to the chairman Comparative information pIsQ

and non-executive directors” plos @ infortation on changes to

for 20 116-117
Movernents in directors’ remuneration for 2016 P o
Interests in share awards” p110Q

Where required under current regutatiens the tables marked * have been subject to audlt

Annual remuneration report

Remuneration compltance

The remuneration committee presents the annual
remuneration report, which will be put to sharehoiders,
along with the annual statement, as an advisory {non-
binding) vote at the Annual General Meeting ta be held
on29 Apnl 2016

Strategic alignment of pay

This reportwas compiled in accordance with Schedule 8
of the Large and Mediumn-sized Companies and Groups

{Accounts and Reports)(Amendment) Regulations
2013 and was approved by the board of directors on

4 March 2016

The committee believes that the company has cornphed
with the provisions regarding remuneration matters
contamned within the UK Corporate Governance Code

Financhal KPI Incentive Non-finandal KPt Incentive
objectives scheme abjectives scheme
Sales AlP GHG AlP[aspartofa
Drive revenue Reduce emissions scorecard ysed
growth our carhon to determing
[ootprint the Indlvidual
discretionary
Delwver 'Er:trili:d]usted AlP/LTIP elementofthe
BS payout)
sustamable
Return on LTI
returns Invested capltal
Total shareholder LTIP Strategic KPI Incentive
return objectives scheme
Transform Revenue share AIP
todigstal
Manage our Sai:lr;::g AP and SgEI'VlCES
cash position
effectively Revenue share AlP

Grow presence
inemerging
markets
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Part 3 Annual remuneration report continued

The remuneration committee in 2015

Role Name Title
Chairman  Elizabeth Corley Independent
{from 24 April 2015) non executive directors
David Arculus
(to 24 Apni 2015)
Members Vivienne Cox
Josh Lewis
Tim Score
(from 2 October 2015)
Ken Hydon
(to 24 April 2015)
Elizabeth Corley
{to 24 Aprit 2015)
Glen Moreno Chairman of the board
Internal  John Fallon Chiefexecutive
advisers Coram Willams Chieffinanoal officer
{from t August 2015)
Robin Freestone Chieffinancal officer
{to 1 August 2015)
Mehnda Walfe Chiefhuman resourcas
officer
Stuart Nofan SVP. reward
Stephen Jones Companysecretary
External  Willis Towers Watson
advisers

See remuneratiocn committee activities in 2015
on p103°

Sidney Taurel joined the committee as a member
on his appointment as Chairman of the Board on
1 January 2016

Internat advisers provided matenal assistance to the
commuttee during the year They attended meetings of
the commuttee, aithough none of them were invoived in
any decisions refating to his or her own remuneration

To ensure that the commuttee recetves independent
advice, Willis Towars Watson supphes survey data and
advises on market trends, long-term incentives and
other general remuneration matters Willis Towers
Watson was selected and appointed by the committee
through a formattendening process Willis Towers
Watson also advised the campany on health and
welfare benefits in the US and provided consulting
advice directlyto certain Pearson gperating companies
Willis Towers Watson 1s a member of the Remuneration
Consultants’ Group, the body that oversees the Code of
Conduct in relation to executive remuneration consulting
inthe UK

During the year, Willis Towers Watson was paid fees for
advice to the commuttee, which were charged on a time
spent basis, of £151,254 As part of its annual review ofits
performance and effectiveness, the committee remains
satisfled that Willis Towers Watson's advice was objective
and independent and that Wilhs Towers Watson's
proviston of other services i no way tompromises

its Independence

Committee performance

Annually, the commuttee reviews its own performance,
constitution, and ¢charter and terms of reference to
ensure it s operating at maximum effectiveness and
recornmends any changes it considers necessary to the
board for approval

The committee participated in a survey to review its
performance and effectiveness in july 2015, looking at
areas such as the clarity of roles and responsibiiities,
the composition of the committee, the use of time,
the quality and tmeliness of meeting materials, the
opportunity for discussion and debate, dralogue

with management and shareholders and access to
independent advice

The commuttee concluded that itis operating effecuvely
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Meetings, activities and decisions in 2015

The remuneration committee met four imes during 2015 The key topics were as follows

considered shareholder
engagement Strategy

Nated Willls Towers Noted update to
Market Watson's gverview ofthe  remuneration aspects
current remuneration of the UK Corporate
environment and Governance Code
2014/15 market data and principtes of
remuneration of the
Investrment Association
Noted management's Neted and reviewed
Performance overview of prior the status of the
year and year to outstanding long-term
date performance incentive awards based
and business ptans anthe current view of
likely Pearson flnanclal
performance
Reviewed and approved  Approved nil pay-out Considered timeline Noted remuneration
Implementation \ the 2014 annual under2012long-tesm  and principles for package for anew
incentive pay outand incentive plan determining the basis appointmenttothe
2015 remuneration of Robin Freestone's Pearson exequtive
package for John Fallon exitarrangements
Reviewedand approved Rewiewed and approved  Noted 2015 long-term Considered matter of
2014 annual Incentive 2015 long-term incentive  Incentwe awards for former CEQ's double
plan pay-auts awards for the Pearson  senior leaders and taxation in the WS and
Approved nil pay-out of executive managers below UK and related issues
2012 annual bonus share Pearson executive
matching awards and
release of shares
Noted the actvity of the  Noted company's use Reviewed the Reviewed the
Governance standingcommitteeof  of equity foremployee  commuttee’s committee’s ¢harter
the board in relation share plans performance and terms of reference
to the operation ofthe
company’s equity-based
reward programmes
Reviewed and approved  Reviewed and approved  Noted guidance notes on
Pohey 2014 diractors’ 201Sindmdual annual  treatment of leavers and
remuneration report incentive opportunities  exercise of discretion
Reviewed and approved for the Pearson Considered approachto
Increases In base salarfes executive 2015 long-term incentive
for 2015 for the Pearson  Reviewed 2015 awards for senlor
executive long-term incentive leaders and managers
revenedsndoparoe | POTTENCE R ben g Perin
2015 Pearson annuat
executrve
Incentive plan targets
Noted shareholder Reviewed 2015 Annual Noted template Noted feedback from
Disclosureand feedbackon 2014 General Meetingseasan, and outhne of 2015 Commuttee Chairman's
engagement directors’ remuneration  shareholdervotingand  reporton directors’ meetings with key
! report engagement skrategy remuneration and shareholders
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Part 3 Annual remuneration repori continued

Voting at 2015 Annual General Meeting Voting on remuneration policy at 2014 AGM

The following table summarises the details of votes cast
in respect of the resolutions on the report on directors’
remuneration at the 2015 Annual General Meating

IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

As i previous years and as required by law, details
of the voting on all resclutions at the 2016 Annuai
General Meeting will be announced via the RNS
and posted on the Pearson website following the
Annual General Meeting
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Single total figure of remuneration and prior year companson E

o

Total aggregate emoluments for executive and non-executive directors were £3 299m n 2015 These emoluments are &

included within the total employee benefit expense in note 5 to the financal statements (page 155) E

Executive directors
The remuneration recetved by executive directars in respect of the financial years ended 31 December 2015 and
31 Decernber 2014 s set out betow Figures for Coram Williams and Robin Freestone are based on their pertod of
employment - see note cn page 106
Executive director remuneration
John Fallon Coram Wilhatns Robin Freestone Tatal

£000s 2015 2014 2015 2004 2015 2014 2015 2014 g

-

rBase salary > 776 761 258 - 417 553  1,45% 1,314 5

Q

3

3

[ Allowances and benefits > 62 83 0 - 13 15 75 98 B
Travel 28 50 0 - 1 12 39 62
Healthcare 2 2 0 - 2 2 4 4
Risk 32 3 0 - 0 1 32 32

| Annuat incentives > 0 692 0 - 0 365 a 1057 g

Percentage of maximum 0% 51% 0% - 0% 39% - - §

Percentage of target 0% 9% 0% - 0%  78% - - 3

Percentage of salary 0% 91% 0% - 0%  66% - - E
[ Long-termincentives > 54 74 - - @ 63 95 137
Long-term Incentive plan 0 0 - - 0 0 0 0
Annual bonus share-matching plan 0 0 - - 0 0 g 0

Dwvidend equivalents 46 74 - - 38 63 84 137 o

o

Worldwide Save For Shares 8 0 - - 3 0 1 0 &

S

g
| Retirement benefits > 3N 285 18 - 126 166 515 451
Defined contribution plan 0 0 0 - 18 23 18 23
Defined benefit accrual 169 87 18 - - 0 187 87
Allowances in lieu of benefits 202 198 0 - 108 143 310 N
[ Total remuneration > 1,263 1,895 276 - 597 1162 2136 3,057

See summary of remuneration policy on page 98 ©
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Part 3. Annual remuneration report continued

Notes to single figure table

Single total figure of remuneration fn accordance

with the regulations, we show a single total figure of
remuneration, which includes retirement benefits and
long-term tncentives in addttion to the otherelements of
remuneration that have been shown tn previous reports

Coram Willams and Robin Freestone Piguresrelate to
full period of employment, for Coram commencing 1 july
2015, and for Robin ending 30 September 2015 Note that
Coram became an executive director and Robin stepped
down as an executive director on 1 August 2015

Base salary In accordance with policy, the committee
considered a report from the chief executive and

chief human resources officer on generat pay trends
inthe market and the level of pay Increases across

the company as a whole For 2015, the company had
relterated its starting principles that base compensation
provides the appropriate rate of remuneration for the
job, taking into account relevant recruitment markets,

Executive directors’ annual iIncentive payments in 2015

business sectors and geographic regions and that

total remuneraton should reward both short and
long-term resuits, delivering competitive rewards for
target performance, but higher rewards for exceptional
company performance Forthe US and UK, the budget
gurdeline issued for adjustrents to base pay for 2015
was 2% Local inflation rates and market conditions were
taken into accountin particular markets

Aliowances and benefits Travel benefits comprise
company car, car allowance and private use of a driver
Health benefits compnse healthcare, health assessment
and gym subsidy Risk benefits comprise addittonal life
cover and long-term disability insurance Inaddition to
the above benefits and allowances, executive directors
may also participate in cornpany benefitor policy
arrangements that have no taxable value

Annual incentive For maore detatl, see table below Annual
incentives for the directors are funded by Pearson global
annual financial results and pay-outs take into account
individual performance against personal objectives

For 2015, annual incentives were funded by Pearson global annual financial results based on the performance
measures set out below Individual pay-outs take into account performance against personal objectives Actual
performance against the financial targets for 2015, and the respective AIP poo! funding level, were as follows

Actual Funding
Threshold Target Maximum performance in2015
Measures Weighting for2015  for2015  for201s In2015 (% oftarget) Weghtingratio
Group EPS (p) 60% 70.4 790 877 698 0%
Group sales (Em) 20% 5,046 5312 5578 5,083 0%
Operating cash flow (Em) 20% 680 765 850 435 0%
Total 100% 0% IMAGE
Target AtP Final pay-out REMOVED
Group Pro rating as%  Actuat%of n2015
Measures funding factor  ofsalary targetin2015 (000s)
John Fallon 0% 10  100% 0% £0
Coram Williams 0% 05 85% 0% £0 @ GroupEPS(p)
Robin Freestone 0% 075  85% 0% go @ Groupsales(ém)

Total £0

& Operating cashflow (Erm)

Mote 1 Although the threshold for the Group sales eferent was reached in 2015, the comnntiee has exerased ils discretionto reduce the bonus
o nildue 10 poor overall undertylng per formance

Note Z Actual parformance provided ke for like with targets, based on plan exchange rates for 2095 and constant portfofio consistentwith
prioryears

Nate 3 Pro rated due to part year employed (refates 1o full penod empl

d rather than period a5 a director)
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Long-term incentives The single figure of remuneration
for 2015 includes all long-term incentive awards that
were subject to a performance conditron where the
performance period ended, or was substantially {but

not fully) completed, at 31 December 2015, and awards
where the performance condition has been satisfled

but where the release of shares 1s subject to a further
holding period The same methodology has been applied
for the single figure of remuneration for 2014

in 2015, the performance conditions for the 2013
Long-Term Incentive Plan {LTIP) and 2013 Annual Bonus
Share-Matching Plan (ABSMP) were not met The
executive directors both held vested shares under the
2010 LTIP that were released on 5 March 2015 at the end
of the two-year holding period and these shareswere
part of tha singte figure of remuneration for 2013 as
reported in the 2012 report on directors’ remuneration
However, the dividend equivalent shares that were
awarded i1 respect of these shares and released on

S March 2015 have beenincluded in the single figure

of remuneration for 2015, as below

Long-term incentive plan vesting

Worldwide Save For Shares All share options that
become exerasable during a year are included in the
singfe figure of total remuneration for that year The
value included in the single figure of total remuneration
is the number of options multiplied by the difference
between the discounted option price and the market
value on the earliest exercise date Share options which
became exercisable in 2015 are included in the single
figure of total remuneration for 2015 based onthe share
price on August 1, 2015 0f 1,203 Op See page 111 for
details of share options vesting in the year

Date of bateof Numberof Yalue Shareprice
Olrector award release shares E£000 onrelease Notes
John Falton - S5Mar15 319 46 1,444 0p Dividend shares relating te final portion of 2010
award vesting
3Mar10 5Mar15 13,752 199 1,444 0p 25% of 2010 award pay-out subject to
conttinued employment released
16,943 245
Robin - SMar15 2,659 38 1,444 Op Dwvidend shares relating to final portton of 2010
Freestone award vesting
3Mar10 SMari15 11,460 165 1,444 Op 25% of 2010 award pay-out subject to
continued employment released
14,119 203
Total 31,062 448
Notes

Dividend equivalent shares only induded in single figure Lable The mderlying 25% of the 2010 Awsrd having been discosed In the 2012 single figure table.
Shares vested 603 March 2015 but were released on § March together with related dividend shares per RNS annoumcement.
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Part 3 Annual remuneration report contmued

Executive directors' retirement benefits and entitlements

Details of the directors’ pension entitiements and pension refated benefits during the year are as follows

Other
pension
Valueof coststothe Other
defined company  allowances Accrued
benefit over over the mlieuof Totalannua! Nermal  pensionat
the period period pension  valuein 2015 retirement 31 Dec15
Director £000 £000 £000 £000 age £000
John Fallon 169 - 202 n 62 20,5
Coram Willlams i8 - - 18 62 257
Robin Freestone - 18 108 126 62 -
Plans Nate 1 The accrued pension 2t 31 December 2015 is the deferred pension to which

John Fallon - Pearson Group Pension Plan Accrual rate of 1/30th of pensionable salary
perannum Inaddition, he received ataxable and nor-pensionable cashsuppkment.

Coram Williams - Pearson Group Penslon Plan Accrual rate of 1/60th of pensionable
salary pef annumwith continuous senace with a service gap in accordance with
earlier commitments given to him about the arrangements thatwould apply
shoutd he rejoin Pearson in the UK having moved froem Pearson to Penguin US

and subsequenty Penguin Random House,

Robln Freestone - Money Purchase 2003 seciion of the Pearson Group Pension Plan
inadditlon, he recelved ataxable and non-pensionable cash supplement

John, Ceram and Rebin's pension benefits are subject to the notienal earmings cap

Charrman and non-executive director remuneration

the memberwouid be entitled on ceasing pensionable service on 31 December 2015
For john Falion and Coram Walllams ftrelates 1o the pensian payable from the UK Plan
Robin Freestone did notaccrue defined benefits

Note 2 Value of defined benefit over the period comprises the DB Input value. fess
inflation, less indvidual contribution

Note 3 Other pension costs to the company over the pericd comprises contributions to
defined contribution asrangements for UK benefits

Note 4 Dther allowances in liew of pension represents the cash allowances paid n lieu
ofthe previous FURBS arrangements

Note 5 Total ahnwal value i the sum of the previous three coturnns.

The remuneration pard to the chairman and non-executive directors in respect of the financial years ended

31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 1s as follows

2015 2014

Salary/ Salary/
Director basic Committee Commitiee Taxable basic Committee Committee ‘Taxable
£000s fee chairmanship membership SID benefits  Total fee chairmanship membership SID benefits  Total
Glen Moreno 500 - - - 500 500 - - - - 560
David Arculus 22 7 5 - 35 68 21 14 2 105
Enzabeth
Corley 70 15 3 - 89 47 - 4 - 1 52
Vivienne Cox 70 10 25 22 132 68 7 22 A 6 124
Ken Hydon 22 9 3 - 1 68 27 B - 8 1M
Josh Lewis 70 - 1 - 12 92 68 - 8 - 9 85
Linda Lorimer 70 - 20 - 97 68 - 17 - 8 93
Harish
Ma[‘!’vinl_‘ - 70 - 5 - 20 68 - 4 - 7 79
TimScore 70 19 7 - 97 - - - - - -
Total 9564 60 78 22 39 1,163 955 55 77 2t 41 1,149

and

Nate Taxable benefits refer totravel, accommodati

Incurredwhile atiending board mastings during 2615 thatwere paid of reimbursedy the company

which are deemed by HMRC to be taxabie in the UK. The amounts n the table above inclde the grossed-up cost of UK 1ax 10 be pakd by the company on behall of the directors.
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Long-term incentives

The status of outstanding awards under the long-term incentive plan {LTIP) and the legacy annual bonus share
matching plan{ABSMP) and perfarmance against the performance conditions as at 31 December 2015 are described

in the tabie below

For each executive director, detalls of awards under the LTIP and ABSMP that were awarded, vested, released,
fapsed or held during 2015 are summarised in the adjacent table Notes to this table and the follownig table are

provided overleaf

Status of outstanding awards under the long-term incentive plan and annual bonus share matching plan in 2015

Long-term incentive plan (LTIP)

Share price % of
Date of ondate Vesting Performance Performance Pay outat Pay out at Actual award
award ofaward date  measures Weighting period threshold maximum performance vested Status
iMay 1,3370p 1May Relative TSR /6 1)an20t5 25%atmedian  100%atupper - - Qutstanding
2015 2018 to 31 Dec quartde subjectto
2017 performance
ROIC 143 2017 25%for ROIC  100% for ROIC
of 6 5% of 7 5%
EPS growth e 2017 25% for EPS 100% for EPS
compared growthof6 0% growthof 12 0%
to 2014
tMay 11020p ¥ May Relative TSR 1/6 2014t02017 30%atmedian  100%atupper - - Outstanding
2014 2017 quartile subjectto
ROIC V3 2016 30%forROIC  100% for ROIC performance
of 6 5% of 75%
EPS growth 12 2016 30% for EPS 100% for EPS
compared growthof6 0% prowthof12 0%
to 20613
1May 1i830p 1May RelativeTSR 1/3 2013102016 30%atmedian  100% atupper 17th Nil Estimatedto
2013 2016 quarble percentile lapsein2016
ROIC 13 2015 o%for ROIC  100% for ROIC 5 B% NIt willlapsen
of 8 5% of 10 5% 2016
EPS5 growth 173 2015 30% for EPS 100% for EPS -52% Nl willapseln
cormpared growthof& 0% growthof12 0% 2016
10 2012
Annual Bonus Share Matching Plan (ABSMP}
Share price % of
Date of ondate Vesting Performance Performance Pay outat Pay-out at Actual  award
award ofaward date measures Welighting period threshold maximum performance vested Status
5May 1,206 0p 15May Real 2012to 2015 50% of matching 100% of -6 9% NIl Performance
213 2016  compound award for EPS matching award condition
annual EPS growthof3 0%  for EPS growth not met Will
growth of 5 0% lapse In 2016
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Part 3 Annual remuneration report continued

Movements in directors’ interests in share awards during 2015

Number Dhndends
of shares awarded Number of
Date Vesting asat and shares as at
Plan of award date  1Jan2015 Awarded Released released  Lapsed 31DecZ0iS Status
John Fallon
LTIP 1May 1May 0 230,000 - - 230 000 Qutstanding subject to
2015 M8 performance
1May  1May 274,000 - - - 274000 Outstanding subject to
2014 207 performance
1May  1May 250,000 - ~ 250,000 0 Expected to lapse in 2016
2013 2006
3 Mar 3 Mar 13752 - 13752 3,19 - 0 Released 5 Mar 2015
2010 2013 {batancing 75% of vested
shares released In2013)
15May  15May 6,083 - - 6,083 0 Willlapse in 2016
203 2016
[Total > 543,835 230 000 13,752 3191 256,083 504,000
Coram Willlams
LTI TAug  TAug 0 129,000 - - 128,000 Outstanding subject to
2015 2018 performance
[Total 3 o 129,000 0 0 129,600
Robin Freestone
hg TMay  1May 162,000 - - - 162,000 outstanding subjectto
2014 2017 performance
{also see page 112)
tMay tMay 156,000 - - 150000 o) Expected to lapse In 2016
2013 2016 (alsosee page 112)
3Mar IMar 11,460 - 11,460 2659 - [} Released 5Mar 2015
2090 2013 {balancing 75% of vested
shares refeased ins 2013}
[Total > 323,460 e 1480 2,659 150,000 162,000

Note 1 For all awards, Pearson's reported finandal results for the refevant period
were used to measure performance and no discretion has been exercised

Note 2 Vested means where awards are no longer subjeci to performance canditions.
Released wwhere shares have beert transferced to partidpants Held means
where awards have vested but shares are held pending release on Lhe relevant
anniversary of the award date Outstandmgmeans awards that have been granted

but are still sibyect to the achievement of performance conditions, Dandends refers

0 dividend equivalent shares that have been added without performance conditions
tovested sharesunder the LTIP and released immediatety on award.

Note 3 No variations to terms and conditions of plan tnterests were made duning

the year

Note 4 TSRis measured relative to the constituents of the FTSE Wordd Medla index over
athree-year period,

HotesIn relationto the LTIP award made bn 1 May 2014 potentialvesiing s 50% of
maximumfor attainment of ROIC of 7%,

Note & For the LTIF award made on 1 May 2013 and due to veston 1 May 2016 we

have estimated the out turn of the redative TSR performance condition based on
performante as st 26 February 205 atnll Ifactuai relative TSR performanceis
different on the date of vesting, wewill set this cut m the annual remunerstion report
forzo16

Note 7 The single figure of remuntration for 2015 includes all awards that were subject
10 a perfarmance canddion where the perfarmance period ended or was substantially
(butnot fully) completed at 31 December 2015 and awards where the performance
conditiot has been satisfied but where the refease of shares is subject to a further
holding period The same methodology has been applled for earfler perods and the
single figure for earfier reporting penods has been restated where necessary

Note B The value of shares included in the single flgure of remunerationis

the number of shares multiplied by the share price on release.

Note g Coram's 2015 award was made on his appoiniment to the board on 1 August
2015 and will vest three years from this date an 1 August 2018 subject 1o the same
performante conditions and holding periods as for other executives,
Note 10 The value of the LFIP awards in 2075 for the executive directors s shown
below based on the relevant share price on the date of award afso showa:

Value for threshold

Vesting Number Facevalue performance Share price at
Director Date of award date of shares Facevalue (%ofbasesalary) (% of 2014 salary) date of award
John Fallon 1May2015  1May2018 230000  £3,075,100 394% 99% 1.3370p
Coram Willams 1Aug 2015 1 Aug 2018 129,008  £1,551,870 301% 75% 1,203 Op
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Movements in directors’ interests in share options during 2015

John Fallon and Robin Freestone also hold options under the Worldwide Save For Shares plan as follows

Number of
shares under Normal
optlion held earliest valuein2015
Date of asat Option exarcise Expiry single figure
Director grant 31 Dec 2015 price date date £
John Fallon 7 May 2010 - 805 6p 1Aug15 1reb16 7670
30 Apr 2014 1,109 811 2p 1Aug17 1feb18 0
Robin Freestone 4 May 2012 - 909 Op 1Aug15 1feb16 2,91
30 Apr2014 1,909 a1 2p 1Aug17 1Feb18 0

Note 1 The share apuon swards made In 2010tojobn Fallon mi respectof 1 930 shares
2nd 2072 1o Roban Freestone In respect of 450 shares vested and became exercisable
Inthe year and were sxercised on 3 August 2015

Note 2N toterms and condit

the year
Note 3 Acquisition of shates under the Wozfdwide Save For Shares plan is not subject
0 aperformance congition

ofshare options were made during

Payments to former directors

It1s the commuttee’s intention to disclose any payments
to past directors, including any release of share-based
awards post-departure

The number of shares retatned from the number of
shares onginaily awarded takes Into account lapses due
to performance, releases prior to ceasing to be a director
and pro-rating for service in the performance period
{where apphed)

Former directors Will Ethridge and John Makinson, who
retained the balancing 25% of their 2010 LTIP awards
{which vested in 2013)when they stepped down from
the board 1n 2013, received arelease of shares under
these awards, together with associated dividend shares,
during 2015 Details of the vested awards released in
2015 were reported in the 2012 and 2013 reportscon
directors remuneration, details of the dvidend shares
released in 2015 are Will Ethridge (3,191 shares) and John
Makinson (2,659 shares)

2013 long-term incentive awards

will Ethridge retained a long-term Incentive plan
award made on 1 May 2013, subject to perfarmance
As disclosed elsewhere in this report, this award is
expected to lapsen 2016

Robin Freestone

Robin Freestone received no payment for loss of
office when he stepped down fram the board with
effect from 1 August 2015 and left employment on
30 September 2015

Nate 4 All share oplions Lhat become exercisable during a year sreincluded i the
single figure of total remumeration for thatyear The vatue inchrded m the single figure
of total remuneration i the aumber of options multiptied by the difference between
the discounted option price and the market value on the earliest exercsse date Share
oplisns which became exercisable b 2015 are inchuded in the single figure oftotal
remuneration fa¢ 2015 based on Lhe share price on 1 August 2015011 203 Op

Note 5 Themarket price on 31 December 2075 was 736 Op per share and the range
during the year was 695.0p to 1 508 Dp

Robin held LTIP awards granted in 2013 and 2014 and,
in February 2016, the remuneration committee set out
a clear process and engaged with key shareholders

to consider whether those awards should be
preserved The remuneration committee considered
the circumstances of Robin's service and the facts
surrounding his departure, taking account of the
following factors that we normally consider whenever
adecision to treat any perscnwithinthe LTIPas a

good leaver

»the different types of leaver,

sthe circumstances at the ume the award was originally
made,

»the indwidual's performance, and

»the arcumstances in which the individual left
employment.

After careful consideration of these factors and
consultation with key shareholders, the remuneration
committee noted that.

»Robin is leaving to take up several non-executive director
appointments and so ts ceasing full-ime employment,

>normal conditions applied at date of grant for any award
under the LTIP and no award was made in 2015 {ssmifarly,
he did not receive a base salary increase in 2015),

>Robin carned out all duties expected of hum during his
period of notice and in the preceding years prior to his
leaving He gave good service to the Pearson Board for
nine years, and

»Robin did not leave to take up employment in an
executive capacity but rather as a non-executve
board member
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The remuneration committee also took into account
the effective and smooth handover of his role to
Corarn Willlams

The remuneration committee determined that Robtn
would be treated as a good leaver, so that outstanding
LTIP awards would be preserved on a time pro-rated
basis, would receve no special treatment and remain
subject to all of the applicable performance tests

Robin will therefore remain eligible to receive up ta
116,667 (78%) of the shares awarded on 1 May 2013 and
72,000(44%) of the shares awarded on 1 May 2014, bath
ofwhichwaill vest, subject to performance, In 2016 and
2017 respectively The 2013 award is expected to lapse
in 2016 due to not meeting the performance targets

Robinwill be treated as a retiree tn respect of his
outstandmg WWSFS options granted 1n 2014

Directors’ interests in shares and value of shareholdings

Marjorte Scardino

In the 2014 report, we made shareholders aware of a
payroll pracessing error during the years 2007 to 2010,
as aresult of which taxes deducted from Marjorie
Scardmno’s compensation were incorrectly allocated by
Pearson among tax authorities i the UK and the US
This resuited in her being subject to temporary double
taxation The commuittee has concluded that Pearson
would reimburse (on an after-tax basis) certain costs
incurred by Marjorie Scardino in relation to this double
taxation error As a result, a payment of £27,842 has
been made to her to conclude this matter

Payments for loss of office

There were no payments for loss of office made
to or agreed for executive directors in 2015

Directors’ interests

The share interests of the directors and their connected persons are as foliows

Toial
numberof
ordinary and
Ordinary  Conditional conditdonal
shares shares shares Current Currentvalue Guidelina Guideline
Director atd1Dec1s at31Dec1s at31Dec15 shareholding (%satary) {%salary) met
Chairman
GienMoreno 210,000 - - seaNote 8 - - -
Sidney Taurel seeNote 8 - - 50,000 - - -
Executive directors
John Fallon 293,056 0 293,056 293,056 327% 300% Yes
Coram Williams 10 0 10 5,010 8% 200% n/a
Non-executive directors
Elizabeth Corley 1,267 - - 1,267 - - -
Vivienne Cox 2,938 - - 2,938 - - -
josh Lewns 7,740 - - 7.740 - - -
Linda Lorimer 2,675 - - 2,675 - - -
Harish Manwani 2,571 - - 2,5M - - -
Tim Score 849 - - 849 - - -
Lincoln Wallen see Note 8 - - - - - -

Note 1 Conditional shares means shares which have vested but remain held subject
g g defined hoilding perlod

Note 2 The current vatue of the execuiwe direclors curvent sharehaldwigs s based
onthe dosing market value of Pearson shares of 870 50p on 1 March 2016 against
base salanes 2t 37 December 2015 The sharehoiding guldeknes do not apply to the
charman and non-executive directors,

Note 3 Ordinary shares Include both ordinary shares listed ox the Landon Stock
Exchange and Américan Deposltary Receipts (ADRs} ksted the New York Stotk
Exchange The figures include bath shares shd ADRs acquired by individuals imvesting
part of their own after tax annual benus in Pearson shares undes the.annual bonus
share matching plan.

Note 4 The farket price on 31 Decemnber 2015 was 736.0p par share and the range
duringthe year was 695 Op to 1 508.0p.

ployrnent forap

Note 5 On 24 February2016 CoramWilllams purchased 5,000 shares which are
tntluded under currentshareholdinginthe table above and shown in the chart
overleat On 2 March2016 Sidney Taurel purchased 50 000 shares which are also
shownm the table above

Naote 6 Drdinary shares do nolinclude any shares vested but held pending release
urrder & restricted share plan

Nate 7 As.a new zppointee, the guldelines are notyei appllcable in full for

Coram Willams

Note 8 Sidney Taurel and Lincoln Watlen were appointed as directors on 1 January 2016.
Glen Moreno feft Pearson on 31 December 2015 and as such we have not shown a
aurrent shareholding figure m the Lable above
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Shareholding guidehnes

Executive directors are expected tobuildupa
substantial shareholding in the company in kne with the
policy of encouraging widespread employee ownership
and to align further the interests of executives and
shareholders With effect from 2014, target holding s
300% of salary for the chief executive and 200% of
salary for the other executive directors

Shares that count towards these guidelines include

any shares held unencumbered by the executive, theiwr
spouse and/or dependent children plus any shares
vested but held pending release under a restricted share
plan Executive directors have five years from the date
of appaintment to reach the guidefine

with effect from 2014, these guidelines were extended
to include all members of the Pearson executive at 100%
of salary

The shareholding guidetines do not apply to the
chairman and non executive directors However, a
minimum of 25% of the basic non-executive directors’
fee is pard in Pearson shares that the non-executive
directors have commutted to retain for the penod

of thewr directorships

Dilution and use of equity

We can use existing shares bought in the market,
treasury shares or newly-issued shares to satisfy
awards under the company's vanous share plans

For restricted stock awards under the long-term
incentive plan and matching share awards under the
annual bonus share matching plan, we would normally
expecttouse existing shares

There are imits on the amount of new-1ssue equity we
canuse Inany rolling ten-year period, no more than 10%
of Pearson equity will be 1ssued, or be capable of being
1ssued, under all Pearson's share plans, and no more
than 5% of Pearson equity will be 1ssued, or be capable
of being issued, under executive or discretionary plans

At 31 December 2015, stock awards to be satsfied by
new-Issué equity granted In the last ten years under afl
Pearson share pfans amounted to 1 6% of the company’s
{ssued share capital No stock awards granted in the fast
ten years under executwe or discretionary share plans
will be satisfied by new-1ssue equity

In addition, for existing shares, no more than 5% of
Pearson equity may be held in trust at any time Agatnst
this limit, shares held in trust at 31 December 2015
amounted to 0 8% of the company's Issued share capital

The headroom avallable for all Pearson plans, executive
or discretronary plans and shares held in trustis as
follows

Headroom 2015 2014 2013
All Pearson plans 84% 83% 84%
Executive or

discretionary plans S0% 50% 50%
Shares held intrust 42% 41% 39%

Executive directors’ non-executive directorships

Although the policy permits executive directors to serve
as non-executive directors elsewhere with the board’s
agreement, none of the executive directors held an
external directorship duning 2015
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Historical performance and remuneration

Total shareholder return performance

We set out helow Pearson’s total shareholder return
{TSR} performance relative to the FTSE All-Share index
on an annual basis over the seven-year pertad 2008 to
2015 This comparison has been chosen because the
FTSE All-Share represents the broad market index within
which Pearson Shares are traded T5R 1sthe measure

of the returns thata company has prowided forits
shareholders, reflecting share price movements and
assuming rernvestment of dividends (ssurce Datastream)

tn accordance with the reporting regulations, this section
also presents Pearson’s TSR performance alongside

the single figure of total remuneration for the CEQ over
the last seven years and a summary of the vanable

pay outcomas relative to the prevailing maximum

atthe time The table below sumimarises the total
remuneration for the CED over the last seven years, and
the outcomes of annual and fong-term incentive plans as
a proportion of maxmum

IMAGE REMOVED

CEQ remuneration Marjorie Scardino John Falton
Total remuneration
(stingle figure, £000s) 6370 8466 8340 5330 1727 1,895 1.263

Annual incentive —Incumbent
{9 of maximumy)

913% 921% 757% 242% 343% 505% Nil

Long-term incentive — incumbent
(% of maximumy)

800% 975% 683% 367% Nil il Nil

Annual incentive s the actual annoal incentve recenved by Lthe incumbent a5 a
percentage of maximum opportunay

Long term incentive is the pay-out of performance related resircted shares under
the jong-termmcentive planwhere the year shown f5 the final year of the performance
period for the purposes of calculating the single total figure of remuneraton.

Total remuneration John Fallon |ohn Fallon’s Lotal remuneration oppertumity is lower
than that of the prewious incumbent. Varlable pay-outs under the anawal and long-term
incentive plans reflect performance for the relevant periods



Section 4 Governance/Report on directors' remuneration 1s

Comparative information

The following informatton 1s intended to provide
additional context regarding the total remuneration
for executive directors

Relative percentage change in remuneration for CEO
The fotiowing tabte sets out the change between 2014
and 2015 in three elements of remuneration for the CEQ,
In comparison to the average for ail employees

While the committee considers the increase in base pay
for the CEO relative to the broader employee population,
benefits are driven by local practices and ehigibility 15
determined by level and indvidual cireurnstances

which do not lend themselves to comparison

Change in CEQ remuneration 2014/15

Base salary Allowances and benefits
o, 0,

© 2% Q -25%

Annual incentives Total

O -100% O -33%

Changein employee remuneration 2014/15

Base salary Allowances and benefits
0, [3)

Q +3% Q +12%

Annual incentives Total

O -38% © No change

Note 1 The figures for all employess reflect average salaries and average employee
numbers eachyear Annualincentives indude ab plans, inchiding sates incentives.

Note 2 The increase in atlowances and annualincentives for Jotin Fallon is attributatie
respectively to (a) the first fufl-year of reporting of his private irse of a driver based on
the benefit in-kind charge for the 201472015 tex year and (by the year-cn-year increase
In hus pay-out under the Pearsan annual incentive plan.

Relative importance of pay spend

The committee considers directors remuneration in the
context of the company's allocation and disbursement of
resources to different stakeholders

In particular, we chose operating profit because thists
ameasure of our abllity to reinvest in the company We
include dividends hecause these constitute an important
element of curreturn to shareholders

Change
At figures in £ milliens 2015 2014 £m %
Operating profit 723 122 1 0%
Dividends 423 397 26 7%
Total wages
and salaries 1,507 1607 -100 -6%

Note 1 Operatng profit is as set ouzt in the finargisl statemenits

Note 2Wages and saleries Include continuing operations only and include directors
201415 restated on the same basls. Average employee numbers for continuing
operations for 2015 were 37 265 (2014 38654 Furtherdetallsaresetoutin

nota S to the financial statements on page 155
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Information on changes to remuneration for 2016

Executive directors' base salarnes

We have undertaken a regular periodic review of base
salaries for 2016, taking into account general economic
and market conditions, the fevel of increases made
across the company as a whole, theremuneration of
executives in stmilar posittons in comparable companies
and indwvidual performance

As a result of this review, the 2016 base salanes for the
CEO and CFO are unchanged as follows

John Coram
£000s Fallon williams
Base salary at
31 December 2015 £780 3 £5150
Change

0% 0%

£780.3 £515.0

Base salary at 1 April 2016

Annual incentive

The key design principles undertying the company's
approach to annual Incentives for 2016 are the same
as for 2015, namely

> Full alignment of annual incentives with the globat
bustness and education strategy to reinforce a‘one
Pearson’ focus - the size of the overall annual mcentive
pay-out will continue to be linked to overall Pearson
performance

» Aclear, transparent, coherent, consistent, organisation-
wide approach to incentives and performance
management with a common incentive framework
for all business units and enabling funcuons

It 1s antiapated that the 2016 sales and cash metrics
and weightings remain unchanged from 2015
However, to align the AIP with the specific restructuning
achlevements required in 2016, as noted inthe income
staternent measure In our guidance to investors,
operating profit after the cost of restructunng

would be added to the metrics with a 30% weighting
To accommodate thischange, the weightmg for EPS
would also be 30% {down from 60% weight for 2015)

The Pearson financial targets are set each year as part
of the normal operating plan process The CEQ and
CFO have recommended the overall Pearson incentive
funding metrics (including performance measures,
targets and weightings) to the comeittee for approval
inthe normal way For 2016, the range of normal
rewarded performance is expected to bewider than
in previous years - and, in consequence, both the
threshold performance and the on-target funding

are set to be lower than in 2015

The board considers the performance targets for
2016 to be commercially sensitive Deatails of all
performance measures, weightings and targets will
be disclosed m the annual remuneration report for
2016 unless the commuttee determines that they
remain commercally sensitive

There has been no change in Individual annual ncentive
opportunities for the executive directors and the
Pearsoh executive

Annual incentive pay-outs are determined according
to a combtnation of Pearson-wide performance and
indnvidual goals The sum of the CEQ's and the Pearson
executives’ ‘on-target’ annual incentive constitutes the
incentive pool for this group which flexes up or down
based on overall Pearson performance Individual
performance Is assessed against goals set at the start
ofthe year individual pay-outs up to individual
maximum opportunities and within the totat pool are
recommended by the CEC {or by the chairman in the
case of the CEQ himself) for review and, in the case of
the executive directors, for approval by the comimittee

Special incentive and retention arrangements

The committee agreed for 2016 Incentive and retention
arrangements for selected key employees, whichwill
vest, or not, in 2017 No executive directors participate
inthese incentives
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Long-term incentives

The committee will contimue to operate the long-term
incentive plan for the executive directors and other
members of the Pearson executive in kine with the
arrangements outhned i the 2013 report on directors'
remuneration

» The weighting of the performance metncs will remain
half on earnings per share, one-third onreturnon
invested capital and ene-sixth on relative total
shareholder return However, the EPStarget s planned
to be absolute rather than a growth target, and ahigned
with our external guidance to the market in January 2016

» Performance will be tested over three years and 75% of
the vested shares will be released at that point However,
thereis a mandatory restrictton on participants’ ability
to dispose of the 75% of the vested shares (other than
to meet personal tax liabilities) for a further two years
Furthermore, participants’ rights to the release of the
rematning 25% of the vested shares are subjectto
continued employment over the same period

» Atthe time of writing, the committee has yet to approve
the 2016 long-term incentive awards and the assocated
performance targets for the executive directors and
other members of the Pearson executive Theseare
expected to be determined at the Apnl meeting prior to
the anticipated May grant. We expect to set targets for
the 2016 awards that are consistent with the company's
market guidance over the perod to 2018

Wewill set the level of individual awards consistent with
those seerinrecent years and within the policy
maxsmum taking into account.

1 The face value of individual awards at the tme of grant,
»assuming that performance targets are met in full

» Individual roles and responsibilities

»Company and individual performance

»Market practice for comparable compantes and market
assessments of total remuneration from our
independent adwvisers

Full details of Individual awards for the executive
directors and the performance targets for 2016 will be
set outin the annual remuneration report for 2016

Appointment of charrman

Our new chairman, Mr Sidney Taurel, has agreed to

lead our board for the same package that the outgoing
chairman received, that s a flat fee of £500,000 per year
Hewilf not participate in any form of Pearson incentive
arrangement He became the chairman effective
1January 2016

Chairman and non-executive directors

The fee for the chairman and fees for the non-executive
directors remain unchanged for 2016 Full detalls will be
set outin the annual remuneration report and included
in the single figure of total remuneration for 2016

However, we intend to review these fees in ine with our
remuneration policy inlate 2016 intime for our 2017
pelicy vote

The directors’ remuneration report has been
approved by the board on 4 March 2016 and signed
onits behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED

Elizabeth Corley
Chairman of the remuneration committee
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Additional disclosures

Report of the directors

Pages 70 to 123 of this document comprise the directors’
report for the year ended 31 December 2015

Otherinformation that ts required by the Companies
Act 2006 (the Act) to be included in the directors’ report,
and which is incorporated by reference, can be located
as follows

Summary disclosures index Seemore
Dividend recommiendation pll
Financial nstruments and

financial nsk management note 19
Important events since year end p37
Future development of the business p06-07
Research and development activities p53
Employment of disabled persons p62
Employee involvement p59
Greenhouse gas emissions p64

With the excepuon of the dividend waiver described
on page 122, there 15 no information to be disclosed
inaccordance with Listing Rule 9 8 4

Going concern

The directors have made an assessment of the
company’s abllity to continue as agoing concern and
consider it apprapriate to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting

Viahility statement

Asset out on page 40 the board has also reviewed the
prospects of Pearson over the three year period to
December 2018 taking account of the company’s
strategic plans, a ‘severe but plausible’ downside case
and further stress testing based cn the principal risks
setoutonpages 41-45

Based on the results of these procedures, and
considering the company's strong balance sheet
following the sale of the FT group, the directors have

a reasonable expectation that Pearson will be able to
continue in operation and meet its labilities as they fall
due over the three year penod ending December 2018
This assumes a reascnable level of ongoing access {o
capital either via1ssuing commercial paper or drawing
onour revolving credit facility (see note 18 on p178)

’

Share capital

Details of share Issues are givenin note 27 to the
accounts on page 200 The company has asingle class
of shares which 1s divided into ordinary shares of 25p
each Theordmary shares are inregistered form As at
31 December 2015, 821,068,560 ordinary shares were
inissue At the AGM held on 24 April 2015, the company
was authorised, subject to certain conditions, to acquire
up to 82,027,776 ordinary shares by market purchase
Shareholders will be asked to renew this authority at
the AGM on 29 Aprii 2016

Information provided to the company pursuant to

the Financral Conduct Authority’s Disclosure and
Transparency Rules {DTR) 1s published on a Regulatory
Information Service and on the company’s website

As at 31 December 2015, the company had been nobfied
under DTR 5 of the foliowing holders of significant voting
rights inits shares

Number  Percentage

ofvoting  asatdateof

rights  notfication

BlackRock, In¢ 42,201,515 513%
Schroders plc 42,151,560 513%

Between 31 December 2015 and 2 March 2016, being
the latest practicable date before the publication of
this report, the company did not receive any further
notfications under BTRS

Annual Generat Meeting

The notice convening the AGM, to be held at 12 noon
on Friday, 29 April 2016 at IET London, 2 Savoy Place,
London WC2R 0BL, 1s contained in a arcular to
shareholders to be dated 23 March 2016

Registered auditors

In accordance with section 489 of the Act, a
resolution proposing the reappointment of
PricewaterhouseCaapers LLP {PwC} as auditors to
the company will be proposed at the AGM, at alevel
of remuneration to be agreed by the directors
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Auditors’ independence

in hine with best practice, our refationship with PwC

ts governed by our external auditars policy, which s
reviewed and approved annually by the audit committee
The policy establishes procedures to ensure the auditors'
independence is not compromised, as well as defining
those non-audit services that PwC may or may not
provide to Pearson

These allowable services are In accordance with relevant
UK and US legislatton The audit committee appraves

all audit and non-audit services provided by Pw(C
Certan categories of allowable non-audit services have
been pre-approved by the audit committee subject to
the authoriies befow

»Pre-approved non-audit services can be authorised by
the chief finanaal officer up to £100,000 per project,
subject to a cumulative lumiut of £500,000 per anhum

» Acquisition or disposal transactions and due diligence
up to £100,000 per project may be performed by our
external auditors, in ight of the need for confidentiality
Any project/transaction generating feas in excess
of £100,000 must be specifically approved by the
audit committee

>Tax compliance and refated activities up to the greater of
£1,000,000 per annum or 50% of the external audit fee

» For forward-looking tax advisory services we use the
most appropnate adwiser, usually after a tender process
Where we decide to use our independent audnars,
authonty, up to £100,000 per project subjectto a
cumulative limit of £500,000 per annum, has been
delegated by the audit committee to management

Services provided by PwC above these fimits and al!
other aliowable non-audit services, irvespective of value,
must be approved by the audit committee Where
appropriate, serviceswill be tendered prior to a decision
being made as to whether to award work to the auditors

The audit committee receves regular reports
summanstng the amount of fees paid to the auditors
During 2015, Pearson spent considerably mare on
non-audit fees with Pw( compared to 2014, due to costs
relating to carve-out audits for businesses disposed

For 2015, non-audit fees represented 56% of external
audit fees (37% 10 2014)

For all non-audit work in 2015, PwC were selected only
after constderation that they were best able to provide
the services we required at a reasonable fee and
within the terms of our external auditors policy

To assist tn ensurning that independence and objectivity
Is maintained, for forward-looking tax advisory and due
diligence work PwC assign a different partner from the
one leading the external audit

Significant non-audit work performed by PwC during
2015 included

> Audit-related work in relation to potential and actual
corporate finance transactions

» Tax compliance services related to a routine audit by
the US fnternal Revenue Service

»Tax advisory work on a number of UK, US and
International tax matters

» Assurance services on a carporate bond ssued (n
May 2015

» Consulting services related to the establishment of an
auditable efficacy framework

» Audit of IT general controls mandated by contractual
commitments

Afull statement of the fees for auditand non-audit
services is pravided i note 4 to the accounts on
page 154

Fair, balanced and understandable reporting

As required by the Code, we have established
arrangernents to ensure that all infermation we
report to investors and regulators is fai, balanced
and understandable A process and imetable for the
production and approvat of this year's report was
agreed by the board atits meeting in December 2015
The full board then had opportunity to review and
comment on the report as it progressed

Representatives from financial reporting, corporate
affairs, company secretarial, fegal and internal audit and
comphance are involved in the preparation and review
of the annual report to ensure a cohesive and balanced
approach and, as with all of our financiat reporting, our
disclosure comimittee conducts a tharough venfication
of narrative and financial statements

The audit comrmittee is also available to advise the board
oncertaln aspects of the report, to enable the directors
to fulfil their responsibility in this regard

The directors constder that the annual reportand
accounts, taken as awhole, 1s fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the company’s position and
performance, business model and strategy
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Reportof the Directors continued

The directors also confirm that, for each director in office
atthe date of this report

»So far as the director ts aware, there s no relevant
auditinformation of which the company’s auditors
are unaware

*They have taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as directorsin order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that
the company’s auditors are aware of that information

Directors i office

The following directors were in office duning the year and
up until sigring of the financial statements

GRMoreno 5] Lewis
t d d 31D 2015,
{stepped down ecember ) LK Lorimer
Fallon
J1Falle H Manwani
RAD Freestone
{stepped down 1 August 2015) TScore
TD G Arculus § Taure!
{stepped down 24 April 2015) {appolnted 1 January 2016)
EPLCorfey Lwallen
{appointed 1 January 2016}
VCox
cwilhams
K} Hydon {appointed 1 August 2015}

(stepped down 24 April 2015)

The directors’ report has been approved by the board on
4March 2016 and signed on its behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED

Stephen Jones
Company secretary

Statement of directors’ responsibilitres

The directors are responsible for prepaning the annual
report in accordance with apphicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law

the directors have prepared the Group and parent
company financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union Under company law
the directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and the Group
and of the profit or loss of the Group for that persod

in prepanng these financiat statements, the directors
are required to

ySelect suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently

»Make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

>State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements

»Prepare the finanaal statements on a going concern
basis, unless Itis mappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company's transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the company and the Group and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements and the report on directors’
remuneration comply with the Act and, as regards

the Group financial statements, Artice 4 of the 1AS
Regulation They are also responstble for safeguarding
the assets of the company and the Group and hence for
takang reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other rregulanties

The diractors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the company'swebsite Legislationinthe
UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in
other junisdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and functions
are listed on p72-73 confirms that, to the best of
their knowledge

>The Groupfinancial statements, which have been
prepared In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, gve a true and fairview of the assets,
habilies, financial position and profit of the Group

»The strategic report contained in the annual report
includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the
Group, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that it faces

This responsibility statement has been approved by
the board on 4 March 2016 and signed onits behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED

Coram Williams
Chieffinancial officer
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Additional shareholder information

Addional information for shareholders

Set out below)s ather statutory and regulatory
infarmation that Pearson is required to disclose In
its directors' reportincompllance withDTR72 6

Amendment to articles of association

Any amendments to the articles of assoaation of the
company (the Articles) may be made in accordance with
the provisrons of the Act by way of a special resolution

Rights attaching to shares

The rights attaching to the ordinary shares are defined
inthe Articles A shareholder whose name appears on
the company's reglster of members can choose whether
his/her shares are evidenced by share certificates

{1e in certificated form) or held electronically {1 e
uncertificated form) in CREST {the electronic settlement
system tnthe UK)

Subject to any restnctions below, shareholders may
attend any general meeting of the company and,

on a show of hands, every shareholder {or his/her
representative} who Is present at a general meeting
has ona vote on each resolution, and ona poll, every
shareholder (whether an indmdual or a corporation)
present In person or by proxy shall have onevote

for every 25 pence of nominal share capital held
Aresolution put to the vote at a general mesting 15
decded on a show of hands unfess before, or onthe
declaration of the result of, a vote on a show of hands,
apollis demanded A poll can be demanded by

the chairman of the meeting, or by at least three
sharehotders (or their representatives) presentin person
and having the right to vote, or by any shareholders

{or their representatives) present in person having at
least 10% of the total voting rights of ali shareholders,
or by any shareholders (or their representatives}
present in person holding ordinary shares on which an
aggregate sum has been pald up of at least 10% of the
total sum paid up on all ordinary shares Atthisyear’s
AGM voting will again be conducted on a poll, consistent
with best practice

Shareholders can declare a final dividend by passing

an crdinary resolution but the amount of the dividend
cannot exceed the amount recommended by the board
The board can pay interim dvidends on any class of
shares of the amounts and on the dates and for the
penods they dectde In all cases the distnbutable profits
of the company must be sufficient to Jusufy the payment
of the relevant dividend

The board may, if authorised by an ordinary resolution of
the shareholders, offer any shareholder the nght to elect
to recerve new ordinary shares, which will be credited as
fully paid, instead of their cash dividend

Any drndend which has not been claimed for 12 years
after it became due for payment will be forferted and
will then belong to the company, unless the directors
decide otherwise

if the company1s wound up, the hquidator can, with
the sanction of a special resolution passed by the
shareholders, dvide among the shareholders all or
any part of the assets of the company and he/she can
value assets and determine how the division shall be
carried out as between the shareholders or different
classes of shareholders The hquidator can also, with
the same sanction, transfer the whole or any part of
the assets to trustees upon such trusts for the benefit
of the shareholders

Voting at general meetings

Any form of proxy sent by the shareholders to the
company in refatron to any general meeting must be
delivered to the company (via its registrars), whether tn
written or electromic form, not less than 48 hours before
the time appomted for holding the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the persan named In the appomtment
proposes tovote

The board may decide that a shareholder 1s not entitled
to attend or vote either personally or by proxyata
general meeting or to exercise any other right conferred
by being a shareholder if he/she or any personwith an
interest in shares has been sent a notice under section
793 of the Act {which confers upon public companies the
power to require information with respectto mterests in
their voting shares) and he/she or any interested person
failed to supply the company with the information
requested within 14 days after delivery of that notice
The board may also decide, where the relevant
shareholding comprises at least 0 25% of the nerminal
value of the issued shares of that class, that no dividend
Is payable in respect of those default shares and that no
transfer of any default shares shall be registered
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Additzonal shareholder information continued

Pearson operates an employee benefit trust to hold
shares, pending empioyees becoming entitled to them
under the company's employee share plans There were
6,704,505 shares held as at 31 December 2015 Thetrust
has anindependent trustee which has full discretionin
refation to the voting of such shares Admwidend waiver
operates on the shares held in the trust

Pearson also operates two nonnee shareholding
arrangements which hold shares on behalf of
employees There were 2,871,174 shares held in the
Sharestore account and 309,841 shares held inthe
Global Nominee account as at 31 December 2015

The benefictal owners of shares held in Sharestore
arenvited to submit voting instructions online at
www shareview co uk and Global Nominee participants
are invited to submit voting instructions by e-mal to
nominee@equiniti com If no instructions are given by
the beneficial owner by the date speafied, the trustees
holding these shares will not exercise the voting rights

Transfer of shares

The board mayrefuse to register atransfer of a
certificated share which s not fully paid, provided that
the refusal does not prevent dealings in shares in the
company from taking place on an open and proper basis
The board may also refuse to register a transfer of a
certificated share unless (1) the Instrument of transfer s
lodged, duly stamped (if stampable), at the registered
office of the company or any other place decded by the
board, and 1s accompanted by the certificate for the
share towhich it relates and such other evidence asthe
board may reasonably require to show the nght of the
transferor ta make the transfer, {1) 1t is in respect of only
one dass of shares, and (i) itis in favour of not more
than four transferees

Transfers of uncertificated shares must be carred out
using CREST and the board can refuse to register a
transfer of an uncertificated share in accordance with
the regulations governing the operation of CREST

Vanauon of rights

If at any time the capital of the company is divided into
different classes of shares, the specal rights attaching
to any class may be vanied or revoked either

{1pwith the wnitten consent of the holders of at least 75%
i nominal value of the 1ssued shares of the relevant
classor

{11y with the sanction of 2 special resolution passed at a
separate general meeting of the holders of the shares
ofthe relevant class

Without prejudice to any special rights previously
conferred on the holders of any existtng shares or class
of shares, any share may be 1ssued with such preferred,
deferred, or other special rights, or such restrictions,
whather in regard to dividend, vating, return of capital
or otherwise asthe company may from time to time by
ordinary resolution determine

Appointment and reptacement of directors

The Articles contain the following provistons in relation
to directors

Directors shall be no less than two in number

Directors may ba appointed by the company by ordinary
resolution or by the board A director appointed by the
board shal! hold office only until the next AGM and shall
then be eligible for reappointment, but shall not be taken
into account in determining the directors or the number
of diractors who are to retire by rotation at that meeting,
The board may from time to time appoint one or more
directors to hold executive office wath the company for
such period {subject to the provisions of the Act}and
upon such terms as the board may decide and may
revoke or terminate any appointment so made
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The Articies provide that, at every AGM of the company,
atleast one-third of the directors shall retire by rotation
{or, If their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to one-third} The first directors to retire by
rotation shall be those who wish to retire and not offer
themselves for re-election Any further directors so

to retire shall be those of the other directors subyect to
retirement by rotation who have been longest in office
since they were last re-elected but, as between persons
who became or were last re-elected on the same day,
those to retire shall {unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determined by lot. In addition, any
director who would not otherwise be required to retire
shall rettre by rotation at the third AGM after they were
last re-elected

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Artrcles, the board
has resofved that alt directors should offer themselves
for re-electton annually, in accordance with the Code

The company may by ordinary resolution remove any

director before the expiration of his/her term of office

In additton, the board may terminate an agreement or
arrangement with any director for the provision of his/
her services to the company

Powers of the directors

Subject to the company’s Articles, the Act and any
directions given by special resclution, the business of
the company will be managed by the board who may
exercrse all the powers of the company, tincluding
powers relating to the issue and/or buytng back of
shares by the company (subject to any statutory
restnctions or restnctions imposed by shareholders
ingeneral meeting)

Significant agreements

The following significant agreements contain provisions
entithing the counterparties to exercise termination

or ather rightsin the event of a change of cantrol of

the company

Under the $1,750,000,000 revoiving credit facility
agreement dated August 2014 which maturesinAugust
2020 between, amongst others, the company, Barclays
Bank plc {(Agent) and the banks and financial institutions
named therein as lenders (the Facility), any such bank
may, upon & change of contro! of the company, require
1ts outstanding advances, together with accrued interest
and any other amounts payable in respect of such
Facility, and its commitments, to be cancelled, each
within 60 days of notification to the banks by the Agent
For these purposes, a ‘change of control occurs fthe
company becornes a subsidiary of any other company
or one or more persons acting elther ndividually orin
concert, obtans control (as defined in section 1124 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010) of the company

Shares acquired through the company’s employee share
plans rank par passu with shares inissue and have no
special nghts For legal and practicalreasons, the rules
of these plans set out the consequences of a change of
control of the company
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Additional disclosures

Report of the directors

Pages 70 to 123 of this document comprise the directors’
report for the year ended 31 December 2015

Other information that 1s required by the Compantes
Act 2006 (the Act) to be included in the directors’ report,
and which 1s iIncorporated by reference, can be located
as follows

Ssummary disclosures index Seemore
Dividend recommendation p1
Financial nstrumentsand

financial nsk management note 19
Impartant events since year end p37
Future development of the business p06-07
Research and development activities p53
Employment of disabled persons p62
Empioyee invelvement p59
Greenhouse gas emissions p64

With the exception of the dividend wawer descnbed
on page 122, there 1s no infermation to be disclosed
in accordance with Listing Rule 98 4

Going concern

The directors have made an assessment of the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern and
consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting

Viability statement

As set out on page 40 the board has also reviewed the
prospects of Pearson over the three year period to
December 2018 taking account of the company's
strategic plans, a‘severe but plausible’ downside case
and further stress testing based on the prinaipal nisks
set out on pages 41-45

Based on the results of these procedures, and
considering the company’s strong balance sheet
following the sale of the FT group, the directors have
areasonable expectation that Pearson will be able to
continue in operation and meet its llabilities as they fall
due over the three year period ending December 2018
This assumes areasanable fevel of ongoing accessto
capital either via issutng commercial paper or drawing
onour revolving credit faciity (see note 18 on p178)

Share capital

Detalls of share 1ssties are given in note 27 to the
accounts on page 200 The company has a single class
of shares which Is divided into ordinary shares of 25p
each Theordinary shares are mregistered form Asat
31 December 2015, 821,068,560 ordinary shares were
inissue Atthe AGM held on 24 April 2015, the company
was authonsed, subject to certain conditions, to acquire
up to 82,027,776 ordinary shares by market purchase
Shareholders wif} be asked to renew this authonty at
the AGM on 29 April 2016

Information provided to the company pursuantto

the Financial Conduct Authority’s Disclosure and
Transparency Rules (DTR) 1s published on a Regulatory
Information Service and on the company's website

As at 31 December 2015, the company had been nobfied
under DTR 5 ofthe following holders of significant voting
nights 1n its shares

Number  Percentage

ofvoting  asatdate of

rghts  notification

BlackRock, Inc 42,201,515 513%
Schroders pic 42,151,560 S13%

Between 31 December 2015 and 2 March 2016, being
the latest practicable date before the publication of
this report, the company did not receive any further
notificatrons under DTR 5

Annual General Meeting

The notice convening the AGM, to be held at 12 noon
on Friday, 29 Aprit 2016 at [ET London, 2 Savoy Place,
London WC2R 0BL, Is contained 1n a aircular to
shareholders to be dated 23 March 2016

Registered audrtors

In accordance with section 483 of the Act, a
resalution proposing the reappointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC} as auditorsto
the comnpany will be proposed at the AGM, at a level
of remuneration to be agreed by the directors
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Auditors’ independence

Iniinewith best practice, our refationship wath PwC

1s governed by our external audntors policy, which1s
reviewed and approved annuaily by the audit committee
The policy establishes procedures to ensure the auditors
independence s not compromised, as well as defining
those non-audit services that PwC may or may not
provide to Pearson

;

These allowable services are in accordance with relevant
UK and US legislation The audit committee approves

all audit and non-audit services provided by PwC

Certain categortes of allowable non-audit services have
been pre-approved by the audit committee subject to
the authonties below

»Pre-approved non-audit services can be authornised by
the chieffinancial officer up to £100,000 per project,
subject to a cumulative limit of £500,000 per annum

»Acquisition or disposal transactions and due diligence
up to £100,000 per project may be performed by our
external auditors, in light of the need for confidennality
Any project/transaction generating fees in excess
of £100,000 must be speaifically approved by the
auditcommuittee

>Tax compliance and related actvities up to the greater of
£1,000,000 per annum or 50% of the external audit fee

> For forward-looking tax advisory services we use the
most appropriate adviser, usually after a tender process
Where we decide to use our independent auditors,
authonty, up to £100,000 per project subjecttoa
cumulatve imit of £500,000 per annum, has been
delegated by the audit committee to management

Services provided by PwC above these imits and all
other allowable non-audit services, urespective of value,
must be approved by the audit committee Where
appropriate, services will be tendered prior to a decision
being made as to whether to award work to the auditors

The audit committee receves regular reports
summarising the amount of fees pad to the auditors
During 2015, Pearson spent considerably more on
non-auditfees with PwC compared to 2014, due to costs
relating to carve-out audits for businesses disposed

For 2015, non-audit fees represented 56% of external
audit fees (37%1n 2014)

For alf non-audit work in 2015, PWC were selected only
after consideration that they were best able to provide
the services we required at a reasonable fee and
within the terms of our external auditors policy

To assist in ensuning that independence and objectivity
1s mamntained, for forward-looking tax advisory and due
diligence work PwC assign a different partner from the
oneleading the external audit

significant non-audit work performed by PwC during
2015 included

> Audit-related warkn relation to potential and actual
corporate finance transactions

>Tax compliance services related to aroutine audit by
the US Internal Revenue Service

»>Tax advisory work on a number of UK, US and
International tax matters

> Assurance services an a corporate bondissued in
May 2015

»Consulting services refated to the establishment of an
auditable efficacy framework

»Audit of IT general controls mandated by contractual
commitments

Afull statement of the fees for audit and non-audit
services Is provided in note 4 to the accounts on
page 154

Fatr, balanced and understandable reporting

As required by the Code, we have established
arrangements to ensure that all information we
report to investors and regulators is fair, balanced
and understandable A process and timetable for the
production and approval of this year's report was
agreed by the board at 1ts meeting in December 2015
The full board then had opportunity to review and
comment on the report as it progressed

Reprasentatives from financial reporting, corporate
affairs, company secretarial, legal andinternal audit and
comptliance are involved in the preparation and review
ofthe annual report to ensure a cohesive and batanced
approach and, as with all of our financial reporting, our
disctosure commuttee conducts a thorough venfication
of narrative and financial statements

The audit committee is also available to advise the board
on certain aspects of the report, to enable the directors
to fulfil their responsibility ir this regard

The directors consider that the annual report and
accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders to assess the company’s position and
performance, business model and strategy
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Repor t of the Directors contimued

The directors also confirm that, for each director in office
atthe date of this report

»So far as the director 1 aware, there 1s no refevant
audit information of which the company’s auditors
are unaware

»They have taken all the steps that they ought to have
taken as directors in order to make themselves aware
of any relevant auditinformation and to estabiish that
the company’s auditors are aware of that information

Directorsin office

The following directars were i office during the year and
upuntitsigning of the financral statements

G RMoreno S)Lewls
t dd 2

(steppeddown31 December 2015} | |

[
JiFallon H Manwani
R A D Freestone T
{stepped down 1 August 2015) Score
TDGArculus § Taure!
{stepped down 24 Aprll 2015) {appointed 1 January 2016)
EPLCorle LWallen

Cortey {appointed 1 January 2016}
VCox

Cwilliams

KJHydon {appointed 1 August 2015)

(stepped down 24 April 2015)

The directors’ report has been approved by the board on
4 March 2016 and signed on its behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED
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Statement of directors’ resporisibiitie

Stephenjones
Company secretary

The directors are responsible foWg the annual
reportin accordance with applicab and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law

the directors have prepared the Group and parent
company financial statements in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union Under company law
the directors must not approve the financal statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and the Group
and of the profitor loss of the Group for that period

in prepanng these financial statements, the directors
are required to

»Select surtable accounting poficies and then apply
them consistently

»Make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

»State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the
European Unton have been followed, subject toany
material departures disclosed and explaned in the
financral statements

»Prepare the financial statements on a going concern
basis, unless Itis inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company’s transactions and disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial positon of
the company and the Group and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements and the report on directors’
remuneration complywith the Actand, as regards

the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and the Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other Irregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the company’s website Legisiation in the
UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legistationin
other jurisdicbons

Each of the directors, whose names and functions
are listet on p72-73 confirms that, to the best of
their knowledge

»The Group financial statements, which have been
preparedin accordance with IFRSs as adopted bythe
European Union, give a true and fair iew of the assets,
llabthues, financial position and profit of the Group

> The strategic report contained in the annual report
includes a falr review of the development and
perfarmance of the business and the position of the
Group, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that it faces

This responsibility statement has been approved by
the board on 4 March 2016 and signed on its behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED

Coram Willlams
Chief finandal officer

=
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Additional shareholder information

Addittonal information for shareholders

Set out below I1s other statutory and regulatory
information that Pearsonis required to disclose in
its directors' reportin compliance with DTR7 2 6

Amendment to articles of association

Any amendments to the articles of assoclation of the
company (the Articles) may be made i accordance with
the prowisions of the Act by way of a special resolution

Rights attaching to shares

The rights attaching to the ordinary shares are defined
inthe Articles A shareholder whose name appearson
the cormpany's register of members can choose whether
hisfher shares are evidenced by share certificates

{1 e incertificated form) or held electronically (1 e
uncertificated form)in CREST (the electronic settlement
system in the UK)

Subject to any restrictions below, shareholders may
attend any general meeting of the company and,

on a show of hands, every shareholder (or us/her
representative} who is present at a general meeting
has onevote on each resolution, and on a poll, every
shareholder (whether an individual or a corparation)
present in person or by proxy shall have one vote

for every 25 pence of nominal share capita! held
Aresolution put to the vote at a general meeting 15
deaded on ashow of hands unless before, or on the
declaration of the result of, avote on a show of hands,
apollis demanded A poli can be demanded by

the chairman of the meeting, or by at least three
shareholders (or their representatives) present in person
and having the night to vote, or by any shareholders
{or their representatives) present in person having at
least 10% of the total voting nights of al} shareholders,
or by any sharehelders {or their representatsves)
presentin person holding ordinary shares on which an
aggregate sum has been paid up of atfeast 10% of the
total sum paid up on all ordinary shares Atthisyear's
AGM voting will again be conducted on a poll, consistent
with best practice

Shareholders can declare a final dvidend by passing

an ordinary resolution but the amount of the dividend
cannot exceed the amount recommended by the board
The board can pay intenm dividends on any class of
shares of the amounts and on the dates and for the
peniods they decide In all cases the distnbutable profits
of the company must be sufficent tojustify the payment
of the refevant dividend

The board may, if authorised by an ordinary resolution of
the shareholders, offer any shareholder the nght to elect
toreceive new ordinary shares, whichwill be credited as
fully paid, instead of thetr cash dividend

Any dividend which has not been claimed for 12 years
after it became due for payment will be forferted and
will then belong to the company, unless the directors
decide otherwise

{f the company 1swound up, the hquidator can, with
the sanction of a special resofution passed by the
shareholders, divide among the shareholders all or
any part of the assets of the company and he/she can
value assets and determine how the division shall be
carried out as between the shareholders or different
classes of shareholders The liquidator can also, with
the same sanction, transfer the whole or any part of
the assets to trustees upon such trusts for the benefit
ofthe sharehoiders

Voting at general meetings

Any form of proxy sent by the shareholders to the
company in relation to any general meeting must be
delivered to the company {via Its registrars), whether in
written or electromic form, not less than 48 hours before
the tme appomted for holding the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the person named in the appointment
proposes {ovote

The board may decide that a sharehoider is not entitled
to attend or vote either personally or by proxy at a
generat meeting or to exercise any other nght conferred
by being a shareholder if he/she or any person with an
interestin shares has been sent a notice under section
793 of the Act (which confers upon public companies the
pawer to require information with respect to interestsin
theirvoang shares) and he/she or any interested person
failed to supply the company with the information
requested within 14 days after delivery of that notice
The board may also decide, where the relevant
shareholding compnses atfeast ¢ 25% of the nominal
value of the 1ssued shares of that class, that no dividend
1s payable in respect of those default shares and that no
transfer of any default shares shall be registered
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Additional shareholder information continued

Pearson operates an employee benefit trust to hold
shares, pending employees becoming entitled to them
under the company’s employee share plans Therewere
6,704,505 shares held as at 31 December 2015 The trust
has an tndependent trustee which has full discretion in
relation to the voting of such shares A dividend wasver
operates on the shares held in the trust

Pearson also operates two nominee shareholding
arrangements which hold shares on behalf of
employees There were 2,871,174 shares held inthe
Sharestore accouint and 309,841 shares held in the
Global Nominee account as at 31 December 2015

The beneficial owners of shares held in Sharestore

are invited to submit voting instructions online at
www shareview co uk and Global Nominee participants
are invited to submit voting instructions by e-mail to
nomines@aquiniti cam If noinstructions are given by
the beneficial owner by the date specified, the trustees
holding these shares will not exerclse the voting nghts

Transfer of shares

The board may refuse to register a transfer of a
certificated share whichis not fully paid, provided that
the refusal does not prevent dealings in shares in the
company from taking place on an open and proper basts
The board may also refuse toregister a transfer of a
certificated share unless (1) the instrument of transfer is
lodged, duly stamped (if stampable), at the registered
office of the company or any other place decided by the
board, and 15 accompanied by the certificate for the
share towhich it relates and such other evidence as the
board may reasonably require to show the nghtofthe
transferor to make the transfer; {n) 1t is in respect of only
one dass of shares, and (in) it is in favour of not more
than four transferees

Transfers of uncertificated shares must be carmed out
using CREST and the board can refuse to register a
transfer of an uncertificated share in accordance with
the regulations governing the operation of CREST

Vanation of nghts

tf at any tme the capital of the company 1s divided nto
different classes of shares, the special rights attaching
to any class may be vared or revoked either

(1) with the written consent of the holders of at least 75%
1n norminal vatue of the 1ssued shares of the relevant
classor

{ywith the sanction of a special resolution passed at a
separate general meetng of the holders of the shares

of the relevant class

withaut prejudice to any spectal nights previously
conferred on the holders of any existing shares or class
of shares, any share may be ssued with such preferred,
deferred, or other special nghts, or such restrictions,
whether in regard to dividend, veting, return of capital
or otherwise as the company may from time to time by
ordinary resolution determine

Appointment and replacement of directors

The Articles cantain the following provisions in relation
to directors

Directors shall be no less than two in number

Directors may be appointed by the company by ordinary
resolution or by the board A director appointed hy the
board shall hold office only until the next AGM and shall
then be eligible for reappointment, but shatt not be taken
into account in determining the directors or the number
of directors who are to retire by rotation at that meeting
The board may from time to tme appoint one or more
directors to hold executive office with the company for
such period {subject ta the provisions of the Act) and
upon such terms as the board may decide and may
revoke or terminate any appotntment so made
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The Articles provide that, at every AGM of the company,
atleast one-third of the directors shafl retire by rotation
{or, 1If their number I1s not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to one-third) The first directors to retire by
rotation shall be those whowish to retire and not offer
themselves for re-election Any further directors so
toretire shall be those of the other directors subject to
retirement by rotation who have been longest in office
since they were last re-elected but, as between persons
who became or were last re-elected on the same day,
those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determuned by lot. Inadditton, any
director who would not otherwise be required to retire
shall rettre by rotatlon at the third AGM after they were
last re-elected

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Articles, the board
has resolved that all directors should offer themselves
far re-election annuatly, in accordance with the Code

The company may by ordinary resclution remove any
director before the expiration of his/her term of office
In additton, the board may terrminate an agreement or
arrangementwith any director for the provision of tus/
her services to the company

Powers of the directors

Subject to the cornpany’s Articles, the Act and any
directions given by special resolution, the business of
the company will be managed by the board who may
exercise ali the powers of the company, including
powers relating to the issue and/or buying back of
shares by the company (subject to any statutory
restnctions or restrictions imposed by shareholders
in general meeting)

Significant agreements

The following significant agreements contain provisions
entithing the counterparties to exercise termmation

or other nghts in the event of a change of control of

the company

under the $1,750,000,000 revolving credit facility
agreement dated August 2014 which matures in August
2020 between, amongst others, the company, Barclays
8ank plc (Agent) and the banks and financiaf institutions
named therein as lenders (the Facihity), any such bank
may, upon a change of control of the company, require
its outstanding advances, together with accrued interest
and any other amounts payable i respect of such
Faciiity, and its commitments, to becancelled, each
within 60 days of notification to the banks by the Agent
For these purposes, a ‘change of control’ occurs If the
company becomes a subsidary of any other company
orone or more persons acting either individually orin
concert, obtans contro! (as definedin section 1124 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010) of the company

Shares acquired through the company's employee share
plans rank pan passu with sharesinissue and have no
special nights For legal and practical reasons, the rules
of these plans set out the consequences of a change of
contro! of the company
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Independent auditors’ report to the members

of Pearson plc

Report on the financial statements

Our opinicn
in our opiion

>Pearson plc's consolidated financial statements and
company financial statements (the ‘financal
statements’) give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's and of the company’s affairs as at 31 December
2015 and of the Group's profit and the Group's and the
company’s cash flows for the year then ended,

3The consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union,

3The company financial statements have been property
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the
prowisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

»The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the consohdated financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Separate opinion In relation to IFRSs as sssued by
the 1ASE

As explained in note 1 to the financial statements, the
Group, in addition to applying IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, has also applied IFRSs as 1ssued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

Our audit approach Overview

In our opinion, the consohdated financial statements
comply with {FRSs as1ssued by the IASB

What we have audited
The financtal statements, included within the annual
report and accounts {the ‘annual report’), comprise

3 The consolidated and company balance sheets as at
31 December 2015,

»The consalidated ncome statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended,

»The consolidated and company cash flow statements
and staterents of changes 1n equity for the year then
ended, and

3 The notes to the financtal statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies and ather
explanatory information

Certain required disclosures have been presented
alsewhere in the annual report, rather thanin the
notes to the financial statements These are cross-
referenced from the financial statements and are
identified as audited

The financiat reporting framework that has been
apphied in the preparation of the financral statements
s applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and, as regards the company
financial statements, as applied in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

IMAGE REMOVED

»Overall Group matenality £27m, which represents 4% of
adjusted profit before tax as disclosed innote 8 to the financal
statements Refer to page 130 for further details

sWe conducted work in five key territorles US, UK, Brazd, China
and South Africa In addition we obtained an audrt opsnion on
the financial Information reported by the associate Penguin
Random House (PRH)

»The terntories where we conducted audst procedures,
together with work performed at corporate functions, shared
service centres and consolidated Group level, accounted for
approximately 68% of the Group's revenue, 104% of the
Group's loss profit before tax, and 76% of the Group's adjusted
profit before tax

*We focused on
— Revenue recognition including risk of fraud
~ Carrying value of goodwill and mtangible assets |
— Major transactions
~ Proviston for uncartain tax llabilities
— Returns provisions
— Recoverahility of pre-publication assets
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The scope of our audit and our areas of focus

We conducted our audtt in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
{ISAs {UK & Ireland))

We designed our audit by determining materiality and
assessing the risks of material misstatementin the
consohdated and company financia statements [n
particular, we looked at where management made
subyjective judgements, for example in respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptions and considenng future events that are
inherently uncertain As in all of our audits we also
addressed the risk of management override of internal
controls, Including evaluating whether there was
evidence of blas by management that represented

a risk of material usstatement due to fraud

Areaof focus

The risks of matenal misstatement that had the
greatest effect on our audit, including the allacation

of our resources and effort, areidentifled as areas

of focus inthe table below We have also set out how
we tadlored our audit to address these specific areas

In order to provide an opinion on the consolidated

and company financial statements as awhole Any
comments we make on the results of our procedures
should be read in this context Foreach area of focus
below, to the extent relevant, we evaluated the design
and tested the operating effectiveness of key internal
controls over financial reporang set in place by
management, including testing the operation of IT
systems fromwhich financial information s generated
Each of the areas of focus betow are also referred to 1n
the audit committee report on pages 86 and 87 and in
the accounting policies on pages 140 and 147 This1s not
a complete list of all nisks identified by our audit

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Revenue recognition Including risk of fraud

Refer to note 1 to the consolldated financlal statements

There are two types of complex contracts that require significant

Judgements and estimates which could be subject to elther

accidental errors or deliberate fraud

» Muitiple elemnent arrangements, such as #he sale of physical
textbooks accompanied by digital content or supplermentary
workbooks, where revenue s recognised for each elementas
if twere an indrndual contractual arrangement requiring the
estimation of its refative fair value, and

¥ Certain long-term contracts that span year end, where revenue
is recogrised using estimated percentage of completion based
oncosts These indude contracts to design, develop and deliver
testing and accreditation and contracts to secure students and
support the online defivery of thelr teachlng.

These complex contracls generate material deferred revenue and

accrued income balances and are areas where misstatements in

the underlying assumptions or estimatian calculations could have

amatenal effect onthe flnanclal statements

In additlon there are materlal shipments towards the period end

from major distribution focations grving rise to the potential risk of

acut-off error

Where books are sold together with workbooks delivered later or
companicn digital matenials available enline we assessed the basis
for allocation of the purchase price between each elementand then
tested the detalted calcufations supporting these reventre deferrals
we found the revenue deferrals to be based on reasonable estimates
of the relative fair value of each element and the methods used to
calculate the deferrals properly calculated and consistently apphed
For a selection of the larger, more judgemental and more recent
iong term contracts, cavering both testing activities and online
delivery of teaching, we read the contracts and assessed the
accounting methodologies being applied to calculate the proportion
of revenue being recognised We also tested costs Incurred to date
and management's estimates of forecast costs and revenues by
reference to historical experience and current contract status,
induding examining correspondence where contracts are
experiendng disputes,

Our testing showed that revenue recognition practices aren
aceardance with Group policies and related accounting standards
with appropriate methods for calculating the revenue recognised
See our work performed over the returns provisions whichincdudes
ourwork over the risk of cut-off
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson ple continued

Area of focus

How our aucht addressed the area of focus

Carrying values of goodwill and intangible assets

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group has £4 134m of goodwill and £1,030m of other intanglble
assets including software, acquired customner lists, contracts and
relatlonships, acquired trademnarks and brands and acqulred
pubfishing rights at 31 December 2015

Curing the year, the Group recogrised an £826m goodwll
impairment charge across six aggregated cash generating units
(CGUs) North America {£282m), Brazil (£269m), China {£181m) South
Africa (£48m), Other Growth (E9r), and Core {£37m) In addition
perfarmance in speclfic businesses also resulted in a £23m
Intanglbles Impairment charge The total mpairment charge from
these iterns is EB49m

The carrylng values of goodwlll and Intangible assets are dependent
on future cash flows of the underlying CGUs and there is risk that

if these cash flows do not meet management's expectations the
assets wilt be impalred This rlsk increases in pertods when the
Group's trading performance and projectlons do not meet prior
expectations, suchasin 2015

The impairthent reviews performed by management contain a
number of sigruficant judgements and estimates including CGU
Identification, operating profit forecasts, cash conversion perpetuity
growth rates and discountrates Changes In these assumptions
canresult in materally differentimpairment charges or available
headroom

We obtained management’s goodwill impalrment model and tested
and agreed the reascnabieness of key assumptions including CGU
identfication, operating profit forecasts, perpetuity growth rates
and discount rates We tested the mathematlcal integrity of the
forecasts and carrying values in management's impalrment

model and confirmed that management’s estimate of each CGU's
recaverable amount Is appropriately based on the higher of fair
value less cost of disposal and vatue In use

We agreed the forecast cash flows to board-approved budgets

and market communications, assessed how these budgets are
compiled and understood keyjudgements and estimates within
them, including shart term growth rates, cost allocations andthe
Incluslon of restructuring costs and benefits in a falr value less cost
of disposal model

We compared shart and leng-term grawthrates intiuding cash
conversation, to historical trends and expectations Wealso
considered the accuracy of prior perlod forecasts

We used valuatlons specialists 1o assess the perpetuity growth

rate and discount rate for each CGU by comparisonto thisd party
infarematfon, past performance, the Group's cost of capital and
refevant risk factors

We performed our own sensitivity analyses to understanc the
impact of reasonable changesn the key assumptions We agree with
management's decision to provide additlonal disclosures in note 11
of the financial statements given that reasonably possible changes
inthe assumptlons could materlally fmpact the impairment charges
or available headroom

We checked for additfonal impatrment triggers by reading board
minutes, holding regular discussions with Group and local
management, and examIning the performance of recently acquired
businesses to identlfy underperforming operations We did not
identify any further Impalrments.

As a result of our work we determined that the impairment charge
recognised n 2015 was reasonably calculated and recorded at
matenally appropnate exchange rates For those CGUs where
management determined that no Impairment charge was required
and that no additional sensitivity disclosures should be given, we
consider these judgements to be well supported by reasonable
assumptions that would require significant downside thanges
before an mpairment charge was necessary

Major transactions

Refer to note 31 to the consalidated financial statements

injuly 2015 Pearson completed the sale of PowerSchool to Vista
Equity Partners for cash consideration of £222m, resultingin anet
pre-tax Impact of £30m within contlnulng operations {after related
write downs of £70m)

InOctober 2015 Pearson completed the first tranche of the sale

of its 50% stake in The Econonust Group to Exor S p.A. and to

The Economist Groupitself for cash consideration of £377m and
remeasurement of the retalned 11% imvestment of £92m, resulting
ina pre tax gain on disposal of £473m presented in discontinued
aperations The Group s remaining 11% nvestment does not
constitute significant influence so1s being held as an avatlable for
sale investment at fair value untll the second tranche completes

n Novemnber 2015 Pearson completed the sale of the Financial Times
Group {FT) to Nikkel tn¢ for cash consideration of £858m, resulting
Inapre tax gain on disposal of £711m presented in discontinied
operatlons

These amounts are highly matenial and include judgementsin areas
such as the write downs related to PowerSchool and the retalned
Investment in The Economist Group

We obtained the sales documents and related contracts and agreed
the elements of the gain calculations to them

We agreed the cash consideratlon to bank statements, any retalned
Investment or assets to the contracts and verified the underlying
carrying value before disposai to financial records We agreed the
remeasuremnent ofthe retained Investment of the Economist to

falr value implied by the contract We reperformed the calcvlations
for mathernatical accuracy considered the appropriateness of

the disposal costs and related write downs and vouched them

to supporting evidence We assessed the presentation of each
disposed business (as continulng or discontinued) by reference to
its size and nature We also considered the related tax judgements
and recoverability of linked pre publication assets

No material misstazements were identified by our testing Wewere
satisiTed that the presentatton of each gain, and the related write
downs, was supportable and we found that appropriate disclosures
were Included In the annualreport
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Area of focus

How our audit addressed the areaoffocus

Pravision for uncertain tax liabilities

Refer to notes 7 and 13 to the consohdated finandial staternents
The Group Is subject to several tax regimes due to the geographlcal
diversity of [ts buslnessas

Management is required to exerase significant judgement in
determining the appropriate amouni to provide inrespect of
potential tax exposures and uncertaln tax provisiens. The most
significant of these relate to US tax

Changes In assumptions about the views that might be taken by tax
authoritles can materlally impact the levet of provislons recorded
in the financla! statements and there are significant judgements In
estimating the amount of any provislon required

We engaged with our tax experisand obtained 2n understanding of
the Group s tax strategy to identify tax risks relating 1o business and
legislative developments To assess the adequacy of the Group's tax
provisions we first recaleulated the valuation of tax provisions and
determined whether the treatments adopted were In line with the
Group's tax policies and had been applied consistently

We then evaluated the key underfying assumptions, particutarly in
the US and In territaries with new cross border tax structures in
doing this we considered the status of recent and current tax
authority audits and enquiries, the outturn of previous claims
[udgernental positions taken In tax returns and current year
esumates Induding those ansing from significant disposals, and
developments in the tax environment We a'so evaluated the
consistency of management's approach to establishing or changing
provision estimates

We were satisfied that management’s provislon estimates for
uncertain tax positions were ¢onsistent with our own assessment
of the related rlsks and correspondence with the relevant tax
authorltles

Returns provisions

Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements

There are matenal judgemental provisions for antictpated book
returns on the balance sheet as a131 December 2015, particutarlyin
US Higher Education

As the Group transitlons from print to digital the returns profile will
change with a corresponding impact on returns provisions

we performed testing over returns provisions Ina number of
locations, including US Higher Education

We tested the calculation of the provisions assessing Judgements
for reasonableness agalnst historical experlence and the impact

an returns of the ongoing business transition from print to digital
We 2iso performed detailed testing of shipment and retums
provisioning This included checking cut off atyear end and
evaluating whether any changes in shippingvolumes around year
end might mcrease the nsk of returns No misstatements were
dentified

We evaluated changes in estirnates to check they were notindicators
of rnanagement blas We found the estimates used by management
in the determination of the returns provisions to appropriately
reflect both past experience and changes inthe business

Recoverability of pre-publicatton assets

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated finandial staternents

The Group has £841m of pre publication assets at 31 December
2015 Pre-publication assets represent direct costs incurredinthe
development of education platforms, programmes and titles prior to
therr public release

The PowerSchool disposal caused management to assess the
carrying value of a serfes of pre-publication and platform
mnvestments and consequently record awrite down of £70m.
Judgement Is required to assess the recoverability of the carrylng
vahue of these assets, this Is further camplicated by the transition to
digital as the Group invests in new less proven, inter-inked digital
contentand platforms

we first assessed the approprlateness of capitalisatfon policies and
then setected a sample of costs deferred to the balance sheet as
pre publication assets to test their magnitude and appropriateness
for capitalisation

We then assessed the amor tisation profites of pre-publication
assets agalnst cash flows to test that the existing amorusation
profiles remained appropriate in ight of the transition towards
digital products

We challenged the carrying value of certaln pre publication assets
where prociucts are yet to be launched are less proven, orwhere
sales are lower than originally anticipated We assessed forecast
cash flows against historlcal experience and abtalned supporting
evidence for management's explanations We compared shortand
lorg term growth rates to historical trends and expectations

We chaflenged the llfe of the assets compared to similar Pearson
products and found the Group s policies to be appropnate and
consistently applied While the carrying value of some assets
depends an considerable future sales growth, overallwe considered
the year end carrying values to be reasonable
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson ple conunued

How we tailored our audit scope

We tallored our audit scope to ensure that we
performed enough work to be able to give anopinien
on the financial statements as a whole, taking into
account the geographic structure of the Group, the
accounting processes and controls, and the industry
inwhich the Group operates

The Group 1s organised Into three reportable segments,
being North America, Core and Growth, plus the
associate Investment in assoclate Penguin Random
House Eachsegmentcomprises anumber of

reporting units The consohdated financial statements
comprise these reporting units plus the Group's
centralised functions

In establishing the overall agproach to the Group audit,
we determined the type of work that needed to be
performed at the reporting units by us, as the Group
engagement team, or compenent auditors within PwC
UK and from other PwC network firms operating under
our instruction Where the work was performed by
component auditors, we determined the level of
involvement we needed to have in the audit work at
those reporting units to be able to conclude whether
sufficent appropriate audit evidence had been
obtained as a basis for our opinion on the cansolidated
financial statements as a whole

During the year members of the Group engagement
team visited each of the US, Brazihan, Chinese and
South African component audit teams, heid a planning
meeting attended by partners from the Group
engagement team and our UK and US component
teams, and had regular dialogue with component
teams throughout the year

We identified two reporting urnits:n the US and UK

that required an audit of their complete financial
information due to their financial significance, pius a
further 13 reporting units inthe US, UK, Brazil, China
and South Africa that required either an auditor
specified procedures on certain transactions and
balances We also obtained an audit opinion fram Pw(
Germany on the financial infermation of the associate
Penguin Random House The Group consolidation,
financiat statement disclosures and corporate functions
were audited by the Group engagement team This
included our work over derwvative financial instruments,
hedge accounting, goodwill and intangible assets
tmpairment reviews, htigation, pensions and share-
based payments

The reporting units where we performed audit work,
together withwork performed at corporate functions,
shared service centres and consolidated Group level,
accounted for approximately 68% of the Group's
revenue, 104% of the Group's loss before tax and 76%
of the Group's adjusted profit before tax This provided
the evidence we needed for our opinien on the
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole

Matenality The scope of our audit was influenced by our
apphcation of matenality We set certain quantitative
thresholds for matenality These, together with
qualrtative constderations, helped us to determine the
scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent

of our audit procedures on the individual financial
statement hine items and disclosures and in evaluating
the effact of misstaternents, both individually and on
the financial staternents as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined
materiality for the financial statements as a whole
as follows

OveraliGroup £27m {2014 26m)
materiality

Howwe 4% of adjusted profit before tax of £677m
determined 1t

Rationale for  Note 8 of the financlal statements explains

benchmark that the Group's principal measure of

apphed performance is adjusted operating profit
{£723m), which excludes one-off gains
and losses and acquired Intangible asset
amartisation, in order to present results from
operating actrvities on a consistent basis
From adjusted operating profitwe deducted
net finance costs of £46m (see note 8)
because these mainly reflectrecurrning
finance charges To the resulting adjusted
profit before tax we then apphed 4%
{rather than the usual 5%)as our materiality
calculation was based on an adjusted
measure

Component For each component in our audit scope, we

materiality allocated a materiality that Is less than our
overall Group materiallty The range of
materlahty allocated across components was
between £3m and £24m
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We agreed with the audit committee that we would
raport to them misstatements idenufied during our
auditabove £2m (2014 £2m) as well as misstatements
below that amount that, In our view, warranted
reporting for quahtative reasons

Golng concern Under the Listing Rules we are required
to review the directors’ statement, set out on page 118,
in relation to going concern We have nothing to report
hawing performed our review

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report

to you If we have anything material to add or to draw
attention to In relation to the directors’ statement
about whether they considered it appropriate to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements We have nothing materiai to add or to
draw attention to

Other required reporting

As noted in the directors’ statement, the directors have
concluded that it s apprapriate to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements
The golng concern basis presumes that the Group
and company have adequate resources to reman i
operation, and that the directors intend them to do
so, for at least one year from the date the finanaal
statements were signed As part of our audit we have
conciuded that the directors’ use of the going concern
bas:s is appropriate However, because not ali future
events or conditions can be predicted, these
statements are not a guarantee as to the Group's and
company's ability to continue as a going concern

Consistency of other information
Companies Act 2006 cpintons

In our opinion

s The Information given in the strategic report and the report of the directors for the financial year for which the
financiat statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements, and

3 The Information given in the Governance Report set out on pages 69 to 93 with respect to internal control and
risk management systems and about share capital structures is consistent with the financial statements

iSAs (UK & Iretand) reporting

Under I5As (UK &Ireland) we are required to report to you Iif, in our opiaion

»Information in the annual reportis

- materially thconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements,

We have no
exceptions toreport

- apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge
of the Group and company acquired in the course of performing our audit, or

- gtherwise musleading

»The explanation given by the directors on page 119, In accordance with provision C 11
of the UK Corporate Governance Code {the 'Code’), as to why the annual report does not

We have no
exceptions to report

mnclude a statement that they consider the annual report taken as a whole to be fai,
balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for members to
assess the Group's and company’s position and performance, business model and strategy
is materially mcanststentwith our knowledge of the Group and company acquired in the

course of performing our audit

»The section of the annual report on pages 82 to 87, as required by provision C 3 8 of the
Code, descnbing the work of the audit committee does not appropnately address matters

communicated by us to the audit committee

We have no
exceptions toreport
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc continued

The directors’ assessment of the prospects of the Group and of the principal nisks that would threaten

the solvency or hiquidity of the Group

Under I5As (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you if we have anything material to add or to draw attention

tomrelation to

»The directors’ confirmation on pages 40 and 118 of the annual report, in accordance with
provision C 2 1 of the Code, that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal
nsks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business model, future

performance, sotvency or iquidity

We have nothing
material to add or to
draw attention to

»The disclosures in the annual report that describe those nsks and explain how they are

being managed or mitgated

We have nothing
material to add or to
draw attentionto

» The directors' explanation on pages 40 and 118 of the annual report, in accordance with
provision € 2 2 of the Code, as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over
what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and

We have nothing
material to add or to
draw attention to

their statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be
able to continue in operatron and meet its labilities as they fall due over the peniod of their
assessment, tncluding any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary

qualfications or assumptions

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the
directors’ statement that they have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal nsks facing the Group and
the directors’ statement tn relation to the longer-term
viability of the Group Our review was substantially less
inscope than an audit and only cansisted of making
inquiries and considering the directors’ process
supporting their statements, checking that the
statements are In aignment with the relevant
provisions of the Code, and considering whether the
statements are consistent with the knowledge acquired
by us in the course of perfarming our auchit We have
nothing to report having performed our review

Adequacy of accounting records and information
and explanations recesved

tUnder the Companies Act 2006 we are required to
report toyou if, In our apinion

>We have not received all the information and
explanations we require for our audst, or

> Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been receved from branches not visited by us, or

»The company financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report to be audited are notIn
agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions ta repart ansing from this
responsibility

Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration report - Companies Act 2006
cpinion In our opinion, the part of the directors’
remuneration report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting Under the
Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you
if, in aur opinior, certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by iaw are not made We have
no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility

Corporate governance statement

Unider the Companies Act 2006 we are required to
report to you if, in our opinion, a corporate gavernance
statement has not been prepared by the company

We have no exceptions to report arising fram this
respons:bility

Under the Listing Rules we are required o review the
part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating
to ten further provisions of the Code We have nothing
to report having performed our review
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Responsibilities for the financial statements
and the audit

Qur responsibilittes and those of the directors

As explatned more fully in the statement of directors’
responsibilities set out on page 120, the directors

are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view

Our responsibility1s to audit and express an opinion on
the financtal statements in accordance with applicable
law and 15As (UK & Ireland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the company's members as a body in
accardance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compantes
Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do not, in giving
these apintons, accept or assume responstbility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report1s shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing

What an audit of financral statements involves

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements
suffictent to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud ar error
This Includes an assessment of

>Whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Group’s and the company's circumstances and bave
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed,

3The reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by the directors, and

>The overall presentation of the financial statements

We primanily facus our work in these areas by assessing
the directors’ judgements against available evidence,
forming our own jJudgements, and evatuating the
disclosures in the financial statements

We test and examine information, using sampling and
other auditing technrques, to the extent we consider
necessary to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw
conclusions We obtain audit evidence through testing
the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or
acombination of hoth

in addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the Annual report to identify matenal
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements
and to identify any information that s apparently
materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent
with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of
performing the audit Ifwe become aware of any
apparentmaterial misstatements or tnconsistencies
W onmde;the fI{rjal:catmns for our report

N

tacs
Stuart Newman LIAA e

{Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

4 March 2016
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Consolidated income statement

Year ended 31 December 2015

2014
All figuresin Emillions Notes 2015 restated
Sales 2 4,468 4,540
Cost of goods sold 4 {1,981) (2,021}
Gross profit ' 2,487 2,519
Operating expenses 4 {(2,054) {2,125)
Impairment of intangible assets 11 (849) 77
Share of resuits of joint ventures and associates 12 52 31
Operating (loss)/profit (404) 348
Finance costs {100) (140)
Financeincome 71 47
(Loss)/profit before tax {433} 255
Income tax 7 81 {56)
{Loss)/profit for the year from continuing operations (352) 199
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 3 1,175 27
Profit for the year 823 470
Attributable to
Equity holders of the company 823 47
Non-controlling mterest - (1)
Earmings per share for profit from continuing and descontinued operations
attributable to equity holders of the company duning the year
(expressed in pence per share)
- basic 8 101 2p 581p
- diluted 8 101 2p 58 0p
{Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/profit from continung operations
attnbutable to equity holders of the company during the year
(expressed in pence per share)
-basic 8 {43 3)p 247p
~diluted 8 43 3)p 24 6p
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December 2015

Alifigures m £ millions Notes 2015 2014

Profit forthe year 823 470

Items that may be reclassified to the income statement

Net exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - Group (85} 150

Net exchange differences on translation of foregn operations - associates 16 25

Currency translation adjustment disposed - Group (10} 2
Attributable tax 7 5 (6}
Items that are not reclassified to the ncome statement

Remeasurement of rettrement benefit obligattons - Group 25 110 23

Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligattons - associates 8 (15}
Attributable tax 7 (24} (1)
Other comprehensive income for the year 20 174

Total comprehensive income for the year 843 644

Attributable to

Equity holders of the company 845 645

Non-controtling interest (2) (1)
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 December 2015

Alifigures in £ milhons Notes 2015 2014
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, ptant and equipment 10 320 334
Intangible assets 11 5,164 6,310
Investments In joint ventures and associates 12 1,103 118
beferred Income tax assets 13 276 295
Financial assets - derivative financial instruments 16 78 90
Retirement benefit assets 25 337 190
Other financial assets 15 143 54
Trade and other recewables 22 115 82
7,536 8,473
Current assets
Intangibie assets - pre publication 20 aM 820
Inventories 21 2n 224
Trade and other recevables 22 1,284 1,310
Financial assets - derivative financial instruments 16 32 24
Financial assets - marketable securities 14 28 16
Cash and cash equivalents {(excluding overdrafts} 17 1,703 530
4,099 2,924
Total assets 11,635 11,397
Lrabihities
Non-current liabilitres
FAinancial habtlities - borrowings 18 {2,048) {1,883)
Finanaal habilites - denvative financial instruments 16 (136) (73)
Deferred incame tax habihites 13 (560) (714)
Retirement benefit chligations 25 (139} (163}
Provisions for other habilities and charges 23 {71) (82)
Other habilities 24 (356) {(310)
(3,310} (3,225)
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As at 31 December 2015

Section 5 Flnancial statements
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Allfigures in £ millions Notes 2015 2014
Current habilities
Trade and other liabiities 24 {1,390) {1,601)
Financial habdities - borrowings 18 (282) {342)
Financial habilities - derivative financial instruments 16 (29} (M
Current income tax habilities {164) {180)
Provisians for other habilities and charges 23 (42) (53)
{1,907} (2187)
Total habihties (5.217) {5,412)
Net assets 6,418 5,985
Equrty
Share capital 27 205 205
Share premiurn 27 2,590 2,579
Treasury shares 28 (72) (75)
Translation reserve 7) 70
Retained earnings 3,698 3,200
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 6,414 5,979
Non-controlhng interest 4 6
6,418 5,985

Total equity

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors on 4 March 2016 and signed onits

behalfby

Coram Wilhams
Chief financial officer
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 December 2015

Equity attributable to equity holders of the company

Share Share Treasury Translation Retained contr:!ilf:g- Total
Allfigures in £ milans capital  premium shares reserve  earnings Total interest equity
At January 2015 205 2,579 (75} 70 3,200 5979 6 5985
Profit for the year - - - - 823 823 - 823
Other comprehensive income - - - (77 29 22 (2 20
Total comprehensive iIncome - - - {77) 922 B45 2 843
Equity-settled transactions - - - - 26 26 - 26
Tax on equity-settled transactions - - - - m 1) - (1)
Issue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes - 1 - - - 11 - 1"
Purchase of treasury shares - - (23) - - (23) - (23)
Release of treasury shares - - 26 - (26) - - -
Changes in non-controliing interest - - - - - - - -
Dwadends - - - - (423)  (423) - (423)
At 31 December 2015 205 2,590 72) (h 3698 6414 4 6418
Equsty attributable to equity hofders of the comparny Non-

All figures in £ miliions cigsatr:l prei\r}z‘t’: Triz:fg Tran;l::ig: 2:?22;: Total cor::\:::u{:s% eézltta;'
At January 2014 205 2,568 (98 (103 3128 5700 6 5706
Profit for the year - - - - 471 471 m 470
Other comprehensive income - - - 173 1 174 - 174
Total comprehenswve income - - - 173 472 645 (1} 644
Equity-settled transactions - - - - 32 32 - 32
Tax on equity-settied transactions - - - - (€3] 3 - el e (3)

{ssue of ordinary shares under

share option schemes - " - - - 1 - n
Purchase of treasury shares - - 9 - - (9) - (9
Release of treasury shares - - 32 - (32) - - -
Changes in non-controlling interest - - - - - - 2 2
Diwvidends - - - - (397) (397} 4] {398)
At 31 December 2014 205 2,579 (75) 70 3,200 5979 6 5985

The translation reserve includes exchange differences anising from the transtatien of the net investment in foreign
operations and of borrowtngs and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments Changes
m non-controling interest in 2014 relate to the disposal of a non-controlling Interestin a Chinese business
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Consolidated cash flow statement

Year ended 31 December 2015

139

All liguresin £ millions Notes 2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash generated from operations 32 518 704
Interest paid {75) (86}
Tax pad (232) (163)
Net cash generated from operating activities 214 455
Cash flows from investing activities
Acgquisition of subsidianes, net of cash acquired 30 (9) (448)
Acquisition of joint ventures and associates {11) (12)
Purchase of Investments (7) (3}
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (86) {75)
Purchase of intangible assets {161) {107)
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed 31 1,030 327
Proceeds from sale of assoctates 379 39
Proceeds from sale of Investments 13
Praceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 32 2
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 1
Proceeds from sale of iquid resources 17 12
Loans repaid byfladvanced to) related parties 7 m
Loans advanced - {2)
Investment in iquid resources (29) (22)
Interest received 24 13
Diidends receved from joint ventures and associates 162 120
Net cash received from/{used in)investing activities 1,332 {148)
Cash flows from finanang activities
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 27 11 n
Purchase of treasury shares 28 (23) 9
Proceeds from borrowings 372 404
Repayment of borrowings (300) (538)
Finance lease principal payments {1} {4)
Dividends paid to company’s shareholders 9 {423) (397)
Dwvidends paid to non-controlling interest - (U]
Net cash used in financing activities (364) (534)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents {19} (2)
Net in¢reasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,160 {229)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 511 740
17 1,671 51

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The consolidated cash flow statement includes discontinued operations {see note 3)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General iInfformation

Pearson pic {the company), its subsidiaries and
associates (together the Group) are international
businesses covering educational courseware,
assessments and services, and cansumer pubhshing
through s assoclate interest in Penguin Random
House

The company is a pubkic limsted company incorporated
and domiciled in England The address of its registered
office 1s 80 Strand, London WC2R ORL

The company has its premary histing on the London
Stock Exchange and 1s also listed on the New York
Stock Exchange

These consolidated financial statements were
approved for issue by the board of directors on
4 March 2016

1, Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied i the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements

are set out below

a Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the going concern basis and in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ([FRS)
and FRS Interpretattons Committee interpretations
asadopted by the European Union (EU}and with

those parts of the Companies Act 2006 apphcable to
companies reporting under IFRS In respect of the
accounting standards applicable to the Group there

15 no difference between EU-adopted and IASB-
adopted IFRS

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets and
habihties (sncluding derivative financial instruments)
to fair value through profit or loss

The prior year financial statements have been
restated to reflect the classificatton of FT Group
asadiscontinued operation

1 Interpretations and amendments to published
standards effective 2015 The following amendments
and interpretations were adopted in 2015

sAmendments to JAS 19 'Employee Benefits Defined
Benefit Plans - Employee Contributions’

» Amendments to IFRS 2 ‘Share based Payment
Definition of vesting conditions’

»Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations
Accounting for contingent consideratton in a business
combination and scope exempttons for joint ventures’

»Amendments to IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments
Aggregation of operating segments and reconciation
of segment assets to entity’s assets’

» Amendments to 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures
Key management personnel’

» Amendments to {FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
Short term receivables and payables’ '

The adoption of these new pronouncements from
1 January 2015 does not have a material impact on
the consohdated financial statements

2 Standards, Interpretations and amendments

to published standards that are not yet effective
The Group has not early adopted the following new
pronouncements that are not yet effective

IFRS 9 ‘Finanaial Instruments', effective for annual
reporting periods beginning an or after 1 January 2018
The new standard details the requirements for the
classification, measurement and recognition of financial
assets and liabilities The Group 1s yet to assess the full
impactof IFRS9

IFRS 15 ‘Revenug from Contracts with Customers),
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on

or after 1 January 2018 The new standard specifies

how and when an entity wili recognise revenue, and
requires more detailed disclosure Adoption of the

new standard is likely to have an impact on the Group
and management s currently assessing the impact™* o

IFRS 16".eases’, effective for annual reporting penods
beginning on or after 1 january 2019 The new standard
details the requirements for the classification,
measurement and recognition of lease arrangements
Adoption of the new standard is likely to have an impact
on the Group and management Is currently assessing
the impact

Injune 2015 the IASB issued an exposure draft
ED/2015/5 "Remeasurement on a Plan Amendment,
Curtallment or Settiement/Availability of a Refund from
a Defined Benefit Plan (Proposed Amendments to IAS
19 and IFRIC 14}’ Management are currently evaluating
these proposals and aithough the proposals have not
yet been finalised, it should be noted that the current
draft, if adopted, may restrict the Group’s ability to
recognise a pension asset In respect of pension
surpluses inits UK defined benefit pension plan
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1 Accounting policies continued

a Basis of preparation continued

Inaddition, the current draft may require certain
etements of commutted minimum funding
contributtons to be recognised as aliability an
the balance sheet

3 Cniticat accounting assumptions and judgements
The preparation of financal statements in conformity
with IFRS requires the use of certam critical accounting
assumptions It also requires management to exercise
itsjudgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies The areas requiring a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are discussed in
the relevant accounting policies under the following
headings and in the notes to the accounts where
appropriate

Consalidation Business combinations -classification
of investments

Consoldation Business combinations —determination
of fair values

Intangible assets Goodwill

Intangihle assets Pre-publication assets

Taxation

Revenue recognition

Employee benefits Pensions

b Consolidation

1 Bustness combinations The acquisition method
of accounting 1s used to account for business
combinations

The cansideration transferred for the acquisition of a
substdiary is the fair value of the assets transferred, the
liabihitses incurred and the equity interestissued by the
Group The consideration transferred includes the farr
value of any asset or hability resuiting from a contingent
consideration arrangement Acquisitron related costs
are expensed as incurred in the operating expenses line
of the Income statement

Identifiable assets and contingent assets acquired and
identifiable habilities and contingent habilibes assumed
In & business combination are measured wnitially at their
fair values at the acquisition date The determination

of farr values often requires significant judgements

and the use of estimates, and, for matertal acquisitions,
the farvalue of the acquired intangible assets 1s
determined by an independent valuer The excess of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controliing interest in the acquiree and the acquisitton

date fair value of any previous equity Interestin the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acqutred 1s recorded as goodwill

Seeniote 1e{t) for the accounting policy on goodwill
{f this is less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference 1s recognised directly in
the mcome statement

On an acquisiion-by-acquisition basss, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest Inthe acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree's net assets

Management exercises judgementin determining the
dassification of its tnvestments nits bustnesses, in line
with the following

2 Subsidiaries Substcharies are entities over which the
Group has control The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, vanable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
abifity to affect those returns through Its power over
the entity Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which controi 1s transferred to the Group They
are deconsohidated from the date that control ceases

3 Transactions with non-controlimg interests
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do

not result i lass of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, that is, as transactions with the owners In
their capacity as owners Any surplus or deficit ansing
from disposals to a non-controfling interest s recorded
inequity For purchases from a non-controlling interest,
the difference between consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of the
subsidiary ts recorded i equity

4 Jointventures and associates Joint ventures are
entities in which the Group holds aninterest on along-
term bas1s and has rights to the net assets through
contractually agreed sharing of control Assocrates are
entities over which the Group has sigmficant influence
but not the power to control the financial and operating
policies, generally accompanying ashareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting nghts Investments
tn Joint ventures and associates are accounted for by
the equity method and are imitially recogmised at the
fair value of consideration transferred

The Group's share of its joint ventures’ and assocates’
post-acquisttion prafits or losses is recogmised inthe
income staterment and its share of post-acquisition
mavements In reserves 1s recognised in reserves
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

b Consohdation continued

The Group's share of its joint ventures’ and associates’
rasults is recogrised as a component of operating profit
as these operations form part of the core publishing
bustness of the Group and are an integral part of
existting wholly-owned businesses The cumulative
post-acquisiion movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the tnvestrment When the Group's
share of fossesn a joint venture or associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the joint venture or associate,
the Group does not recognise further losses unless the
Group has incurred obligattons or made payments on
behalf of the joint venture or associate

£ Contrtbution of a subsidiary to an associate orjoint
venture The gain or loss resulting from the contribution
or sale of a subsidiary to an associate or ajoint venture
is recognised in full Where such transactions do not
involve cash consideration, significant Judgements and
estimates are used in determining the fair values of the
consideration recerved

¢ Foreign currency translation

1 Functional and presentation currency ltems induded
in the finanaial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates
{the "functional currency’) The consolidated financiat
statements are presented In sterling, which is the
company’s functional and presentation currency

2 Transactions and balances Foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of

the transactions Foreign exchange gains andiosses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and llabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred In equity as qualifying net
tnvestment hedges

3 Group companies The results and financial positton
of all Group companies that have a functionaf currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows

i} Assets and habilities are transiated at the closing rate
at the date of the balance sheet

n} Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates

) Alf resutting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity

On consolidation, exchange differences ansing from
the translation of the net investmentin foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other currency Instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken
to shareholders’ equity The Group treats specificinter-
company loan balances, which are nat mtended to be
repaid in the foreseeable future, as part of its net
investment When a foreign operation 15 sold, such
exchange differences are recogmsed inthe income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

The principal overseas currency for the Group isthe
US dollar The average rate for the year against sterling
was $1 53 (2014 $1 65)and the year end rate was $1 47
(2014 $156)

d Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at tustorical
cost less depreciation Cost includes the originat
purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to
bringing the asset to its working condition for intended
use Land s notdepreciated Depreciation on other
assets s calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate ther costless their residual values over their
estimated usefu iives as follows

Buildings (freehald)  20-50years
Burldings (feasehold) over the period of the lease

Plant and equipment 3-10years

The assets’ residual values and useful iives are
reviewed, and adjusted If appropriate, at each balance
sheet date

The carrying value of an asset Is written down to its
recoverable amount if the carrying value of the asset
15 greater than its estimated recoverable amount

e Intangible assets

1 Goodwll For the acquisition of subsidiartes made on
or after 1 January 2010, goodwill represents the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired Far the acquisition of
subsidiaries made from the date of transition to IFRS to
31 December 2009, goodwill represents the excess of
the cost of an acguisition over the fair value of the
Group's share of the netidentfiable assets acquired
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidianes 1s included in
intangible assets Goodwill on acquisition of assoclates
and jotnt ventures represents the excess of the cost of
an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
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1 Accounting policies continued

e Intang:ble assets continued

of the netidentfiable assets acquired Goodwill on
acquisitions of associates and joint ventures s inciuded
ninvestments in assoclates and joint ventures

Goodwili is tested at least annually forimpairment and
carried at cost less accumulated iImpairment losses
Animparrment loss 1s recognised to the extent that

the carrying value of goodwill exceeds the recaverable
amount The recoverable amounts the higher of fair
value less costs of disposal and value inuse These
calculations require the use of estimates and significant
managementjudgement A description of the key
assumptions and sensitivities is included in note 11
Goodwill s allocated to aggregated cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment testing The
allocation 1s made to those aggregated cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwili arose

Gains and iosses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrymg armount of goodwill relating to the entity sold

IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ has not been applied
retrospectively to business combinations before the
date of transition to [FRS

2 Acquired software Software separately acquired for
internal useis capitalised at cost Software acquired

m material business combinations s capitalised at its
fair value as determined by an independent valuer
Acquired software I1s amortised on a straight-hine basis
over its estimated useful hife of between three and
eightyears

3 Internally developed software internal and external
costs incurred during the preliminary stage of
developing computer software for internal use are
expensed asincurred Internal and external costs
tncurred to develop computer software for internat
use during the application development stage are
capitalised if the Group expects economic benefits
from the development Capitalisation in the application
developrent stage begins once the Group can rellably
measure the expenditure attributable to the software
development and has demonstrated its intention to
complete and use the software Internally developed
software 1s amortised an a straight-ltine basis aver its
estimated useful life of between three and eight years

4 Acquired intangible assets Acquired intangible assets
include customer lists, contracts and relationships,
trademarks and brands, publishing rights, content,
technology and software rights These assetsare

capualised on acquisition at cost and included in
intangible assets Intangible assets acquired in material
business combinations are capitakised at their fair value
as deterrmined by an independent valuer Intangible
assets are amortised aver their estimated useful lives
of between two and 20 years, using an amortisation
method that reflects the pattern of their consumption

5§ Pre-publication assets Pre-publication assets
represent direct costs incurred in the development

of educational programmes and titles prior to their
publication These costs are recognised as current
tntangible assets where the title will generate probable
future economic benefits and costs can be measured
rellably Pre-publication assets areamortised upon
publication of the title over estimated economic lives
of five years or less, being an estimate of the expected
operating Iife cycle of the title, witha higher proportion
of the amortisation taken in the earlier years

The Investment in pre-publication assets has been
disclosed as part of cash generated from operations
in the cash flow statement (see note 32)

The assessment of the recoverability of pre-pubhcation
assets and the determination of the amortisation
profile invoive a significant degree of judgement based
on historical trends and management estimation of
future potential sales An incorrectamortsation profile
could resuftin excess amounts being carned forward
as intangibie assets that would otherwise have been
written off to the income statemnent in an earlier period

Reviews are performed regularly to estimate
recoverability of pre-publication assets The carrying
amount of pre-publication assets I1s set out in note 20

f Other financial assets

Cther financial assets, designated as available for sale
Investments, are non-derivative financial assets
measured at estimated far value Changesinthe fair
value are recorded 1n equity in the fair value reserve
Onthe subsequent disposal of the asset, the net fair
value gains or losses are taken to the income staterment

£ Inventories

inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value Costis determined using the firstin
first out {FIFO}method The cost of finished goods

and work in progress comprises raw matertals, direct
labour, ather direct costs and related production
overheads Net realisable value isthe estmated selling
price i the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs necessary to make the sale Provisions are made
for slow moving and obsolete stock
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

h Royalty advances

Advances of royalties to authors are included within
trade and other receivables when the advance is paid
less any provision required to adjust the advance to

its net realisable value The realisable vaiue of royalty
advances relies on a degree of management judgement
in determining the profitability of Individual author
contracts If the estimated realisable value of author
contracts 1s overstated, this will have an adverse effect
on operating profits as these excess amounts will be
written off

The recoverability of royalty advances Is based upon an
annual detalled management review of the age of the
advance, the future sales projections for new authors
and prior sales histary of repeat authors

The royalty advance 1s expensead at the contracted
or effective royalty rate as the related revenues are
earned Royalty advances whichwill be consumed
within one year are held in current assets Royaity
advances which will be censumed after one year are
held 1n non-current assets

1. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement
include cash in hand, deposits held on call with banks,
other short-term highly iquid investrents with
original matunibies of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts Bank overdrafts are included inborrewings
in current habilities in the balance sheet

Short-term deposits and marketable secunties with
maturitres of greater than three months do not qualify
as cash and cash equivatents Movements onthese
financial instruments are classified as cash flows from
financing activities in the cash flow statement where
these amounts are used to offset the borrowings of
the Group or as cash flows from investing activities
where these amounts are held to generate an
investment return

] Share capitai
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

incremental costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where any Group company purchases the company’s
aquity share capital {treasury shares) the consideration
pad, includmg any directly attnibutable incremental
costs, net of Income taxes, is deducted from equity
attributable to the company’s equity holders untif the

shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of Where
such shares are subsequently sotd or rerssued, any
consideration recerved, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs and the related income tax effects, Is
included in equity attributable to the company’s equity
holders

k Borrowings

Borrowings are recogrised initially at fair value, which
15 proceeds recetved net of transaction costs incurred
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost
with any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value being
recognised in the income statement over the perod
of the borrowings using the effective interest method
Accrued interest 1s included as part of borrowngs
Where a debt instrument s 1n a fair value hedging
relationship, an adjustment s made to Its carrying
value in the Income staternent to reflect the hedged
risk interest onborrowings is expensedin the income
statement as incurred

| Derwative financial Instruments

Dervatives are recogrised at far value and remeasured
ateach balance sheet date The fair value of dervatives
15 determined by using market data and the use of
established estimation techrugues such as discounted
cash flow and option valuation models The Group
designates certain of the dernvative instruments within
its portfolio to be hedges of the fair value of its bonds
(fair value hedges) or hedges of netinvestmentsin
foreign operauons (net investment hedges)

Changes in the fair value of derrvatives that are
designated and qualify as fair vajue hedges are
recorded 1n the Income statement, together with
any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or
habihty that are attributable to the hedged risk

The effective portion of changes in the fair value

of dervatives that are designated and qualify as

net investment hedges are recognised in other
comprehensiveincome Gains and losses accumulated
in equity are included in the income statement when
the corresponding foreign operation 1s disposed of
Gains or losses relating to the ineffective portion are
recognised immediately i finance income or finance
costsn the income statement

Certain denvatives do not qualify or are not designated
as hedging instruments Such dernivatives are classified
atfair value and any movement in their fair vaiue 1s
recogrised immediately in finance income or finance
costs in the income statement
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1 Accounting policies continued

m Taxation

Current tax s recognised on the amounts expected to
be paid or recovered under the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantiveily enacted at the
balance sheet date

Deferred income tax s provided, using the llabihity
method, antemporary differences arising between

the tax bases of assets and habilities and their carrying
amounts Deferredincome tax is determined using tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability 1s settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it 1s probable that future taxable profitwill be
avallable against which the temporary differences
can be utihsed

Deferred iIncome tax 1s provided in respect of the
undistributed earnings of subsidiaries other than
where it1s intended that those undistributed earnings
will not be remutted in the foreseeable future

Currentand deferred tax are recognised in the
income statement, except when the tax relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity or ather
comprehensive iIncome, iIn which case the taxis also
recogmised n equity or other comprehensive income

The Group I1s subject to iIncome taxes in numerous
Jurisdicttons Segnificant judgement s required in
determining the estimates in relation te the worldwide
proviston for income taxes There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax deterrmination rs uncertain during the ordinary
course of business The Group recognises iabilities
for anticipated tax audit 1ssues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due Where the final
tax outcome of these matters s different from the
amounts that were imtially recorded, such differences
will impact the tncome tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination 1s made

Deferred tax assets and habihties require management
judgement in determining the amountsto be
recognised In particular, significant judgement 1s used
when assessing the extent te which deferred tax assets
should be recognised with consideration given to the
timing and levet of future taxable income together with
any future tax planning strategies

n Employee benefits

1 Penstons The retirement henefit asset and obligation
recognised m the balance sheet represents the net of
the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of plan assets at the balance sheet date
The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method The presentvalue of the defined benefit
obligation is determinad by discounting estimated
future cash flows using vields on high quality corporate
bonds which have terms to maturity approximating the
terms of the refated liability

When the calculation results in a potential asset, the
recognition of that asset s limited to the asset ceilling -
thatts the present value of any ecanomic benefits
avallable in the form of refunds fromthe planora
reductionin future contnbutions Management uses
Judgement to determine the level of refunds available
from the planin recognising an asset

The determunation of the pension cost and defined
henefit obligation of the Group's defined benefit
pension schemes depends on the selection of certan
assumptions, which include the discount rate, inflation
rate, salary growth and longevity

Actuanal gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuanal assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
income in the pertod in which they anise

The service cost, representing benefits accruing over
the year, 1s included in the Income statement as an
operating cost. Net interest 1s calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net defined benefit obligation
and s presented as finance costs or finance income

Obhgattons for contributions to defined contnbution
pension plans are recognised as an operating expense
in the Income statement as incurred

2 Other post-retirement obligations The expected
costs of post-rettrement medical and hife assurance
benefits are accrued over the pernod of employment,
using a simifar accounting methodology as for
defined benefit pension obligattons Thehiabiliies
and costs relating to significant other post-retirement
obligations are assessed annually by independent
qualfied actuaries
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

n Employee benefits continued

3 Share-based payments The fair value of options or
shares granted under the Group’s share and option
plans is recognised as an employee expense after
taking into account the Group's best esumate of the
number of awards expected tovest Farvalueis
measured at the date of grant and 1s spread over the
vesting perlod of the option or share The farr value of
the options granted is measured using an option model
that s most appropriate to the award The fair value
of shares awarded 1s measured using the share price
at the date of grant unless another method 1s more
appropriate Any proceeds received are credited to
share capital and share premium when the options
are exercaised

o Provisions

Provisions are recogrused If the Group has a present
legal or constructive obhigation as a resuit of past
events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated Provisions
are discounted to present value where the effect

1s matenal

The Group recognises a provision for deferred
consideration at fair value Where thisis contingent
on future performance or a future event, judgement
|s_exer<:|sed in establhishing the fatr value

The Group recognises a provision for onerous lease
contracts when the expected benefits to be denved
from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs
of meeting the obligations under the contract

The provision is based on the presentvalue of future
payments for surplus leased properties under non-
cancellable operating leases, net of estimated sub-
leasing iIncome

p Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue streams are courseware,
assessments and services Courseware includes
currculum materials provided in book form and/or
via access to digital content. Assessments indudes
test developmant, processing and scoring services
provided to governments, educational institutions,
corporations and professional bodies Services includes
the operation of schools, colleges and universittes,
including sistemas in Brazil and English language
teaching centres around the world as well as the
provision of online learning services In partnershtp
with universities and other acadermic institutions

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
net of sales taxas, rebates and discounts, and after
eliminating sales within the Group

Revenue from the sale of books Is recogrused when title
passes A provision for anticipated returns1s made
based primanly on historical return rates Ifthese
estimates do not reflect actual returns in future periods
then revenues could be understated or overstated for
a particular period

Revenue from the sale of off-the-shelf software s
recognised on delivery or on Installation of the software
where that s a condltion of the contract incertain
circumstances, where installation 1s complex, revenue
Is recognised when the customer has completed their
accaptance procedures Where software is provided
under a term licence, revenue 1s recognised on a
straight-ine basis over the period of the license

Revenue fromthe provision of services to academic
institutions, such as programme development, student
acquisition, educatton technelogy and student support
services, Is recognised as performance occurs

|
Revenue from multi-year contractual arrangements, !
such as contracts to process qualifying tests for !
individual professions and government departments,

1s recognised as performance occurs The assumptions,

nisks, and uncertainties inherent to long-term contract

accounting can affect the amounts and timing of

revenue and related expenses reported Certam of

these arrangements, elther as a result of a single

service spanning more than one reporting penod or

where the contract requires the prowvision of a number

of services that together constitute a single project, are

treated as long-term contracts with revenue recognised

on a percentage of campletion basis Percentage of

completion is calculated on a cost basis using the

proportion of the total estimated costs Incurred to date,

Losses on contracts are recognised inthe peniod in

which the loss first becomes foreseeable Contract

losses are determined to be the amount by which

estimated total costs of the contract exceed the

estimated total revenues that will be generated

Where a contractuai arrangement consists of two or
more separate elements that can be provided to
customers either on a stand-alone basis or as an
optional extra, such as the provision of suppfementary
matertals or onfine access with textbooks and muttple
deliverables within testing or service contracts, revenue
1s recognised for each element as ifit were an individual
contractual arrangement
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1 Accounting policies continued

p Revenue recognition continued

On certain contracts, where the Group acts asagent,
only commissions and fees recervabie for services
rendered are recogmised as revenue Any third-party
costs incurred on behalf of the principal that are
rechargeable under the contractual arrangement
are not included in revenue

Income from recharges of freight and other activities
which are inadental to the normal revenue generating
actvatiesis included in other income

Circulation and advertising revenue 15 recognised
when the newspaper or other publication 1s published
Subscription revenue is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the life of the subscription

q Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases Finance
leases are capitalised at the commencement of the
lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present vafue of the minimum

lease payments Each lease payment s allocated
between the flability and finance charges to achieva
aconstant rate on the finance balance outstandmng
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in financial habilities -
borrowings The interest efement of the finance cost
15 charged to the income statement aver the lease
period to produce a constant perodic rate of interest
ontheremaining balance of the hability for each period
The property, plant and equipment acquired under
finance leases are deprecated over the shorter of the
useful ife of the asset or the lease term

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessar are
classified as operating leases by the lessee Payments
made under operating leases {net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-ine basis over the perod of
thelease

r Dividends

Dividends are recorded in the Group's financal
statements in the perigd in which they are approved
by the company’s shareholders

$ Discontinued operations

A discontinued operationis a component of the Group's
business that represents a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations that has
beendisposed of or meets the criteria to be classified
as held for sale

Discontinued operations are presented in the income
statement as a separate line and are shown net of tax

t Assets and habilities held for sale

Assets and habthties are classified as held for sale and
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell ifitis highly probabie that the carrytng
amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use No
deprectation 1s charged in respect of non-current assets
classified as held for sale Amounts refating to non-
current assets and liabilities held for sale are classified
as discontinued operations in the Income statement
where appropriate

u Trade receivables

Trade recelvables are stated at fair value after provision
for bad and doubtful debts and anticipatad future sales
returns (see also note Tp)

2 Segment information

The primary segments for management and reporting
are geographias as outlined below In addition, the
Group separately discloses the results from the
Penguin Random House {PRH) associate

The chief operating decision-maker ts the Pearson
Executrve

Continuing operations

North Amenca School, Higher Education and
Professional businessesin US and Canada

Growth School, Higher Education and Professional
businesses in emerging markets which are investment
priorities, including Brazil, China, India and South Africa

Core School, Higher Education and Professional
businesses in more mature markets including UK,
Australla and italy

The results of the FT Group segment (to 30 Novernber
2015}y and Mergermarket (to 4 February 2014} are
shown as discontinued in the relevant periods
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Notes Lo the consohidated financial statements continued

2 Segmentinfermation continued

For more detail an the services and products included in each business segment refer to the strategic report

2015

North

Discontinued

All figures in E millions HNotes  Amertca Core  Grawth PRH Corporate  operations Group
Continumng operations

Sales 2,940 836 692 - - - 4,468
Adjusted operating profit/(loss) 480 114 (12) 90 - - 672
intangible charges ({386) (79) {583} (41} - - {1,089)
Gther net galns and losses 19 (5) - (1) - - 13
Operating (loss)/profit 113 30 (595) 48 - - {404
Flnance costs 6 (100)
Finance income 6 71
Loss befare tax {433)
Income tax 7 1
Loss for the year from

continuing operations (352)
Segment assets 6,399 1,573 719 - 1,841 - 10,532
Jointventures 12 1 - 3 - - - 4
Associates 12 - 6 - 1,093 - - 1,099
Total assets 6,400 1,579 722 1,093 1881 - 11,635
Other segment items

Share of results of joint ventures

and associates 12 (9) - 3} 64 - 16 68
Capital expenditure 10,11 85 33 110 - - 15 243
Pre-publication investment 20 218 63 66 - - - 347
Depreciation 10 42 9 18 - - 6 75
Amortisation 1,20 338 95 109 - - 15 557
Impairment " 282 37 530 - - - 849




Section 5 Financial statements

149

2 Segment iInformation continued

2014
restated
Nerth Discontinued

Al figures in £ millions Notes  America Care Grawth PRH Corporate operations Group
Continuing operations
Sales 2,906 910 724 - - - 4,540
Adjusted operating profit 444 122 32 69 - - 667
Intangible charges (108) (21) (132) {54) - - {315)
Acquisitron costs {2) {1} 3 - - - {6}
Other net gains and losses 2 - - - - - 2
Operating profit/(loss) 336 100 {103) 15 - - 348
Finance costs (140}
Finance income 47
Profit before tax 255
tncome tax 7 (56}
Profit for the year from
continuing eperations 199
Segment assets 6,580 1,426 1,394 - 660 219 10,279
Jomtventures 12 1 - 3 - - 9 13
Associates 12 1 8 - 1,095 - 1 1.105
Total assets 6,582 1434 1,397 1,095 660 229 11,397
QOther segment items
Share of results of joint ventures
and assoclates 12 - )] 3 35 - 20 51
Capital expenditure 10,11 97 3z 49 - - 16 194
Pre-publication investment 20 209 77 72 - - - 358
Depreciation 10 4 10 16 - - 7 74
Amortisation 11,20 306 95 121 - - 16 542
Impalrment 1 - - 77 - - - 77

For further information on adjusted measures above, see note 8

There were no matenal inter-segment sales tn either 2014 or 2015

Included in other net gains and losses within continuing operations n 2015 in the North America segment s the
profit on disposal of PowerSchool of E30m, net of small losses on other investments inthe Core segment the loss

on disposal relates to adjustments to prior year disposals

Included in ather net gains and losses In continuing operations i 2014 are gains on the sale of joint venture interests
in Safart Books Online and CourseSmart (£40m) and a loss on disposal of an investrnent in Nook Media (E38m)

Both operating profit and adjusted operatmng profitin 2015 are stated after the following restructuring charges
North America £24m (2014 £37m), Core £nif (2014 £21m), Growth £11m, (2014 £6m), Penguln Random House

£12m{2014 £19m)

SS3UISNG NG

uewsopad InQ

edwi |epos Ino

UBLIFA0G I

SlUaLUNes [enueUld



150 Pearson plc Annual report and accounts 2015

Notes o the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Segment information continued

Corporate costs are allocated to business segments including discontinued operaticns on an approprate basis
depending on the nature of the cost, therefore the segment result 1s equal to the Group operating profit Segment
assets consist of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventories, recewables, deferred taxation and
other financiaf assets and exclude cash and cash equivalents and derivative assets Corporate assets comprise cash
and cash equivalents, marketable securities and dervative financial instruments Capital expenditure comprises
addstions to property, plant and equipment and software (see notes 10 and 11) !

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets acquired through business combination were £1m (2014
£263m}(see note 30}

The folfowing tables analyse the Group’s revenue streams Courseware indudes curriculum materials provided in
book form and/or via access to digital content Assessments includes test development, processing and scoring
services provided to governments, educational institutions, corporations and professional bodies Services includes
the operation of schools, colleges and urwersities, induding sistemas in Brazil and Enghsh language teaching centres
around the world aswell as the provision of online learming services in partnership with universitles and ather
academic institutions School Systems includes PowerSchool and Family Education Network, both of which were

disposed during 2015

2015
North
All figures in £ millions Amerlca Core Growth Group
Courseware
Scheool Courseware 406 186 104 696
Higher Education Courseware 1,207 96 55 1,358
English Courseware 22 84 79 185
1,635 366 238 2,239
Assessments
School and Higher Education Assessments 420 301 15 736
Chnical Assessments 126 32 - 158
Professional Certification 269 82 36 387
815 415 5t 1,281
Services
School Services 209 1 47 257
Higher Education Services 223 26 70 319
English Services 18 28 286 332
School Systems 40 - - 40
430 55 403 948

Total 2,940 836 692 4,468




Saction S Financial statements

15

2 Segment information continued
2014
restated
North
All figures in £ milliens America Core Growth Grotp
Courseware
School Courseware 389 214 120 723
Higher Education Courseware 1179 114 66 1,359
English Courseware 22 92 75 189
1,580 420 261 22N
Assessments
School and Higher Educatton Assessments 416 312 14 742
Clinical Assessments 115 34 - 149
Professional Certification 228 93 19 340
759 439 33 123
services
School Services 253 - 56 309
Higher Education Services 215 22 20 327
English Services 20 29 284 333
School Systems 69 - - 69
557 51 430 1,038
Total 2,906 910 724 4,540
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Notes 1o the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Segment information continued
The Group operates in the following mam geographic areas

Sales Non current assets

2014
Allfigures in £ milhons 2015 restated 2015 2014
Continuing operations
UK 421 444 991 1.056
Other European countries 246 281 121 180
us 2,800 2,762 5,000 5,243
Canada 107 109 235 288
Asia Paaific 590 565 21 416
Other countries 304 379 144 661
Total continuing 4,468 4,540 6,702 7.844
Discontinued operations
UK 134 170 - -
Other European countries 64 66 - -
us 72 68 - -
Canada 2 1 - -
Asia Paafic 35 34 - -
Other countries 5 4 - -
Total discontinued 32 343 - -
Total 4,780 4,883 6,702 7,844

Sales are aliocated based on the country inwhich the customer s located This does not differ materially from the
location where the order is received The geographical spiit of non-current assets is based on the subsidiary’s
country of domicile This 1s not materially different to the location of the assets Non-current assets comprise
property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, investments i joint ventures and assocates and trade and
other recetvables
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3 Discontinued operations E
Discontinued operattons refate to FT Group, Penguin and Mergermarket An analysis of the results and cash flows of §
discontinued operations Is as follows a
2014
2015 restated
Al figures in £ millions FTGroup Tatal Penguin Mergermarket FT Group Total
Sales 312 312 - 9 334 343
Operating profit 43 48 - 2 50 52
Finance Income - - - - - - g
Profit before tax 48 48 - 2 50 52 E'
Income tax (8) {8) - ) i) (8) g
Profit after tax 40 40 - 1 43 44 §
Profit on disposal of Penguin - - 29 - - 29
Profit on disposal of The Economist 473 473 - - - -
Profit on disposal of Financial Times 711 711 - - - -
Attnibutable tax expense {49) (49) - - - -
Profiton disposal of Mergermarket - - - 244 - 244 S
Attributable tax expense - - - {46) - {46) 5
Profit for the year from ngu:
discontinued operations 1175 1,175 29 199 43 271 S
Operating cash flows 31 31 - 2 24 2% =
Investing cash flows 3 3 - - (5} G
Financing cash flows - - - - - -
Total cash fiows 34 34 - 2 19 21
4 Operating expenses
2014 ©
Allfigures in £mlllions 2015 restated g
By function, g
Cost of goods sold 1,981 201 B
Operating expenses
Distribution costs 80 84
Selling, marketsing and product development costs 895 931
Administrative and other expenses 1,195 1,168
Restructuring costs 35 64
Other net gains and losses (13) {9
Other income (98) (120) 8
Total net operating expenses 2,094 2,125 §
impairment of intangible assets 849 77 g
Total 4924 4223 &
@

Included 1n other income 1s service fee Income from Penguin Random House of £16m (2014 £41m) Included in
administrative and other expenses are research and efficacy costs of £33m (2014 £22m) In additton to the
restructuring costs shown above there were restructuring costs in Pengiin Random House of £12m (2014 £19m)
and In discontinued operations of £rul (2014 £1m)
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Notes Lo the consolidated financial statements continued

4 Operating expenses continued

2014

All figures in £ mithons Notes 2015 restated
By nature

Royalties expensed 249 242
Other product costs 566 620
Employee benefit expense 5 1,742 1,832
Contractiabour 182 183
Employee related expense 127 136
Promotional costs 163 149
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 10 69 67
Amortisation of intangible assets - pre-publication 20 281 292
Amortisation of Intangible assets - software n 61 51
Amortisation of intangible assets - other 1l 199 184
impairment of Intangible assets 11 849 77
Property and facilities 219 204
Technology and communications 153 123
Professional and outsourced services 262 253
Other general and administrative costs 132 121
Capitalised costs (219) (195)
Acquisition costs - 6
Other net gains andlosses (13) )
Otherincome (98} (120)
Total 4,924 4,223
Durning the year the Group obtamed the followmg services from the Group’s auditors

Al figures in E milllons 2015 2014
The audit of parent company and consolidated financial statements 4 5
The audit of the company’s subsidiaries 2 2
Total audit fees 6 7
Other assurance services 2 1
Other non-audit services 1 -
Total other services 3 1
Tax compltance services 1 1
Tax advisory services - -
Total tax services 1
Total non-audit services 4 2
Total 10 9
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4 Operating expenses continued

Reconcthation between audit and non-audst service fees is shown below

Alifigures in £ milllans 2015 2014
Group audit fees including fees for attestation under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 6 7
Non-audit fees 4 2
Total 10 9

Fees for attestation under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act are allocated between fees payable for the audits
of consolidated and subsidiary accounts

Inctuded 1n non-audit fees are amounts related to carve out audits for disposals of £1m

5 Employee information

2014
Allfigures in £ millions Notes 2015 restated
Employee benefitexpense
Wages and salartes {including terrination benefits and restructuring costs) 1,507 1,607
Social securtty costs 124 122
Share-based payment costs 26 26 32
Retirement benefits — defined contnibution plans 25 66 61
Retirement benefits - defined benefit plans 25 19 21
QOther post-retirement benefits 25 - (a1
Total 1,742 1,832

The details of the emoluments of the directors of Pearson plc are shownin the report on directors’ remuneration

2014
Average number employed 2015 . restated
Employee humbers
North America 19,951 20,927
Core 5936 6,139
Growth 1,14 1,406
Other 264 182
Conttnuing operations . 37,265 38,654

The employee benefit expense relating to discontinued operations was £132m (2014 £151m)and the average
number employed was 2,282 (2014 2,295)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

& Netfinance costs

2014
All figures in £ millions Notes 2015 restated

Interest payable (61) (81)
Net foreign exchange losses {36) (53)
Derivatives not in hedging relationships {3) {6}
Finance costs (100} (140)
Interestreceivable 15 17
Net finance Income 1n respect of retirement benefits 25 4 1

Net foreign exchange gains 43 17

Denvatives notin hedging relabionships 9 12

Finance income Fal 47

Net finance costs (29) (93)
Analysed as*

Net Interest payable reflected in adjusted earnings (46) 64
Other net finance income/{costs) 17 {29}
Total net finance costs 29) {93}

Included in 1nterest recelvable 1s £1m (2014 £1m) of interest recewvable from related partles Therewas anet

movement of £nil on fair value hedges in 2015 (2014 £nil}, comprising a gan of £22m (2014 loss of £27m) onthe
underlying bonds, offset by a loss of £22m (2014 gain of £27m) onthe related derivative financial Instruments

For further information on adjusted measures above, see note 8
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7 Income tax

2014
Allfigures in £ millions Notes 2015 resiated
Currenttax
Charge in respect of current year {155) (96)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 42 30
Total current tax charge {113) (66)
Deferred tax
Inrespect of temporary differences 185
Other adjustments 1n respect of prior years 9 2
Total deferred tax credit 13 194 10
Total tax credit/(charge) 81 (56)

The adjustments in respect of prior years in both 2015 and 2014 mainly relate to changes in estmates ansing from
uncertain tax positions following agreement of historical tax positions

The tax on the Group's {loss)/profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would anse using the UK tax

rate as follows

2014
All figures in £ millions 2015 restated
(Loss)/profit before tax {433) 255
Tax caiculated at UK rate (2015 20 25%, 2014 21 5%) 88 {55)
Effect of overseas tax rates 52 (10)
jointventure and associate income reported net of tax 10 7
Net expense not subject to tax (66) (11
Gains and losses on sale of businesses not subject to tax (32) -
Unutiised tax losses (22) (19)
Adjustrients i respect of prior years Ly 32
Total tax credst/{charge) 21 {56)
UK (25) -
Overseas 106 {56)
Total tax credit/(charge) 81 {56)

Tax rate reflected in earnings

187% 220%
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7 income tax continued

The tax rate reflected in adjusted earnings s calculated as follows

2014
All figures in £ milions 2015 restated
(Loss)/profit before tax {433) 255
Adjustments
Other net gains and losses {13) (2)
Acquisition costs - 6
Intangible charges 1,089 315
Other net finance (Income)/casts (17) 29
Adjusted profit before tax - continuing operations 626 603
Adjusted profit before tax - discontinued operations 51 55
Total adjusted profit before tax 677 658
Total tax credit/{charge} B1 (56)
Adjustments.
Tax charge on other net gains and losses 40 1
Tax benefit on acquisition costs - (1}
Tax benefiton intangible charges (257) (72
Tax charge/(benefit) on other net finance costs 7 (5}
Tax amortisation benefit on goodwil and intangibles 33 24
Adyusted income tax charge - continuing operations (96} {109)
Adjusted income tax charge - discontinued operatlons (&)] 9
Total adjusted income tax charge (105) (18
Tax rate reflected in adjusted earnings 15 5% 179%
For further information on adjusted measures above, see note 8
The tax {chargelbenefit recognised in ather comprehensive income Is as follows
All figures in £ rmitiions 2015 2014
Net exchange differences on transtation of foreign operations 5 6)
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations (24) M
{19} {7

Atax charge of E1m {2014 tax charge £3m) relating to share-based payments has been recognised directly in equity
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8 Earnings per share g
jal
Basic %
Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the company by 2
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased by s
the company and held as treasury shares
Diluted
Diluted earnings per share 1s calcutated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares to take
account af all dilutive potential ordinary shares and adjusting the profit attnbutable,if applicable, to account for
any tax consequences that might arise from conversion of those shares
w014 2
Allfigures in £ millions Notes 2015 restated a
[L3
{Loss)profit for the year from continuing operations (352) 99 2
Non-controlling interest - 1 g
Earnings from continuing operations (352) 200 o
Profit for the year fram discontinued operations 3 1175 n
Earnings 823 471
Weighted average number of shares (mithons) 8133 8109
Effect of dilutive share options (mulions) - 10 ¢
Weighted average number of shares (millions) for diluted earnings 8133 8119 §
|-
3
Earnings per share from continuing and discontinued operations E
Basic 101 2p 581p -
Diluted 101 2p 58 0p
(Loss)fearrungs per share from continuing operations
Basic (43 3)p 2a7p
Diluted {43 3)p 24 6p o
=]
Earnings per share from discontinued operations 3
=]
Basic 144 5p 334p 3
m
Diiuted 144 5p 334p
Adjusted
In order to show results from operating actvities on a consistent basis, an adjusted earnings per share s presented
The company's defirutton of adjusted earnings per share may not be comparable to other stmilarly titled measures
reported by other companies
Adjusted earnings includes the results from continuing and discontinued operations The followang ttems are
excluded from adjusted earnings §
a
Other net gains and losses represent profits and losses on the acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, joint g
ventures, associates and other financial assets that are included within continuing or discontinued operations but g
which distort the performance of the Group §
i3
Amortisation and imparrment of acquired intangibles, acquisition costs and movements in contingent acquisition 2

consideration are also excluded from adjusted earnings as these items are not constdered to be fully reflective of the

underlying performance of the Group
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8 Earnings per share continued

Other net finance Incomescosts include finance costs In respect of retirement benefits, finance costs of deferred
consideration and foreign exchange and other gains and losses Finance costs relating to retirement benefits are
excluded as the consohdated income statement presentation under IAS 19 does not reflect the economic substance
of the underlying assets and liabities Finance costs of put options and deferred consideration are excluded as they
relate to future earn outs and similar payments on acquisitions and do notreflect cash expended Foreign exchange
and other gains and losses are excluded as they represent short-term fluctuations in market value and are subject to
significantvolatility Other gains and fosses may not be realised m due course asitis normally the intention to hold
the related instruments to matunity Other net finance costs of Group companies are Included in finance costs or
finance mcome as appropnate Other net finance costs of joint ventures and assoclates are included within the share
of results of joint ventures and assocrates within operating profit

Tax on the above items 1s excluded from adjusted earnings Where relevant the Group also excludes the benefit from
recognising previously unrecognised pre-acquisition and capital losses Thetax benefit fram tax deductible goodwill
and intangibles is added to the adjusted income tax charge as this benefit more accurately aligns the adjusted tax
charge with the expected rate of cash tax payments

Non-controlling interest for the above items 1s excluded from adjusted earntngs The following tables reconcile
statutory earnings to adjusted earnings

2015
Other net
Statutory Qther net finance Tax Adjusted
income Discontinued  gainsand Acquisition Intangible  Incomef amortisation income
Allfigures in £ millions statement operations lasses costs charges €Osts benefit statement
Operating (loss)/profit (404) 51 (13) - 1,089 - - 723
Net finance costs (29) - - - - (17) - (46}
(Loss)/profit before tax {433) 51 13) - 1,089 {17) - 677
Income tax 81 9 40 - (257} 7 33 {105)
(Loss)/profit for the year from
continuing operations (352} 42 27 - 832 {10} 33 572
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 1,178 (42) (1,135) - 2 - - -
Profit for the year 823 - {1,108) - 834 {(10) 33 572
Non-controlling interest - - - - - - - -
Earnings 823 - {1,108} - 834 (10 33 572
Weighted average number
of shares (millions) 8133 8133
Weighted average number
of shares (millions) for
diluted earmings 8133 8133
Earmings per share (basic) 101 2p B N o 703p

Earmings per share (diluted} 101 2p 70 3p
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8 Earmngs per share continued

2014
restated
Other net
Statutory Other net finance Tax  Adusted
income Discontinued  gainsand Acquisition Intangible  income/ amortisation Income
All figures in £ miflions statement  operations losses costs charges costs henefit statement
Operating profit 348 55 (2) 6 315 - - 722
Netfinance costs {93) - - - - 29 - (64)
Profit before tax 255 55 (2) 6 315 29 - 658
fncome tax {56} (9} 1 {t) {72) {5 24 {118)
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 199 46 (1 5 243 24 24 540
Profit for the year from
discantinued operations raal {(48) {227) - 2 - - -
Profit for the year 470 - (228) 5 245 24 24 540
Non-controlling interest i - - - - - - 1
Earnings 471 - (228} 5 245 24 24 541
Weighted average number
of shares (rmuilions) 8109 8109
Weighted average number
of shares (milfions) for
diuted earnings 8119 8119
Earnings per share {basic) 581p 66 7p
Earnings per share (hiuted) 58 0p 66 6p
9 Dvidends
Alffigures in £ millions 2015 2014
Final patd inrespect of prior year 34 0p (2014 32 0p}) 277 259
Intenim paid in respect of current year 18 0p (2014 17 0p} 146 138
423 397

The directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2015 of 34 Op per
share which will absorb an estimated £277m of shareholders’ funds Itwill be paid on 6 May 2016 to shareholders

who are on the register of members on 8 April 2016 These finanaial statements do not reflect this dividend
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10 Property, plantand equipment

AsselsIn
Land and Plant and course of

Allfigures in Emlllions buildings  equpment construction Total

Cost |
At1January 2014 375 568 32 975 |
Exchange differences 1 17 - 28

Additions 10 58 19 87

Disposals (9) (46) (2) (57}

Acquisition through bustness combination - 2 - 2

Disposal through business disposal - ] - {1)

Reclassifications 1 3 4 -

Transfer to software - - (16) {16)

At 31 December 2014 388 601 29 1,018

Exchange differences 8 10 1 19

Addittons 15 42 25 82

Disposals (20) (86) - {106)

Acquisition through bustness combinatian - - - -

Disposal through business disposal (48) {76) - (124) .
Reclassifications ' 16 17 (33) -

At 31 December 2015 359 508 22 889
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10 Property, plant and equipment continued S
Assetsin E‘-

Altfigures in £ milliens Iﬁiﬂgﬁg e:LIl?:rtnaer;\c: cong?rL:JrcsteI:rf Total a

Depreciation

At 1January 2014 (210} (423} - (633)

Exchange differences {7} (15) - (22)

Charge for the year (23) {51) - {74)

Disposals 9 36 - 45

At31 December 2014 @31 453 - ©84) £

Exchange differences (5) (12) - (17 ‘g

Charge for the year (22) (53) - {75y 3

Disposals 18 82 - 100 g

Disposal through business disposal 48 55 - 107

At 31 December 2015 {192) (377) - (569)

Carrying amounts

At1 January 2014 165 145 32 342

At 31 December 2014 157 148 29 334

At 31 December 2015 167 131 22 320

Depreciation expense of £19m (2014 £16m) has been indluded in the income statement in cost of goods sold and
£50m (2014 £5Tm)in operating expenses n 2015 £6m (2074 £7m) relates to discontinued operations

The Group leases certam equipment under a number of finance lease agreements The net carrying amount of
leased plant and equipment included within property, plant and equipment was £8m (2014 £13m)
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11 Intangible assets

Acquired

?usr:?rTftrsﬂasrl\E traﬁce?:;:i‘: psgﬁsri\r.ﬁg intang::r;:;
Al figures In £ milllons Goodwill  Software relationshlps and brands nghts  acquired Totat
Cost
At 1 January 2014 4,666 469 855 237 198 398 6,823
Exchange differences 198 i7 34 5 - 14 268
Impalrment (67) - - - - - {67)
Additions - internal development - 54 - - - - 54
Additions - purchased - 53 - - - - 53
Disposals - 7 - - - - N
Acquisition through business
cambination 238 - 5 69 - 186 498
Disposal through business disposal {5) {5) - {3) M - {14)
Transfer from PPE - 16 - - - - 16
At 31 December 2014 5,030 597 894 308 197 598 7.624
Exchange differences 105 17 25 (17} {7) (40) 83
Impairment (826) - - - - - (826)
Additions - internal development - 125 - - - - 125
Additions - purchased - 36 - - - - 36
Disposals - (18) - {4) (10} {29) (61)
Acquisition through business
combination - - - - - 1 1
Disposaf through business disposal {175) (138) {59} {6) - (21) {399)
At 31 December 2015 4,134 619 860 28 180 509 6,583
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11 Intangible assets continued

Acqulred

customer lists Acquired  Acqulred Other

contracts and trademarks publishing Intangibles
All figures in £ milltens Goodwill  Software relaticnships andbrands rights  acquwred Total
Amortisation
At 1fanuary 2014 - (316) {249) 93) (148) (216) (1,022}
Exchange differences - {13) {11 (3 - (12) {39}
Impairment - - (6} 2) - (2} (10}
Charge for the year - {63) {83) {25) (12 67) (250)
Disposals - 5 - - - - 5
Disposal through business disposal - 1 - 1 - - 2
At 31 December 2014 - (386) {349) (122) (160) (297  (1,314)
Exchange differences - (14) (8) 1 6 6} 21)
Impairment - - {13} (1) 9 - (23)
Charge for the year - (74) (99) (40} {10} {53) (276)
Disposals 18 - 4 10 29 61
Disposal through business disposal - 99 3¢9 3 - 13 154
At 31 December 2015 - {357) (430) (155) (163) 314y  (1,419)
Carrymg amounts
At 1 january 2014 4,666 153 606 144 50 182 5801
At 31 December 2014 5,030 211 545 186 37 3m 6,310
At 31 December 2015 4,134 262 430 126 17 195 5,164
Goodwiil

The goodwill carrying value of £4,134m relates to acquisitions completed after 1 January 1998 Priorto

1January 1998 all goodwll was written off to reserves on the date of acquisition For acquisitions completed
between 1 January 1998 and 31 December 2002 no value was ascnbed to intangibles other than goodwill and the
goodwill on each acquisition was amortised over a penod of up to 20 years On adoption of IFRS on 1 January 2003,
the Group chose not to restate the goodwill balance and at that date the balance was frozen {1 @ amoruisation
ceased) If goodwill had been restated then a significant value wauld have been ascribed to ather intangible assets,
which would be subject to amortisatton, and the carrying value of goodwill would be significantly lower For
acquisittons completed after 1 January 2003 value has been ascribed to other ntangible assets which are amortised

Other intangible assets
Other intangtbles acquired include content, technology and software nights

Intangible assets are valued separately for each acquisition and the primary method of valuation used is the
discounted cash flow method The majonty of acquired intangibles are amortised using an amortisatton profile
based on the projected cash flows underlying the acquisitton date valuauon of the intangtble asset, which generally
results in a larger proportion of amortisation being recogrised i the early years of the asset's ife The Group keeps
the expected pattern of consumption under review

Amortisation of £13m (2014 £12m) s included i the income statement in cost of goods sold and £247m (2014
£223m)in operating expenses In 2015, £16m (2014 £15m)of amortisation relates to discontinued operations
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11 Intangible assets continued

The range of useful economic lives for each major class of intangible asset (excluding goodwill and software)

is shown below

Class of intangible asset

2015

Useful economic life

Acquired customner lists, contracts and relationships 3-20years
Acquired trademarks and brands 2-20years
Acquired publishing rights 5-20years
Other intangibles acquired 2-20years
The expected amortisation profile of acquired intangible assets 1s shown below

2015

Oneto Six to Mare than

Allfigures in £ milllons five years tenyears ten years Total
Class of intangible asset
Acquired customer lists, contracts and relationships 268 122 40 430
Acquired trademarks and brands 56 47 23 126
Acquired publishing rights 15 2 - 17
Otherintangibles acquired 146 43 6 195

Impairment tests for cash-generating units {CGUs) containing goodwill
Impalrment tests have been carrted outwhere appropriate as described below

Following a reorgamisation of the business effective 1 January 2014 goodwill was atlocated to CGUs, or an
aggregation of CGUs, where goodwill could not be reasonably allocated to individual business units Impairment
reviews were conducted on these CGUs The carrying value of the goodwillin each of the CGUs, after theimpact

of Impairments, is summarised below

All figures in £ millions 2015 2014
North America 3,155 3,422
Core 635 618
Growth {includes Brazil, China, tndia and South Africa) - 612
Pearson VUE 344 327
Finanaal Times Group - 51
Total 4134 5,030

The recoverable amount of each aggregated cash generating unit (CGU) 1s based on fair value less costs of disposal
orvalue in use calculations as appropriate Goodwill 1s tested at east annually for impairment. Other than goodwili
there are no Intangible assets with indefinite lives The goodwillis generally denominated in the currency of the
relevant cash flows and therefore the impairment review 1s not materially sensitive to exchange rate fluctuations



Sectifon 5 Finanoal statements 167

11 intangible assets continued

Impairment tests for cash-generating units contaming goodwill continued

Following significant econormic and market deterioration in the Group's operattons in emerging markets and ongoing
cyclical and policy-related pressures in the Group’s mature market operations, management’s expectations of future
returns were revised down in the course of 2015 1t was determined during the impairment review that the fair

valug less costs of disposal of the Growth, North Amenca and Core CGUs no longer supported the carrying value

af the goodwill Animpairment of £567m was booked tn respect of the Group's Growth operations, representing
impairments of £269m in the Brazil CGY, £181m 1n the China CGY, £48m n the South Africa CGU and £9m n the
Other Growth CGU, thereby bringing the carrying value of goodwil] in those CGUs down to £nil Impairments of

£10m and £13m were also booked in respect of other acquired intangibles in the South Africa and Other Growth
CGUs respectively, bringing thewr carrying value down to £nil Impairments of £282m and £37m were also booked in
respect of the North America and Core CGUs respectively, bringing the carrying value of the goodwill in those CGUs
down to fair value less costs of disposal Falrvalue less costs of disposal was determined using post-tax discount
rates of 17 4% for Brazil, 11 0% for China, 12 6% for South Africa, 12 8% for Qther Growth, 8 6% for North America

and 8 7% for Core Following the above impairments, the recoverable amounts of the Growth, North America and
Core CGUs are £350m, £4,750m and £526m respectively

Key assumptions

For the purpose of estimatng the fair value less costs of disposal of the CGUs, management hasused an income
approach based on present value techniques The calculatrons use cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year penod, management’s best estimate about future developments and
market assumptions The fair value less costs of disposal measurement s categonsed as Level 3 on the falr value
hierarchy The key assumptions used by management in the fair value less costs of disposal calculations were

Discount rates The discount rate 1s based on the risk-free rate for government bonds, adjusted for a risk premium
to reflect the increased risk i mvesting in equities The risk premium adjustment 1s assessed for each specific CGU
The average post-tax discount rates range from 7 2% to 17 4% Discount rates are lower for those bustnesses
which operate in more mature markets with iow inflation and higher for those operating in emerging markets
with higher inflation

Perpetuity growth rates A perpetuity growth rate of 2 0% (2014 2 0%) was used for cash flows subsequent to the
approved budget period for CGUs operating in mature markets This perpetuity growth rate1s aconservative rate
and s considered to be lower than the long-term historical growth rates of the underlying terntenes in which the
CGU operates and the long-term growth rate prospects of the sectors in which the CGU operates CGU growth rates
between 5 0% and 8 5% were used for cash flows subsequent to the approved budget period for CGUs operating n
emerging markets with high inflation These growth rates are also below the long-term historical growth ratesin
these markets

The key assumptions used by management in setting the financial budgets for the Initial five-year penod were
as follows

Forecast sales growth rates Forecast sales growth rates are based on past experience adjusted for the strategic
direction and near-term investment prionties within each CGU Key factors indude USA and UK college enrolment
rates, assessment growth rates, the success of new product launches, growth rates and ecenomic conditions in
emerging markets and the rate of growthin new services bustnesses The five-year sales forecasts use average
nominal growth rates between 1 1% and 1 6% for mature markets and between 0 1% and 5 6% for emerging markets
with high inflation

Operating profits Operating profits are forecast based on historical experience of operating margins, adjusted for
the impact of changes to product costs and cost saving inltatives, including the impact of the global restructuring
programme planned in 2016

Cash conversion Cash conversion is the ratio of operaung cash flow to operating profit Management forecasts cash
conversion rates based on historical experience, adjusted for the impact of product investment priorities and the
shift to digital and service based business
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11 Intangible assets continued

Sensitivibies

The Group's tmpairment review (s sensitive to a change Ih assumptions used, most notably the discount rates and
the perpetuity growth rates As the carrying value of goodwill in the Growth market CGUs has been written down (o
£nil, the vaiue of other Intanglble assets in Brazil and China Is sensitive to anyincrease in discount rates or reduction
1n perpetuity growth rates In the North America and Core CGUs goodwill has been written down to farr value less
costs of disposal and any further increase n discount rates or reduction in perpetuity growth rates would gwve nse to
furtherimpairment A0 1% increase in discount rates would cause the fair value less costs of disposal of the Brazil,
Chna, North Amenica and Core CGUSs to reduce by £3m, £5m, £120m and £25m respectively A0 1% reduction in
perpetuity growth rates would cause the fair vaiue less costs of disposal of the Brazil, China, North America and Core
CGUs to reduce by £2m, E5m, £100m and £21m respectively All CGUs which have been written down to fair value
less costs of disposal are highly sensttive to any reductions in short-term cash flows, whether driven by lower sales
growth, lower operating profits or lower cash conversion A 5% reduction intotal annual operating profits, spread
avenly across all CGUs, would give rise to animpawrment of £29m In the Growth CGUs, £241m in the North America
CGU and £62m in the Core CGU

2014 impairment tests

In 2014 following deterioration in the market conditions for the Group’s online tutenng business based in Inda, it
was determined in the course of the impairment review that the value in use of the India CGU no longer supported
the carrying value of the goodwill in that CGU Animpairment of £67m was booked, thereby bnnging the carrying
value of goodwill in the India CGU down to £nil Animpairment of £10m was also booked in respect of other acquired
intangrbles in that CGU, bringing thewr carrying value to £nil The india CGU incorporates all the Group's trading
operationsn Indha A pre-tax discount rate of 13 6% was used to determine the vafue in use of the India CGU

No previous assessment had been made of the vaiue n use of that CGU as the Group’s India operations, prior

to the 1 January 2014 reorganisation, were previously part of a larger Emerging Markets aggregated CGU

12 Investments In Joint ventures and associates

The amounts recogrised in the bafance sheet are as follows

All figures in £ milions 2015 2014

Assocaates 1,099 1,105

Jointventures 4 13

Total 1,103 1,118

The amounts recognised in the tncome statement are as foliows

Alt figures in £ milhons 2015 204
Assoriates 72 54

Jointventures 4 (3)
Total 68 51

inclucded within the 2015 results are discontinued operations consisting of £17m profit from associates (2014 £21m
profit} and £1m loss from joint ventures (2014 £1rmloss) For further information on discontinued operatlons and the
profit on sale of associates and joint ventures, see notes 3 and 31
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12 Investments in joint ventures and assoclates continued

Investment in associates

Qn 16 October 2015, the Group sold 39% of its 50% stake in The Economist {see note 31 for further information)
As at 31 December 2015, the Group holds an 11% stake in The Economist which has been classified as an‘Other
financial asset’ {see note 15)

The Group has the following material associates

Principal
placeof  Ownership Nature of Measurement
business interest  relationship method
Penguin Random House Ltd UK/Global 47% See below Equity
Pengutn Random House LLC us 47% Seebelow Equity

Gn 1July 2013 Penguin Random House was formed, upon the completton of an agreement between Pearsan and
Bertelsmann to merge their respective trade publishing companies, Penguin and Random House, with the parent
companies owning 47% and 53% of the combined business respectively The shareholder agreement includes
protection nghts for Pearson as the minority shareholder, including rights to dividends Management considers
ownership percentage, baard composition and the additional protective nights, and exercises judgement {o
determine that Pearson has significant influence over Penguin Random House and Bertelsmann has the powerto
direct the relevant activities and therefore control Penguin Random House does not have a quoted market price

The summansed financial iInformation of the matenal associates 1s detailed below

2015 2014

Penguin Penguin

Random The Random The
All figures in £ milkions House  Economist House Economist
Assets
Current assets 1,354 - 1,355 10
Non-current assets 1,244 - 1,429 166
Labilitres
Currentliabiities (1,034) - (1,113) (190)
Non-currentiabilities (358) - (424} (86)
Net assets 1,206 - 1,247 -
Sales 2,453 276 2416 320
Profit from continuing operations 136 - 74 -
Profit from discontinued operations - 34 - 42
Other comprehensive income/(expense) 51 - 42 (20)
Total comprehensive Income 187 34 116 22
Dividends receved from assoclate 142 20 a5 21

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the assocdates, adjusted for
fairvalue and similar adjustments Amounts presented for The Econormist cover the perod up until the date ofthe
partral disposal The tax on Penguin Random House LLC is settled by the partners For the purposes of clear and
consistent presentation, the tax has been shown in the associate line items n the consolidated Income statement
and consolidated balance sheet, recording the Group's share of profit after tax consistently for the Pengum Random
House associates
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12 Investments in joint ventures and associates continued

{nvestment in associates continued

Areconciliation of the summarised financlalinformation to the carrying value of the materal associates is

shown below
2015 2014
Penguln Penguln
Random The Random The
Allfigures in Emillions House Economist House Economist
Opening net assets 1,247 - 1,232 16
Exchange differences 1) - (1} -
Profit for the period 136 34 74 42
Other comprehensive Income/{expense) 51 - 42 {20}
Dividends, net of tax paid {229) {40) (100) (42)
Addiions 2 - - -
Distribution from assoclatein excess of carrying value - - - 4
Reversal of distribution from assoctate in excess of carrying value - 3 - -
Disposal - 9 - -
Closing net assets 1,206 - 1,247 -
Share of het assets 567 - 586 -
Goodwill 526 - 509 -
Carrying value of associate 1,093 - 1,095 -
Information on other individually Immaternal associates is detailed below
AH figures tn £ mlllions 2015 2014
Loss from continuing operations (9) (2)
Other comprehensive income - -
(9} (2)

Total comprehensive expense

Transactions with material associates

The Group has lpans to Penguin Random House which are unsecured and interest s calculated based on market
rates The amount outstanding at 31 December 2015 was £47m (2014 £54m) The loans are provided under a
working capital faciity and fluctuate during the year The loan outstanding at 31 Decernber 2015 was repaidin ts

entirety in January 2016

The Group also has a current asset recervable of £27m (2014 £41m)from Penguin Random House arnising fromthe

provision of services Included in other income {note 4) 1s £16m (2014 £41m) of service fees
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12 Investments in jomt ventures and associates continued

Investmentn joint ventures
Information on joint ventures, all of which are indwidually immaterial, is detaited below

Allfigures in £ enillions 2015 204
Loss from continuing operations (3 (3)
Loss from discontinued operations (1} -

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive expense @) (3)

13 Deferred income tax

All figures in £ millions 2015 2014
Deferred iIncome tax assets 276 295
Deferred income tax liabiltties (560) (714)
Net deferred income tax (284) (419)

Substantiaily all of the deferred income tax assets are expected to be recovered after more than one year

Deferred income tax assets and lrabiliies may be offset when there 1s alegally enforceable right to offset current
income tax assets against current income tax habilies and when the deferred income taxes relate (o the same
fiscal authority At3t December 2015 the Group has unrecognised deferred income tax assets of £nil {2014 £4m)
in respect of UK losses, £11m (2014 £14m}inrespect of US losses and approximately £70m (2014 £44m)inrespect
of losses in other terntones The US losses relate to state taxes and therefore have expiry periods of between five
and 20years

The recognition of the deferred income tax assets 1s supported by management's forecasts of the future profitability
of the relevant business units

The movement on the net deferred income tax account s as follows

All figures in £ millions Notes 2015 2014
At beginning of year M9 {362)
Exchange differences (26) (22)
Income statement benefit 7 196 10
Disposat through business disposal 1 (1)
Tax charge to other comprehensive income or equity (36} {18)
Transfer to current tax - (26}
At end of year {284} 419

Included in the mcome statement above for 2015 1s a £2m benefit (2014 £nif) relating to discontinued operations
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13 Deferred income tax cantinued

The movement in deferred income tax assets and habilities during the year 1s as follows

Retirement

All figures tn £ milllons T;;S;TEE prg\fltslig:: obllg:lrl‘:r?: Other Total
Deferred income tax assets
At1January 2014 15 39 42 154 250
Exchange differences 1 2 4 5 12
Acquisition through business combination 2 - - - 2
Income statement benefit 10 3 7 35 33
Tax benefit/(charge) to other comprehensive
Income or equity - - 10 (7} 3
Transfer to currenttax - - - {26) {26}
Disposal through business disposal - - (1) - (1)
At 31 December 2014 28 44 62 161 295
Exchange differences 5 3 4 g 21
Income statement charge {14) {4) (3} (15) (36}
Tax charge to other comprehensive income or equity - - @ - 4}
At 31 December 2015 19 43 59 155 276
Other deferred income tax assets include termporary differences on goodwill, deferred income, share-based
payments, inventory and other provisions

Goodwill and
All figures in Emillions intanglbles Other Total
Peferred income tax labihties
At1]anuary 2014 (584} (28) 612
Exchange differences (30} 4 (34
Acquisition through business combination (2) - (2)
Income statement benefit/icharge) 18 (63) 45)
Tax charge to other comprehensive income or equity - (21} (27)
At 31 December 2014 (598) (116) (714)
Exchange differences (41) (6} 4an
Income statement benefit 180 52 232
Disposal through bustness disposal 1 - 1
Tax charge to other comprehensive incorme or equity - (32) (32)
At 31 December 2015 (458) (102) {560)

Other deferred iIncome tax llabibtles include temporary differences in respect of depreciation and royalty advances
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14 dassification of financial instruments

The accounting classsfication of each class of the Group's financial assets and financial liabifities, together with their
carrying values and markat values, 1s as follows

2015
Falrvajue Amortised cost
Dervatives
deemed Derivatives Total Total
Available held for  inhedging Other  Loans and Other carrying market
All figures in £ milllons Notes  forsale trading relationships  liabilities receivables liabilities  value  value
investmentsn listed securities 15 - - - - - - - -
Investments in unlisted
securities 15 143 - - - - - 143 143
Cash and cash equivalents 17 - - - - 1,703 - 1703 1,703
Marketable secunities 28 - - - - - 28 28
Dervative financial instruments 16 - 29 81 - - - 110 110
Trade recewables 22 - - - - 963 - 963 963
Total financial assets m 29 81 - 2,666 - 2,947 2,947
Dervative financial instruments 16 - (38) {129) - - - (¥65) {165)
Trade payables 24 - - - - - (319 M9 (319
Bankloans and overdrafts 18 - - - - - (38 (38) (38)
Borrowings duewithinoneyear 18 - - - - - (244) (244) (244)
Borrowings due after more than
oneyear 18 - - - - - {2,048) (2,048) (2,009)
Total financial habilities - {36) (129) - - {2,649) (2,814) (2,775)
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14 Classificatton of financial instruments continued

2014
Fairvafue Amortised cost
Derlvatives
deerned  Derivatives Total Total

Avallable heldfor  Inhedging Other  Loansand Other carrying market
All figures in£ millions Notes forsale trading relationships  kabilities  receivables liabtiities value value
Investments in listed securities 15 9 - - - - - 9 9
Investments in unlisted
secunities 15 45 - - - - - 45 45
Cash and cash equivalents 17 - - - - 530 - 530 s30
Marketable securities 16 - - - - - 16 16
Derivative financial instruments 16 - 6 108 - - - 114 14
Trade recevables 22 - - - - 989 - 939 989
Total financial assets 70 6 108 - 1.519 - 3703 1,703
Derivative financialinstruments 16 - (33) {41) - - - {74 (74
Trade payables 24 - - - - - (329) (329 (329
Bank loans and overdrafts 18 - - - - - 42) 42 {42}
Borrowings due within one year 18 - - - - - (305) (305) (319)
Borrowings due after more than
oneyear 18 - - - - - (1,878) (1,878) (1.888)
Total financial hab:lifies - {33) (41 - -~ {2,554) (2,628) (2,652)

Certain of the Group’s derwative financial Instruments are classified as held for trading either as they do not meet
the hedge accountmg critena speafied in 1AS 39 *Financial Instruments Recogritton and Measurement’ or as the
Group has chosen not to seek hedge sccounting for these instruments None of these derivatives are held for
speculative trading purposes Transactions in derivative financial instruments are only undertaken to manage rnsks
anising from underlying business activity, in accordance with the Group's treasury policy as described in note 19

The Group designates certain qualifying dervative financial Instruments as hedges of the fair value of its bonds
(fair vafue hedges) Changes in the fair value of these dervative financial instruments are recorded in the tncome
statement, together with any change n the fair value of the hedged hability attributable to the hedged risk

The Group also designates certain of its borrowings and denvative financial instruments as hedges of its
investments in foreign operations (net investment hedges) Movements in the fair value of these financial

instruments {to the extent they are effective) are recognised in other comprehensive Income

None of the Group's financtal assets or liabllites are designated at fair value through the income staternent upon

initial recognition

More detaill on the Group's accounting for financial instruments 1s included m the Group's accounting policies
The Group's approach to managing risks in relation to financial instruments s described in note 19
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15 Other financial assets

Allfigures in £ millians 2015 2014
At begtnning of year 54 94
Exchange differences 3 6
Acguisition of investments 101 12
Disposal of investments (15) {58)
143 54

At end of year

Other financial assets compnse listed securtties of £nit {2014 £9m) and unhsted securinies of £143m {2014 £45m)
Acquisition of investments includes the remaining 119% stake 1n The Economist, see note 31 for further information

16 Derivative finanoal instruments

The Group's approach to the management of financial risks is set out in note 19 The Group's outstanding derivative

financial instruments are as follows

2015 2004
Gross Gross
notianal notional
Altfigures in £ mlilions amounts Assets Liabilities amounts Assets Liahilities
Interest rate derivatives -
In a fair value hedge relationship 1,952 70 (10 1,607 84 (5)
interest rate derivatives -
notfin a hedge relationship 848 - %) 673 - {7)
Cross-currency rate derivatives -
in a hedge relationship 1,879 10 (119) 889 24 (36)
Cross-currency rate derivatives -
notn a hedge refationshup 120 30 {30} 451 6 (26)
Total 4,799 10 (165) 3,620 14 (74)
Analysed as expining
In less than one year 324 32 (29) 200 24 (a}]
Later than one year and not later
than five years 1,255 44 (4} 1,386 67 (8)
Later than five years 3,220 34 (132) 2,034 23 (65)
Totat 4,799 110 {165} 3,620 114 (74)
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16 Dervative financial instruments continued

The carrying value of the above derivative financial instruments equals their fair value Farr values are determined
by using market data and the use of established estimation techniques such as discounted cash flow and option
valuation modeis

At the end of 2015, the currency split of the mark-to-market values of rate derivatives, including the exchange of

principal on cress-currency rate derivatives, was US dollar £{917)m, sterling £102m, euro £759m and Brazilian real
£ril (2014 US dollar £(607)m, sterling £214m, euro £430m and Brazihan real £4my)

The fixed interest rates o outstanding rate dervative contracts at the end of 2015 range from 110%to 14 48%
(2014 110% to 14 48%) and the floating rates are based on LIBOR tn US dollar, euro and sterling

The Group's portfolio of rate derivatives Is diversified by maturity, counterparty andtype Natural offsets between
transactions within the portfolio and the designation of certatn derwatives as hedges sighificantly reduce the risk
of Income statement volatiity The sensitivity of the portfolio to changes inmarket rates is set out innote 19

Dervative financial assets and liabilities subject to offsetting arrangements are as follows

2015 2014
Net Net
Gross Gross derivative Gross Gross derlvative
derivative denvative assets/ dervative dermvative assets/
All figures in £ milions assets llabilittes llabilitles assets labllities liabllites
Counterpartses (n an asset position 50 (22) 28 94 (28) 66
Counterparties in a hability position 60 (143) (83) 20 (486) (26)
Total as presented 1 the balance sheet 110 (165) (55) 114 (74) 40

Al of the Group’s derivative financial instruments are subject to enfo rceable netting arrangements with indmvidual
counterparties, allowing net setttement in the event of default of etther party Offset arrangements inrespect of ,
cash balances are shownn note 17

Counterparty exposure from 2l derivatives s managed, together with that from deposits and bank account
balances, within credit imits that reflect published credit ratings and by reference to other market measures{e g
market prices for credit default swaps) to ensure that there Is no significant risk to any one counterparty No single
derwvative transaction had a market value (positive or negative) at the balance sheet date that exceeded 3% of the

Group's consolidated total eguity
In accordance with IAS 29 ‘Financral instruments Recognition and Measurement’ the Group has reviewed all ofits

material contracts for embedded dervatives that are required to be separately accounted for if they do not meet
certain requirements, and has concluded that there are no materal embedded derivatives
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17 Cash and cash equivalents {excluding overdrafts)

Allfigures in £ millions 20158 204
Cash at bank and 1in hand 627 483
Short-term bank deposits 1,076 47

1,703 530

short-term bank deposits are mvested with banks and earn interest at the prevalling short-term deposit rates

Atthe end of 2015 the currency split of cash and cash equivalents was US dollar 23% (2014 18%), sterling 57%

(2014 13%), euro 2% (2014 3%), renminbi 8% (2014 28%) and other 10% (2014 38%)

Cash and cash equivatents have fair values that approximate to their carrying value due ta thesr short-term nature

Cash and cash equivatents include the following for the purpose of the cash flow statement

Allfigures in £ millions 2015 2014

Cash and cash equivalents —continuing operations 1,703 530

Bank overdrafts - continuing operations (32) 9%
1,671 Ch|

The Group has the following cash pooling arrangements in US dollars, sterling, euro and canadian dollars where

both the company and the bank have a legal night of offset

2015 2014

Offset Offset Net offset Offset Olfset Net offset

Allfigures in £ millions asset hability asset asset llabillzy asset

US doflars 446 (442) 4 267 (266) 1

Sterling 290 (289) 1 430 427) 3

Euro s {3) 2 g (8) 1

Canadian dollars 36 . {10) 26 10 - 10
Total for continuing operations as

presented in the balance sheet 33 15

Offset arrangements in respect of derivatives are shown in note 16
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18 Financial habilities - borrowings

The Group's current and non-current borrowings are as follows

Alt figures In £ millions 2015 2014
Non-current
4 0% US dollar notes 2016 {(nominal amount $350m) - 2
6 25% Global dollar bonds 2018 (nominal amount $550m) 403 390
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 (norminal amount $300m) 218 210
1 875% Euro notes 2021 {nominal amount €500m) 386 408
3 7595 US dollar notes 2022 {nammnal amount $500m) 342 319
3 25% US dollar notes 2023 {nominal amount $500m) 336 315
1 375% Euro notes 2025 (nominal amount €500m) 359 -
Bank loans and overdrafts - 5
Finance lease Habihties 4 5
, 2,048 1,883
Current
Due within cne year or on-demand
6 0% Sterling bonds 2015 {nominal amount £360m) - 300
4 0% US dollar notes 2016 {(hominal amount $350m) 240 -
Bank loans and overdrafts 38 37
Finance lease liabilities 4 5
282 342
Total borrowings 2,330 2,225
Included in the non-current borrowings above 1s £15m of accrued interest {2014 £13m) Included in the current
borrowings above is £1m of accrued interest (2014 £1m)
The maturity of the Group’s non-current borrowing 1s as follows
All figures In £ millions 2015 2014
Between one and twa years 3 239
Between two and five years 622 602
Over five years 1,423 1,042
2,048 1,883
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18 Financeal habilities - borrowings continued EO_
The carrying amounts and market values of borrowings are as follows %
2015 2014 “
Effective Carrying Market Effective Carrying Market
All figures in £ millions Interest rate value value  interestrate value value
Bank toans and overdrafts nfa 38 38 n/a 42 42
6 0% Steriing bonds 2015 - - - 6 27% 300 314
4 0% US doltar notes 2016 4 26% 240 240 4 26% 231 233
6 25% Global dollar bonds 2018 6 46% 403 405 646% 390 397 @2
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 4 69% 218 213 4 69% 210 205 %
1 875% Euro notes 2021 204% 386 380 204% 408 407 g
375% LS dollar notes 2022 394% 342 335 394% 319 327 3
3 25% US dollar notes 2023 3 36% 336 322 3 36% 315 314
1375% Euro notes 2025 144% 359 350 n/a - -
Finance lease habilities n/a 8 8 n/a 10 10
2,330 2,291 2,225 2,249
The market values stated above are based on clean market prices at the year end or, where these are not available, E
onthe quoted market prices of comparable debt 1ssued by other companies The effective interest rates above relate g
to the underiying debtinstruments 2
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the following currencies §
Allfigures in £ millfons 2015 2014
US dollar 1,563 1,491
Sterling 1 303
Eurc 759 408
Other 7 23 gﬁ_
2,330 2,225 3
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18 Financial habthtres - borrowings continued

The Group has the following undrawn capacity on its committed borrowang faclities as at 31 December

All figures in £ millions 2015 2004

Floating rate

- expiing within one year - -

- expiring beyond one year 1,187 1122
1,187 1,122

In addition to the above facilities, there are a number of short-term facilittes that are utilised in the normai course

of bustness

All of the Group’s borrowings are unsecured In respect of finance lease obligations, the rights to the leased asset

revert to the lessor in the event of default

The maturity of the Group’s finance lease obhgations 1s as follows

Allfigures in £ millions 2015 2014
Finance lease hatilities - mimmum tease payments
Not later than one year 5
Later than one year and not later than two years 3
Later than two years and not later than three years 1 1
Later than three years and not later than four years - 1
Later than four years and notlater than five years - -
Later than five years - -
Future finance charges onfinance leases - -
Presentvalue of finance lease liabilities 8 10
The present value of finance lease habilities 1s as follows
All figures in £ mitlions 2015 2014
Not later than ane year 4 5
Later than one year and not later than five years 4 5
Later than five years - -
8 10

The carrying amounts of the Group’s lease obligations approximate ther fair value
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18 Financral risk management

The Group's approach to the management of finangial nisks together with sensitivity analyses of its finanaal
Instruments is set out below

Treasury policy

The Group halds financial mstruments for two principal purposes to finance its operations and to manage the
interest rate and currency nisks ansing from its operations and its sources of finance The Group finances its
operations by a mixture of cash flows from operations, short-term borrowings from banks and commercial paper
markets, and longer-term [oans from banks and capital markets The Group borrows principallyin US dollars, euros
and sterling, at both floating and fixed rates of interest, using derwative financial instruments ('derivatives’), where
appropriate, to generate the desired currency profile and interest rate basis The derivatives used for this purpose
are principally rate swaps, rate caps and collars, currency rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts

The main risks ansing from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, hquidity and refinancing risk,
counterparty risk and foreign currency risk Thase risks are managed by the chief financral officer under policies
approved by the board, which are summarised in this note All the key treasury poiicies remained unchanged
throughout the year, except for revisions to the Group's bank counterparty risk imets and clarifications in respect
of the Group's approach to compliance with laws and regulations

The audit committee recelves regular reports on the Group's treasury activities, policies and procedures
The treasury departmentis not a profit centre and its actiwities are subject to regular internal audrt

Liquidity and refinancing risk management

The Group's objective is to secure continuity of funding at a reasonable cost To dothisit seeksto arrange committed
funding for a vanety of maturities from a diversity of sources The Group's policy objective is to maintain the
welghted average maturity of its core gross borrowings {treating short-term advances as having the final matunity of
the faciliies available to refinance them) to be between three and ten years At the end of 2015 the average maturity
of gross borrowings was 5 1 years (2014 47 years) of which bonds represented 98% (2014 97%) of these borrowings

The Group believes that ready access to different funding markets also helps to reduce its liquidity nsk, and that
published credst ratings and pubiished financial policies improve such access At the year end, the long-term ratings
were Baal from Moody's and BBB+ from Standard 8 Poor’s, and the short-term ratings were P2 and A2 respectively
All of the Group's credit ratings remaned unchanged during the year, although in October 2015, Standard & Poor's
changed the outlook on their Jong-term rating from 'Stabie’ to ‘Negative’ In February 2016, Moody’s changed
Pearsen’s long-term rating from Baa1 (negative) to Baa2 (stable) In March 2016, Standard & Poor's changed
Pearson's long-term rating from BBB+ (Negative) to BBB (Stable} The short-term ratings from Moody’s and Standard
& Poor’s remain unchanged at P2 and A2 The Group's policy 1s to strive to maintain a rating of Baal/BBB+ over the
long term The Group also uses a range of ratios to monitor and manage its finances internally These include interest
cover, net debt to operating profit and cash flow to debt measures The Group also maintains undrawn committed
borrowmng facihities At the end of 2015 the committed facilities amounted to $1,750m (£1,187m) and thewr weighted
average maturity was 4 6 years

Interest rate nsk management

The Group's exposiire to Interest rate fluctuations on its borrowings is managed by berrowing on a fixed rate basis
and by entering Into rate swaps, rate caps and forward rate agreements The Group also aims te avoid undue
exposure to a single interest rate setung Reflecting this objective, the Group has predominantly swapped its fixed
rate bond issues to floating rate at their launch This creates a group of derivatives, under which the Groupisa
recewver of fixed rates and a payer of floating rates

The Group's policy objective has continued to be to set a target proportion of its forecast borrowings (taken atthe
year end, with cash netted against floating rate debt and before certain adjustments for IAS 39) to be hedged (1 e
fixed or capped at the year end) over the next four years, subject to a maximum of 65% and a minimum that starts at
40% and falls by 10% at each year end At the end of 2015 the fixed to floating hedging ratio, onthe above basis, was
approximately 90% 10% The higher than policy ratio 1s a result of ugher cash balances due to divestments in 2015
Qur policy is to not clase out contracts where we anticipate reverting to comphance with the policy over thefonger
term Asimultaneous 1% change on 1 January 2016 1n the Group's variable interest rates in US dollar and sterling,
taking mto account forecast seasonal debt, would have a £6m effect on profit before tax
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19 Financial risk management continued

Interest rate risk management continued

The policy described above creates a further group of derivatives, under which the Group is a payer of fixed rates
and a recewver of floating rates The Group's accounting objective in relation to its use of interest rate dervatives Is
to minimise the impact on the income statement of changes i the mark-to-market value of its derivative portfolio
asawhole It uses duration calculations to estimate the sensitivity of the derivatives to movementsin market
rates The Group also identifies which dervatives are eligible for fair value hedge accounting (which reduces the
income statement tmpact of changes 1n the market value of a derwvative) The Group then balances the total
portfolio between hedge-accounted and pocled segments, so that the expected movement on the pooted
segment 1s minimal

Financial counterparty risk management
Counterparty credit [imits, which take published credit rating and other factors into accaunt, are set to cover the

Group's total aggregate exposure to a single financial institution The hmits applicable to published credit ratings
bands are approved by the chref financial officer within guidelines approved by the board Exposures and lirmits
applicable to each financial institution are reviewed on a regular basis

Foreign currency risk management

Although the Group is based in the UK, it has its most significant investment in overseas operations The most
significant currency for the Group is the US dollar The Group's policy on routine transactional conversions between
currencies (for example, the collection of receivables, and the settlement of payables or interest} remains that these
should be transacted at the relevant spot exchange rate The majority of the Group's operations are domesticwithin
their country of operatton No unremitted profits are hedged with foreign exchange contracts, as the company
judges it napproprate to hedge non cash flow translational exposure with cash flow mstruments However, the
Group does seek to create a natural hedge of this exposure through its policy of aligning approximately the currency
composition of its core net borrowings (after the impact of cross-currency rate derivatives) withits forecast
operating profit before depreciation and amortisation This policy aims to soften the impact of changes in foreign
exchange rates on consohdated interest cover and earnings The policy above applies only to currencies that account
for more than 15% of Group operating profit before depreciation and amortisation, which currently is only the S
dollar The Group still borrows small amounts in other currencies, typically for seasonal working capital needs The
Group policy does not require existing currency debt to be terminated to match declines in that currency’s share of
Group operating profit before depreciation and amortisation In addition, currencies that account for less than 15%
of Group operating profit before depreciation and amortisation can be included in the above hedging process at the
request of the chief financial officer

Included withinyear end net debt, the net borrowings/{cash) in the hedging currencies above {taking into account
the effect of cross-currency swaps) were US dollar £1,345m and steriing £(385}m

Use of currency debt and currency derivatives
The Group uses both currency denominated debt and dervative instruments to implement the above poticy

Its intention is that gains/losses on the derivatives and debt offset the losses/gains on the foreign currency assets
and tncome Each quarter the value of hedging instrurents 1s monitored against the assets In the relevant
currency and, where practical, a dacision 1s made whether to treat the debt or derivative as anet Investment
hedge {permitting foreign exchange movements on 1t to be taken to reserves) for the purposes of IAS 39
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19 Financial nsk management continued

Analysis of Group debt, including the impact of dervatives
The following tables analyse the Group's sources of funding and the impact of derivatives on the Group’s
debtinstruments

The Group's net debt position 1s set out below

All figures in Emulltons 2015 2014
Cash and cash equivalents 1,703 530
Marketable securities 28 16
Derivative financial iInstruments (55) 40
Bank loans, overdrafts and loan notes (38) (42)
Bonds (2,284) {2173)
Finance lease kabtlities (8) 19
Net debt (654) (1,639)
The split of net debt between fixed and floating rate, stated after the impact of rate dervatives, Is as follows

Allfigures in £ milltons 2015 2034
Fixed rate 577 597
Floating rate 77 1,042
Total 654 1,639
Gross borrowings, after the impact of cross-currency rate derivatrves, analysed by currency are as follows

All figures in £ millions 2015 2014
Us doliar 2,308 2,099
Steriing 1 104
Other 21 22
Total 2,330 2,225

As at 31 December 2015 the exposure of the borrowings of the Group to interest rate changes when the borrowings

re-price I1s as follows

Less than Cneto  Morethan
Allfiguresin £ millions oneyear five years five years Total
Re-pricing profile of borrowings 282 625 1,423 2,330
Effect of rate derivatives 1,449 (33) {1,416) -
Total 1,73 592 7 2,330
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19 Financiat sk management continued

The matunty of contracted cash flows associated with the Group's financial labihies 1s as follows

2015
Al figures in£ milions usp GBP Other Total
Not later than one year 470 58 73 601
Later than one year and not later than five years 705 - - 705
Later than five years 1,578 - - 1,578
Total 2,753 58 73 2,884
Analysed as
Bonds 1,745 - 829 2,574
Rate derivatives - Inflows {335) (858) (919} {2,112)
Rate denvatives - outflows 1,155 858 50 2,103
Trade payables 188 58 73 319
Total 2,753 58 73 2,884

2014
Allfiguresn £ muilions N uso GBP Other Total
Not later than one year 398 160 99 657
Later than one year and not later than five years 877 - - 877
Later thanfive years 1,126 - - 1,126
Total 2,40 160 99 2,660
Analysed as
Bonds 171 318 439 2,468
Rate derivatives - inflows (379) (656) (537} 1,572)
Rate denvatives - outflows 893 444 98 1,435
Trade payables 176 54 99 329
Total 2,401 160 99 2,660

All cash flow projections shown above are on an undiscounted basls Any cash flows based on a floating rate are
calculated using interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset Wherethisis not possible, floating rates are
based on interest rates prevalling at 31 December in the relevant year All dervative amounts are shown gross,
although the Group net settles these amounts wherever possible

Any amounts drawn under revolving credit faciities and commercial paper are assumed to mature at the maturity
date of the relevant facility, with interest calculated as payable in each calendar year up to and including the date of

raturity of the facility
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19 Financial nsk management continued

Financial instruments - fair value measurement
The following table provides an analysis of those financial instruments that are measured subsequently to initiat
recognition at fair value, grouped into levels 1 to 3, based on the degree to which the fair vaiue 1s observable

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or iabilities,

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from iputs, other than quoted prices included within levet 1,
that are observable for the asset or ltability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices), and

Level 3 far value measurements are those derived fromvaluation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
hability that are net based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

2015 204
Allfigures in £ millions levell Level2 Level3 Total Level 1 Level2  Levei3 Total
Financial assets at fair value
Derivative financial assets - 110 - 110 - 14 - 114
Marketable secunties - 28 - 28 - 16 - 16
Availabie for safe financral assets
Invesimenits in listed securities - - - - - 9 - 9
Investments In unlisted securities - - 143 143 - - 45 45
Financial habilities at fair vaiue
Derwative financial labiities - (165) - (165) - {74) - (74)
Total - (27) 143 116 - 65 45 10

The foliowing table analyses the movements i level 3 fair value measurements

2015 2014

tnvastments Investrnents

inunlisted Inunlisted

Allfiguresin £ millions securities securities

At beginning of year 45 94

Exchange differences 3 6

Addtions 101

Fair value movements - -
Disposals {6) (58)

Atend of year 143 45

The fatr value of the 11% stake in The Econonist is valued by reference to the disposal transaction terms The farr
value of the remaiming investments in unhisted securities is determined by reference to the financial performance
of the underlying asset and amounts realised on the sate of similar assets
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19 Fnanaal nsk management continued

Financial instruments - sensitivity analysis
As at 31 December 2015 the sensitivity of the carrying value of the Group's financial instruments to fluctuations
in interest rates and exchange rates 1s as follows

tmpactof 1% lmpactof 1% Impactof10% Impactof 10%

Carrying Increasein decreasein strengthening weakeningin
Allfigures in Emllliens value Interestrates [nterestrates In sterling sterling
Investments in hsted securities - - - - -
Investments 1n unfisted secunties 143 - - (4) 5
Cash and cash equivalents 1,703 - - (67) 82
Marketable securities 28 - - - -
Derivative financial instruments {55) {93} 99 14 (18)
Bonds (2,284) 97 (103) 208 (254)
Other borrowings {46) - - 3 {6)
Other net financial assets 644 - - (57 68
Total financal instruments 133 4 (L] 99 {123)

The table shows the sensitivities of the fair values of each class of financial instruments to anisolated change in
elther interest rates or foreign exchange rates The class ‘Other net financial assets' comprises trade receivahles
less trade payables

The sensttivities of dervative instruments are calculated using established estimation techniques such as
discounted cash fiow and option vatuation models Where modelling an interest rate decrease of 1% led to negative
interest rates, these pomnts on the yield curve were adjusted to 0% A large proportion of the movements shown
above would impact equity rather than the income statement, due to the locatron and functional currency of the
entities 1n which they arise and the avaitability of net investment hedge treatment The changes in valuations are
estimates of the impact of changes in market vartables and are not a prediction of future events or anticipated gains
or losses
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20 intangible assets - Pre-publication

Allfigures in £ millions 2015 2004
Cost

Atbeginning of year 2,138 1,933
Exchange differences 66 80
Additions 347 358
Disposal through business disposal {90) -
Disposals (260} (234)
Acgquisitton through business combination - 1
Atend of year 2,201 2138
Amortisation

Atbegmning of year {1,318) (1,216}
Exchange differences 47) 60}
Charge for the year (281) {292)
Disposal through business disposal 26 -
Disposals 260 234
Transfer to recevables - 16
Atend of year {1,360) {1,318}
Carrying amounts

Atend of year 841 820

Included in the above are pre-publication assets amounting to £580m {2014 £546m)which will be realised in more

than one year

Amortisation 1s included n the income statement in cost of goods sold There was no amortisation within

disconunued operations tn erther year

Disposal through business dispesal amounts relate to the disposal of PowerSchool, see note 31 for further

information

21 Inventories

Allfigures in £milions 2015 2014
Raw matenials 8 9
Work in progress 8 10
Finished goods 195 205

21 224

The cost of inventories relating to continuing operations recognised as an expense and included i the income
statement in cost of goods sold amounted to £331m (2014 £379m} In 2015, £33m (2014 £38m)of inventory

provisions was charged in the income statement None of the inventory s pledged as security
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22 Trade and other receivables

Al figures in £ milllons 2015 2014
Current
Trade receivables 938 963
Royalty advances 20 18
Prepayments and accrued income 118 107
Other recevables 208 222
1,284 1,310
Non-current
Trade receivables 25 26
Royalty advances 13 8
Prepayments and accrued income 43 30
Other receivables 34 18
115 82

Trade receivables are stated at fair value, net of provistons for bad and doubtful debts and anticipated future sales

returns The movements on the provision for bad and doubtful debts are as foliows

All figures in £ millions 2015 2014
Atbeginning of year (73) {58)
£xchange differences 3 -
Income statement movements (31) {21}
Utihsed 32 17
Acquisition through business combination - (n
Disposal through business disposal 5 -
Atend of year (64) (73)
Concentratians of credit risk with respect to trade recervables are limited due to the Group's large number of
customers, who are internationally dispersed
The ageing of the Group’s trade recervables s as foliows
All figures In £millians 2015 2014
within due date 754 869
Up to three months past due date 253 203
Three to six months past due date 58 40
Sixto nine months past due date 19 15
Nine to 12 months past due date 13 15
More than 12 months past due date 16 11
Total trade receivables 1,13 1,153
Less provision for sales returns {150) (164)
963 989

Net trade receivables

The Group reviews its bad debt provision at least twice a year following a detailed review of receivable balances and

historical payment profiles Management believes all the remaining receivable balances are fully recoverable
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23 Prowisions for other habthties and charges

Deferred Disposals Legal
Ali figuresin £ miilions consideration Property and closures and other Total
At 1 january 2015 57 7 20 51 135
Exchange differences 3 - - {4 (1)
Charged to income statement - - - 12 12
Released to Income statement n - - (4} (3)
Disposal through business disposal - m - U] {2)
Utilised (6) - - (20) 26)
At 31 December 2015 53 6 20 34 113
Analysis of provisions
2015
Allfigures in £ milions cunsﬁlg-:rt::: Property anc?clie?:::eli and :l;;f:: Total
Current ] 3 15 19 42
Non-current 48 3 5 15 71
53 6 20 34 113
2004
Current 7 4 20 22 53
Non-current 50 3 - 29 82
57 7 20 51 135

Deferred consideration primarily relates to the formation of a venture in a North America business in 2011
Disposals and closures include habifities related to the disposal of Penguin Legal and other includes legal claims,

contract disputes and potential contract losses
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24 Trade and other abilities

Allflgures in £ millions 2015 2014
Trade payables 319 329
Social security and other taxes 22 21
Accruals n 501
Deferred income 766 801
Interest payable 19 28
Other liabilities 249 23
1,746 1,911

Less. non-current porticn
Accruals 20 22
Deferred income 262 20
Interest payable - 19
Cther habilities 74 68
356 310
Current portton 1,390 1,601

The carrying value of the Group's trade and other habilities approximates its fair value

The deferred incorne balance comprises principally multi-year obligations to defiver workbooks to adaption
customers in school businesses, advance payments in assessment, testng and training businesses, subscription
income i school and college businesses, and obligations to deliver digital content future periods

25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations

Background
The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans throughout the worid

The largest plan s the Pearsen Group Pension Plan (UK Group plan)in the UK, whichis sectionakised to provide both
defined benefit and defined contnbution pension benefits The defined benefit section was dosed to new members
from 1 November 2006 The defined contribution section, opened in 2003, 1s open to new and existing employees
Finally, there 1s a separate section wathtn the UK Group plan set up for auta-enrolment The defined benefit section
of the UK Group plan is a final salary pension plan which provides benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed
level of penston payable for Iife The level of benefits depends onthe length of service and final pensionable pay

The UK Group plan Is funded with benefit payments from trustee administered funds The UK Group planis
administered in accardance with the Trust Deed and Rules in the interests of its beneficiaries by Pearson Group
Penston Trustee Limited

At 31 December 2015 the UK Group plan has approximately 25,000 members, analysed tn the foliowing table

Allfiguresin % Active Deferred  Pensloners Total
Defined benefit 1 27 34 62
Defined contribution 14 24 - 38

Total 15 51 34 100
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25 Rettrrement benefit and other post-retirement obligations contnued g
(=
Background continued ]
The other major defined benefit plans are based in the US These are also final salary pension plans which provide E
benefits to members In the form of a guaranteed pension payable for hfe, with the level of benefits dependent on v
length of service and final pensionable pay The majority of the US plans are funded
The Group also has several post-retirement medical benefit plans (PRMBs), principally in the US PRMBs are
unfunded but are accounted for and valued similarly to defined benefit penston plans
The defined benefit schemes expose the Group to actuarial nisks, such as Iife expectancy, inflation rnisks, and
investment risk including asset volatiity and changes in bond yields The Group 15 not exposed to any unusual,
entity specific or ptan specific risks e
Assumptions ‘i
The principal assumptions used for the UK Group plan and the US PRMB are shown below Weighted average )
assumptions have been shown for the other plans, which primarily relate to Us penstan plans §
A
2015 2018
UX Graup Qther UK Group Other
AllfAguresin% plan plans PRMB plan plans PRMB
Inflation 31 25 25 30 25 25
Rate used to discount plan liabilities 37 40 40 36 37 37
Expected rate of increase tn salaries 36 30 30 35 39 40 o
Expected rate of increase for pensions in g
payment and deferred pensions 19t0510 - - 19t0505 - - 2
3
initial rate of increase In healthcare rate - - 70 - - 70 B
Ultimate rate of increase in healthcare rate - - 50 - - 50
The UK discount rate 1s based on corporate bond yields adjusted to reflect the duration of habiities The US discount
rate 15 set by reference to a US bond portfolio matching model
The Inflation rate for the UK Group plan of 3 1% reflects the RPirate inhne with changesto legislabon in 2010, certain
benefits have been calculated with reference to CPl as the inflationary measure and in these instances arate of 2 1% a
has been used 2
The expected rate of increase in salaries has been set at 3 6% for 2015 with a short-term assumption of 2 0% for §
8

threeyears

For the UK plan, the mortality base table assumptions have been derved from the SAPS ‘all pensioners’ tables for
males and the SAPS ‘normal health pensioners’ tables for females, adjusted to reflect the observed experience of the
plan, with CMI model improvement factors A1 5% long-term rate improvement on the CMI model 1s applied for both
males and females

For the US plans, the mortalty table (RP - 2014)and 2014 Improvement scale (MP - 2014) with no adjustments have
been adopted from 2014, reflecting the mortality assumption most prevalent nthe US
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligabons conttnued

Assumptions contnued

Using the above tables, the remaring average life expectancy inyears of a pensioner retining at age 65 on the

balance sheet date for the UK Group plan and US plans 1s as follows

UK us
Allfigures Inyears 2015 2014 2015 2014
Male 235 244 212 216
Female 256 245 232 238
The remaining average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65, 20years after the balance sheat
date, for the UK and US Group plans 15 as follows

UK us
Allflgures inyears 2015 2014 2015 2004
Male 255 266 229 233
Female 278 264 249 255
Aithough the Group anticipates that plan surpluses will be utirsed dunng the ife of the plan to address member
benefits, the Group recognises its pension surplus in fult in respect of the UK Group plan on the basisthat itis
management’s judgement that there are no substantive restrictions on the return of residual plan assets in the
event of a winding up of the plan after all member obligations have been met
Financial statement information
The amounts recogrised in the income statement are as follows

2015
Defined
UK Group benefit Defined

All figures in £ milbons plan ather Sub-total contributron PRMB Total
Current service cost 20 2 22 74 - 96
Curtallments 3 - (3 - - E)
Adrinistration expenses 5 - 5 - - 5
Total operating expense 22 2 24 74 - 98
Interest on plan assets {98) (5} {103) - - (103)
Interest on plan liabilities 50 7 97 - 2 99
Net finance (Income)/expense (8) 2 (3] - 2 (4)
Net income statement charge 14 4 18 74 2 94
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued E;"
(=
Financal statement information continued &
p=]
084 @
Defined
UK Groups benefit Defined
All figures in £ miffions plan other Sub-tatal  contribution PRMB Total
Current service cost 20 2 22 69 2 93
Curtaiiments (5 - {5} - (13} (18)
Administration expenses 4 - 4 - - 4
Total operating expense 19 2 2 69 (11} 79 @
Interest on plan assets (103) N (110) - - {110) '%
Interest on plan habilstres 98 8 106 - 3 109§
Net finance (income)expense {5) 1 Y] - m ::;’
Net income statement charge/(income} 14 3 17 69 & 78
Included within the 2015 results are discontinued operations consisting of a £5m charge (2014 £nil)relating to
defined benefit schemes and a £8m charge {2014 £8m charge) relating to defined contribution schemes
The amounts recognised in the batance sheet are as follows
o)
2015 s S
&
Other Other Other [a}
UKXGroup funded unfundad UKGroup  funded unfunded =
Allfigures in£ millions plan plans plans Total plan plans Total 133
Fair value of plan assets 2,803 135 - 2938 2714 - 2878 2
Present value of defined
benefit obligation (2,466) (157) (18) (2,641) (2,524) (23) (2,743)
Net pension asset/(hability) 337 (22) 18) 297 190 {23) 135
Other post-retirement medical
benefit sbhgation (76) B8y 5
=]
Other pension accruals 23) (27) &
>
Net retirement henefit asset 198 27 3
1]
Analysedas.
Retirement benefit assets 337 190
Retirement benefit obligations (139) (163)

SIUBLUNEBIS [BLOUBULS




194  Pearson pte Annual report and accounts 2015

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Financial statementinformation continued
The followmng gains/(lossesy have been recognised in other comprehensive income

Al flguresin £milllons 2015 204
Amounts recognised for defined benefit plans 104 36
Amounts recognised for post-retirement medical benefit plans & (13)
Total recogrused in year 110 23
The fair value of plan assets comprises the following
2015 204
Other Other
UK Group funded UK Group funded
All figures in % plan plans Total plan plans Total
Equities 12 2 14 26 2 28
Bonds 8 2 10 42 3 45
Property 9 - 9 9 - 9
Qualifying investment fund 50 - 50 - - -
Other 17 - 17 17 1 18

The plan assets do not include any of the Group's own financial Instruments, or any property occupted by the Group

The table below further disaggregates the UK Group plan assets into additional categories and those assets which

have a quoted market price i an active market and those that do not

2015 2014
Quoted  No guoted Quoted  Noguoted
Alfiguresin% marketprice marketprice marketprice market price
UK equities - 1 5 1
Non-UK equities 11 2 20 2
Fixed-interest secursties 6 - 19 -
Index-hnked secunties 4 - 26 -
Property - 9 - 9
Qualifying investment fund 50 - - -
Other - 17 - 18
Total n 29 70 30
The hquidity profile of the UK Group plan assets 1s as follows
Alifiguresn % 2015 2014
Liquid - call <1 month 73 72
Less iquid - call 1-3 months 2 2
25 26

Liquid - call >3 months
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Financial statement information continued
Changes in the values of plan assets and liabilities of the retirement benefit plans are as follows

2015 204
UK Group Other UK Group Other

All figures In £ rudlions plan plans Total plan plans Total
Fair value of plan assets
Opening fair value of ptan assets 2714 164 2,878 2,353 156 2,509
Exchange differences - 2 2 - 4 4
Interest on plan assets 98 5 103 103 7 110
Return on plans assets excludinginterest (8) 4) (12) 286 9 295
Contributions by employer 72 5 77 62 4 66
Contributions by employee 2 - 2 2 - 2
Benefits paid (95) (17) (112) (92) (16) {108)
Transfer 20 (20 - - - -
Closing fair value of plan assets 2,803 135 2,938 2714 164 2,878
Presentvalue of defined
benefit obhigation
Opening defined benefit obligation (2,524) {219) (2,743) {2,.267) {191 {2.458)
Exchange differences ~ (3) {3) - (5) {5)
Current service cost (20} (2 (22) (20} (2} {22)
Administration expenses (5) - (5) 4 - (4)
Curtailments 3 - 3 S - 5
Interest cost (90) N (97) {98) {8) (106}
Actuarial gains/{losses) - experience 107 2 109 11 1)) 10
Actuarial gains/({losses) - demographic (33) 1 (32) - (8) (8}
Actuanal gains/{losses) - financial a3 6 39 {241) (20} {261)
Contributions by employee (2) - 2) {2) - (2}
Transfer (30 30 - - - -
Benefits pard 95 17 12 92 16 108
Closing defined benefit obligation (2,466) (175) (2,641} (2.524) (219) (2,743)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obhgation s 17 1 years for the UK and 8 7 years forthe US
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obhgations continued

Financial statement information continued
Changes in the value of the US PRMB are as follows

All figures kn £ millions 2015 2014
Opentng defined benefit obligation (81) (77)
Exchange differences (3) 4
Current service cost - (2)
Curtaiments - 13
Interest cost (2} (3)
Actuarial gains/(losses) - experience 2 -
Actuarial gains/{losses) - demographic 2 {7
Actuanal gains/{losses) - financral 2 (6)
Benefits paid 4 5
(76} {81}

Closing defined benefit obligation

Funding
The UK Group plan is self-administered with the plan's assets being held independently of the Groupin trust

The trustee of the plan is required to act in the best interest of the plan's beneficiaries The most recent triennal
actuarial valuation for funding purposes was completed as at 1 January 2015 and this valuation revealed a techrucal
provistons funding shortfall of £27m which was eliminated by contributians paid during 2015

As a consequence of the disposal of the FT Group, an agreement has been made between Pearson and the Plan
Trustee to accelerate the funding of the plan so that 1t becomes fully funded on a ‘self-sufficrency’ basis in the near
future Thisis a2 much higher fevel of funding than technical provisions As a result the plan expects to be ableto
provide henefits (in accordance with the plan rules) with a very low level of rehance on future funding from Pearson
A commitment has also been made to maintasn that level of funding in future years In addition to a substantial
company contribution following the Penguin Randam House merger (to be paid before July 2017), an upfront
contribution will be made to the plan following the disposal of the FT Group This is expected to be approximately
£90m and there will be further annual contributions to eliminate any remaining shortfatl in the self-sufficiency
funding

At 31 December 2015, assets of the plan are dvided into two elements matching assets, which are assets that
produce cash flows that can be expected to match the cash flows for a proportion of the membership, and include

a Liability Driven investment mandate (UK Bonds, interest rate/inflation swaps and other dervative instruments),
inflation-linked property and infrastructure, and return seeking assets, which are assets invested with a fonger-term
horizon to generate the returns needed to provide the remaining expected cash flows for the beneficiaries, and
include equitias, property and alternative asset classes During the fourth quarter of 2015 the plan’s long-term
Investment strategy was updated to an allccation of 84 2% Matching Assets and 15 8% Return Seeking Assets as

at 31 December 2015

Regular contributions to the ptan in respect of the defined benefit sections are estimated to be £8m for 2016

The Group expects to contribute $10m n 2076 and $10m 1n 2017 to its US defined benefit pension plans
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25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Sensitivities
The effect of a one percentage pomnt Increase and decrease in the discount rate on the defined benefit obligation and

the tatal pension expense is as follows

2015
Allfigures in £ milllons 1%increase 1% decrease
Effect
{Decrease)/increase in defined benefit obligation - UK Group plan (372) 495
{Decrease)increase In defined benefit obligation - US plan (16) 19
The effect of members living one year more or one year less on the defined benefit obligation is as follows
2015
1year 1year
all figures in £ millions Increase decrease
Effect
Increase/{decrease) in defined benefit obligation - UK Group plan 100 (96)
Increasef(decrease) in defined benefit obligation - US plan 7 (7)
The effect of a half parcentage pointincrease and decrease in the inflation rate s as follows
2015
o 5% 05%
All figures in £ milllons increase decrease
Effect
Increasef(decrease} in defined benefit obhgation - UK Group plan 13 (103)

Increase/{decrease) i defined benefit obligation - US plan - -

The above sensitvity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant,
although in practice this 1s unlikely to occur and changes in some assumptions may be correlated When calculating
these sensitvities the same method has been applied to calculate the defined benefit obligation as has been applied
when calculating the liability recogmised in the balance sheet This methodologyis the same as prior penods

26 Share-based payments

The Group recogrised the following charges in the income statement in respect of its equity-settled share-based
payment plans

Allfigures {n £ millians 2015 2014

Pearson plans 26 32

Share-based payment charges included in discontinued operations amounted to £3m (2014 E3m} The Group
operates the following equity-settled employee optron and share plans

Worldwide Save for Shares Plan Stnce 1994, the Group has operated a Save-As-You-Earn plan for UK employees

in 1998, the Group introduced a Worldwide Save for Shares Plan Under these plans, employees can save a poruon
of their monthly salary over periods of three or five years At the end of this period, the employee has the option to
purchase ordinary shares with the accumulated funds at a purchase price equal to 80% of the market price prevaiing
at the time of the commencement of the employee’s participation in the plan Options that are not exercised within
six months of the end of the savings pertod lapse unconditionally
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26 Share-based payments continued

Employee Stock Purchase Plan in 2000, the Group established an Employee Stock Purchase Plan which allows all
employees in the US to save a portion of their monthly salary over six-month periods At the end of the period, the
employee has the option to purchase ADRs with their accumulated funds ata purchase price equal to 85% of the
lower of the market price prevaling at the beginnng or end of the period

Long-Term Incentive Plan This plan was first introduced in 2001, renewed in 2006 and again in 2011 The plan
conststs of restricted shares The vesting of restricted shares s normally dependent on continuing service overa
three to five-year period, and in the case of senior management upon the satisfaction of corporate performance
targets over a three-year period These targets may be based on market and/or non-market performance criteria
Restricted shares awarded to senior management in May 2014 and May 2015 vest dependent on relative total
shareholder return, return on invested capital and earnings per share growth Restnicted shares awarded to sentor
management in November 2014 vest dependent on earnings per share growth Other restricted shares awarded in
2014 and 2015 vest depending on cantinuing service over a three-year period

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options granted under the Group's plans are as follows

2015 24

Weighted Weighted

average average

Number of exercise Nurnber of exercise

share options price  share options price

Q00s £ BCOs £

Qutstanding at beginning of year 3,507 848 2,792 873
Granted during the year 1.024 1149 1,985 811
Exercised during the year (578) 878 (727} 824
Forfeited duning the year {696) 912 {538} 876
Expired during the year {7 885 (5} 743
Outstanding at end of year 3,250 924 3,507 848
Options exercisablie at end of year 138 889 43 824

Options were exercised regutarfy throughout the year The weighted average share price during the year was

£11 86 (2014 £11 47) Early exercises ansing from redundancy, retirement or death are treated as an acceleration
of vesting and the Group therefore recognises i the iIncome statement the amount that otherwise would have
been recognised for services received over the rematnder of the oniginal vesting period

The options outstanding at the end of the year have weighted average remaining contractual ives and exercise
prices as follows

2015 204

Welghted Weighted

average average

Numberof contractual Numberof  contractual

Range of exercise prices share options life share options life
3 acs Years 000s Years
0-5 - - - -
5-10 2,361 208 3,507 268
>10 889 326 - -
3,250 240 3,507 268

fn 2015 and 2014 options were granted under the Worldwide Save for Shares Plan The welghted average estimated
fair value for the options granted was calculated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model
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26 Share-based payments continued

The weighted average esttmated fair values and the inputs into the Black-Scholes model are as follows

2015 2014

Welghted Wetghted

average average

Fair value £199 £241
Weighted average share price £13 37 £1109
Weighted average exercise price £11 4% £811
Expected volatility 23 00% 2127%
Expected life 37years 39years
Risk-free rate 0 50% 13%
Expected dividend yield 4 44% 4 33%
Forfeiture rate 3 2% 3 4%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the company’s share price over the previous three to

seven years depending on the vesting term of the options

The following shares were granted under restricted share arrangements

2015 2014

Weighted Weighted

Numberof average fair Numbercf averapgefar

shares value shares value

000s £ G0os £

Long-Term Incentive Plan 1,942 12 27 5,875 1144

The fair value of shares granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan that vest unconditionally 1s determined using

the share price at the date of grant The number of shares expected to vest 1s adjusted, based on historical

expernlence, to account for potential forfeitures Restricted shares granted under the Annual Bonus Share Matching
Plan are valued using the share price at the date of grant Participants under both plans are entitled to dividends

during the vesting period and therefore the share price s not discounted

Restricted shares with a market performance candition were valued by an independent actuary using a Monte Carlo
model Restricted shares with a non-market performance condiionwere fair valued based onthe share price atthe
date of grant Non-market performance conditions are taken into consideration by adjusting the number of shares

expected to vest based on the most likely outcome of the relevant performance critena
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27 Share capital and share premium

Number of Ordinary Share

shares shares premium

000s £m £m

At1january 2014 818,580 205 2,568
Issue of ordinary shares - share option schemes 1,303 - 1"
At 31 December 2014 819,883 205 2,579
Issue of ordinary shares - share option schemes 1,185 - "
At 3t December 2015 821,068 205 2,590

The ordinary shares have a par value of 25p per share (2014 25p per share) Allissued shares are fully paid Allshares
have the same nights

The Group manages Its capital to ensure that entitres in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (see note 18), cash and cash equivalents (see note 17) and equity
attributable to equity hofders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earmings

The Group raviews its capital structure on a regular basis and will balance its overall capital structure through
payments of dividends, new share issues as well as the 1ssue of new debt or the redemption of existing debtinline
with the finanaal nsk policies outlined in note 19

28 Treasury shares

Pearson plc
Number of
shares
000s Em
At1 January 2014 9,282 98
Purchase of treasury shares 907 9
Release of treasury shares {2,997} (32)
At 31 December 2014 7192 75
Purchase of treasury shares 1.987 23
Release of treasury shares (2,474) (26)
6,705 72

At 31 December 2¢15

The Group holds Pearson ple shares in trust to satisfy its obligations under its restricted share plans (see note 26)
These shares, representing D 8% (2014 0 9%) of called-up share capital, are treated as treasury shares for accounting

purposes and have a par value of 25p per share
The norminal value of Pearson plc treasury shares amounts to £1 7m (2014 £1 8m)

At 31 December 2015 the market value of Pearson plc treasury shares was £49 3m {2014 £85 6m)
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29 Other comprehensive ncome S
2015 g
Attributable to equity holders E
of the company v
Non
Translation Retained controlling
Allfigures in £ mlllions reserve earnings Total Interest Total
{tems that may be reclassified to the iIncome statement
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations - Group (83) - (83} (2) (85)
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign 3
operations - assoctate 16 - 16 - 16 &
0
Currency translation adjustment disposed - subsidiaries (10) - (10) - {10) %
Attributable tax - 5 S - 5 é
Items that are not reclassified to the Income statement 3
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations - Group - 110 110 - 110
Rermeasurement of renrement benefit obligations - associate - 8 8 - 8
Attributable tax - (24) (24) - (24}
Other comprehensive expense for the year 77 99 22 (¥4} 20
g
'y
2
2014 8
Attributabie to equity holders _g
ofthe company 2
Non -~
Translation Retained controlling
Al (igures im £ mullions reserve earrungs Total interest Total
items that may be reclassified to the income statement
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations - Group 150 - 150 - 150
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign o
operations - associate 25 - 25 - LS
=]
Currency translation adjustment disposed - substdianes (2) - (2) - (2) %
Attnbutable tax - {6) {6) - {6)
Items that are not reclassified to the income statement
Remeasurement of retrement benefit abhigations - Group - 23 23 - 23
Rermeasurement of retirement benefit obligations - associate - (15} (15) - (15)
Attributable tax - 1 m - {1
Other comprehensive expense for the year 173 1 174 - 174
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

30 Business combinations

There were no significant acquisiions in 2015 On 11 February 2014, the Group acquired 100% of Grupo Mult, the
teading adult Englishlanguage training company in Brazil Fair values for the assets and hiabtlities arising from the

Grupo Multi acquisition and other smaller acquisittons completed in the year are set out below

Falr values for the assets and liabilities arising from acquisittons completed in the year are as follows

2015 204

Total Totad
All figures in £ miilions Notes fairvalue falr value
Property, plant and equipment 10 - 2
Intangible assets 1 1 260
Intangible assets - pre-publication 20 - 1
Inventories - 4
Trade and other recevables - 36
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) - 3
Financtal tabilities - borrowings - (49)
Prowisions for other habrlities and charges 23 - {14)
Trade and other liabilities - (24)
Currentincome tax liabilities - (20)
Net assets acquired at fair value 1 199
Goodwiil 1 - 238
Totaj 1 437
Satisfied by
Cash 1 {437)
Total consideration (1) (437)

The goodwll ansing on these acquisitions results from cost and revenue synergies and from assets and benefits that

cannot be separately recognised

There Is no goodwill arising on 2015 acquisitions Goodwill of £240m ansing on 2014 acquisitions Is expected to be

deductible for tax purposes

intangible assets acquired in 2014 have the following useful economic lives customer lists, contracts and
relationships four years, trademarks and brands 20 years, and other acquired intangibles 12 years

Adl figures in Emillions 205 2014

Cash flow on acqutsitions

Cash - current year acquisitions (1) (437)
Deferred payments for prior year acguisitions and other items {6} (5)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired - 3

Acquisition costs and other acquisition habilities paid (2 9
Net cash outflow (9} {448)
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31 Disposals including business closures

2015 2014
All figsres in £ milions FTGroup PowerSchool  Other Taotal Mergermarket Penguin  Other Total
Disposat of subsidiaries
Property, plant and equipment {15) (2) - a7 (2} - (1) {3)
Intangtble assets (46) (19) 5 (70 (12 - - (12)
Investments in joint ventures
and assoclates (8) - - {8) - - ~ -
Intangible assets - pre-publication - {64) - (64} - - - -
Inventories (1 - - (1) - - - -
Trade and other recevables {72) (16) (3 (1) {23} - (2) {25}
Cash and cash equivalents
{excluding overdrafts) (29) - 4 (33 {19) - (11} {30)
Net deferred income tax
(assets)/liabilities {2} - 3 1 1 - - 1
Retirement benefit obligations 7 - - 7 - - - -
Provisions for other iabiiies
and charges 2 - - 2 4 - - 4
Trade and other habikties 109 35 6 150 69 - 12 81
Current ncome tax liabihties 1 - - 1 6 - - 3]
Nern-controliing interest - - - - - - 2) (2)
Attributable goodwill (50) (119) {6) (175) {156) - {1 {157
Cumulative translation adjustment 4 6 10 2 - 2
Net assets disposed {100} (179) (9) (288) (130} - {5} (135)
Cash recewved 858 222 9 1,089 375 - - 375
Deferred proceeds - - - - - - 6 6
Costs 47} (13) {9} (69 {n 29 {2) 26
Gain/(loss) on disposal 711 30 {9y 732 244 29 {1y 272
All figures in £ ritions 2015 24
Cash flow from disposals
Cash - current year disposals 1,089 375
Cash and cash equivalents disposed 33) (30
Costs and other disposal abilities paid (26) (18)
Net cash inflow 1,030 327

included in the gain on sate of PowerSchool 1s the write down of related software assets of £70m The write down
of the software assets reflects the reduced market opportumty for software which was to be integrated with
PowerSchool and the recognition that adoption of such software in US schools is now uniikely to occur at the rate

originally envisaged

Disposal of associates

On 16 October 2015, the Group sofd 39% of its 50% stake in The Economist restfting it a gain on disposal of £473m
The gain comprises proceeds of £377m, gain on revaluation of remaining 11% mvestment to fair value of £92m and

liabihties disposed of £4m
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Noles to the consolidated financial statements continued

32 Cash generated from operations

All figuresin £ milhions Notes 2015 2014
Profit 823 470
Adjustments for

Income tax (24} 110
Depreciation 10 75 74
Amortisation and impairment of acquired intangibles and goodwill Lkl 1,051 264
Amortisation of software 1 74 63
Net finance costs 29 93
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 12 (68) (51)
Profiton disposat of subsidiaries, associates, investments and fixed assets (1,194) (272)
Acquisition costs - 6
Net foreign exchange adjustment from transactions 22 27
Share-based payment costs 26 26 32
Pre-pubitcation (57} (52)
Inventortes 10 6
Trade and other receivables (99) (69}
Trade and other hablities (80) 72
Retirement benefit obligations (57} {58)
Prowisions for other liabilities and charges (13) {11)
Net cash generated from operations 518 704
Dividends from joint ventures and associates 162 120
Purchase of property, plantand equipment (86) (75)
Purchase of intangtble assets (161) (107)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2 9
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 1 2
Finance lease principal payments (1) (@
Operating cash flow A35 649
Operating tax paid (129) (163)
Net operating finance costs paid (51) {(73)
Operating free cash flow 255 13
Non operating tax paid (103) -
Free cash flow 152 413
Dividends paid {(including to non-controlking interests) (423) (398)
Net movement of funds from operations (271) 15
Acquisitions and disposals 1,395 (137}
Loans repaid/(advanced) (including to related parties) 7 {12
Purchase of treasury shares 28 {23) )]
New equity " 11
Other movements on financial instruments (1) 15
Net movement of funds 18 {(117)
Exchange movements on netdebt {133) (143)
Total movement in net debt 985 (260)
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32 Cash generated from operations continued

Net cash generated from operations is translated at an exchange rate approximating the rate at the date of cash
flow The difference between this rate and the average rate used to translate profit gives rise to a currency
adjustment In the reconctliation between net profit and net cash generated from operations This adjustment
reflects the timing difference between recogrition of profit and the related cash receipts or payments

Operating cash flow, operating free cash flow and total free cash flow are non-GAAP measures and have been
disclosed as they are part of Pearson's corporate and operating measures

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise

All figures in £ millions 2015 2014
Net book amount 6 12
Loss an sale of property, plant and equipment 4 (3}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2 9

33 Contingencies

There are contingent Group liabilities that arise in the normal course of business in respect of indemnities,
warranties and guarantess in retation to former subsidiaries and in respect of guarantees in relation to subsidiaries,
Jointventures and associates In addition there are contingent habilities of the Group in respect of legal claims,
contract disputes, royalties, copyright fees, permissions and other rights None of these claims are expected to result
in a material gain or loss to the Group

34 Commitments

Atthe balance sheet date there were no commitments for caprtal expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred

The Group leases vartous offices and warehouses under non-canceflable operating [ease agreements The leases
have varylng terms and renewal rights The Group also leases vanous plant and equipment under operating lease
agreements, also with varying terms Lease expenditure charged to the Income statement was £156m (2014 £157m)

The future aggregate mimimum lease payments in respect of operating leases are as follows ,
All figures in £ millions 215 2014
Not later than one year 164 161
Later than one year and not later than two years 146 150
Later than two years and not later than three years 143 126
Later than three years and not later than four years 130 122
Later than four years and not later than five years 123 115
Later than five years 685 701
1.391 1,375
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Notes to the consolidated financial siatements continued

35 Related party transactions

Jointventures and associates
Amounts advanced to Joint ventures and associates during the year and at the balance sheet date are set out in
nate 12 Apart from transactions with the Group's joint ventures and associates, there were no other matenal

related party transactions

Key management personnel

Key management persannel are deemed to be the members of the Pearson Executive (see page 7) Itis this
committee which had responsibility for planning, directing and controliing the actwities of the Group in 2015
Key management personnel compensation is disclosed below

Aliflguresin Emillions 2015 2014
Short-term employee benefits 7 10
Retirement benefits 1 1
Share-based payment costs 1 2

9 13

Total

There were no other material related party transactrons Mo guarantees have been provided to related parties

36 Events after the balance sheet date

injanuary 2016, Pearson announced thatit was embarking on a restructuring programme to simplify the business,
reduce costs and position the company for growth in its major markets The majonty of the programme is expected
to be complete by mid-year 2016 and will involve implementation costs in 2016 of approximately £320m
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37 Accounts and audit exemptions

The Pearson plc subsidiary compantes listed below are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
relating to the audit of individual accounts by virtue of section 479A

Company number Company numbey
Aldwych Finance Limited 04720439 Pearson Education Lirmted 00872828
ASET Limited 04231636 Pearson Funding Four ple 07970304
ASET Group Limited 03964551 Pearson Funding One plc 02911143
ASET Management Limited 03139404 Pearson Funding Two plc 07210654
Blue Wharf Limited 04344573 Pearson Heinemann Limited 03099304
Burmedia Investments Limited 03060487 Pearson In Practice ATA Limited 07679091
Edexcel Limited 04496750 Pearson In Practice Holdings Limited 06337129
Education Development Internationatplc 03914767 Pearson In Practice Skills Based
Embankment Finance Limited 04460625 Learning Limited 03755464
EQL Assessment Limited 05224778 Pearson in Practice Technology Limited 03786989
Green Wharf Limited 07009228 Pearson International Finance Limited 02496206
icodeon Limited 05068195 Pearson Loan Finance No 2 Unlimited 05632021
Longman Group {Overseas Holdings) Pearson Loan Finance No 3 Limited 05052661
Limited 00690236 Pearson Loan Finance No 4 Lirited 02635107
Midlands Educational Technology Limited 01448842 Pearson Loan Finance Unlimited 05144467
Pearson Affordable Learming Fund Limited 08038068 Pearson Managernent Services Limited 00096263
Pearson Amsterdarm Finance Limited 03041245 Pearson Overseas Holdings Limited 00145205
Pearson Australia Finance Uniimited 05578463 Pearson PRH Holdings Limited 08561316
Pearson Books Limuted 02512075 Pearson Services Lirmted 01341060
Pearson Brazit Finance Ltd 08848874 Pearson Shared Services timited 04623186
Pearson Canada Finance Unkmited 0557849 Testchange Limited 02496240
Pearson Dollar Finance plc 05111013 The Coaching Space bimited 05333023
Pearson Dollar Finance Two plc 06507766 TQ Catalis Limited 07307943
Pearson Education Holdings Limited 0D210859 FQ Clapham Limuted 07307925
Pearson Education Investments Limited 08444933 TQ Global Limited 07802458
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Company balance sheet

As at 31 December 2015

AlHfigures in £ millions Notes 2015 2014
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments i subsidiaries 2 7744 8,740
Amounts due from subsidiaries 3,953 27
Financial assets - derivative financial instruments 78 84
Other financial assets 7 92 -
11,867 8,851
Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries 446 5,220
Amounts due from related parties 47 54
Current income tax assets - 28
Financial assets - denvative finandal instruments 6 3 24
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) 1,168 13
Other assets - 2
1,664 5.341
Total assets 13,531 14,192
Liatilities
Non-current habilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries (3,760) (2,348)
Financial habilities - borrowings 5 (218) {210}
Financial iabiltties - derivative financial instruments {136) {(73)
(4.114) {2,629)
Current habthties
Amounts due to subsidiaries (1.431) (4,414)
Currentmcome tax labilittes (108) -
Financial habshties - borrowings (580) {(629)
Financial habilities - dervative financiatinstruments {29) ()
Other habilities {12) {2}
{2,160) (5,046)
Total habthhies (6,274) (7.675)
Net assets 7,257 6,517
Equity
Share capitaf 205 205
Share premium 2,590 2,579
Treasury shares (27} 1
Special reserve 447 447
Retamned earnings 4,042 3,285
7.257 6,517

Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors on 4 March 2016 and signed onts

behalf by

Coram Wilhams
Chieffinanclal officer

gl




Company statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 December 2015
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Equity attributable to equity holders of the company g
Share Share Treasury Special Retained g
All figures in £ mithons capltal premium shares reserve earnings Total g
At1 [anuary 2015 205 2,579 1 447 3,285 6517 &
Profit for the year - - - - 1,206 1,206
Issue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes* - 1 - - - T
Purchase of treasury shares - - (23} - - {23)
Contribution refund to substdiaries - - (31} - - 31}
Release of treasury shares - - 26 - (26) - o
Dividends - - - - {423) (423) %,
At31 December 2015 205 2,590 {27) 447 4,042 7,257 g
1]
3
Equity attributabte to equity holders of the company
Share Share Treasury Special Retained
Allfigures 1n Emidhons capital premium shares reserve earnings Total
At 1January 2014 205 2,568 (22) 447 2,447 5,645
Profit for the year - - - - 1,267 1,267 o
issue of ordinary shares under §
share option schemes* - M - - - " g
Purchase of treasury shares - - (9) - - @ 3
Release of treasury shares - - 32 - (32) _ A
Dividends - - - - (397) (397}
At 31 December 2014 205 2,579 1 447 3,285 6,517
The special reserve represents the cumulative effect of cancellation of the company’s share premium account
included within retained earnings 1s an amount of £162m (2014 £131m) relating to profit on intra-Group disposals a
that s not distnbutable 2
* Fult detanls of the share-based payment plans are disclosed In note 26 to the consohidated financial statements g
=
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Company cash flow statement

Year ended 31 December 2015

Al figures in Emillions Notes 2015 2014
Cash flows from operating activities
Net profit 1,206 1,267
Adjustments for
Income tax {154} {9
Net finance costs 68 24
Impairment charges 736 -
Profit on disposals (279} -
Amounts due to subsidianies {509) (1,058}
Net cash generated from operations 668 224
Interest paid {56) (73}
Tax receved 289 6
Net cash generated from operating activities 901 157
Cash flows from investing activities
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed 747 -
Loans repatd by/{advanced to) related parties 7 (19
Interest received L} 15
Net cash receved from investing activities 765 5
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds fromissue of ordinary shares 8 1 n
Net purchase of treasury shares (53) 9
Proceeds from/(repayment of) borrowings 17 {250)
Dividends pard to company’s shareholders (423) {397}
Net cash used in financng activities (448) {645)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (14) {15)
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,204 (493)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (616) (118}
4 588 (616)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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Company balance sheet

As at 31 December 2015

Allfiguresin £ millions Notes 2015 2014
Assets
Non-current assets
investments m subsidiaries 2 7,744 8,740
Amaounis due from subsidiartes 3,953 27
Financal assets - dervative financial instruments 6 78 84
Other financial assets 7 92 -
11,867 8,851
Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries 446 5,220
Amounts due from related parties 47 54
Currentincome tax assets - 28
Financial assets - derivative finanaal Instruments 6 3 24
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) 4 1,168 i3
Other assets - 2
1,664 5.341
Total assets 13,531 14,192
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries {3,760) (2,346}
Financial habilities - borrowings 5 (218) (210}
Financial iabifities — derivative financial instruments 6 {136) (73)

{4,114) (2,629

Current habilities

Amounts due to subsidiaries (1,431) (4.414)
Current income tax habilities (108} -
Financial habilities - borrowings 5 {580) {629)
Financial habilities - dervative financial instruments 6 (29) (1)
Other habiities {12) 2
{2,160} {5.046)
Total habuitttes (6,274) (7.675)
Netassets 7,257 6,517
Equity
Share capital 8 205 205
Share premium 8 2,590 2,579
Treasury shares 9 {(27) 1
Special reserve a47 447
Retained earnings 4,042 3,285
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 7.257 6,517

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors on 4 March 2016 and signed onits
behalf by

CoramWilliams
Chief finanaal officer
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Equity attnibutable to equity holders of the company g
Share Share Treasury Special Retained g
Al figures in £ millions capltal premium shares reserve garnings Total g
At1 January 2015 205 2,579 1 447 3,285 6517
Profit for the year - - - - 1,206 1,206
Issue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes* - 11 - - - 11
Purchase of treasury shares - - (23} - - (23)
Contribution refund to subsidiaries - - (31) - - (31
Release of treasury shares - - 26 - (26) - £
Dividends - - - - @23) @23 g
At 31 December 2015 205 2,590 27N 447 4,042 7.257 %
<]
2
1
Equity attributable to equity holders of the company
Share Share Treasury Special Retalned
All figures \n £ millons capitat premium shares rasarve earnings Total
At1January 2014 205 2,568 (22) 447 2,447 5,645
Profit for the year - - - - 1,267 1267 57
Issue of ordinary shares under E-
share option schemes™ - 11 - - - 1% g
Purchase of treasury shares - - %) - - @ 3
Release of treasury shares - - 32 - (32 .t
Dividends - - - - (397) (397)
At 31 December 2014 205 2,579 1 447 3,285 6,517
The special reserve represents the cumulative effect of cancellaban of the company’s share prermium account
Included within retained earmngs 15 an amount of £162m (2014 £131m} relating to profit on intra-Group disposals o
thatis not distributable &
* Full detadls of the share-based payment plans are disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements %
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Company cash flow statement

Year ended 31 December 2015

All figures in £ milhons Notes 2615 2014
Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit 1,206 1,267
Adjustments for

Income tax {154) 9
Netfinance costs 68 24
Impaiwrment charges 736 -
Profitondisposals o e
Amountsduetosubsidiares ©09)  (1,058)
Net cash generated from operations 668 224
Interest pa:d (56) (73}
Tax recewved 289 6
Net cash generated from operating activities 201 157
Cash flows frominvesting activities

Disposal of subsidianes, net of cash disposed 747 -
Loans repaid by/(advanced to) related parties 7 (10)
Interest received 1 15
Net cash recewved frominvesting actvities 765 5
Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from1ssue of ordinary shares 8 1 11
Net purchase of treasury shares 53) (9
Proceeds from/{repayment of} borrowings 17 {250)
Dividends patd ta company's shareholders 423) (397}
Net cash used in financing activities {448) (645)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (14) {15}
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents 1,204 {498)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year {616) (118)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4 588 616)




222  Pearson plc Annual repert and accounts 2015

Five-year summary

All figures in £millions 201 2012 2013 2014 2015
Sales By geography*
North America 3,008 2,906 2,840
Core 1,008 910 836
Growth 712 724 692
Continuing 4,390 4,615 4,728 4,540 4,468
Discontinued 1,472 1,497 962 343 312
Total sales 5.862 6,112 5,690 4,883 4,780
Sales By line of bustness*
School 2,303 2,027 1,880
Higher Educatton 1,664 1,695 1,736
Professional 761 818 852
Continuing 4,390 4615 4,728 4,540 4,468
Discontinued 1472 1,497 962 343 312
Total sales 5,862 6,112 5.690 4,883 4,780
Adjusted operating profit By geography*
North America 464 444 480
Care 103 122 114
Growth 35 32 (12
Penguin Random House 50 69 90
Continuing 751 785 652 667 672
Discontinued 187 147 84 55 51
Total adjusted operating profit 938 932 736 722 723
Adjusted operating profit: By hne of business*
School 268 236 183
Higher Education 295 309 354
Professional 39 53 45
Penguin Random House - - 50 69 20
Continuing 751 785 652 667 672
Discontinued 187 147 84 55 51
938 932 736 722 723

Total adjusted operating profit

* Periods prior to 2013 have not been restated to reflect the new organisation structure as theress no appropnate basis for restatement of those

penods 2011 onwards reflect the adoption of IAS 19revised and have been restated asapproprate Prior periods have not beenrestated
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Al figures in £ mihons

20m

202

2013

2014

2015

Operating margin - continuing 171% 170% 13 8% 147% 15 0%
Adyusted earnings

Total adjusted aperating profit 938 932 736 722 723
Net finance costs (55) {65) {72) (64} {46}
Income tax (196) {(200) {(97) (118) {(105)
Non-controiling interest 1 (3} 4] 1 -
Adjusted earnings 688 664 566 541 572
Weighted average number of shares (milllons) 8002 8043 8078 8109 8133
Adjusted earnings per share 86 0p 826p 701p 66 7p 70 3p
Allfigures in £ millions 20M 202 2013 2014 2015
Cash flow

Operating cash flow 983 788 588 649 435
Operating cash conversion 105% 85% 80% 90% 60%
Operating free cash fiow 772 657 324 43 255
Operating free cash flow per share 96 5p 817p 401p 509p 314p
Tota! free cash flow 772 657 269 413 152
Total free cash flow per share 96 5p 817p 33 3p 509 187p
Net assets 5962 5,710 5,706 5,985 6,418
Netdebt 499 918 1,379 1,639 654
Return on invested capital (gross basis)

Total adjusted operating profit 938 932 736 722 723
Cash tax paid (151) (65} (191} (163} (125}
Return 787 867 545 559 594
Average invested capital 873N 9,578 10,130 9,900 10,317
Return on invested capital 9 0% 91% 5 4% 56% 5 8%
Dwvtdend per share 42 0p 45 0p 48 0p 510p 520p
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Corporate and operating measures

Sales - underlying and constant exchange rate movement

Underlying safes movements exclude the impact of acquisitions/disposals, movements i exchange rates and
changes In revenue recogmtion policies

All flgures in E mullions 2015
Underlying decrease (80)
Portfolio changes (129)
Exchange differences 137
Totai sales decrease (72}
Underlying decrease (2)%
(5)%

Constant exchange rate decrease

Adjusted income statement

Reconailtation of the consolidated iIncome statement to the adjusted numbers presented as non-GAAP measures

in the finanoial statements

2015
QOther nat
Statutory Other finance Tax  Adjusted
income Discontinued  netgains Acquisition Intangible income/ amortsaton income
AH figures in £milliens statement  operations and|osses Costs charges costs beneflt statement
Operating (loss)/profit (404) 51 (13) - 1,089 - - 723
Net finance costs {29} - - - - {17) - (46)
{Loss)/profit before tax {433} 51 (13} - 1,089 (17 - 677
Income tax 81 (9) 40 - (257) 7 33 {105)
(Loss)/profit for the year
from continuing operations (352) 42 27 - 832 {10) 33 572
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 1,175 42y (1,135) - 2 - - -
Profit for the year 823 - (1,108) - 834 (10) a3 572
Noan-controling interest - - - - - - - -
Earmings 823 - (1,108) - 834 (10) 33 572
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Adjusted iIncome statement continued

2004
Othernet
Statutory Other finance Tax  Adjusted
income Discontinued  netgalns Acquisition  tntangible Income/  amortisation income
Allfigures in £ milliens statement  operaticns  andlosses casts charges COsts benefit statement
Operating profit 398 2 (2) 6 318 - - 722
Netfinance costs {33) - - - - 29 - (64)
Profit before tax 205 2 (2) 6 318 29 - 658
Income tax (63) {n 1 N {(73) (5) 24 (118}
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 242 1 m 5 245 24 24 540
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 228 (1 (227) - - - - -
Profit for the year 470 - {228) 5 245 24 24 540
Non-controlimg interest 1 - - - - - - 1
Earnings a7 - (228) 5 245 24 24 541
Adjusted operating profit - underlying and constant exchange rate movement
Operatng profit movement excluding the impact of acquisitions, disposals and movements In exchange rates
Allfigures in £ mililons 2015
Underlying decrease (12)
Portfolto changes 9
Exchange differences 22
Total adjusted operating profit increase 1
Underlying decrease (2)%
Constant exchange rate decrease (3)%
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Corporate and operating measures continued

Free cash flow per share

Operating cash flow for continuing and discontinued operations before tax and finance charges, divided by the
weighted average number of shares inissue

Al figures in € millions 2015 2004
Adjusted operating profit 723 722
Cash conversion 60% S0%
Operating cash flow 435 649
Operating tax paid {129) (163)
Net operating finance costs paid {51) (73)
Total operating free cash flow 255 413
Non operaung tax paid (103} -
Total free cash flow 152 413
Weighted average number of shares 1n 1ssue {milhans) 8133 8109
Operating free cash flow per share 3.4p 50 9p
Total free cash flow per share 18 7p 509p
Return on invested capital

Invested capital
Allfiguresin £ millions 2015 204
Total adjusted operating profit 723 722
Operating tax paid {129) {163)
Return 594 559
Average goodwill and other intangibles 8,715 8,557
Average net operating assets 1,602 1,343
Average invested capital 10,317 9,900
Return on invested capital 58% 56%

Return on invested capital is calculated as total adjusted operating profit less operating cash tax paid expressed as a
percentage of average invested capital Invested capital includes the onginal unamortised goodwill and intangibles
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Pearson ordinary shares are listed on the London Stock
Exchange and on the New York Stock Exchange in the
form of American Depositary Receipts

Corporate website

The investors' sectlon of our corporate website

www pearson com/mvestors provides a wealth

of infermation for sharehotders itis also possible

to sign up to recelve e-mail alerts for reports and

press releases relating to Pearson at .
www pearson com/news/newsletter-subscribe html §

Shareholder information online

Shareholder information can be found on our website
www pearson com/investors/
mvestor-infermation html

Qur registrar, Equinit), also provides a range of
shareholder information onltne You can check your
holding and find practical help on transferring shares
or updating your detalls at www shareview co uk

For more information, please contact our registrar,
Equinitl, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing,

West Sussex BN99 6DA Telephone 0371 3842233*
or, for those shareholders with hearing difficulties,
textphone number 0371 384 2255*

Informatton about the Pearson share price

The company’s share price can be found on our website
atwww pearson com [t also appears in the finangal
columns of the nattonal press

2015 dividends

Payrnent date Amount per share
Interm 11 September 2015 18 pence
Final 6May 2016 34 pence

Payment of dividends to mandated accounts

Should you elect to have your dividends pald through
BACS, this can be done directly into a bank or building
soclety account, with the tax voucher sent to the
shareholder's registered address Equinitican be
contacted for information on 0371 384 2043*

Dividend reinvestment plan {DRIP)

The DRIP gives shareholders the nght to buy the
company’s shares on the London stock market with
thetr cashdividend For further information, please
contact Equiriti on 0371 384 2268*

Indvidual Savings Accounts (ISAs)

Equinit offers ISAs In Pearson shares For more
infarmation, please go to www shareview co uk/dealing
or call customer services on 0345 3000430*

Share dealing facilities

Equinth offers telephone and internet services for
dealing in Pearson shares For further information,
please contact their telephone dealing helpline on
03456 037 037* or, for online dealing, log on to
www shareview co uk/dealing Youwill need your
shareholder reference number as shown on your
share certificate

A postal dealing service 1s also available through
Equiniti Please telephone 0371 384 2248* far details or
log on to www shareview co uk to download a form

ShareGift

Shareholders with small holdings of shares, whose
value makes them uneconomic {o sell, may wish

to denate them to ShareGift, the share donation
chanty {registered chanty number 1052686}

Further information about ShareGift and the charities
it has supportad may be obtained from their website,
www ShareGift org or by contacting them at ShareGift,
PO Box 72253, London, SW1P 9LQ

Amenican Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

Pearson’s ADRs are histed on the New York Stock
Exchange and traded under the symbel PSO Each ADR
represents one ordinary share Forenquines regarding
registered ADR holder accounts and dividends,

please cantact Bank of New York Mellon, Shareholder
Correspondence (ADR), PO Box 30170, College Station,
TX 77842-3170, telephone 1 (866) 259 2289 (toll free
withint the US) or 001 201 680 6825 (outside the US)
Alternatively, you may e-mail ,
shrrelations@cpushareownerservices comg

Voting rights for registered ADR holders can be
exercised through Bank of New York Mellon, and for
beneficial ADR holders {and/or nominee accounts)
through your US brokerage institutton Pearson will
file with the Secunties and Exchange Commission
aForm 20-F

*Lines open 8 30am to 5 30pm Monday to Friday {excluding UK
public hohdays)
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Shareholder information continued

Share register fraud protecting your investment

2016 financiat calendar !

Pearson does not contact its shareholders directly

to provide recommendation advice and neither does

it appointthird parties to do so As required by law,

our shareholder register s avaitable for public
inspection but we cannot controf the use of information
ohtained by persons inspecting the register Please
treat any approaches purporting to originate from
Pearsonwith caution

For more information, please log on to our website at
www pearson com/Investors/
investor-information htmlg

Tips on protecting your shares

» Keep any documentation that contains your
shareholder reference number in a safe place
and shred any unwanted documentation

» Inform aur registrar, Equinity, promptly when you
change address

» Be aware of dvidend payment dates and contact the
registrar if you do not receive your dividend cheque or
better still, make arrangemenits to have the dvidend
paid directly into your bank account

» Consider holding your shares electronically in a CREST
accountvia a nominee

Ex-dividend date 7 Apnil
Record date sApnl
Last date for dividend rainvestment election 14 Apnil
Annual General Meeting 29 April
Payment date for dividend and share

purchase date for dividend relnvestment 6 May
Intenim resuits the*
Payment date for interim dividend the*

*tp be announced during 2016



Rehance on this document

The intention of this document s to provide
nformation to shareholders and 1s not designed to be
relied upon by any other party or for any other purpose

Forward-looking statements

Except for the histancalinformation contained
herein, the matters discussed in this document
include forward-looking statements In particular,

all statements that express forecasts, expectations
and projections with respect to future matters,
including trends in results of operations, margins,
growth rates, overall market trends, the impact

of interest or exchange rates, the availability of
financing, anticipated costs savings and synergles
and the execution of Pearson's strategy, are forward-
looking statements By their nature, forward-looking
statements involve risks and uncertainties because
they relate to events and depend on arcumstances
that will occur in future They are based on numerous

assurmplions regarding Pearson's present and future
business strategies and the environmentin which it
will operate in the future There are a number of factars
which could cause actual results and developments

to differ materially from those expressed or imphed

by these forward-looking statements, including a
number of factors outside Pearson's control These
include international, national and local conditions,
aswell as competition They also include other risks
detalled from time to time in Pearson's publicly-filed
documents and you are advised toread, in particular,
the risk factors set out in this document Any forward-
looking statements speak only as of the date they are
macde, and Pearson gives no undertaking to update
forward-tooking statements to reflect any changes in
Its expectations with regard thereto or any changes to
events, conditions or circumstances on which any such
statement 1s based No reliance should be placed on
forward-looking statements
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